$ICAM\Sigma'18$

International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering

June 27-29, 2018 - Balikesir, TURKEY

http://icame.balikesir.edu.tr



June 27-29, 2018 - Balikesir, TURKEY

International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering

Abstract Book

June, Balıkesir

Cite articles as follows:

Author surname, Initial., Author surname, Initial., Paper Title. In Proceedings of the First International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME'18), Balikesir, Turkey, June 27-29, 2018, Page number.

ISBN: 978-605-65071-8-2

Preface

We would like to welcome all participants to join "The First International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME'18)", which will be held from June 27 to June 29, 2018 in Burhaniye/Balikesir, Turkey.

This conference allows an ideal academic platform for researchers to present the latest research and evolving findings of applied mathematics on engineering, physics, chemistry, biology, and statistics.

The conference also provides the opportunity of discussing advances in the field of applied mathematics, its effect on engineering and real-life problems. Especially, the conference discusses the most current applied mathematical problems in the world. For example, fractional calculus and its real-life applications, mathematical modeling in health science and engineering, optimization and control in engineering, non-linear dynamical systems and chaos, optimization and control problems are main topics of the conference.

In this conference, 224 oral presentations will be given to an audience with over 180 participants from 15 countries including Turkey, Argentina, Germany, Pakistan, India, Libya, Iran, United Kingdom, Portugal, Romania, Bulgaria, Morocco, South Africa, USA and Saudi Arabia.

We would like to express our gratitude to the Rectorate of Balikesir University for their support and Balikesir Metropolitan Municipality President Zekai Kafaoğlu, Karesi Mayor Yucel Yilmaz, Altieylul Mayor Hasan Avci and Burhaniye Mayor Nejdet Uysal.

ICAME18 is an achievement of international cooperation we continuously endeavor to carry out and develop. In this context, on behalf of the chairs of this conference, we would particularly like to thank: Co-chair J.A.Tenreiro Machado (Polytechnic of Porto, Portugal), plenary speakers Albert C. J. Luo (Southern Illinois University Edwardsville, USA) and Jordan Y. Hristov (University of Chemical Technology and Metallurgy, Bulgaria), invited speakers Carla Pinto (School of Engineering, Polytechnic of Porto, Portugal), Mehmet Kemal Leblebicioğlu (Middle East Technical University, Turkey) and Ekrem Savaş (Uşak University, Turkey) as well as the organizers of special sessions, and the members of the international scientific committee for their contributions and supports.

We would like to extend our best wishes to all of you with a hope that you go back with actual and more powerful ideas, and with new science networks renewed or extended.

Best wishes for an enjoyable and memorable conference.

On behalf of the organization committee,

Chair	Co-chair	Co-chair	Co-chair
Ramazan Yaman	J. A. Tenreiro Machado	Dumitru Baleanu	Necati Ozdemir
Istanbul Gelisim	Polytechnic of Porto	Cankaya University	Balikesir University
University			

Committee

Honorary Chair

Kerim Ozdemir, Balikesir University (Rector), Turkey

Chair

Ramazan Yaman, Istanbul Gelisim University, Turkey

Co-chairs

J. A. Tenreiro Machado, Polytechnic Institute of Porto, Portugal Necati Ozdemir, Balikesir University, Turkey Dumitru Baleanu, Cankaya University, Turkey

International Scientific Committee

Afraimovich, V., Mexico Agarwal, R.P., USA Agarwal, P., India Ahmad, I., Saudi Arabia Akin, O., Turkey Andrade, J.M., UK Area, I., Spain Atanackovic, T., Serbia Atangana, A., South Africa Ayaz, F., Turkey Bagirov, A., Australia Baskonus, H.M., Turkey Baleanu, D., Turkey Bulut H., Turkey Caputo, M., Italy Cattani, C., Italy Celik, E., Turkey Chen, W., China Dassios, I., Ireland Debbouche, A., Algeria El-Khazali, R., United Arab Emirates El-Sayed, A., Egypt Erdogan, F., Turkey Erturk, V.S., Turkey Golmankhaneh, A.K., Iran Gulsu, M., Turkey Hammouch, Z., Morocco Holm, S., Norway Hristov, J., Bulgaria Inc, M., Turkey Jafari, H., South Africa Karapinar, E., Turkey Kava, D., Turkev Kazmi, I., Pakistan Keedwell, E.C., UK

Klimek, M. Poland Konuralp, A., Turkey Kumar, D., India Leblebicioglu, K., Turkey Li, C.P., China Liu, F., Australia Luo, A.C.I, USA Machado, J.A.T., Portugal Magin, R. L., USA Marin, M., Romania Mandzuka, S., Crotia Markowski, K.A, Poland Merdan, H., Turkey Momani, S., Jordan Nigmatullin, R. R., Russia Pinto, C.M., Portugal Podlubny, I., Slovakia Povstenko, Y., Poland Prodanov, D., Belgium Sakar, M. G., Turkey Sari, M., Turkey Shimizu, N., Japan Sproessig, W., Germany Sulaiman, S., Malaysia Tabucanon, M.T., Thailand Tarasov, V.E., Russia Thuto, M.V., Botswana Torres, D.F.M., Portugal Townley, S, UK Trujillo, J.J., Spain Weber, G.W., Poland Wu, G.C., China Yang, X.J., China Zhang, D.Z., UK

Organizing Committee

Yaman, R., Turkey (Chair) Machado, J.A.T., Portugal (Co-chair)

Local Organizing Committee

Avci, D., Turkey Demirtas, M., Turkey Ergun, K., Turkey Evirgen, F., Turkey Gungor, B., Turkey Inan, D., Turkey Iskender Eroğlu, B.B., Turkey Karaoglan, A.D., Turkey Kaymak, O.O., Turkey Baleanu, D., Turkey (Co-chair) Ozdemir, N., Turkey (Co-chair)

Kucukkoc, I., Turkey Kucukseyhan, T., Turkey Kuvat, G., Turkey Onur, S., Turkey Sis, S.A., Turkey Ucar, S., Turkey Yaman, G., Turkey Yavuz, M., Turkey Yildirim, H.H., Turkey

Plenary Speakers

Albert C. J. Luo

Southern Illinois University Edwardsville, USA



Towards infinite countable bifurcation trees of period-m to chaos in nonlinear dynamical systems with saddle-nodes

In this talk, infinite bifurcation trees of periodic motions to chaos in in nonlinear dynamical systems with saddle-nodes are addressed. The bifurcation trees of periodic motions to chaos in nonlinear dynamical systems is very significant for a better understanding of motion complexity. When a slowly varying excitation becomes very slow, the infinite bifurcation trees of period-1 motions to chaos in nonlinear dynamical systems can be achieved once the corresponding excitation amplitude approaches infinity.

Towards infinite bifurcation trees in the Duffing oscillator and pendulum are discussed as examples.

J. A. Tenreiro Machado

Institute of Engineering, Polytechnic of Porto, Portugal



Fractional Calculus: Fundamentals, Concepts and Some Applications

Fractional Calculus (FC) started in 1695 when L'Hopital wrote a letter to Leibniz asking for the meaning of Dny for n = 1/2. Starting with the ideas of Leibniz many important mathematicians developed the theoretical concepts. By the beginning of the twentieth century Olivier Heaviside applied FC in the electrical engineering, but, the visionary and important contributions were forgotten. Only during the eighties FC emerged associated with phenomena such as fractal and chaos and, consequently, in nonlinear dynamical. In the last years, FC become 'new' tool for the analysis of dynamical systems. This lecture introduces the FC fundamental concepts and presents several

applications in distinct areas of science and engineering.

Jordan Hristov

University of Chemical Technology and Metallurgy, Bulgaria



Exponential and Related Non-Singular Memories: What is following after that in modelling technology?

The recently appeared fractional operators with non-singular memory kernel described by exponential (Caputo-Fabrizio derivative) and generalized Mittag-Leffler function (Atangana-Baleanu derivative) raise many questions about their properties and mainly about their physical relevance and applications. This lecture focuses on the physics provoking creations of such fractional operators, compare their properties with the features of the well-known fractional operators with singular kernels and mainly, try to clarify what really we may model with them.

Invited Speakers

Carla Pinto

School of Engineering, Polytechnic of Porto, Portugal



On recent applications of non-integer order models to biological systems

Research on fractional order (FO) models has suffered an extraordinary boost in the last few decades. The main reason is that FO models provide a more complete understanding of the complex dynamics of biological systems, than their integer order counterparts. In this talk, we will do a review on applications of FO models to biological systems, with emphasis to epidemiological models. We will discuss equilibria, stability of equilibria, reproduction number, and the role of the FO derivative in the epidemics' drama.

Mehmet Kemal Leblebicioglu

Middle East Technical University, Turkey



parameters and

Observability, Controllability and Identifiability Problems in Some Unmanned Air, Sea and Underwater Vehicles

Unmanned vehicles have become increasingly important in military and civil world. In parallel with the increasing importance, many research problems have arisen as regards to these vehicles. Among them, maybe the foremost one is the construction of mathematical models associated with these vehicles, which are mostly nonlinear and very complicated. A researcher must decide on how complicated the model should be if a simulation with the aim of design is to be performed on this model. Determination of model designing the vehicle is a highly nested procedure.

Even when a physical model has been constructed, a system identification procedure is often necessary to be used in the development of autopilot and guidance studies. This is basically solving a multiple global optimum optimization problem. Usually, help from the physical side is required; otherwise optimization algorithm may yield a completely unrealistic set of model parameters.

These models are absolutely necessary in order to develop controllers which are called autopilots. There are well known controller structures as well as very interesting nonlinear controllers. Lately, intelligent controllers have been developed for accomplishing certain actions which are almost impossible to succeed with traditional ones.

Finally, these unmanned vehicles frequently operate autonomously; This requires a reference should signal to be fed to the controller. This is the part which is the most intelligent; Usually image processing and pattern recognition kind of computations are followed by target tracking. In this speech, all these problems will be discussed on some unmanned air, sea surface and underwater vehicles that I and my group have developed. Some directions of research will be indicated as well.

Ekrem Savas

Usak University, Turkey



Some New Sequence Spaces

In this paper, we investigate some new sequence spaces of strongly lacunary almost summable sequences, which naturally come up for investigation and which will fill up a gap in the existing literature and introduce the spaces of strongly lacunary almost summable sequences which happen to be complete paranormed spaces under certain conditions. Some topological results, characterization of strongly lacunary almost regular matrices, uniqueness of generalized limits and inclusion relations of such sequences have been discussed.

Special Sessions

Modelling & Optimization

Gerhard-Wilhelm Weber, Poznan University of Technology, Poland Ramazan Yaman, Istanbul Gelisim University, Turkey Ahmet Sahiner, Suleyman Demirel University, Turkey Aslan Deniz Karaoglan, Balikesir University, Turkey Firat Evirgen, Balikesir University, Turkey

Theme

The goal of this session is to discuss recent developments in applications of optimization methods by bringing together researchers and practitioners working in the field of optimization theory, methods, software and related areas.

Topics

Mathematical programming Global optimization Nondifferential optimization Continuous optimization Combinatorial optimization Multicriteria optimization Equilibrium programming Operations research Game theory Data mining Population based algorithms Artificial intelligence technologies Applications of optimization in natural sciences Applications of optimization in engineering Energy systems modelling and optimization

Control Theory & Applications

Kemal Leblebicioglu, METU, Turkey Metin Demirtas, Turkey Beyza Billur Iskender Eroglu, Balikesir University, Turkey

Theme

This session aims to discuss a broad range of topics including current trends of linear, nonlinear, discrete and fractional control systems as well as new developments in robotics and mechatronics, unmanned systems, energy systems with the goal of strengthening cooperation of control and automation scientists with industry.

Topics

Adaptive control Linear and nonlinear control systems Optimal control Discrete time control systems Robust control Fractional order systems and control Chaotic systems and control Evolutionary and heuristic control Robotic control Energy management and control Control of unmanned air and undersea vehicles

Fractional Calculus with Applications in Biology

Dumitru Baleanu, Cankaya University, Turkey Carla Pinto, School of Engineering, Polytechnic of Porto, Portugal Necati Ozdemir, Balikesir University, Turkey

Theme

The goal of this session is to bring together creative and active researchers, in theoretical analysis and numerical tools, to discuss recent developments in applications of fractional order models of biological models. Fractional order models have become ubiquitous research topics in the last few decades. Their memory property contributes to a better and profound understanding of the dynamics of real world models, namely of biological population problems. Stochastic and deterministic models and coinfection models, as well as computational models, are welcome for HIV, HCV, Ebola, Zika, etc, in this session.

Topics

New numerical methods to solve fractional differential equations Deterministic and stochastic fractional differential equations Computational methods for fractional differential equations Bifurcation theory Stability theory Cancer development models: chaos, synchronization Applications in bioengineering, medicine, ecology, biology, epidemiology

Numerical Methods in Fractional Calculus

Hossein Jafari, UNISA, South Africa Mustafa Inc, Firat University, Turkey Ali Konuralp, Celal Bayar University, Turkey

Theme

In the few decades, fractional differential equations have played a very important role in various fields. Based on the wide applications in engineering and sciences such as physics, mechanics, chemistry, and biology, research on fractional ordinary or partial differential equations and other relative topics is active and extensive around the world. In the past few years, the increase of the subject is witnessed by hundreds of research papers, several monographs, and many international conferences. The objective of this special session is to highlight the importance of numerical methods and their applications and let the readers of this journal know about the possibilities of this new tool.

Topics

New methods for solving fractional differential equations Controllability of fractional systems of differential equations or numerical methods applied to the solutions of fractional differential equations applications in physics, mechanics, and so forth Iteration methods for solving partial and ordinary fractional equations Numerical methods for solving fractional integro-differential equations Numerical functional analysis and applications Local and nonlocal boundary value problems for fractional partial differential equations Stochastic partial fractional differential equations and applications Computational methods in fractional partial differential equations Numerical methods for solving variable order differential equations Perturbation methods for fractional differential equations

Discrete Fractional Calculus with Applications

G. C. Wu, Neijiang Normal University, China Ioannis Dassios, ESIPP, University College Dublin (UCD), Dublin, Ireland

Theme

Difference equations of fractional order have recently proven to be valuable tools in the modeling of many phenomena in various fields of science and engineering. Indeed, we can find numerous applications in viscoelasticity, electrochemistry, control, porous media, electromagnetism, and so forth. At this point it is strongly believed that the fractional discrete operators can have important contribution in generalizing this idea to classical mechanics, non-relativistic quantum mechanics and relativistic quantum field theories.

The theory of discrete fractional equations is also a promising tool for several biological and physical applications where the memory effect appears. The dynamics of the complex systems are better described within this new powerful tool. The nanotechnology and its applications in biology for example as well as the discrete gravity are fields where the fractional dis- crete models will play an important role in the future.

Topics

New methods for solving fractional difference equations The Nabla operator and its application Fractional difference equations applied in physics, mechanics, and macroeconomics Numerical methods for solving non-linear fractional difference equations Stochastic fractional difference equations and applications Discrete time systems of fractional order Stability results for systems of fractional difference equations Perturbation theory for systems of fractional difference equations

New Fractional Derivatives and Their Applications

Dumitru Baleanu, Cankaya University, Turkey Jordan Hristov, Sofia, Bulgaria Derya AVCI, Balikesir University, Turkey

Theme

Nowadays, there has been an increasing interest to the new types of fractional derivatives. The wellknown fractional derivatives such as Riemann-Liouville, Caputo, Riesz are successful for modelling real World problems. In addition, these fractional operators give the memory and hereditary effects in physical phenomena. However, these are non-local operators described by convolution integrals with weakly singular kernels. Due to these structures, some complexities can naturally occur in the mathematical modelling and solution processes. Because of these hardness, many researchers have paid attention to introduce new derivatives with fractional parameter in the last years. Caputo-Fabrizio, Atangana-Baleanu, Beta, Conformable derivatives with fractional parameter are pioneering definitions in this sense.

Topics

Description of new fractional derivatives New properties of new fractional derivatives Integral transform techniques in sense of new fractional operators New analytical/numerical methods Mathematical modelling in terms of new fractional operators Foundation of new relations between existing and new fractional operators

Nonlinear Dynamical Systems and Chaos

Huseyin Merdan, TOBB ETU, Turkey Songul Kaya Merdan, METU, Turkey Esra Karaoglu, THK University, Turkey

Theme

This special session focuses on the dynamics of complex systems, which are one of the most attractive subjects of the modern sciences. The attractiveness of this particular area arises from two different aspects: The first one is that it provides challenges, which are connected with many uncertainties in description of irregular motions. The second one is methods of investigation, which are not yet well developed and established. Applications of complex dynamics investigations are very important and deal with a wide range of problems. They begin with mechanical problems and extend to earthquake prediction and social sciences problems. We are interested in those investigations in electrical and mechanical engineering, physics, biology, economics, finance, neuroscience, computer sciences, fluid dynamics and earthquake monitoring, which urgently need mathematical modeling of their problems and analysis through nonlinear dynamical systems approach.

Topics

ODE, DDE and PDE based modelling for
complex systems
Dynamical systems and chaos
Bifurcation theory
Synchronization
Control theory
Fluid Dynamics
Stochastic complex dynamical systems and
randomness
Hybrid systems
Complex networks based-models
Neural Networks
Bio-engineering, bio-imaging and bio-fluids
Population dynamics and conservation biology

Ecosystems Evolution and ecology Epidemiology and disease modeling Neuroscience Regulatory networks Cell and Tissue biophysics Evolution and populations genetics Cell and developmental biology Cancer and immunology Environmental sciences Social economy systems Climate change Financial engineering Mathematical finance

Analytical and Numerical Methods for Solving Nonlinear Partial Differential Equations

Hasan Bulut, Firat University, Turkey Zakia Hammouch, Universite Moulay Ismail FSTE Errachidia, Morocco H. Mehmet Baskonus, Munzur University, Turkey Elhoussine Azroul, Universite Sidi Mohamed Ben Abdellah, Morocco

Theme

Nowadays, partial differential equations (PDEs) have been recognized as a powerful modeling methodology. Most of the phenomena arising in mathematical physics, chemistry, biology and engineering fields can be expressed by PDEs. Many engineering applications are simulated mathematically as PDEs with initial and boundary conditions. Therefore, it becomes increasingly important to highlight the importance of PDEs and to be familiar with all traditional and recently developed methods for solving them. This special issue is concerned with recent works in the field of partial differential equations, various analytical and numerical methods for solving them and the implementation of such methods.

Topics

Analytical methods for partial differential equations Iteration methods for partial differential equations Invariant, symmetry and similarity solutions for partial differential equations Numerical methods for partial differential equations Perturbation methods for partial differential equations Polynomials approximation methods for partial differential equations Stochastic partial differential equations and applications

Fractal and Fractional Calculus

Alireza Khalili Golmankhaneh, Iran

Theme

The goal of this session is to bring together researchers to discuss about fractal geometry and analysis on them. Fractal analysis was studied using different methods such as probabilistic approach, measure approach, harmonic calculus, and fractional spaces. Recently, F^a-Calculus was suggested as a framework which is algorithmic. F^a-C is a generalization of the standard Riemann calculus which utilized on fractal sets and parametrized fractal curves. F^a-C was used to model the anomalous diffusion in porous media and involves local fractional orders derivative that has important role in the applications. Non-local derivatives on fractal were defined to model the process with memory effect on them. Sup-and supper diffusion were characterized on totally disconnected fractal sets. Any research related to fractal geometry, fractal analysis for different kind of the fractals, or solving corresponding differential equation utilizing numerical or analytical methods, is welcome in this session.

Topics

Fractal dimensions and relations F^a-Calculus and the generalization Fractional spaces connections with fractals Random walk on fractals Laplacian on fractal Spectral dimension and connections with the physical properties Fractal antenna and properties Fractal geometry application in medical, biomedical, Astronomy, Computer science, Fluid mechanics, Telecommunications, Surface physics

Contents

Preface	2
Committee	3
Plenary Speakers	5
Invited Speakers	6
Special Sessions	8
Contents	13
Abstracts	21
Integrated Assembly Line Balancing and Feeding Problem	21
Mechanical Fault Diagnosis using the Frequency Response Analysis in Electrical Machines	22
Alternative Methods for Adaptive Exponential Smoothing and the Effect of Used Constants on Forecasting	23
A Labor Migration Model with Fractional Derivatives	24
Hierarchies in the Clusters of Borsa Istanbul	25
New Optimal Solutions for Additive Manufacturing Production Planning Problem to Minimise Cost	26
A Numerical Study of Initial Flow Past an Oscillating Circular Cylinder	27
Numerical Simulation of Some Partial Differential Equations by Homotopy Perturbation Sumudu Transform Method	28
Applications of Exp (-φ (ξ)) Expansion Method to Some Partial Differential Equations for Finding Exa Solutions	ıct 29
An Adaptive Evolutionary Algorithm Integrated with Neighborhood Search Heuristics for Solving Mu objective Flexible Job Shop Scheduling Problem	ılti- 30
Global Nonexistence of Solutions for a Coupled Nonlinear Wave Equations with Degenerate Damping Terms	; 31
Cooling and Pasteurizing Eggs	32
Blow up of Solutions for a Timoshenko Equations with Positive and Negative Initial Energy	33
Numerical Modelling of MHD Convection Flow in Cavities	34
Stability of Unsteady MHD Flow in a Rectangular Duct	35
Asset Flow Differential Equations	36
Generalized Curvature of the Contact Curve Based on The Local Surface Frame	37
The DRBEM Solution of the Cauchy MHD Flow in a Duct with one of the Walls is Slipping and Variably Conducting	y 38
Power Law of Cross Correlation Between the North Atlantic Oscillation and Precipitation	39
Detrended Fluctuation Analysis of Drought Over Turkey	40
A Series Formula for Prabhakar Fractional Operators	41
Approximate Solutions to Initial Value Problems for Fractional Differential Equations	42

Approximate Controllability of Non-Autonomous Sobolev-Type Differential Equations with Nonlocal Conditions	43
Fractal Koch Curve Antenna and Their Dimension	44
Compressive Spectral Method for the Simulation of the Water Waves	45
On the Analytical Solutions of the Fractional Partial Differential Equations	47
A Hybrid MCDM Based QFD Approach for Supplier Selection Problem	48
A Simultaneous Optimization Model for Distribution Planning and Supplier Selection in Closed Loop Supply Chain Network	49
Modelling and 3D Printing of a Complex IPMS Gyroid	50
Solid Modelling and 3D Printing of an Object Based on Koch's Snowflake Fractal	51
Mixed Element Modeling via Newton's Method	52
An epidemiological model for the cross-species transmission dynamics of brucellosis in Turkey	53
An Implementation of Auto-Bäcklund Transformation	54
Proper Orthogonal Decomposition Method for the Darcy-Brinkman Equations	55
A Game Theoretical Approach for The Emergency Evacuation	56
Optimization for Supply Chain Planning After Disasters with Cooperative Game Theory under Uncertainty	57
Discrete Adomian Decomposition Method for Fractional Difference Equations	58
Discrete-Time Control of Fractional Dynamic Systems	59
Stability of Mechanical Systems Containing Fractional Springpot Elements	60
Imaging Anisotropic Conductivity with Induced Current Magnetic Resonance Electrical Impedance Tomography (ICMREIT)	61
On Function Theory for Q-holomorphic Functions	62
Modified Exponential Type Estimators for Population Mean in Stratified Random Sampling: An Application on the Geometric Distributed Aftershocks	63
Existence and Uniqueness Results for a Nonlinear Differential Equation with Non-Continuous Right- Hand Side	64
Modeling Just-in-Time distribution in a Green supply chain	65
Bi-objective Closed Loop Supply Chain with Different Machinery Options	66
Mathematical Behavior of Solutions of Hyperbolic-type Equations	67
Numerical Simulation of Hypersonic Flow over Double Ellipse Configuration with Multi-grid Accelera and Cartesian Based Flow Solver	ted 68
Mathematical Modelling of a Glaucoma Drainage Device Testing Apparatus	69
Time-varying pharmacodynamics in a simple non-integer HIV infection model	70
Maintenance of the latent reservoir by pyroptosis and superinfection in a fractional order HIV transmission model	71
Decentralized Stochastic Control: Optimality and Approximations	72
An Application for Sharma-Tasso-Olver Equations by Using Auto-Bäcklund Transformation	73
Explosive Solutions for a Class of Stochastic Nonlinear Wave Equation with Damping Terms	74
Multivalued F-contraction on M-Metric Space	75

Optimal Control of Generalized Tumor Growth Model with Chemotherapeutic and Immunotherapeu Treatment	itic 76
Identifying the Important Criteria for Determination of Temporary Debris Storage Sites By Using Analytic Hierarchy Process (AHP)	77
A New Spread Spectrum Audio Watermarking Technique: Improved Robustness and Increased Capa Using Moving Average	acity 78
Determination of Suitable Alternative in Facility Layout Problem Considering Different Criteria	79
A Numerical Approach for Solving Burger-Fisher Equation with Variable Coefficients using Laguerre Polynomials	e 80
High Order Galerkin Method for the Advection Diffusion Equation	81
Numerical Solutions of the Nonlinear Klein-Gordon Equation through a Compact Finite Difference Scheme	82
Soft Quasi Metric Spaces and Some Notes on Soft G-Metric Spaces	83
Ln Type Estimators under Stratified Random Sampling	84
Modeling of Breast and Gynecological Cancers Data and Investigating New Biological Findings	85
Comparison of Alternative Transformations to Handle Heavily Skewed Distribution of Health Expenditures	86
Ensemble Learning Methods to Deal with Imbalanced Disease Data	87
A methodical model formulation for the tool path optimization problem in CNC machines: A case stu	ıdy 88
A Discussion of the Generalized Abel Integral Equation	89
Numerical Solution of the Fredholm Integro-Differential Equation with Initial-Layer	90
Capacity Planning for Support Parts for Pipe Production	91
A Nonstandard Numerical Approach for a Ratio-Dependent Predator-Prey Model	92
Stability Analysis of a Discretizated Predator-Prey Model with Beddington-DeAngelis Functional Response	93
Numerical Modeling of Heat Fluid and Mass Transfer in Algae Cultivation Process Integrated with Ground Source Heat Pump	94
Metaheuristic Approach to Dual-Resource Constrained Job Shop Scheduling Problem	95
Weighted Superposition Attraction Algorithm for Type II Two-Sided Assembly Line Balancing Probl	em 96
Evaluation of Product Recovery Facilities Using Multi Criteria Decision Making	97
Evaluation of Customers of a Company using Multi Criteria Decision Making	98
Implementation of 5S Systematic in a Hard Chrome Plating Company	99
Numerical Analysis of Second Order Time Stepping Methods for the Natural Convection Problems	100
A Short Review of CFD Based System Identification in Aerodynamics Applications	101
The Qualitative Behavior of Some Stiff ODEs Through Stochastic Methods	102
A New Approach to Exam-Session Planning in Multiple Session Exams	103
Mathematical Modelling of a Medical Problem Using Multiple Linear Regression	104

Interval Estimation of Beta-Glucan Content of Yeast by Using Fuzzy Least Squares Modeling Approx	ach
	105
A Nonlinear Modeling and Optimization Process: Obtaining Optimal Drying Conditions for Olive Le	aves 106
Solving the Single-level Capacitated Lot-sizing and Scheduling Problem with Setup Time Considera	tion 107
Order Selection and Scheduling Decisions in Make-to-order Manufacturing Environments	108
A Novel Minimal Placement Model with Tensors in Electronic Board Design	109
Scheduling Optimization of Large Scale Price Maker Energy Storage Systems	110
Vehicle Routing Problems with Simultaneous Pickup and Delivery: Review and Research Perspective	ves 111
Simulated Annealing for Vehicle Routing Problem with Alternative Links from the Triple Bottom Li Perspective	ne 112
A New Auxiliary Function Approach for Inequality Constrained Global Optimization Problems	113
Numerical Solutions of Gilson Pickering Equation by the Collocation Finite Element Method	114
New Extension Sub-Equation Method for Fractional Order Boussinesq-like Equations	115
The Extended Modified Exp- $\left(-\Omega(\xi) ight)$ Method and Its Application to Some Fractional Differential	
Equations	116
Hypothesis Testing in One-way ANOVA based on Fiducial Approach when the Error Terms have W Distribution and Heterogeneous Variances	eibull 117
Smoothing Technique with Auxiliary Function Thru Bezier Curves for Global Optimization	118
Optimal Storage Units' Sizing and Placements within the Turkish Power Transmission Grid	119
Numerical Investigation of Heat Transfer in the Thermal Energy Storage Unit	120
A New Design of Solar-Assisted Heat Pump with Energy Storage for Heating Greenhouses	121
A New Auxiliary Function Method for Unconstrained Global Optimization	122
Solving Discrete Time Infinite Horizon Optimal Control Problems by Weak Pontryagin's Principle: Method and Applications	123
Comparison of Classification Algorithms used in Intrusion Detection Systems	124
Estimating the Parameters of Truncated Jones and Faddy's Skew t Distribution	125
Secure Multiparty Computation and Blockchain-Smart Contract Based Election System	126
Commercial Advertisements Scheduling Problem	127
The Future Promise of Vehicle-to-Grid (V2G) Optimization - Optimal Scheduling Methods to Integra Plug-in Electric Vehicles	ate 128
A New Outlook: A Numerical Study on Rosenau-Burgers Equation via Galerkin Finite Element Meth	ıod
	129
Numerical Study on Blood Flow Modelling in Arteries	130
Swarm Intelligence Enchanged by Oblique Section Planes for Solving Dirichlet Boundary Problems ODEs	for 131
A Simplified Neutrosophic Multiplicative Set-Based Method for Multicriteria Decision Making	132

Simplified Neutrosophic Multiplicative Similarity Measures and Their Application to Pattern Recogn Problems	nition 133
An Approach to Multicriteria Decision Making Based on Distance Measures for Probabilistic Simplif Neutrosophic Information	ied 134
Multicriteria Decision Making Based on Probabilistic Simplified Neutrosophic Numbers	135
Multi-Objective Optimization of a Parallel Machine Scheduling Problem Using Epsilon Constraint Mo	ethod 136
Wastewater Treatment Plant Modeling and Simulation with Control Purposes	137
On Fractional Calculus and Inequalities	138
Risk Analysis with Bow-Tie Analysis in Shipbuilding Industry	139
Sensitivity Analysis Indicator for Project Evaluation under Uncertainty and Risk	140
Mathematical Modelling Approach to Increase Cell Efficiency in a Furniture Firm	141
Application of a Cellular Manufacturing in a Company and a New Layout Suggestion	142
A Hybrid Artificial Bee Colony Algorithm for Capacitated Vehicle Routing Problem – A Case Study	143
An Efficient Numerical Technique for the Rosenau-KdV-RLW Equation	144
Comparison of Tests for the Homogeneity of Inverse Gaussian Scale Parameters	145
A Discussion of the Singular and Weakly Singular Integral Equations with Abel Type Kernels	146
Novel Hybrid Particle Swarm Optimization for Unconstrained Optimization Problem	147
Design of Textile Pattern Categorization Using Hough Transform	148
A New Fractional Differencing Algorithm for ARFIMA	149
Bi-Objective Optimization of an Unrelated Parallel Machine Scheduling Problem with Sequence- Dependent Setup Times	150
Reduced Order Optimal Control of Gierer-Meinhardt Equation	151
Numerical Solutions of ODEs with Dirichlet Boundary Conditions via Recurrent Neural Networks	152
Analytical Solving Some Fractional Differential Equations Using New Extension Sub-Equation Metho	od 153
Green Vehicle Routing Problem in a Logistics Company	154
Applications of a New Expansion Method for Finding Wave Solutions of Nonlinear Differential Equa	tions 155
An Optimization Model for the Energy Efficient Job Shop Scheduling Problem with Machine State an Time-Of-Use Electricity Tariffs of Turkey	nd 156
Total Sound Press Level and Polynomial Interpolation in the e-Studio	157
Using numerical method for third order fractional partial differential equation	158
Fuzzy Multi Criteria Decision Making Approach Integrated Mathematical Model for Examination Timetabling Problem	159
Selection of Solar Energy Plant with Large-scale Group Decision Making under Hesitant Fuzzy Lingu Assessment	uistic 160
Some Common Fixed Point Results via Implicit Contractions on Soft Quasi Metric Spaces	161
Analysing of Solar Energy Pricing Process with Hesitant Fuzzy Cognitive Map	162
Reinvestment Decisions for Wind Energy Projects	163

Symmetry Methods of Flow and Heat Transfer between Slowly Expanding or Contracting Walls	164
A New R Programming Package for the Detection of Outliers in Univariate Time Series Data	165
Detection of Binding Sites of Chip-seq Data via Hidden Markov Model and Frequentist Inference of Ma Parameters	odel 166
Ecology and Evolution of Vector-Borne Diseases in a Multi-Scale Model	167
Neutral Differential Systems of Fractional Order with State-Dependent Delay	168
Structural Design Optimization through Water Cycle Algorithm with Evaporation Rate	169
Grasshopper Optimization Algorithm Based Design of Structures	170
Comparison of the Stabilized Finite Element Solutions of Optimal Control of Convection Diffusion Equation	171
A Semi-Lagrangian Scheme for Numerical Solution of Advection-Diffusion Equations	172
Complex Conformable Derivative and Integral	173
Behavior of Fractional Derivative Operators Defined on Two Different Kernels in Nonlinear Equation	s 174
Complex Conformable Derivative and Rolle's Theorem	175
Identifying of the Solutions of Nonlinear Fractional Differential Equations with Caputo-Fabrizio Oper in Banach Spaces	ator 176
Exploiting the Impact of the Migration Operator Used in the Adaptive Genetic Algorithm in Optimizat Problems of Complex Systems	ion 177
3D Finite Element Modeling of the Nonlinear Behavior of Confined Masonry Walls	178
Investigation of the Structural Design Parameters of Masonry Walls Based on Nonlinear Finite Eleme Analysis	nt 179
Numerical Solutions of Linear Fractional Differential Equations with Delay Obtained by Using Euler Polynomials	180
Optimized Taylor-Euler Series Solutions for Linear Volterra-Fredholm Integral Equations with Delay Terms	181
FPGA Based Synchronization by Using Adaptive Control Method of Two Different Chaotic Systems	182
$\left(\frac{G}{G}\right)$ -Expansion Method and Its Application to Whitham-Broer-Kaup-Like Equations	183
Developing a Mathematical Model for CBTC System and Safe Braking Distance Calculation	184
Modeling and Simulation of an Autonomous Wheelchair with Control Purposes	185
A Flower Pollination Algorithm for Improving Cluster Analysis	186
A Cultural Algorithm for Mechanical Design Optimization	187
Wind Farm Layout Optimization for Minimum Wake Loss	188
Design of Experiment Setup for Fractional Order Chaotic Systems	189
Modeling and Optimizing of the Intelligent Traffic Light system by using PLC	190
Nonlinear Analysis and Circuit Realization of Chaotic Aizawa System	191
Conformable Fractional Optimal Control Problem with Transversality Condition	192
Modeling of Chaotic Motion Video with Artificial Neural Networks	193

Agent-based Hormonal Regulation of Blood Glucose Levels Using Negative Feedback Control Mechan	ıism 194
New Exact Solutions for the Drinfeld-Sokolov Equation Using an Improved Bernoulli Sub-Equation Function Method	195
Chaos Extension in Coupled Lorenz Systems	196
Poincaré Chaos in Non-autonomous Equations	197
Period-doubling Route to Chaos in Systems with Impulsive Effects	198
Third Order Impulsive Boundary Value Problems on Time Scales with Positive Solutions	199
Feedback Linearization Control of a 2DOF Helicopter	200
Computational Fluid Dynamics Analysis of the NASA S-Duct Intake	201
Time Optimal Control of a Reaction Wheel Actuated System	202
Numerical Investigation of Flash-Mounted Duct for Subsonic and Transonic Flow Regimes	203
Concreteness and Likeliness of Design and Optimization Stages	204
Supersonic CFD Analysis of a Mach 2.65 Mixed-Compression Axisymmetric Intake	205
New Exact Solutions for the Doubly Dispersive Equation Using an Improved Bernoulli Sub-Equation Function Method	206
A Cost-Benefit Analysis on Ship Speed Optimization	207
Queuing Theory Applications in Maritime Transport	208
Control of Thermal Stresses Based on Angular Symmetric Fractional Heat Conduction Equation in A Space	Half- 209
Numerical Investigation of the Wrap Angle Effect on Swirler Blade Combustion Performance	210
Initial-Boundary Value Problems in a Half-Space for an Advection-Diffusion Equation with Atangana Baleanu Derivative	- 211
Development of a 6-DoF Pose Estimation Package in ROS	212
SLAM based Control and Waypoint Navigation of Hexarotor Platform	213
An Analytical Approach to Solve Blasius Equation by Method of Weighted Residuals	214
Examples and Assessments for Pareto-Based Multi-Objective Optimization Approaches Used for Star Alone Hybrid Renewable Energy Systems	nd- 215
Extended Exp (-φ (ξ)) Expansion Method for Some Exact Solutions of Sixth-Order Ramani Equation a Coupled Modified KdV-type Equation	and 216
Wind Energy Investments' Profitability Index Based on Artificial Neural Networks	217
Optimization of Capacitance and Speed Values for Self-Excited Induction Generators using the Respo Surface Method	onse 218
Adaptive Fuzzy Sliding Mode Control Based LMIs of MIMO Nonlinear Uncertain Systems	219
Global Stability of Latent Chikungunya Virus Dynamics Model with Multitarget Cells and Saturation	220
Caputo's Fractional Derivative Model of Immune Response to Tumor Growth	221
Effect of Discrete Time Delay and Antibodies on HCV Dynamics with Cure Rate and Two Routes of	
Infection	222
A Contact Problem for a Half-space With Inhomogeneous Coating	223
A Second Order Numerical Technique for Multi Term Variable Order Fractional Equations	224

Oscillation Theorems for Second Order Half-Linear Mixed Neutral Differential Equations	225
New Oscillation Criteria for Second Order Nonlinear Neutral Differential Equations with Damping Te	rm 226
Philos-Type Oscillation Criteria for Second Order Half-Linear Mixed Neutral Differential Equations	227
Conformable Operator in Approximate Solutions of Nonlinear Differential Equations	228
Fractional Calculus: Some Hidden Aspects	229
A Compact Integrated THz Horn-shaped Helix Antenna based on MEMS Technology using Accurate Automatic Strategists	230
A Highly Miniaturized MEMS Pyramidal Helix Antenna for THz Applications using Reliable Evolution Optimizers	ary 231
Framework for Analysing of Inter-cluster Communication in the DRHT by using Game Theory	232
New numerical approximation of fractional derivative with non-local and non-singular kernel: Application to chaotic models	233
On the Co-PI Energy of Graphs	234
The Number of Spanning Trees of Graphs	235
SIR Epidemic Model with Caputo-Fabrizio Fractional Operator	236
New Analytical Solutions of (3+1) Extended Jimbo Miwa Equation	237
Numerical Solutions of Time Fractional Burgers'- Equation using Finite Difference Methods	238
Calibration of a Hydrological Model by Using a Hybrid Approach Combining Levenberg-Marquardt a Particle Swarm Algorithms	nd 239
Numerical Computation of the Mittag-Leffler Function	240
Application of Artificial Bee Colony Algorithm for Distance Restricted Vehicle Routing Problem	241
Hyperbolic Function Solutions for Positive Gardner-KP Equation	242
Calculation of the Mass Attenuation Coefficients, Effective Atomic Numbers and Effective Electron Numbers of Some Concrete Containing Pumice and Barite at Different Ratios	243
Investigation of Lifetime Cancer Risk and Radiological Hazards in Some Marble Samples Mining from Marmara Region	the 244
Corresponding Authors	245
Author Index	249

Integrated Assembly Line Balancing and Feeding Problem

Ibrahim Kucukkoc^{1⊠}, Francesco Pilati²

¹ Balikesir University, Department of Industrial Engineering, Balikesir, Turkey ² University of Bologna, Department of Industrial Engineering, Bologna, Italy

Abstract

Assembly lines are widely utilized in mass production. The opportunity of producing high-quality standardized products in mass quantities is one of the main advantages of assembly lines [1]. Recently, the mixed-model lines, where more than one product model can be simultaneously produced on the same line, have been popular to satisfy customized demands received from customers. However, the diversity of products produced on the line requires the supply of more diversified components to be mounted on the product [2].

This paper investigates the mixed-model assembly line balancing and feeding problem simultaneously. Given the model sequence, a mixed-integer linear programming model is developed to balance the line and decide the locations of components around the line. A numerical example is provided to depict the importance of handling both balancing and feeding problems concurrently. The preliminary results show the efficiency of the proposed model.

Keywords: assembly line balancing, line feeding, mixed-model lines, MILP.

Acknowledgements

The first author (I.K) acknowledges the support received from the Balikesir University Scientific Research Projects Department under grant number BAP-2017-179.

References

- [1] Kucukkoc, I., & Zhang, D.Z. (2017). Balancing of mixed-model parallel U-shaped assembly lines considering model sequences. International Journal of Production Research, 55(20), 5958-5975.
- [2] Bortolini, M., Faccio, M., Gamberi, M., & Pilati, F. (2017). Multi-objective assembly line balancing considering component picking and ergonomic risk. Computers & Industrial Engineering, 112, 348-367.
- [3] Kucukkoc, I., & Zhang, D.Z. (2014). An agent based ant colony optimisation approach for mixed-model parallel two-sided assembly line balancing problem, Pre-Prints of the 18th International Working Seminar on Production Economics, Innsbruck, Austria, February 24-28, Volume 3, 313-328.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ikucukkoc@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Mechanical Fault Diagnosis using the Frequency Response Analysis in Electrical Machines

Yunus Biçen ⊠

Duzce University, Electronic and Automation Department, Duzce, Turkey

Abstract

Frequency response analysis (FRA) is one of the methods used to detect mechanical failures, especially in power and distribution transformers. Mechanical failures occur due to the formation of large mechanical forces, either internal or external. Winding deformations, axial and radial displacements, core movements or connection faults may occur as a result of these mechanical forces [1]. The diagnosis of these failures is crucial to avoiding larger and costly outages. In this method, a low-amplitude and variable-frequency signal is applied to the windings. Then, the difference between the input and output signals are analyzed in magnitude and phase angle against frequency [2, 3]. Actually, the system includes components of resistance, inductance and capacitance. Therefore, the frequency response of the system is directly related to the values of these components. In order to be able to detect mechanical failure with this method, it is absolutely necessary that the FRA measurement of the relevant machine in a healthy state and its results are recorded beforehand. In other words, it is necessary to take a fingerprint before the healthy system. In case of a mechanical deformation will change the impedance of the system, the resonant frequency will arise differences compared to the past measurement and mechanical failures can be detected. In this study, the measurement methods used in the literature, the instruments and connection forms are examined. In addition, circuits used in the modelling of the system and frequency ranges pointed out the faults have been investigated. The use of the frequency response analysis method in different electric machines has also been evaluated.

Keywords: Frequency response analysis, fault, diagnosis

Acknowledgment

This study was supported by DUBAP / No: 2018.21.04.779.

References

- [1] Abu-Siada, A., Hashemnia, N., Islam, S., & Masoum, M. A. (2013). Understanding power transformer frequency response analysis signatures. IEEE Electrical Insulation Magazine, 29(3), 48-56.
- [2] Tenbohlen, S., Coenen, S., Djamali, M., Müller, A., Samimi, M. H., & Siegel, M. (2016). Diagnostic measurements for power transformers. Energies, 9(5), 347.
- [3] Bagheri, M., Naderi, M. S., Blackburn, T., & Phung, T. (2013). Frequency response analysis and shortcircuit impedance measurement in detection of winding deformation within power transformers. IEEE Electrical Insulation Magazine, 29(3), 33-40.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>yunusbicen@duzce.edu.tr</u>

Alternative Methods for Adaptive Exponential Smoothing and the Effect of Used Constants on Forecasting

Yunus Biçen[⊠]

Duzce University, Electronic and Automation Department, Duzce, Turkey

Abstract

Adaptive exponential smoothing methods are one of the preferred methods of stochastic estimation in many different fields of engineering, especially for short-term forecasting [1-4]. It is known that they are more useful than classical exponential smoothing methods, especially when there are level shifts or peak changes in time series. However, Trig-Leach's methods (in 1967) were able to produce unstable results according to classical exponential smoothing methods. Basically, this method was based on the fact that the Alpha value in the simple exponential smoothing was not fixed but variable in each iteration. In the following years, researchers such as Wyhbark (1973) and Dennis (1978) aimed to assign Alpha values to specific values when the control boundaries were exceeded. In the proposed methods such as Teräsvirta (1996) smooth transition regression model (STR) and Taylor (2004) soft transition exponential smoothing (STES), Alpha values produced by a series-dependent function are used, without limit values [5,6]. The majority of these methods, there are constants as in Trigg-Leach method. There are some simple methods such as Pantazopoulos and Pappis (1996) in which there are no constants, and they produce poor results in terms of the accuracy [5,7]. In this study, the effect of constants used in the adaptive smoothing methods on forecasting are investigated depending on the characteristics of the time series. It has been determined that the forecasting errors are mostly dependent on the exponential smoothing coefficient Alpha value, however the constants used in the methods can change the error rates. In this study, it also examined new and different approaches in the literature.

Keywords: adaptive, exponential smoothing, forecasting

References

- [1] Laouafi, A., Mordjaoui, M., & Dib, D. (2014). Very short-term electricity demand forecasting using adaptive exponential smoothing methods. In Sciences and Techniques of Automatic Control and Computer Engineering (STA), 2014 15th International Conference on, pp. 553-557.
- [2] Dang, K., Yang, J., & Yuan, J. (2015). Adaptive exponential smoothing for online filtering of pixel prediction maps. In Proceedings of the IEEE International Conference on Computer Vision, pp. 3209-3217.
- [3] Szász-Gábor, A. Forecasting methods applied to engineering management. In BSG Proceedings, Vol. 14, pp. 6-8.
- [4] Bicen, Y., Kayikci, M., & Aras, F. (2015). Time Series Analysis and Data Relationships, Balkan Journal of Electrical & Computer Engineering, pp. 6-9.
- [5] Taylor, J. W. (2004). Smooth transition exponential smoothing. Journal of Forecasting, 23(6), 385-404.
- [6] Teräsvirta T. (1997) Smooth transition models. In System Dynamics in Economic and Financial Models, No. 132. Wiley. pp. 107-133.
- [7] Pantazopoulos, S. N., & Pappis, C. P. (1996). A new adaptive method for extrapolative forecasting algorithms. European Journal of Operational Research, 94(1), 106-111.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>yunusbicen@gmail.com</u>

A Labor Migration Model with Fractional Derivatives

Mehmet Ali Balcı[⊠], Ömer Akgüller

Muğla Sıtkı Koçman University, Mathematics Department, Muğla, Turkey

Abstract

It is common to use models of mathematical economics to define the economical processes of a country or a region. These kinds of models are typically developed to study quantities such as price indices, unemployment, financial markets, total volume of the production, and investment demands. Fractional derivatives, which are the generalization of the usual derivatives to the fractional order, are non-local. Hence, they are pretty convenient to dynamically model long time series may involve the remembering effect. Fractional calculus is an effective way of incorporating memory effects. The kernel of power-law defining the fractional relaxation equation presents a long-term memory [1-4].

In this study we present a new model of neoclassical economic growth by considering that workers move from regions with lower density of capital to regions with higher density of capital. Since the labor migration and capital flow involves self-similarities in long range time, we use the fractional order derivatives for the time variable. To solve this model, we proposed Finite Fractional Difference Method, and studied numerically labor migration flow data from Turkey along with other countries throughout the period of 1966–2014.

Keywords: Economical growth model, fractional calculus, statistical application

Acknowledgements

This paper has been granted by the Mugla Sitki Kocman University Research Projects Coordination Office. Project Grant title "Sermayeye Bağlı İşgücü Göçünün Kesirli Modeli".

References

- [1] Kiryakova, V. (2010). The special functions of fractional calculus as generalized fractional calculus operators of some basic functions. Computers & mathematics with applications, 59(3), 1128-1141.
- [2] Sun, L. (2013). Pricing currency options in the mixed fractional Brownian motion. Physica A: Statistical Mechanics and its Applications, 392(16), 3441-3458.
- [3] Vlad, M. O., & Ross, J. (2002). Systematic derivation of reaction-diffusion equations with distributed delays and relations to fractional reaction-diffusion equations and hyperbolic transport equations: Application to the theory of Neolithic transition. Physical Review E, 66(6), 061908.
- [4] Zhang, X., & Han, Y. (2012). Existence and uniqueness of positive solutions for higher order nonlocal fractional differential equations. Applied Mathematics Letters, 25(3), 555-560.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>mehmetalibalci@mu.edu.tr</u>

Hierarchies in the Clusters of Borsa Istanbul

Mehmet Ali Balcı[⊠], Ömer Akgüller

Muğla Sıtkı Koçman University, Mathematics Department, Muğla, Turkey

Abstract

Investigation of financial markets as complex systems is becoming increasingly accepted and recently majored in the statistical analysis of stock interaction networks. This kind of approach was first directed by Mantegna in [1] using the Daily logarithmic price return correlation between each stock to obtain hierarchical networks. Analyzing this kind of networks let us to get the topological properties of a market and its core information. By the help of an appropriate metric that is based on the correlation distance, a connected graph in which vertices represent stocks can be build and the generated minimum spanning trees would yield the hierarchies.

In this paper, we introduce a method to build a connected graph representation of Borsa Istanbul based on the spectrum. We, then, detect graph communities and internal hierarchies by using the minimum spanning trees. The results suggest that the approach is demonstrably effective for Borsa Istanbul sessionally data returns.

Keywords: Financial networks, graph communities, hierarchy structures, spectral graph theory, minimum spanning trees

References

[1] Mantegna, R. N. (1999). Hierarchical structure in financial markets. The European Physical Journal B-Condensed Matter and Complex Systems, 11(1), 193-197.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>mehmetalibalci@mu.edu.tr</u>

New Optimal Solutions for Additive Manufacturing Production Planning Problem to Minimise Cost

Ibrahim Kucukkoc^{1⊠}, Qiang Li², David Z. Zhang²

¹Balikesir University, Department of Industrial Engineering, Cagis Campus, Balikesir, Turkey ²University of Exeter, College of Engineering, Mathematics and Physical Sciences, EX4 4QF Exeter, UK

Abstract

Additive manufacturing (AM), also known as 3D printing, has become even more popular recently. AM is the process of creating 3D objects layer-by-layer from different raw materials (including metal powder) [1-2]. Except from being utilized as a rapid manufacturing technology, AM is now adopted to produce many critical components for major automotive and aerospace companies. Boeing has announced that, by 2012, 22 thousand components necessary to produce aircraft have already been produced using AM. NASA has additively manufactured a turbopump, used as a rocket engine fuel pump, with 45% fewer parts in comparison to conventional production techniques [3-5].

This research presents a mathematical model to minimize costs in an AM process, named Selective Laser Melting (SLM). SLM is a process used for producing metal components directly adding melted metal powder layer upon layer. The model proposed in this research modifies the model proposed by Li et al. [6] to convert it into a mixed-integer linear programming model and solve using GAMS (General Algebraic Modelling System) software. The problem is demonstrated using a numerical example and the test problems gathered from [6] were solved using the coded model.

Keywords: additive manufacturing, 3D printing, production planning, optimization, MILP

Acknowledgements

The first author (I.K) acknowledges the support received from the Balikesir University Scientific Research Projects Department under grant number BAP-2018-131.

References

- Atzeni, E. & Salmi, A. (2012). Economics of additive manufacturing for end-usable metal parts. The International Journal of Advanced Manufacturing Technology, 62(9–12), 1147–1155. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s00170-011-3878-1</u>.
- [2] Kucukkoc, I., Li, Q. & Zhang, D. Z. (2016). Increasing the utilisation of additive manufacturing and 3D printing machines considering order delivery times. In 19th International Working Seminar on Production Economics, 195–201. Innsbruck, Austria.
- [3] NASA Marshall. Additive Manufacturing: Pioneering Affordable Aerospace Manufacturing. Georg C Marshall Sp Flight Cent 2017. <u>https://www.nasa.gov/sites/default/files/atoms/files/additive mfg.pdf</u> (accessed January 5, 2018).
- [4] Li, Q., Kucukkoc, I., He, N., Zhang, D. & Wang, S. (2018), Order Acceptance and Scheduling in Metal Additive Manufacturing: An Optimal Foraging Approach, In Grubbström, R.W, Hinterhuber, H.H., (Eds), PrePrints, 20th International Working Seminar on Production Economics, Innsbruck, Austria, February 19-23, vol. 1, 225-235.
- [5] Kucukkoc, I., Li, Q., He, N. & Zhang, D. (2018), Scheduling of Multiple Additive Manufacturing and 3D Printing Machines to Minimise Maximum Lateness, In Grubbström, R.W, Hinterhuber, H.H., (Eds), PrePrints, 20th International Working Seminar on Production Economics, Innsbruck, Austria, February 19-23, vol. 1, 237-247.
- [6] Li, Q., Kucukkoc, I. & Zhang, D. Z. (2017). Production planning in additive manufacturing and 3D printing. Computers & Operations Research, 83, 157–172.
- Corresponding Author Email: <u>ikucukkoc@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

A Numerical Study of Initial Flow Past an Oscillating Circular Cylinder

Qasem M. Al-Mdallal [⊠]

UAE University, Department of Mathematical Sciences, Al-Ain, UAE

Abstract

The initial flow properties for the case of uniform stream past an impulsively started circular cylinder had been discussed for the first time by Blasius [1]. He implemented the boundary-layer theory to calculate the first approximation to the time at which the fluid separates. Collins and Dennis [2] used the boundary-layer theory to capture the development of the physical properties of the flow past a fixed circular cylinder at early stages for finite Reynolds numbers. Over the years, the boundary-layer theory has been effectively used to discuss the initial flow past a circular cylinder with different types of oscillations such as a streamwise oscillation by Badr et al. [3].

The main purposes of this work are: (i) to generalize some theoretical results of Collins and Dennis [2] by obtaining compact explicit forms for the coefficients of the perturbation solution, (ii) to modify the numerical technique of Collins and Dennis [2] by utilizing the collocation method, and (iii) to extend the physical results of Collins and Dennis [2], Badr et al. [3] and Al-Mdallal [4] to the initial flow past a circular cylinder forced to oscillate simultaneously streamwise and transversely to the fluid flow. To achieve these purposes, Navier–Stokes equations in non-primitive variables givn by

$$e^{2\xi}\frac{\partial\zeta}{\partial t} = \frac{2}{Re}\left(\frac{\partial^2\zeta}{\partial\xi^2} + \frac{\partial^2\zeta}{\partial\theta^2}\right) - \frac{\partial\psi}{\partial\theta}\frac{\partial\zeta}{\partial\xi} + \frac{\partial\psi}{\partial\xi}\frac{\partial\zeta}{\partial\theta}$$
$$e^{2\xi}\zeta = \frac{\partial^2\psi}{\partial\xi^2} + \frac{\partial^2\psi}{\partial\theta^2}$$

are solved numerically using the perturbation method together with the collocation method. For more details about the full results, please see Al-Mdallal [5].

Keywords: Combined streamwise and transverse oscillation, Initial flow, Perturbation theory, Collocation method

Acknowledgements

The author would like to acknowledge and express their gratitude to the United Arab Emirates University, Al Ain, UAE for providing the financial support with Grant No. 31S212-UPAR (9)2015.

References

- [1] Blasius H. (1908). Grenzschichten in flussigkeiten mit kleiner reibung. Z Math u Phys, 56, 1–37.
- [2] Collins W.M., Dennis S.C.R. (1973). Flow past an impulsively started circular cylinder. J Fluid Mech, 60, 105–27.
- [3] Badr H.M., Dennis S.C.R., Kocabiyik S. (1995). The initial oscillatory flow past a circular cylinder. J Eng Math, 29, 255–69.
- [4] Al-Mdallal Q.M. (2004). Analysis and computation of the cross-flow past an oscillating cylinder with two degrees of freedom. PhD thesis, Memorial University of Newfoundland, St. John's, Canada.
- [5] Al-Mdallal, Q.M. (2012). A numerical study of initial flow past a circular cylinder with combined streamwise and transverse oscillations. Computers & Fluids, 63, 174-183.

^{Corresponding} Author Email: <u>q.almdallal@uaeu.ac.ae</u>

Numerical Simulation of Some Partial Differential Equations by Homotopy Perturbation Sumudu Transform Method

Semih Küçük, Fırat Evirgen[⊠]

Balıkesir University, Mathematics Department, Balıkesir, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we consider Homotopy Perturbation Sumudu Transform Method to identify solutions of some linear/nonlinear partial differential equations. For this purpose, first of all, Sumudu transform method is applied to the partial differential equation to transform it into an algebraic equation. Additionally, Homotopy Perturbation method with He polynomials is adapted for nonlinear terms. After that, by applying the inverse Sumudu transform to the algebraic equation, the solution of the problem is obtained in serial form. If this series converges, an exact solution of the problem is also obtained. Numerical simulations have displayed that the Homotopy Perturbation Sumudu Transform Method is applicable to both linear and nonlinear partial differential equations easily.

Keywords: Partial differential equation, homotopy perturbation method, sumudu transform

References

- Watugala, G.K. (1993). Sumudu Transform: A new integral transform to solve differential equations and control engineering problems, International Journal of Mathematical Education in Science and Technology, 24(1), 35-43.
- [2] Weerakoon, S. (1994). Application of Sumudu transform to partial differential equations, International Journal of Mathematical Education in Science and Technology, 25(2), 277–283.
- [3] Watugala, G.K. (1998). Sumudu transform-a new integral transform to solve differential equations and control engineering problems, Mathematical Engineering in Industry, 6(4), 319–329.
- [4] Watugala, G.K. (2002). The Sumudu transform for functions of two variables, Mathematical Engineering in Industry, 8(4), 293-302.
- [5] Belgacem, F.B.M., Karaballi, A.A. & Kalla, S.L. (2003). Analytical investigations of the Sumudu transform and applications to integral production equations, Mathematical Problems in Engineering, 3-4, 103–118.
- [6] Belgacem, F.B.M. & Karaballi, A. A. (2006). Sumudu transform fundamental properties investigations and applications", International Journal of Stochastic Analysis, Volume 2006, Article ID 91083 .
- [7] Belgacem, F.B.M. (2006). Introducing and analyzing deeper, Sumudu properties. Nonlinear Studies, 13(1), 23.
- [8] Kumar, D., Singh, J. & Sushila (2011). Homotopy Perturbation Sumudu Transform Method for Nonlinear Equations, Adv. Theor. Appl. Mech., 4(4), 165-175.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>fevirgen@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Applications of Exp (-φ (ξ)) Expansion Method to Some Partial Differential Equations for Finding Exact Solutions

Fırat Evirgen[⊠], Emin Ümit Kobak

Balıkesir University, Mathematics Department, Balıkesir, Turkey

Abstract

Mathematical models of many problems are encountered in various branches of science corresponding to nonlinear ordinary or partial differential equations. For this reason, the availability of analytical or approximate solutions of such equations has been an important study topic for scientists. For this purpose, many methods have been introduced. In this study, we utilize $\text{Exp}(-\phi(\xi))$ Expansion Method to find new exact solutions of some partial differential equations. By this method, partial differential equation is transformed into an ordinary differential equation by travelling wave transformation. After that the solutions of this ordinary differential equation are characterized and new analytical solutions of the partial differential equation are presented. Finally, 2D and 3D graphs are drawn for the obtained solutions to interpret the properties.

Keywords: Partial differential equation, exact solution, Exp (- ϕ (ξ)) Expansion Method

Acknowledgements

This work is financially supported by Balıkesir University Research Grant no. BAP 2018/014. The authors would like to thank the Balıkesir University.

References

- [1] L. Debtnath, Nonlinear Partial Differential Equations for Scientist and Engineers, Birkhauser, Boston, MA, 1997.
- [2] A.M. Wazwaz, Partial Differential Equations: Methods and Applications, Balkema, Rotterdam, 2002.
- [3] S. Uddin, N. Alam, SMS. Hossain, H. Samiu, MA. Akbar, Some new exact traveling wave solutions to the (3+1)-dimensional Zakharov--Kuznetsov equation and the Burgers equations via Exp (-φ)-expansion method, Front. Math. Appl., 1,1--8, (2014)
- [4] Khan, K., & Akbar, M.A. (2013). Application of Exp ($-\phi(\xi)$) Expansion method to find the exact solutions of modified Benjamin-Bona-Mahony equations, Word Applied Sciences Journal, 24(10), 1373-1377.
- [5] Islam, R., Alam, Md.N., Hossain, K.S., Roshid, H.O. & Akbar, M.A. (2013). Traveling wave solutions of nonlinear evolution eqautions via Exp (-φ (ξ)) Expansion method, Global Journal of Science Frontier Research Mathematics and Decision Sciences, 13(11).
- [6] Baskonus, H.M. & Bulut, H. (2015). Analytical studies on the (1+1)-dimensional nonlinear dispersive modified Benjamin-Bona-Mahony equation defined by seismic sea waves, Waves in Random and Complex Media, 25(4), 576-586.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>fevirgen@balikesire.edu.tr</u>

An Adaptive Evolutionary Algorithm Integrated with Neighborhood Search Heuristics for Solving Multi-objective Flexible Job Shop Scheduling Problem

Aydin Teymourifar^{1, 2}, Gurkan Ozturk^{1, 2}, Ozan Bahadir^{1, 2}

¹Anadolu University, Faculty of Engineering, 26555, Eskisehir, Turkey ²Anadolu University, Computational Intelligence and Optimization Laboratory (CIOL), 26555, Eskisehir, Turkey

Abstract

NSGA-II is one of the evolutionary algorithms that is widely applied for solving the multi-objective flexible job shop scheduling, which is an NP-hard problem and its exact methods are complex. This algorithm almost finds good results for many problems, however generally, it is necessary to do some modifications according to the problem, for getting better results. In the literature, several approaches have been proposed to measure the effectiveness of the algorithms. The stable converges is among the practical ones that generally shows the efficiency of an evolutionary method. In this study, the effect of using the neighborhood structures on the convergence of the NSGA-II algorithm is analyzed. Some of the used structures are large, while there are also the small ones. In the modified algorithm, different neighborhood structures are applied to the different fronts obtained according to the good solutions, while the bigger neighborhoods are used for the solutions on the downer fronts. Based on the convergence of the algorithm, its performance is compared with the classic NSGA-II. In this way, useful results have been obtained about that which structure should be applied during the different stages of a search. This will also provide a basis for an adaptive variable neighborhood search, defined based on the neighborhood structures, which we plan to design it in our future works.

Keywords: Flexible Job Shop Scheduling Problem, NSGA-II, Neighborhood Structures

References

- [1] Teymourifar, A., Ozturk, G., & Bahadir, O. (2018). A Comparison between Two Modified NSGA-II Algorithms for Solving the Multi-objective Flexible Job Shop Scheduling Problem. Universal Journal of Applied Mathematics, 6(3), 79-93.
- [2] Teymourifar, A., Bahadir, O., & Ozturk, G. (2018). Dynamic Priority Rule Selection for Solving Multiobjective Job Shop Scheduling Problems. Universal Journal of Industrial and Business Management, 6(1), 11-22.
- [3] Teymourifar, A., & Ozturk, G. (2018). A Neural Network-based Hybrid Method to Generate Feasible Neighbors for Flexible Job Shop Scheduling Problem. Universal Journal of Applied Mathematics, 6(1), 1-16.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>aydinteymurifar@gmail.com</u>

Global Nonexistence of Solutions for a Coupled Nonlinear Wave Equations with Degenerate Damping Terms

Erhan Pişkin, Fatma Ekinci[⊠]

Dicle University, Department of Mathematics, Diyarbakır, Turkey

Abstract

In this work, we analyze the influence of degenerate damping terms and source terms on the solutions of the nonlinear wave equations. In this study, we consider coupled nonlinear wave equations with degenerate damping and source terms. We will show the blow up of solutions in finite time with positive initial energy. This improves earlier results in the literature [1-3].

Keywords: Global nonexistence, Coupled wave equation, Degenerate damping and source terms

References

- [1] Rammaha, M.A. & Sakuntasathien, S. (2010). Global existence and blow up of solutions to systems of nonlinear wave equations with degenerate damping and source terms, Nonlinear Analysis, 72,2658-2683.
- [2] Fei, L. & Hongjun, G. (2011). Global nonexistence of positive initial-energy solutions for coupled nonlinear wave equations with damping and source terms, Abstr. Appl. Anal., 1-14.
- [3] Pişkin, E. (2015). Blow up of positive initial-energy solutions for coupled nonlinear wave equations with degenerate damping and source terms, Boundary Value Problems, 1-11.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ekincifatma2017@gmail.com</u>

Cooling and Pasteurizing Eggs

Rajai Alassar⊠

King Fahd University of Petroleum & Minerals, Department of Math and Stat, Dhahran, Saudi Arabia

Abstract

Preserving eggs against the growth of bacteria for domestic consumption is done either by storing at low temperature or through pasteurization at 60 degrees, [1]. Determining the cooling/heating time for eggs is important from an economic point of view. It is also essential to estimate the related amount of energy used in the process. Eggs are usually modelled as spheres with spherical cores (yolk). It is easy to deal with spherical geometries as the differential equation which governs the heat transfer process can be cast in spherical coordinates. Spherical coordinates are elegant widely used coordinates system for dealing with problems with spherical geometries. Unfortunately, eggs are not perfectly spherical and errors associated with assuming such simplified geometry are present. These errors, which result also from numerical solutions, can be large depending on the axis ratio of the eggs. Eggs are best modelled as having the shape of prolate spheroids. Prolate spheroids have nonuniform axis lengths. The major axis can reach one third longer than the minor axis.

We, here, attempt to determine the cooling/heating time of eggs with appropriate consideration to their actual prolate spheroidal shape. We adopt the prolate spheroidal coordinates system to solve the heat conduction equation which governs the heat transfer process. Various physical conditions such as axis ratio and Biot number which reflects the convection strength of the surrounding medium as compared to the conduction of the egg, are considered. We compare our findings to the case when the egg is considered as a perfect sphere. The later case is well documented in the literature, [2].

Keywords: Egg, Prolate Spheroid, Heat Transfer

Acknowledgements

The author acknowledges the support of King Fahd University of Petroleum & Minerals (KFUPM).

References

- [1] Abbasnezhad, B., Hamdami, N., Shahedi, M., & Vatankhah, H. (2014). Thermophysical and rheological properties of liquid egg white and yolk during thermal pasteurization of intact eggs. Food Measure, 8:259– 269.
- [2] Urszula Siedlecka, U. (2014). Radial heat conduction in a multilayered sphere, Journal of Applied Mathematics and Computational Mechanics, 13(4), 109-116.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>alassar@kfupm.edu.sa</u>

Blow up of Solutions for a Timoshenko Equations with Positive and Negative Initial Energy

Erhan Pişkin, Hazal Yüksekkaya[⊠]

Dicle University, Department of Mathematics, Diyarbakır, Turkey

Abstract

In this talk, we consider Timoshenko equations with weak damping terms. We prove the blow up of solutions Timoshenko equation. Timoshenko equation is evolution equations. Evolution equations, namely partial differential equations with time t as one of the independent variables, arise not only from many fields of mathematics, but also from other branches of science such as physics, mechanics and material science. This type equation arises beam theory [1]. Timoshenko [2], a pioneer in strength of materials, developed a theory in 1921 which is a modification of Euler's beam theory. Euler's beam theory does not take into account the correction for rotatory inertia or the correction for shear. In the Timoshenko beam theory, Timoshenko has taken into account corrections both for rotatory inertia and for shear. Also Timoshenko has shown that the correction for shear is approximately four times greater than the correction for rotatory inertia. The modified theory is called the "Timoshenko beam theory". Many authors studied Timoshenko equation. For example; Esquivel-Avila [3, 4] studied global existence and attractor of solution of the Timoshenko equation. Later, Pişkin [5] prove the local existence of solutions for the problem by Banach contraction mapping principle. After that, we obtained global existence, decay and blow up of solutions. Recently, Pişkin and Irkıl [6] studied the blow up of solutions with positive initial energy.

Keywords: Blow up, Timoshenko equation, positive and negative initial energy

References

- [1] Doshi C. (1979). On the Analysis of the Timoshenko Beam Theory with and without internal damping, Thesis, Rochester Institute of Technology.
- [2] Timoshenko, S.P. (1921). On the Correction for Shear of the Differential Equation for Transverse Vibrations of Prismatic Bars, Philosophical Magazine and Journal of Science, 6(41) 744-746.
- [3] Esquivel-Avila, J.A. (2010). Dynamic analysis of a nonlinear Timoshenko equation, Abstract and Applied Analysis, 1-36.
- [4] Esquivel-Avila, J.A. (2013 Global attractor for a nonlinear Timoshenko equation with source terms, Mathematical Sciences, 1-8.
- [5] Pişkin, E. (2015). Existence, decay and blow up of solutions for the extensible beam equation with nonlinear damping and source terms, Open Math., 408-420.
- [6] Pişkin, E., & Irkıl, N. (2016). Blow up of Positive Initial-Energy Solutions for the Extensible Beam Equation with Nonlinear Damping and Source terms, Ser. Math. Inform., 31(3) 645-654.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>hazally.kaya@gmail.com</u>

Numerical Modelling of MHD Convection Flow in Cavities

Merve Gürbüz¹[∞], Münevver Tezer-Sezgin²

¹ Baskent University, Department of Management, Ankara, Turkey
 ² Middle East Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

The two-dimensional, steady, laminar flow of an incompressible, electrically conducting, viscous fluid is considered in a square and a lid-driven cavity under the effect of horizontally applied uniform magnetic field. The continuity, momentum and energy equations are coupled including the buoyancy and magnetic forces allowing the energy equation to contain the Joule heating and the viscous dissipation [1]. The magnetohydrodynamics (MHD) convection equations are solved in terms of velocity components, temperature and pressure as well as stream function and vorticity by using polynomial radial basis function (RBF) approximation for the inhomogeneity. Particular solution, which is also approximated by RBF to satisfy both the differential equation and boundary conditions, becomes the solution itself of the differential equation [2]. The physically unknown boundary conditions of the vorticity are obtained using the finite difference discretization of stream function equation [3]. The boundary conditions for pressure are obtained using the RBF coordinate matrix and finite difference discretization of momentum equations for the lid-driven cavity problem. However, for the square cavity the physically meaningful, vanishing normal derivative pressure values are taken on the boundary. The numerical solutions are obtained for several values of Grashof number (Gr), Hartmann number (M) for fixed Prandtl number Pr=0.71 and fixed Reynolds number Re=100 with or without viscous dissipation. It is found that, the isotherms have a horizontal profile for a large Gr values as a result of convection dominance. As M increases, the effect of the convection is reduced, and the isotherms tend to have vertical profiles. When the viscous dissipation is present, the flow and isotherms are pushed through the cold wall forming boundary layers and thermal layers, respectively. The RBF which is easy to implement provides the solution of MHD convection flow at a considerably small computational expense.

Keywords: MHD, RBF, heat transfer, viscous dissipation

References

- [1] Müller, U., & Bühler, L. (2001). Magnetofluiddynamics in Channels and Containers. 1st ed. Springer, New York.
- [2] Chen, C.S., Fan, C.M., &Wen, P.H. (2012). The method of approximate particular solutions for solving certain partial differential equations. Numerical Methods for Partial Differential Equations, 28, 506–522.
- [3] Gürbüz M. (2017). Radial Basis Function and Dual Reciprocity Boundary Element Solutions of Fluid Dynamics Problems. Doctoral Thesis, Middle East Technical University, Ankara, Turkey.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>mervegurbuz@baskent.edu.tr</u>

Stability of Unsteady MHD Flow in a Rectangular Duct

Münevver Tezer-Sezgin^{1⊠}, Merve Gürbüz²

¹ Middle East Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey
 ² Baskent University, Department of Management, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, the time dependent and coupled magnetohydrodynamic (MHD) flow equations are solved in the cross-section of a rectangular pipe (duct) by using the radial basis function approximation (RBF). The MHD studies electrically conducting fluids in the presence of a magnetic field. It has wide range of industrial applications such as MHD generators, MHD pumps, plasma physics and nuclear fusion [1]. The velocity and the induced magnetic field are obtained by approximating the inhomogeneities using thin plate splines $(r^2 \ln r)$ [2]. Then, particular solution is found satisfying both the MHD equations and the boundary conditions which are the no-slip and insulated wall conditions. The Euler time integration scheme is used for advancing the solution to steady-state together with a relaxation parameter for achieving stable solution. It is shown that, as Hartman number (M) increases the flow develops boundary layers of order M^{-1} and $M^{-1/2}$ on the Hartmann walls (perpendicular to the applied magnetic field) and side walls (parallel to the magnetic field), respectively. The induced magnetic field also exhibits boundary layers at the Hartmann walls, and the flow flattens and becomes stagnant at the center of the duct with an increase in the Hartmann number. These are the well-known characteristics of the MHD flow. The stability analysis is carried in terms of spectral radius of the coefficient matrix in the final discretized system, requiring the boundedness of spectral radius by one. The implemented scheme "Euler in time - radial basis function approximation in space" gives stable solution by using quite large time increment and relaxation parameter although the Euler scheme is an explicit method.

Keywords: MHD, RBF, Euler time-integration, Stability

References

- [1] Dragoş, L. (1975). Magneto-fluid Dynamics. 2nd ed. Abacus Press, England.
- [2] Gürbüz M. (2017). Radial Basis Function and Dual Reciprocity Boundary Element Solutions of Fluid Dynamics Problems. Doctoral Thesis, Middle East Technical University, Ankara, Turkey.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>munt@metu.edu.tr</u>
Asset Flow Differential Equations

Hüseyin Merdan[⊠]

TOBB University of Economics and Technology, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

I will give an overview on deterministic asset pricing models. I will present asset flow differential equations used for modeling a single asset market involving a group of investors. Derivation of models are based on the assumption of the finiteness of assets (rather than assuming unbounded arbitrage) in addition to investment strategies that are based on either price momentum (trend) or valuation considerations. Finally, an example from real market will be discussed.

Keywords: Ordinary differential equations for asset pricing, price dynamics, asset flow, dynamical system approach to mathematical finance.

References

- [1] Caginalp, G., & Ermentrout, G.B. (1990). A kinetic thermodynamics approach to the psychology of fluctuations in financial markets, Applied Mathematics Letters, 3, 17-19.
- [2] Caginalp, G., & Balenovich, D. (1999). Asset flow and momentum: Deterministic and stochastic equations, Phil. Trans. R. Soc. Lond. A, 357, 2119-2133.
- [3] Caginalp, G., & Merdan, H. (2007). Asset price dynamics with heterogeneous groups, Physica D, 225, 43-54.
- [4] Merdan, H., & Alisen, M. (2011). A mathematical model for asset pricing, Applied Mathematics and Computation, 218, 1449-1456.
- [5] DeSantis, M., Swigon, D., & Caginalp, G. (2012). Nonlinear dynamics and stability in a multi-group asset flow model, SIAM Journal on Applied Dynamical Systems, 11, 1114-1148.
- [6] Merdan, H., Caginalp, G., & Troy, W.C. (2016). Bifurcation analysis a single-group asset flow model, Quarterly Applied Mathematics, 74, 275-296.

 \square Corresponding Author Email: <u>merdan@etu.edu.tr</u>

Generalized Curvature of the Contact Curve Based on The Local Surface Frame

Vahide Bulut[⊠]

Independent Schoolar, 35100, Izmir, Turkey

Abstract

Industrial robots usually required to move so as to make and maintain contact between bodies. Contacting is found in the use of industrial robots for grinding, polishing, cleaning, parts sliding, and peg insertion [3]. The point contact, line contact, and planar contact between rigid bodies are the most common types of direct contact. Some researchers studied on contact between planar rigid bodies (for example, [1], [5], [9], [10], [12]), but some researchers have been studied on the kinematics of 3D contact between two rigid bodies. Cai and Roth study the kinematics of two contacting bodies in point contact according to spatial motion [2], [3]. Montana finds the equations of contact from a geometric perspective [6]. In this paper, we express the local surface frame and the curvatures of this frame, and relation between the local-surface frame and the Darboux frame on the surface. Using the definition "If there exists a regular surface that contacts to the curve at the neighborhood of the contact point in high order, and contact conditions are described in terms of invariants, then these invariants are called as generalized curvature of the curve which attached to the surface. Also, the surface is called as generalized frame. For this purpose, we express the contact order between the curve and the surface at the neighbourhood of the contact point of the contact point. Moreover, we obtain the generalized curvature of the contact point. Moreover, we obtain the generalized curvature of the contact point.

Keywords: Darboux frame, local-surface frame, point contact, generalized curvature.

References

- [1] J. S. Beggs. Advanced Mechanism. The Macmillan Company, New York, 1966.
- [2] C. Cai and B. Roth. On the planar motion of rigid bodies with point contact. Mechanism and Machine Theory, 21(6):453–466, 1986.
- [3] C. Cai and B. Roth. On the spatial motion of rigid bodies with point contact. In In Proceedings of 1987 International Conference on Robotics and Automation, 1987.
- [4] A. Goetz. Introduction to differential geometry, Addison-Wesley series in mathematics, Intermediate Mathematics Series. Addison Wesley Pub. Co., 1970.
- [5] A. S. Hall. Kinematics and Linkage Design. Balt Publishers, West Lafayette, Indiana, 1966.
- [6] D. J. Montana. The kinematics of contact and grasp. The International Journal of Robotics Research, 7(3):17– 32, 1988.
- [7] A. W. Nutbourne and R. R. Martin. Differential Geometry Applied to Curve and Surface Design. 1:Foundations, West Sussex, Chichester, UK; E.Horwood, NY, USA, 1988.
- [8] B. O'Neill. Elemantery Differential Geometry. Academic press Inc. New York, 1966.
- [9] B. Paul. Kinematics and Dynamics of Planar Machinery. Prentice-Hall, Inc., Englewoods Cli s, J., 1979.
- [10] N. Rosenauer and A.H. Willis. Kinematics of Mechanisms. Associated General Publications Pty Ltd, Sydney, Australia, 1953.
- [11] D. Wang and W. Wang. Kinematic Differential Geometry and Saddle Synthesis of Linkages. Wiley, 1 edition (July 27, 2015), 2015.
- [12] E. T. Whittaker. A Treatise on the Analytical Dynamics of Particles & Rigid Bodies. Cambridge University Press, 1988.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>vahidebulut@mail.ege.edu.tr</u>

The DRBEM Solution of the Cauchy MHD Flow in a Duct with one of the Walls is Slipping and Variably Conducting

Cemre Aydın[⊠], M. Tezer-Sezgin

Middle East Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, the Magnetohyrodynamic (MHD) flow in a rectangular duct where one part of its boundary allows both the varying conductivity and the slipping velocity is investigated numerically as a direct and an inverse (Cauchy) formulation. The Cauchy formulation of the problem is constructed with underspecified and over-specified boundary conditions for the induced magnetic field and the velocity on opposite parts of the duct walls. The study aims to recompute the induced magnetic field with the conductivity constant, and the slipping velocity with the slip length on the underspecified wall. The governing coupled convection-diffusion type MHD equations for the direct and inverse formulations are discretized and solved as a whole by using the dual reciprocity boundary element method (DRBEM). The DRBEM provides both the velocity and induced magnetic field and their normal derivatives to be used as overspecified boundary conditions for the construction of Cauchy problem. The discretization of Cauchy problems results in ill-conditioned systems of linear algebraic equations, hence a regularization technique is needed to solve such systems [1]. In this study, two regularization techniques, namely as the Tikhonov regularization and the well-posed iterations [2] are performed to obtain the inverse solution of the Cauchy MHD duct flow. Slip velocity and induced magnetic field behaviours are examined for Hartmann number values Ha=1, 10, 50. Discretizing only the boundary of the problem region and providing both the unknowns and their normal derivatives on the underspecified wall are the main advantages of the DRBEM [3] for the Cauchy MHD flow in a square duct so that the conductivity constant and the slip length between them can be recovered.

Keywords: DRBEM, MHD, Cauchy problem, regularization, slip velocity, conductivity

References

- L. Marin, L.Elliott, P.J.Heggs, D.B.Ingham, D.Lesnic, X.Wen, (2006). Dual reciprocity boundary element method solution of the Cauchy problem for Helmholtz-type equations with variable coefficients. Jour. of Sound and Vibration, 297, 89-105.
- [2] V.A. Kozlov, V.G. Maz'ya, A.F. Fomin, (1991). An iterative method for solving the Cauchy problem for elliptic equations. Comput. Maths. Math. Phys, 31, pp. 45--52.
- [3] P.W. Partridge, C.A Brebbia, L.C Wrobel, (1992). The Dual Reciprocity Boundary Element Method. Computational Mechanics Publications. Southampton, Boston.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>acemre@metu.edu.tr</u>

Power Law of Cross Correlation Between the North Atlantic Oscillation and Precipitation

Hasan Tatlı^{1⊠}, Ş. Sibel Menteş²

 ¹ Çanakkale Onsekiz Mart University, Faculty of Sciences and Arts, Department of Geography, 17020 Çanakkale, Turkey
 ² Istanbul Technical University, Faculty of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Department of Meteorology, Maslak, 34469 Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

The understanding of complex systems such as in meteorology or climatology has become an active research area for researchers (or earth scientists) since the works of Lorenz from the mid-sixties. Because of the atmospheric systems are highly complex, it is important to identify interesting dynamic properties such as possible scale invariance, heavy skewness, non-linear correlations, non-stationarity and fractality in the system. Atmospheric teleconnections with strong convective processes have irregularly led to drive impacts on various climatic regimes of the world. The North Atlantic Oscillation (NAO) is such a teleconnection process that alters rainfall to the Mediterranean basin during its negative phase and to Europe during its positive phase. In this study, the long-range relationships between the NAO and precipitation data from the data set named Merged Analysis of Precipitation (CMAP) from 1979-2016 were examined by the method of so called Detrended Moving Average Cross Correlation Analysis (DMCA) in the areas including Europe, the Mediterranean, North Africa, Middle East and Caucasus. The method is usually labelled as the DMCA coefficient, pDMCA (s), with a moving average time window length s. All calculations were made by a developed source code of Fortran95. Since statistical tests were not yet fully developed on this area, the results were compared with the results those obtained from the random data (Monte-Carlo approach). By applying the DMCA to NAO series, it is found that the NAO fluctuation series exhibit long-range crosscorrelation characteristics. Significant long-term relationships are found for some regions and window length s, with these teleconnection patterns corresponding to changes in precipitation values in some places. Strong DMCA coefficients are identified for the Mediterranean basin, near polar region of north and northwest Europe when the time window s is greater than 12 months, due to the aggregated vertical atmospheric humidity combined with near-surface conditions.

Keywords: DMCA, Europe, Mediterranean, NAO, Precipitation

References

- [1] Delworth, T.L., Zeng, F., Vecchi, G.A., Yang, X., Zhang, L., & Zhang, R. (2016). The North Atlantic Oscillation as a driver of rapid climate change in the Northern Hemisphere. *Nature Geoscience*, 9, 509–512. http://dx.doi.org/10.1038/ngeo2738.
- [2] Deser, C., Hurrell, J. W., & Phillips, A. S. (2017). The role of the North Atlantic Oscillation in European climate projections. Climate Dynamics, 49 (9-10), 3141-3157.
- [3] Guo, E., Zhang, J., Si, H., Dong, Z., Cao, T., & Lan, W. (2017). Temporal and spatial characteristics of extreme precipitation events in the Midwest of Jilin Province based on multifractal detrended fluctuation analysis method and copula functions. Theoretical and Applied Climatology, 130 (1-2), 597-607.
- [4] He, L. Y., Chen, & S. P. (2011). A new approach to quantify power-law cross-correlation and its application to commodity markets. Physica A: Statistical Mechanics and its Applications, 390 (21-22), 3806-3814.
- [5] Ivanova, K., & Ausloos, M. (1999). Application of the detrended fluctuation analysis (DFA) method for describing cloud breaking. Physica A: Statistical Mechanics and its Applications, 274 (1-2), 349-354.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>tatli@comu.edu.tr</u>

Detrended Fluctuation Analysis of Drought Over Turkey

Hasan Tatlı $^{\bowtie}$

Çanakkale Onsekiz Mart University, Faculty of Sciences and Arts, Department of Geography, 17020 Çanakkale, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, the persistence of drought by means of the Palmer drought severity index (PDSI) over Turkey is investigated. A method to sort out correlations and decorrelations in drought occurrence and persistence is introduced. The detrended fluctuation analysis (DFA) statistical method is applied to PDSI. The existence of long-range power-law correlations in PDSI fluctuations is demonstrated from 2 months to decay years period. Moreover, using a finite size (time) interval window, a change from Brownian to non-Brownian fluctuation regimes is clearly shown to define the drought pattern changes. The occurrence of these statistics in the values of PDSI suggests the usefulness for better meteorological drought predictability. DFA frequencies reveals power law scaling up to climatological (30 years) periods; this is related to long-term memory. From a climatological point of view, it is found that the area with high level Hurst exponent is recommended as the areas of those sensitive to droughts falling into the risk ranges of "high" and "very high".

Keywords: DFA, Drought, PDSI, Turkey.

References

- [1] Király, A., & Jánosi, I. M. (2005). Detrended fluctuation analysis of daily temperature records: Geographic dependence over Australia. Meteorology and Atmospheric Physics, 88 (3-4), 119-128.
- [2] Kristoufek, L. (2014). Detrending moving-average cross-correlation coefficient: Measuring crosscorrelations between non-stationary series. Physica A: Statistical Mechanics and its Applications, 406, 169-175.
- [3] Liu, D., Luo, M., Fu, Q., Zhang, Y., Imran, K. M., Zhao, D., Li, T., & Abrar, F. M. (2016). Precipitation complexity measurement using Multifractal spectra empirical mode decomposition Detrended fluctuation analysis. Water Resources Management, 30(2), 505-522.
- [4] Lorenz, E. N. (1995). The Essence of Chaos. University of Washington Press.
- [5] Tatli H, Türkeş M. 2011. Empirical orthogonal function analysis of the Palmer drought indices. *Agr. Forest Meteorol.* 151: 981-991.
- [6] Taqqu MS, Teverovsky V, Willinger W. 1995. Estimators for long range dependence: an empirical study. *Fractals* 3: 785-788.
- [7] Tatli H. 2007. Synchronization between the North Sea-Caspian pattern (NCP) and surface air temperatures in NCEP. *Int. J. Climatol.* 27:1171-1187.
- [8] Tatli H. 2014. Statistical complexity in daily precipitation of NCEP/NCAR reanalysis over the Mediterranean basin. *Int. J. Climatol.* 34: 155–161

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>tatli@comu.edu.tr</u>

A Series Formula for Prabhakar Fractional Operators

Arran Fernandez^{1⊠}, Dumitru Baleanu^{2,3}

¹ Department of Applied Mathematics and Theoretical Physics, University of Cambridge, United Kingdom
 ² Department of Mathematics, Çankaya University, Ankara, Turkey
 ³ Institute of Space Sciences, Magurele-Bucharest, Romania

Abstract

In 1971, Prabhakar [1] introduced an integral operator with a generalised Mittag-Leffler kernel, which later authors [2,3] have adapted as a fractional differintegral with four or five continuously varying parameters. Other novel fractional models defined by integral operators with non-singular kernels include those by Caputo & Fabrizio [4] and Atangana & Baleanu [5]. All three models – Prabhakar, CF, and AB – have discovered real-world applications. In our recent paper [6], we discovered a new formula for the AB fractional derivative as a series of classical (Riemann–Liouville) fractional integrals.

Here, we demonstrate that the Prabhakar fractional operators can also be written in series form, in terms of Riemann–Liouville fractional operators only. This new formula enables short-cuts to many known results about Prabhakar operators, and provides new fundamental results in this model, such as analogues of the product and chain rules. We also indicate how these results on Prabhakar operators give rise to special cases in each of several other models of fractional calculus, including CF and AB.

Convergent infinite series are an established tool in fractional calculus: e.g. the Grunwald–Letnikov model, or the fractional Leibniz and chain rules. Our new formula may be much more useful for numerical computation of Prabhakar differintegrals than the original integral formula. Furthermore, because the summands are Riemann–Liouville, the series formula reduces many problems and theorems in the Prabhakar model to analogous ones in the classical and better-known Riemann–Liouville model.

Keywords: Fractional calculus, Prabhakar operators, convergent series

Acknowledgements

The authors would like to thank Vasily Tarasov for his suggestions on this project.

References

- [1] Prabhakar, T.R. (1971). A singular integral equation with a generalized Mittag Leffler function in the kernel. Yokohama Mathematical Journal, 19, 7–15.
- [2] Kilbas, A.A., Saigo, M., & Saxena, R.K. (2004). Generalized Mittag-Leffler function and generalized fractional calculus operators. Integral Transforms and Special Functions, 15(1), 31–49.
- [3] Srivastava, H.M., & Tomovski, Ž. (2009). Fractional calculus with an integral operator containing a generalized Mittag-Leffler function in the kernel. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 211(1), 198–210.
- [4] Caputo, M., & Fabrizio, M. (2015). A new Definition of Fractional Derivative without Singular Kernel. Progress in Fractional Differentiation and Applications, 1(2), 73–85.
- [5] Atangana, A., & Baleanu, D. (2016). New fractional derivatives with nonlocal and non-singular kernel: theory and application to heat transfer model. Thermal Science 20(2), 763–769.
- [6] Baleanu, D., & Fernandez, A. (2018). On some new properties of fractional derivatives with Mittag-Leffler kernel. Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation, 59, 444–462.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>af454@cam.ac.uk</u>

Approximate Solutions to Initial Value Problems for Fractional Differential Equations

Marcela Fabio¹, Maria I. Troparevsky^{2⊠},

¹ Centro de Matemática Aplicada, UNSAM, M. Irigoyen 3100 (1650), San Martín, Argentina ² Facultad de Ingeniería, UBA, Av. Paseo Colón 850 (1063), CABA, Argentina

Abstract

Fractional calculus has achieved a great interest in the last decades since many physical problems are modelled with fractional differential equations. In recent works the importance and usefulness of fractional differential equations involving Riemann-Liouville, Caputo and Caputo-Fabrizio derivative, was shown ([1], [2], [6]-[9]). These fractional derivatives are nonlocal. Their definition involves integral operators, some of them having singular kernel, and its calculation is not easy. For that reason, in addition to theoretical developments, it is important to develop numerical approximations to these operators. Several approaches were proposed to solve different fractional differential ([2], [6]).

In this work we build an approximate solution to the Initial Value Problem $D_0^{\alpha}f + \lambda f = g$, f(0) = 0where $D_0^{\alpha}f$ is the Caputo-Fabrizio derivative of order α in [0,b], f is the unknown and g is the data.

There are some results concerning existence and uniqueness of solution to this IVP and explicit formulae of the primitive of the data function ([6], [10]).

Following some previous works [3]-[5], we choose a wavelet basis well localized in both, time and frequency domain, with suitable properties: smooth, band limited, infinitely oscillating with fast decay. We apply the wavelet transform and build an approximate solution to the IVP combining the fractional derivatives of the wavelet basis by means of a Galerkin type scheme. The choice of the basis guarantees that the numerical scheme is simple, stable and can be easily refined. We do not need to impose any supplementary condition to the data or to the unknown. We present some numerical examples to show its performance.

References

- [1] Atangana A. and Cloot A. H. (2013). Stability and convergence of the space fractional variable-order Schrodinger equation, Adv. Difference Equ. Available from: https://doi.org/10.1186/1687-1847-2013-80.
- [2] Caputo M. and Fabrizio M. (2015). A new definition of fractional derivative without singular kernel, Progr. Fract. Differ. Appl. Vol. 1, No. 2, pp. 73-85.
- [3] Troparevsky M.I., Serrano E. P. and Fabio M.A. (2016). Approximate Solutions to Integral Equations by Wavelet Decomposition Methods, Mecánica Computacional, Vol. XXXIV, pp. 3383-3394.
- [4] Troparevsky M.I. and Fabio M. (2017). La Nueva Derivada de Caputo: Cálculo Aproximado de Primitivas Utilizando una Familia de Wavelets de Banda Limitada. Mecánica Computacional. Vol. XXXV, No. 44, pp. 2547-2557. Applications of Wavelets (B).
- [5] Fabio M. and Troparevsky M.I. (2018). An Inverse Problem for the Caputo Fractional Derivative by means of the Wavelet Transform, Progress in Fractional Calculus, Vol. 4, No. 1, pp. 15-26. Available from: http://dx.doi.org/10.18576/pfda/040103.
- [6] Al-Salti N. et al. (2016). Boundary-value problems for fractional heat equation involving Caputo-Fabrizio derivative. BISCA, New Trends in Mathematical Sciences, Vol. 4 No. 4, pp. 79-89.
- [7] Ceretani A. N., Tarzia D. A. (2017). Determination of two unknown thermal coefficients through an inverse one-phase fractional stefan problem. Fractional Calculus and Applied Analysis. Vol. 20, No. 2.
- [8] Roscani S. and Marcus E. (2013). Two equivalent Stefan's problems for the time fractional diffusion equation. Fractional Calculus and Applied Analysis. Vol. 16, No. 4.
- [9] Shy-Der Lin and Chia-hung Lu (2013). Laplace transform for solving some families of fractional differential equations and its applications, Advances in Difference Equations.
- [10] Losada J. and Nieto J. (2015). Properties of a New Fractional Derivative without Singular Kernel. Progr. Frac. Differ. Appl. Vol. 1, No. 2, pp. 87-92.
- Corresponding Author Email: <u>mariainestro@gmail.com;</u>

Approximate Controllability of Non-Autonomous Sobolev-Type Differential Equations with Nonlocal Conditions

Arshi Meraj[⊠], Dwijendra N Pandey

Department of Mathematics, Indian Institute of Technology Roorkee, India

Abstract

In this work, we study sufficient conditions for the approximate controllability of a class of Sobolevtype non-autonomous differential equations with nonlocal conditions in a Hilbert space X:

$$\frac{d}{dt} [Ex(t)] + A(t) x(t) = f(t, x(t)) + Bu(t), \ t \in J = [0, b],$$
$$x(0) + g(x) = x_0,$$

where, $A(t):D(A) \subset X \to X$ is a closed densely defined linear operator with D(A) is independent of $t, x_0 \in D(E), E:D(E) \subset X \to X$ is a closed linear bijective operator with $D(E) \subset D(A), E^{-1}: X \to D(E)$ is compact, and $f: J \times X \to X, g: C(J,X) \to X$ be given functions satisfying certain assumptions.

 $u \in L^2(J, U)$ where U is a Hilbert space and $B: U \to X$ is a bounded linear operator.

The results will be established under the assumption that corresponding linear system is approximately controllable, and by using fixed point theorem and the theory of semigroup of bounded linear operators.

Keywords: Approximate controllability, Semigroup theory, Sobolev type differential equations.

Acknowledgements

The work of first author is supported by the "Ministry of Human Resource and Development, India under grant number: MHR-02-23-200-44".

References

- [1] Pazy, A. (1983). Semigroup of Linear Operators and Applications to Partial Differential Equations. Applied Mathematical Sciences, Springer-Verlag, New York.
- [2] Brill, H. (1977). A semilinear Sobolev evolution equation in a Banach space. J. Differential Equations, 24, 412-425.
- [3] Mahmudov, N. I. (2003). Approximate controllability of semilinear deterministic and stochastic evolution equations in abstract spaces. SIAM J. Control. Optim., 42(5), 1604-1622.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>arshimeraj@gmail.com</u>

Fractal Koch Curve Antenna and Their Dimension

Nader Rahbar Soureh¹, Yashar Zehforoosh², Alireza Khalili Golmankhaneh¹

¹ Department of Physics, Urmia Branch, Islamic Azad University, Urmia, Iran ² Department of Electrical Engineering, Urmia Branch, Islamic Azad University, Urmia, Iran

Abstract

Fractal geometry has the significant impact in many areas of science and engineering such as antennas [1,2]. Fractal antennas are used in telecommunications since they have the simple structure, multiband, compact size, and easy integration with the circuit [3-10]. In this paper, we study the relation between antennas characteristics and geometrical properties of the Koch curve fractals. The fabricated antenna has dimensions of $40 \times 30 \times 1.6mm^3$, and operational frequency bands of the antenna are (3-6.2 GHz) in view of VSWR<2 diagrams [4]. The quantitative link between multiband characteristics and the resonant frequency of the antenna and fractal dimension is presented. The fractal Koch antennas are analyzed and simulated utilizing Ansoft HFSS for design optimization. Radiation patterns of designing monopole antenna are given. The reflection coefficient and measured and simulated are compared.

Keywords: Fractal antennas, Multiband charactristics, Fractal dimensions, Microstip.

References

- [1] Golmankhaneh, A. K. (2017). On the calculus of the parameterized fractal curves. Turk. J. Phys., 41, 418-425.
- [2] Falconer, K. J. (1997). Techniques in fractal geometry.
- [3] Puente, C., Romeu, J., Pous, R., Garcia, X., & Benitez, F. (1996). Fractal multiband antenna based on the Sierpinski gasket. Electronics Letters, 32(1), 1-2.
- [4] Yazdanpanah, N., & Zehforoosh, Y. (2017). High gain CP aperture-coupled antenna for X-band application. Australian Journal of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, 14(1-2) 1-8.
- [5] Zehforoosh, Y., & Rezvani, M. (2017). A Small Quad-Band Monopole Antenna with Folded Strip Lines for WiMAX/WLAN and ITU Applications. Journal of Microwaves, Optoelectronics and Electromagnetic Applications, 16(4), 1012-1018.
- [6] Zhai H, Gao Q, Liang C, Yu R, Liu S. (2014). A dual-band high-gain base-station antenna for WLAN and WiMAX applications. IEEE Antenna Wirel Propag Lett, 13, 876–879.
- [7] Karli R,& Ammor H. (2015). Rectangular patch antenna for dual-band RFID and WLAN applications. Wirel Pers Commun, 83(2), 995–1007.
- [8] Sefidi, M., Zehforoosh, Y., & Moradi, S. (2013). A novel monopole antenna for wireless communication systems and UWB application. Microwave and Optical Technology Letters, 55(8), 1856-1860.
- [9] Yazdanpanah N., & Zehforoosh Y., (2017). High gain CP aperture-coupled antenna for X-band application, Australian Journal of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, 14(1-2), 1-8.
- [10] Heydari, B., Sanaati, Z., Waladi, V., & Zehforoosh, Y. (2014). A Novel Fractal Monopole Antenna with Wide Bandwidth Enhancement for UWB Applications. Applied Computational Electromagnetics Society Journal, 29(11). 923-927.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>a.khalili@iaurmia.ac.ir</u>

Compressive Spectral Method for the Simulation of the Water Waves

Cihan Bayındır $^{\boxtimes}$

Işık University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper an approach for decreasing the computational effort required for the spectral simulations of the water waves is introduced. Signals with majority of the components zero, are known as the sparse signals. Like majority of the signals in the nature it can be realized that water waves are sparse either in time or in the frequency domain. Using the sparsity property of the water waves in the time or in the frequency domain, the compressive sampling algorithm can be used as a tool for improving the performance of the spectral simulation of the water waves. The methodology offered in this paper depends on the idea of using a smaller number of spectral components compared to the classical spectral method with a high number of components. After performing the time integration with a smaller number of spectral components and using the compressive sampling technique, it is shown that the water wave field can be reconstructed with a significantly better efficiency compared to the classical spectral method with a high number of spectral components, especially for long time evolutions. For the sparse water wave model in the time domain the well-known solitary wave solutions of the Korteweg-deVries (KdV) equation is considered. For the sparse water wave model in the frequency domain the well-known Airy (linear) ocean waves with Jonswap spectrum is considered. Utilizing a spectral method, it is shown that by using a smaller number of spectral components compared to the classical spectral method with a high number of components, it is possible to simulate the sparse water waves with negligible error in accuracy and a great efficiency especially for large time evolutions.

Keywords: Water waves, spectral methods, compressive sampling

References

- [1] Bayindir, C. (2016), Compressive spectral method for the simulation of the nonlinear gravitational waves: Nature Scientific Reports, 6, 22100.
- [2] Candes, E. J., Romberg, J. and Tao, T., (2006), Robust uncertainty principles: Exact signal reconstruction from highly incomplete frequency information, IEEE Transactions on Information Theory, 52, 489-509.
- [3] Canuto, C., Hussaini, M. Y., Quarteroni, A. and Zang, T. A. (2006), Spectral Methods: Fundamentals in Single Domains, Springer-Verlag, Berlin.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>cihan.bayindir@isikun.edu.tr</u>

The Spectral Decomposition of a Covariance Matrix for the Balanced Random Effects Model

Bilgehan Güven[⊠]

Çanakkale Onsekiz Mart University Mathematics. Department, Çanakkale, Turkey

Abstract

The covariance matrix of the balanced random effects model is the linear combination of matrices which are the Kronecker products of identity matrices and matrices of ones. We present the method for deriving the spectral decomposition of this kind of the covariance matrices. Earlier studies on this topic are Searle and Henderson [1], Wansbeek and Kapteyn [2,3], Wu and Wang [4] and finally Güven [5]

Our derivation of the spectral decomposition of differs from earlier studies and is based on determining the distinct eigenvalues of a covariance matrix and then obtaining a principal idempotent matrix for each dictinct eigenvalue. Illustrative examples are given.

Keywords: Covariance matrix, Eigenvalue and eigenvector, Spectral decomposition of a symmetric matrix

References

- [1] Searle S. R. & Henderson H. V. (1979). Dispersion matrices for variance components model Journal of American Statistical Association 74,465-470.
- [2] Wansbeek T. & Kapteyn A. (1982). A simple way to obtain the spectral decomposition of variance components model for balanced data. Communication in Statitistics Theory and Methods 11,2105-2112.
- [3] Wansbeek T. & Kapteyn A. (1983). A note on spectral decomposition and maximum likelihood estimation in anova models with balanced data. Statistics and Probability Letters 1, 213-215
- [4] Wu M. X. & Wang S.G. (2005) A new method of spectral decomposition of covariance matrix in the mixed effects model and its application Science in China Ser A 48, 1453-1464.
- [5] Güven B. (2012). The spectral decomposition of a covariance matrix for the balanced mixed analysis of variance model, Linear Algebra and its Applications 416, 3337-3346.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>bguven@comu.edu.tr</u>

On the Analytical Solutions of the Fractional Partial Differential Equations

Zehra Pinar \square

Namık Kemal University, Department of Mathematics, Tekirdağ, Turkey

Abstract

Nowadays, new fractional derivatives are popular instead of the classical derivatives, Riemann-Liouville, Caputo derivative. In this work, the conformable derivative is considered for the one of popular fractional partial differential equation. Analytical solutions of fractional partial differential equations are more difficult to obtain, as analytical solutions of nonlinear partial differential equations cannot be obtained easily. There are many methods to obtained analytical solutions such as auxiliary equation method, sub-equation method, tanh-method, etc. In this work, the one of models of real world problems is considered and the analytical solutions are obtained via Bernoulli approximation method which is modification of mentioned methods.

Keywords: Analytical solutions, conformable derivative, fractional partial differential equation.

Acknowledgements

Acknowledgements may be made to those individuals or institutions not mentioned elsewhere in the paper that made an important contribution.

References

- Miller, K.S., & Ross, B., (1993). An Introduction to the Fractional Calculus and Differential Equations. John Wiley, New York.
- [2] Abdeljawad, T., (2015). On conformable fractional calculus. J. Comput. Appl. Math. 279, 57–66.
- [3] Pınar, Z., Öziş, T., (2013). An Observation on the Periodic Solutions to Nonlinear Physical models by means of the auxiliary equation with a sixth-degree nonlinear term. Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation, 18, 2177-2187.
- [4] Pinar, Z., Ozis, T., (2015). A remark on a variable-coefficient Bernoulli equation based on auxiliary equation method for nonlinear physical systems. arXiv:1511.02154 [math.AP].
- [5] Podlubny, I., (1999). Fractional differential equations. San Diego: Academic Press.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>zpinar@nku.edu.tr</u>

A Hybrid MCDM Based QFD Approach for Supplier Selection Problem

Belkız Torğul[⊠], Turan Paksoy

Selcuk University, Industrial Engineering Department, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

The primary aim of the supply chain philosophy is to make profits and match supply with customer needs simultaneously. In order to ensure success, the performance of all members in the supply chain should be effective and achieve customer satisfaction. This requires fulfillment of needs of all stakeholders in the supply chain, because of the fact that each of the members is customer of the previous member. Supplier is the first step and a significant link in the supply chain and thus supplier selection is an important strategic decision for reducing operating costs, improving competitiveness and increasing customer satisfaction. Selected suppliers should be the "voice" of customers while providing the company's requests. In this context, Quality-function deployment (QFD) proposes that customer needs influence the supplier evaluation by identifying customer wants (What) and how the firm is going to meet those wants (How). Therefore, this paper presents an integrated hybrid AHP-TOPSIS based OFD methodology to evaluate suppliers. At the first step, AHP is used to determine priority ratings of supplier's customer (stakeholder) requirements. Next, House of Quality (HOQ) that one of the tools of QFD is transformed into House of Supply Chain Management (HSCM) to establish a relationship matrix in order to identify degree of relationship between customer requirements and supplier selection criteria. Then, the importance weights of evaluating criteria are calculated using customer importance ratings and weights of relationship matrix. Finally, based on the weights of criteria, alternative suppliers are ranked by TOPSIS for optimal selection. A numerical example is presented to demonstrate the usefulness and effectiveness of the proposed methodology.

Keywords: AHP, QFD, TOPSIS, supplier selection

References

- Asadabadi, M. R. (2017). A customer based supplier selection process that combines quality function deployment, the analytic network process and a Markov chain. European Journal of Operational Research, 263(3), 1049-1062.
- [2] Azadnia, A. H., & Ghadimi, P. (2018). An Integrated Approach of Fuzzy Quality Function Deployment and Fuzzy Multi-Objective Programming to sustainable Supplier Selection and Order Allocation. Journal of Optimization in Industrial Engineering, 11(1), 1-22.
- [3] Bevilacqua, M., Ciarapica, F. E., & Giacchetta, G. (2006). A fuzzy-QFD approach to supplier selection. Journal of Purchasing and Supply Management, 12(1), 14-27.
- [4] Dursun, M., & Karsak, E. E. (2013). A QFD-based fuzzy MCDM approach for supplier selection. Applied Mathematical Modelling, 37(8), 5864-5875.
- [5] Jain, N. J., & Singh, A. R. AHP and QFD Methodology for Supplier Selection (2014). doi: 10.7763.
- [6] Rajesh, G., & Malliga, P. (2013). Supplier selection based on AHP QFD methodology. Procedia Engineering, 64, 1283-1292.
- [7] Tidwell, A., & Sutterfield, J. S. (2012). Supplier selection using QFD: a consumer products case study. International Journal of Quality & Reliability Management, 29(3), 284-294.
- [8] Yazdani, M., Hashemkhani Zolfani, S., & Zavadskas, E. K. (2016). New integration of MCDM methods and QFD in the selection of green suppliers. Journal of Business Economics and Management, 17(6), 1097-1113.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>belkistorgul@gmail.com</u>

A Simultaneous Optimization Model for Distribution Planning and Supplier Selection in Closed Loop Supply Chain Network

Belkız Torğul[⊠], Turan Paksoy

Selcuk University, Industrial Engineering Department, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

In recent years, recycling activities for used products from end customers to manufacturers have been considerably increased due to government regulations and environmental consciousness of customers. This new paradigm shift requires an effective product recovery network design which known as the closed loop supply chain (CLSC). CLSCs are supply chain networks that includes the returns processes and all traditional supply chain activities as well. An effective CSLC implementation needs strategic decision-making regarding selection of suppliers and optimal order allocations after identifying the appropriate suppliers as well as network design. Therefore, this paper aims to optimize supplier selection, order allocation and CLSC network configuration simultaneously. This study examines a CLSC network managed by a firm with manufacturer, distributor, retailers, collection and recovery centers. The firm meets demands of the customers in the form of new and remanufactured products and evaluate returned products at the same time. Thus, it needs to choose the right suppliers for supplying new parts from the outside and evaluate reusable parts from the inside to minimize cost, increase quality and be environment-friendly. Herein, a two-stage integrated approach is proposed for selecting the best suppliers using a hybrid multi-criteria decision-making method and optimizing CLSC network configuration. At the first stage, AHP is used to calculate the relative weights of supplier selection criteria and then COPRAS is used for ranking (weights) of suppliers. At the second stage, the weights of the criteria and suppliers are incorporated into the proposed model with other formulations. It is modeled as a mixed-integer linear programming model that maximize total profit of CLSC and value of purchasing for suppliers. The proposed model is validated through a numerical example by solving with GAMS software.

Keywords: AHP, COPRAS, CLSC optimization, mixed integer linear programming, supplier selection

References

- [1] Amin, S. H., & Zhang, G. (2012). An integrated model for closed-loop supply chain configuration and supplier selection: Multi-objective approach. Expert Systems with Applications, 39(8), 6782-6791.
- [2] Ghayebloo, S., Tarokh, M. J., Venkatadri, U., & Diallo, C. (2015). Developing a bi-objective model of the closed-loop supply chain network with green supplier selection and disassembly of products: the impact of parts reliability and product greenness on the recovery network. Journal of Manufacturing Systems, 36,76-86.
- [3] Kafa, N., Hani, Y., & El Mhamedi, A. (2015). An integrated sustainable partner selection approach with closed-loop supply chain network configuration. IFAC-Papers On Line, 48(3), 1840-1845.
- [4] Moghaddam, K. S. (2015). Supplier selection and order allocation in CLSC systems using hybrid Monte Carlo simulation and goal programming. International Journal of Production Research, 53(20), 6320-6338.
- [5] Rezaee, M. J., Yousefi, S., & Hayati, J. (2017). A multi-objective model for closed-loop supply chain optimization and efficient supplier selection in a competitive environment considering quantity discount policy. Journal of Industrial Engineering International, 13(2), 199-213.
- [6] Sasikumar, P., & Haq, A. N. (2011). Integration of closed loop distribution supply chain network and 3PRLP selection for the case of battery recycling. International Journal of Production Research, 49(11), 3363-3385.

^{Corresponding} Author Email: <u>belkistorgul@gmail.com</u>

Modelling and 3D Printing of a Complex IPMS Gyroid

Yılmaz Gür [⊠]

Balikesir University, Mechanical Engineering Department, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

Gyroid is discovered by Alan Schoen in 1970 while he was studying super-strong, super light structures. The mathematical equation of the gyroid is complicated because it consists of elliptic integrals. However,

cosx.siny + cosysinz + cosz.sinx = 0

equation gives an approximation to the gyroid surface looks like the actual gyroid [1]. Because of this, the above equation is considered to create a mathematical model of the gyroid by using a mathematical software called K3DSurf v0.6.2 [2]. Once mathematical model created then it is exported to ".obj" data format in order to print it by a 3D Fused Deposition Modelling (FDM) printer [3]. FDM technology is patented by Scott Crump in 1989 for creating three-dimensional objects [4]. The industry of 3D printing is considered part of 4th Industrial Revolution and it is the latest piece in a chain of visualisation techniques [5].

Production of complex mathematical models such as a gyroid is impossible with classical material removing engineering methods. But using 3D printing technology allows us to fabricate such models quite easily [6]. The aim of this study is to fabricate a complex mathematical model of a gyroid in order to use it for active teaching and learning of mathematics and to prove that the above mentioned equation is not only a mathematical expression but also is real life object.

To print the mathematical model of the gyroid a low cost FDM 3D printer is used. MakerwareTM slicing software accepts the ".obj" file format and can slice the model into 2D layers [7]. The software can also calculate the printing nozzle's travel movements, support structures (if needed), printing time, and material necessary. All these information calculated by the slicing software is exported to ".x3g" format saved on a SD card and then sent to the 3D printer. Eventually the mathematical model becomes a tangible real life object.

Keywords: 3D printing, mathematical modelling, FDM

References

- [1] Weyhaupt, A. (2011). 3-D Printing Software [online]. Available from: <u>https://plus.maths.org/content/-meet-gyroid</u> [Accessed 11 March 2018].
- Taha, A. (2014). K3DSurf Software Package. Available from: http://k3dsurf.sourceforge.net/ [Accessed 12 March 2018].
- [3] Gür, Y. (2015). Digital Fabrication of Mathematical Models via Low-Cost 3D FDM Desktop Printer. Acta Physica Polonica A. 127(2-B), B-100-B-102.
- [4] Crump, S.S. (1992). U.S. Patent 5121329, _Apparatus and method for creating three-dimensional objects.
 U.S. Class: 364/468, ASSIGNEES: Stratasys, Inc., Minneapolis, MN (filed: 30 October 1989. date of patent: 9 June 1992).
- Knill, O., Slavkovsky, E. (2013). Illustrating Mathematics Using 3D Printers. arXiv:1306.5599 [math.HO] https://arxiv.org/pdf/1306.5599.pdf [Accessed 12 March 2018]
- [6] Segerman, H. (2012). 3D Printing for Mathematical Visualisation. The Math. Intelligencer 34(4), 54-62.
- [7] MakerBot® MakerWareTM v2.4.1.24.(2013) 3-D Printing Software [Accessed 30 September 2014]

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ygur@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Solid Modelling and 3D Printing of an Object Based on Koch's Snowflake Fractal

Yılmaz Gür \square

Balikesir University, Mechanical Engineering Department, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

The Koch snowflake fractal is one of the earliest fractal curve, which is discovered in 1904 by the Swedish mathematician Helge von Koch. The curve first appeared in a paper titled "On a continuous curve without tangents, constructible from elementary geometry" [1]. The fractal can be constructed from an equilateral triangle, removing the inner third of each side, creating another equilateral triangle at the location where the side was removed. The process continues indefinitely [2]. From this basis an object generated by using a 3D solid modelling software called Solidworks [3]. Firstly, an equilateral triangle is drawn by "line" command and middle one third of the sides are removed with the" break" command. Then three smaller equilateral triangles are added to the sides where the middle parts are removed. The process is repeated until to the second iterations. Once 2D baseline fractal curve is created on the front plane, then this curve is converted to a solid body through the "Extruded Boss" command. To make the object more complex, it is twisted 180° around the Z axis by using the "Flex" command and also drafted inwards 5° along the X and Y axes to make the top end narrower and furthermore the inside of the object is hallowed with the "shell" command in order to give just 1mm thickness to the part in Solidworks.

The object in its present form is very difficult to produce with known material removing production processes. The necessity of 3D printing comes out at this point [4]. Whatever the complexity of the object 3D printing process is able to fabricate the mathematical models without having any difficulty [5]. To fabricate the object digitally a 3D printer works on Fused Filament Fabrication method is used. Preparing the 3D digital model for the 3D printing process MakerwareTM slicing software is used [6].

In this study it is shown that it is possible to create a solid model using a 3D modelling software by using Koch's fractal geometrical curve. Fabricating a Koch fractal based very complex mathematical model is extremely important for providing spatial visualisation and spatial thinking ability for the students.

Keywords: Koch fractal, 3D printing, mathematical modelling, solid modelling.

References

- Phan, A. (2015). Koch Snowflake- The Beauty of Math. [online]. Available from: <u>https://millennialwolf.-wordpress.com/2015/03/11/koch-snowflake-the-beauty-of-math/</u> [Accessed 20 March 2018].
- [2] Weisstein, E. W. (2018). Koch Snowflake. From MathWorld--A Wolfram Web Resource [online]. Available from: <u>http://mathworld.wolfram.com/KochSnowflake.html</u> [Accessed 20 March 2018].
- [3] Dassault Systèmes SolidWorks Corp. (2018). Solidworks Tutorials. Available from: http://www.solidworks.com/sw/resources/solidworks-tutorials.htm [Accessed 20 March 2018].
- [4] Segerman, H. (2012). 3D Printing for Mathematical Visualisation. The Math. Intelligencer 34(4), 54-62.
- Knill, O., Slavkovsky, E. (2013). Illustrating Mathematics Using 3D Printers. ArXiv:1306.5599 [math.HO] <u>https://arxiv.org/pdf/1306.5599.pdf</u> [Accessed 12 March 2018].
- [6] MakerBot® MakerWareTM v2.4.1.24.(2013) 3-D Printing Software [Accessed 30 September 2014]

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ygur@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Mixed Element Modeling via Newton's Method

Metin Şengül

Kadir Has University, Electrical-Electronics Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey

Abstract

For many communications engineering applications, circuit models for measured data obtained from physical devices or subsystems is inevitable. In this work, gradient or steepest descent method is used to model physical devices using mixed lumped and distributed elements. Let us assume $S(j\omega)$ and

$$S_{11}(j\omega, j\tan(\omega\tau)) = \frac{h(j\omega, j\tan(\omega\tau))}{g(j\omega, j\tan(\omega\tau))}$$
 are the given and calculated reflection coefficient data,

respectively. Then they must be equal $(S(j\omega) = S_{11}(j\omega, j \tan(\omega \tau)))$ or very close to each other at the end of the modeling process. As a result the error can be defined as $\varepsilon(j\omega) = S(j\omega) - \frac{h(j\omega, j \tan(\omega \tau))}{g(j\omega, j \tan(\omega \tau))}$. Let us write module square of the error as

$$\left|\varepsilon(j\omega)\right|^{2} = \varepsilon(-j\omega)\varepsilon(j\omega) = \left(S(-j\omega) - \frac{h(-j\omega, -j\tan(\omega\tau))}{g(-j\omega, -j\tan(\omega\tau))}\right) \left(S(jw) - \frac{h(j\omega, j\tan(\omega\tau))}{g(j\omega, j\tan(\omega\tau))}\right) [1].$$

At this step, if Newton's method is utilized to obtain the correct $h(s) = \sum_{k=0}^{n_s} h_k s^k$ values [2,3], where n_s

defines the total number of elements in the two-port mixed-element network and the variable $s = \alpha + j\beta$ refers to either the variable p which is associated with the lumped elements or the variable λ which is associated with the cascaded commensurate transmission lines or UEs, then the values of the next step can be computed as

$$h_{i+1}(j\beta) = h_i(j\beta) - \gamma \nabla_{h_i} \left(\left| \varepsilon_i(j\omega) \right|^2 \right) = h_i(j\beta) - \gamma \frac{\partial \left| \varepsilon_i(j\omega) \right|^2}{\partial h_i(j\beta)} \quad \text{where } \gamma \text{ is the step size of the}$$

process. Then the calculated values are going to be used to obtain the coefficients of the polynomial h(s) via well-known linear interpolation techniques [2].

Keywords: Gradient, modeling, Newton, two-port

References

- [1] Şengül, M. (2006). Circuit Models with Mixed Lumped and Distributed Elements for Passive One-port Devices, PhD Dissertation, Işık University, İstanbul, Turkey
- [2] Gerald, C. F., Wheatley, P. O. (1984). Applied Numerical Analysis, 3rd ed. Addison-Wesley Publishing Company, Menlo Park, California, USA.
- [3] Churchill, R. V., Brown, J. W. (1990). Complex Variables and Applications, 5th ed. McGraw-Hill International Editions, Mathematics Series, New York, USA.

Corresponding Author Email: msengul@khas.edu.tr

An epidemiological model for the cross-species transmission dynamics of brucellosis in Turkey

Meltem Gölgeli ⊠

TOBB University of Economics and Technology, Mathematics Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Brucellosis is a bacterial infection that threats both humans and animals. In animals, brucellosis is transmitted by direct contact or contamination of discharges from infected individuals. Almost every case of human brucellosis has an animal origin [1]. Besides direct contact with infected animal tissues, the disease is also transmitted by eating or drinking of contaminated animal products, e.g., raw milk or cheese etc. Although Brucellosis is well controlled in most developed countries, people in developing countries are still suffering from the infection [2]. Yumuk et al. presented the seroprevalence of brucellosis in humans and animals for the officially registered cases of bovine, sheep and human populations in Turkey [1]. As brucellosis causes serious health and economic problems, the Ministry of Food, Agriculture and Livestock, Turkey has been carried out a project to eradicate the disease through vaccination of animal populations in Turkey since 2012. Unfortunately, there is no effective vaccine in use for human. In this research, we propose a mathematical model describing the cross-species transmission dynamics of brucellosis within these three populations, i.e., bovine, sheep and human. We do not take into account all transmission possibilities and focus mainly on the direct contact between individuals. Our modelling approach is based on SIR (Susceptible, Infective, and Recovered) model that is frequently used by analysing disease outbreaks [3, 4]. We also analyse the dynamical behaviour of the model and derive the stability conditions for the disease-free and the endemic equilibria. We estimate the control reproduction number and discuss the local stability of equilibria and illustrate our results by numerical simulation using the data of brucellosis collected in Turkey [1].

Keywords: Brucellosis, endemic equilibria, stability analysis

References

- [4] Yumuk, Z., & O'Callaghan, D. (2012). Brucellosis in Turkey, International Journal of Infectious Diseases, 16, e228-235.
- [5] Ducrotoy, M.J., Ammary, K., Lbacha, H.A., Zouagui, Z., Mick, V., Prevost, L., Bryssinckx, W., Welburn, S.C., & Benkirane, A. (2015). Narrative overview of animal and human brucellosis in Morocco: intensification of livestock production as a driver for emergence?, Infectious Diseases of Poverty, 4, 57.
- [6] Hou, Q., Sun, X., Zhang, J., Liu, Y., Wang, Y., & Jin, Z. (2013). Modeling the transmission dynamics of sheep brucellosis in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, China, Mathematical Biosciences, 242, 51-58.
- [7] Tumwiine, J. & Robert, G. (2017). A mathematical model for treatment of bovine brucellosis in cattle population, Journal of mathematical modelling, 5(2), 137-152.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>mgolgeli@etu.edu.tr</u>

An Implementation of Auto-Bäcklund Transformation

Asıf Yokuş ¹[∞], Doğan Kaya ², Uğur Demiroğlu ¹

¹ Firat University, Department of Actuary, 23119 Elazig, Turkey ² Istanbul Commerce University, Department of Mathematics, 34840 Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

The traveling wave solutions of the combined Korteweg de Vries-modified Korteweg de Vries (cKdV-mKdV) and a complexly coupled KdV (CcKdV) equations [1-10] are obtained by using the auto-Bäcklund Transformation Method (aBTM)[5-7]. To numerically approximate the exact solutions, the Finite Difference Method (FDM) is used. In addition, these exact and numerical solutions are compared by illustrating the tables and figures. Via the Fourier-Von Neumann stability analysis, the stability of the FDM with the cKdV-mKdV equation is controlled. For the numerical solutions, the L₂ and L_{∞} norm error are given. The 2D and 3D figures of the achieved singular soliton solution to these equations are plotted.

Keywords: Auto-Bäcklund transformation method; Combined Korteweg de Vries-modified Korteweg de Vries equations; Complexly coupled KdV equation; Finite difference method; Solitary wave solution.

References

- M.N.B. Mohamad, Exact solutions to the combined KdV and MKdV equation, Math. Meth. Appl. Sci. 15 (1992) 73–78.
- J. Zhang, New solitary wave solution of the combined KdV and mKdV equation, Int. J. Theor. Phys. 37 (1998) 1541–1546.
- [3] J. Yu, Exact solitary wave solutions to a combined KdV and mKdV equation, Math. Meth. Appl. Sci. 23 (2000) 1667–1670.
- [4] W.P. Hong, New types of solitary-wave solutions from the combined KdV-mKdV equation, Nuovo Cimento B 115 (2000) 117–118.
- [5] E.G. Fan, Two new applications of the homogeneous balance method, Phys. Lett. A 265 (2000) 353–357.
- [6] E.G. Fan, Auto-Bäcklund transformation and similarity reductions for general variable coefficient KdV equations, Phys. Lett. A 265 (2002) 26–30.
- [7] E.G. Fan, Uniformly constructing a series of explicit exact solutions to nonlinear equations in mathematical physics, Chaos, Solitons & Fractals 16 (2003) 819–839.
- [8] R. Naz, Conservation laws for a complexly coupled KdV system, coupled Burgers system and Drinfeld-Sokolov-Wilson system via multiplier approach, Commun. Nonlinear Sci. Numer. Simulat. 15 (2010) 1177-1182.
- [9] R. Hirota, J. Satsuma, Soliton solutions of a coupled Korteweg de Vries equation, Phys Lett A 85 (1981) 407-408.
- [10] . Guha, Geodesic flows, bi-Hamiltonian structure and coupled KdV type systems, J Math Anal Appl 310 (2005) 45-56.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>asfyokus@yahoo.com</u>

Proper Orthogonal Decomposition Method for the Darcy-Brinkman Equations

Fatma G. Eroglu^{1⊠}, Songul Kaya Merdan²

¹ Middle East Tecnical University, Mathematics Department, Ankara, Turkey
 ¹ Bartın University, Mathematics Department, Bartın, Turkey
 ² Middle East Tecnical University, Mathematics Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Double-diffusive convection drives a flow with two potentials that have different diffusion rates. The physical model uses that momentum is forced by both heat and mass transfer, and a Darcy term accounts for the porous boundary. As is the case with all multiphysics flow problems, simulation of the double-diffusive system can be very expensive, and thus practitioners need efficient methods to approximate solutions. One efficient method is reduced order modeling (ROM) using proper orthogonal decomposition (POD). For problems where many similar problem scenarios need tested, e.g. in an engineering design process, this method is highly efficient and has been found to be successful for many different types of flow problems [1-5].

We extend the POD-ROM to flows governed by double diffusive convection. We propose a reduced model based on proper orthogonal decomposition, present a stability and convergence analyses for it, and give results for numerical tests on a benchmark problem which show it is an effective approach to model reduction in this setting.

Keywords: proper orthogonal decomposition, double-diffusive, reduced order models.

References

- Eroglu, F., Kaya, S., & Rebholz, L. (2017). A modular regularized variational multiscale proper orthogonal decomposition for incompressible flows. Comput. Methods Appl. Mech. Engrg., 325, 350 –368.
- [2] San, O., & Borggaard, J. (2015). Principal interval decomposition framework for POD reduced-order modeling of convective Boussinesq flows. Int. J. Numer. Meth. Fluids, 78, 37–62.
- [3] Iliescu, T., & Wang, Z. (2014). Variational multiscale proper orthogonal decomposition: Navier-Stokes equations. Numer. Meth. Partial. Diff. Eqs., 30(2), 641 663.
- [4] Iliescu, T., & Wang, Z. (2013). Variational multiscale proper orthogonal decomposition: convectiondominated convection-diffusion-reaction equations. Mathematics of Computation., 82(283), 1357–1378.
- [5] Ravindran, S. (2005). Real-time computational algorithms for optimal control of an mhd flow system. SIAM Journal of Scientific Computing., 26, 1369 1388.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>fguler@bartin.edu.tr</u>

A Game Theoretical Approach for The Emergency Evacuation

Pınar Usta^{1⊠}, Serap Ergün², Sırma Zeynep Alparslan Gök³

¹ Suleyman Demirel University, Faculty of Technology, Department of Civil Engineering, Isparta, Turkey
 ² Suleyman Demirel University, Faculty of Technology, Department of Software Engineering, Isparta, Turkey
 ³ Suleyman Demirel University, Faculty of Art and Science, Department of Mathematics, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

Events such as fire, bomb attacks, explosion etc., in a building always threaten human lives; in this process evacuation of humans from the hazardous areas is a major and complex issue especially the buildings containing large crowds. Many factors may affect the final outcome and inefficient evacuation can be result in a large number of casualties and losses of property. The ability to evacuate people quickly and accurately in buildings is critical to the success of building emergency response operations and can potentially contribute to the reduction of various building caused casualties and injuries [1, 2]. In the last decades, the importance of emergency management has increased owing to the changed security conditions worldwide, which has led to the necessity of computer-aided emergency assessment process for extreme situations [3]. Evacuation theories of the movement and behavior of a crowd during egress could reduce the possibility of crowd disaster and could lead to minimal evacuation time and safer evacuation. Hence, it is important to study the evacuation flows through game theory applications in order to provide safe and better evacuation from buildings [4, 5, 6].

This paper investigates explores the use of cooperative game theory to model exit decisions for egress choices found in evacuations and presents a game theoretical model to optimize features of emergency evacuation planning. Network flow techniques are investigated to find good exit selections for evacuees in an emergency evacuation. At the end of the study, it is seemed that building evacuation is convenient for everyone and very accessible by using various game theory approaches. Insomuch as the paper turns into highly relate to the building map and the simulation scenario.

Keywords: Evacuation, buildings, cooperative game theory, network flow techniques.

References

- [1] Zheng, X., Zhong, T., & Liu, M. (2009). Modeling crowd evacuation of a building based on seven methodological approaches. *Building and Environment*, 44(3), 437-445.
- [2] Caunhye, A. M., Nie, X., & Pokharel, S. (2012). Optimization models in emergency logistics: A literature review. *Socio-economic planning sciences*, *46*(1), 4-13.
- [3] Rüppel, U., & Schatz, K. (2011). Designing a BIM-based serious game for fire safety evacuation simulations. *Advanced Engineering Informatics*, 25(4), 600-611.
- [4] Ehtamo, H., Heliövaara, S., Korhonen, T., & Hostikka, S. (2010). Game Theoretic Best-Response Dynamics For Evacuees'exit Selection. *Advances in Complex Systems*, *13*(01), 113-134.
- [5] Mesmer, B. L., & Bloebaum, C. L. (2014). Incorporation of decision, game, and Bayesian game theory in an emergency evacuation exit decision model. *Fire Safety Journal*, 67, 121-134.
- [6] Hoyos, M. C., Morales, R. S., & Akhavan-Tabatabaei, R. (2015). OR models with stochastic components in disaster operations management: A literature survey. *Computers & Industrial Engineering*, 82, 183-197.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>pinarusta@sdu.edu.tr</u>

Optimization for Supply Chain Planning After Disasters with Cooperative Game Theory under Uncertainty

Serap Ergün¹, Pınar Usta², Gerhard-Wilhelm Weber^{3,4}, Sırma Zeynep Alparslan Gök⁵

¹Süleyman Demirel University, Faculty of Technology, Department of Software Engineering, Isparta, Turkey ²Süleyman Demirel University, Faculty of Technology, Department of Civil Engineering, Isparta, Turkey ³Poznan University of Technology, Faculty of Engineering Management, Poznan, Poland ⁴Middle East Technical University, Institute of Applied Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey ⁵Süleyman Demirel University, Faculty of Art and Science, Department of Mathematics, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

The frequency of disasters, whether natural or human-made, has increased to an unprecedented level in the last decades. The number and impact of disasters seems to be increasing depending on this emergency relief which gain importance day by day [1, 2]. In particular, logistics planning is the core of every relief operation. To decrease human losses, a sufficient amount of commodities must be distributed after a catastrophe within some time limit. A critical challenge is to transport sufficient essential supplies to affected areas in order to support basic living needs and commodities for those trapped in disaster-affected areas. Commodities such as food, shelter and medicine must be sent from the supply center to the affected area as quickly as possible to support rescue operation and help wounded people. This process is emergency relief.

Commonly, the emergency relief is organized by the government. The components in emergency relief involve the disaster events, the destroyed places, the wounded people, the supply and transport of commodities, and the means and environments of transport, which consist of a complex system. The timely and correct decisions in this system are critical to rescue the people and reduce the effects of the disaster [2].

The methodology of this paper is based on emergency logistic planning after disasters and fundamentals of cooperative game theory under uncertainty. To do this an interval cooperative game model is constructed from a flow problem which occurred after an earthquake in Izmir, Turkey. Some solution concepts are given for maximizing the transferred commodity. In contributing to the existing studies in this domain [4, 5], the paper proposes a possible model under uncertainty. For the supply chain dynamics domain, the results of this study may be of interest to both academics and practitioners.

Keywords: Cooperative Game Theory, Uncertainty, Flow Problem, Emergency Logistic Network, Supply Chain Management, Earthquake

References

- [1] Van Hentenryck, P. (2013, August). Computational Disaster Management. In *IJCAI* (pp. 12-19).
- [2] Hu, Z. H. (2011). A container multimodal transportation scheduling approach based on immune affinity model for emergency relief. *Expert Systems with Applications*, *38*(3), 2632-2639.
- [3] Usta, P., Ergun, S., & Alparslan-Gok, S. Z. (2017). A Cooperative Game Theory Approach to Post-Disaster Housing Problem. *Handbook of Research on Emergent Applications of Optimization Algorithms*, 314.
- [4] Roy, S. K., Maity, G., Weber, G. W., & Gök, S. Z. A. (2017). Conic scalarization approach to solve multichoice multi-objective transportation problem with interval goal. *Annals of Operations Research*, 253(1), 599-620.

Corresponding Author Email: serapbakioglu@sdu.edu.tr

Discrete Adomian Decomposition Method for Fractional Difference Equations

Figen Özpınar [⊠]

Afyon Kocatepe University Bolvadin Vocational School, Afyonkarahisar, Turkey

Abstract

In the present article, the discrete Adomian decomposition method(DADM) is applied to solve fractional partial difference equations. The efficiency and accuracy of this method is illustrated by test problems. The results expose that DADM is efficient, accurate and can be applied to other fractional difference equations.

Keywords: Discrete Adomian decomposition method, fractional order, partial difference equations

References

- Abdeljawad T. (2011), On Riemann and Caputo fractional differences, Comput. Math. Appl., 62, 1602– 1611.
- [2] Ablowitz M.J. and Ladik J.F. (1976), Nonlinear differential-difference equation and Fourier analysis, J. Math. Phys. 17, 1011–1018.
- [3] Ablowitz M.J. and Ladik J.F.(1976), A nonlinear difference scheme and inverse scattering, Stud. Appl. Math. 55, 213–229.
- [4] Adomian G. (1988), A Review of the Decomposition Method in Applied Mathematics, J. Math. Anal. Appl. 135, 501–544.
- [5] Adomian G. (1994), Solving frontier problems of physics: the decomposition method, Boston: Kluwer Academic Publishers.
- [6] Agarwal, R.P. (1992), Difference Equations and Inequalities, Marcel Dekker, Newyork.
- [7] Anastassiou G.A. (2011), About Discrete Fractional Calculus with Inequalities, Intelligent Mathematics: Computational Analysis, Intelligent Systems Reference Library, 5, 575-585.
- [8] Atici F.M. and Eloe P.W. (2007), A transform method in discrete fractional calculus, Int. J. Diff. Equ. 2, 165–176.
- [9] Atici F.M. and Eloe P.W. (2009), Initial value problems in discrete fractional calculus, Proc. Amer. Math Soc., 137, 981–989.
- [10] Atici F.M. and Sengül, S. (2010), Modeling with fractional difference equations, J. Math. Anal. Appl., 369, 1–9.
- [11] Bratsos A., Ehrhardt M. and Famelis I.T. (2008), A Discrete Adomian decomposition method for discrete nonlinear Schrödinger equations, Appl. Math. Comput., 197, 190–205.
- [12] Caputo M.(1967), Linear models of dissipition whose Q is almost independent, II, Geophys. J. Roy. Astron. 13, 529–539.
- [13] Dhaigude D.B. and Birajdar G.A. (2014), Numerical solutions of fractional partial differential equations by discrete Adomian decomposition method, Adv. Appl. Math. Mech. 6, 107–119.
- [14] Mickens R.E. (1994), Nonstandard Finite Difference Models of Differential Equations, World Publ. Co., Singapore.
- [15] Podlubny I. (1999), Fractional differential equations, Academic Press: San Diego.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>fozpinar@aku.edu.tr</u>

Discrete-Time Control of Fractional Dynamic Systems

Adel Agila¹[∞], Dumitru Baleanu^{2,3}

¹ Omar Al-Mukhtar University, Mechanical Engineering Department, El-Beyda, Libya
 ² Cankaya University, Mathematics Department, Ankara, Turkey
 ³ Institute of Space Sciences, Magurele-Bucharest, Romania

Abstract

The stability of the dynamic systems is improved by the controllers' usage. One of the most commonly utilized controllers is the Proportional Integral Derivative (PID) controller. The PID controller is widely used in industrial feedback control systems. The PID controller is introduced as continuous-time control form or discrete-time control form. Most of the controlled integer systems are controlled by the continuous-time PID controller. In order to increase their stability, the PID controller is also applied to the fractional dynamic systems. In this study, the discrete-time PID controller is applied to a damped vibrating variable-order fractional dynamic system. The considered system is modeled based on Kelvin-Voight fractional derivative model. The damped fractional term in the model is represented by the Caputo Fabrizio fractional derivative. The system responses which are obtained by using numerical and discretization techniques are controlled by the discrete-time PID controller. The responses of the system are investigated for different system parameters and controller gains. A comparison between the uncontrolled and controlled responses for both classical integer model and fractional model is done. Based on the investigation and analysis of the obtained integer and fractional systems' responses, the feasibility of the introduced technique is verified.

Keywords: Discrete-time PID controller, Kelvin-Voight fractional model, Caputo Fabrizio fractional derivatived, Fractional dynamic system.

References

- Durand, S., & Marchand, N. (2009). Further results on event-based PID controller. In Control Conference. Budapest, Hungary, 1979-1984. IEEE.
- [2] Ogata, K. (2002). Modern Control Engineering. 4th ed. Prentice Hall, New Jersey.
- [3] Agila, A., Baleanu, D., Eid, R., Irfanoglu, B. (2018). A freely damped oscillating fractional dynamic system modeled by fractional Euler–Lagrange equations. Journal of Vibration and Control, 24(7), 1228-1238.
- [4] Caputo, M., & Fabrizio, M. (2015). A new definition of fractional derivative without singular kernel. Progr. Fract. Differ. Appl, 1(2) 1–13.
- [5] Lewandowski, R., & Chorazyczewski, B. Identification of the parameters of the Kelvin–Voigt and the Maxwell fractional models, used to modeling of viscoelastic dampers. Computers & structures, 88(1-2), 1-17.
- [6] Di Paola, M, Failla, G., & Pirrotta, A. (2012). Stationary and non-stationary stochastic response of linear fractional viscoelastic systems. Probabilistic Engineering Mechanics, 28, 85-90.
- [7] Taylor, L., S., Lerner, A., J., Rubens, D., J., & Porker, K., J. (2002). A Kelvin-Voight fractional derivative model for viscoelastic characterization of liver tissue. International Mechanical Engineering Congress and Exposition, 447-448. Amarican Society of Mechanical Engineers.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>adelagila@gmail.com</u>

Stability of Mechanical Systems Containing Fractional Springpot Elements

Matthias Hinze[™], André Schmidt, Remco I. Leine

Institute for Nonlinear Mechanics, University of Stuttgart, Pfaffenwaldring 9, 70569 Stuttgart, Germany

Abstract

The aim of our contribution is to investigate the stability of equilibria of mechanical systems containing fractional springpot elements using Lyapunov functionals.

In the first part we use the infinite state representation of the fractional Caputo and Riemann-Liouville derivative, as introduced in [1-3], to obtain the potential energy of time-fractional springpot elements. More specifically, we consider fractional constitutive equations and identify springpots as uncountably infinite-order connections of springs and dashpots. The potential energy of the springs in this representation may then be interpreted as the potential energy of a springpot.

Furthermore, we interpret mechanical systems with springpots as first order systems of time-delay or functional differential equations (FDEs) instead of fractional differential equations. We use the associated stability theory of FDEs [4-6] to investigate the usefulness of the total mechanical energy of systems to establish Lyapunov functionals and examine stability of equilibria. In particular, we consider a single degree-of-freedom mass-spring-springpot system and, with the help of the associated energy functional and an invariance principle, prove asymptotic stability of the trivial solution. Moreover, we examine the influence of an additional viscous damper on stability. For a positive damping parameter, the trivial solution remains stable, as expected. In the more interesting case, choosing a negative damping parameter, stability may only be achieved under certain conditions. Numerically, we determine a critical negative damping parameter for stability and try to find a Lyapunov functional that yields sufficient conditions on the parameter for stability.

Our long-term aim is to generalize our approach to more complex and nonlinear systems.

Keywords: fractional calculus, time-delay mechanical systems, functional differential equations, Lyapunov stability.

References

- [1] Montseny, G. (1998). Diffusive representation of pseudo-differential time-operators. ESAIM: Proc., 5, 159–175.
- [2] Matignon, D. (1998). Stability properties for generalized fractional differential systems. ESAIM: Proc., 5, 145–158.
- [3] Trigeassou, J., Maamri, N., Sabatier, J., & Oustaloup, A. (2012). State variables and transients of fractional order differential systems. Computers & Mathematics with Applications, 64(10), 3117 3140.
- [4] Hale, J. K. (1977). Theory of Functional Differential Equations, Springer, New York.
- [5] Kolmanovskii, V. B. & Nosov, V. R. (1986). Stability of Functional Differential Equations, Mathematics in Science and Engineering, Vol. 180, Elsevier.
- [6] LaSalle, J. P. & Artstein, Z. (1976). The Stability of Dynamical Systems. Regional conference series in applied mathematics; 25. Society for Industrial and Applied Mathematics, Philadelphia.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>hinze@inm.uni-stuttgart.de</u>

Imaging Anisotropic Conductivity with Induced Current Magnetic Resonance Electrical Impedance Tomography (ICMREIT)

Hasan H. Eroglu^{1,2^{III}}, Mehdi Sadighi², B. Murat Eyuboglu²

Middle East Technical University, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Ankara, Turkey
 ² Gaziler Physical Theraphy and Rehabilitation Education and Research Hospital, , Turkey

Abstract

In gradient coil based induced current magnetic resonance electrical impedance tomography (ICMREIT), gradient coils of a conventional magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) scanner are excited with time varying waveforms embedded in an MRI pulse sequence [1], [2], [3]. As a result of the excitation, low frequency (LF) eddy current is induced in the volume conductor media being imaged which accumulates phase to MR signal. By measuring and post-processing the LF phase of the eddy current, LF conductivity images are reconstructed [1], [2], [3]. In [1], ICMREIT is experimentally realized with by excitation of the slice selection (z) gradient coil of a clinical MRI scanner and conductivity images of phantoms with isotropic conductivity are satisfactorily reconstructed. However, biological tissues have anisotropic conductivity distributions. In order to reconstruct anisotropic conductivity distributions, coils with linearly independent primary magnetic fields are required. In ICMREIT, phase encoding (y) gradient coil of an MRI scanner can also be used in addition to the z-gradient coil. In this study, we demonstrate numerical models including the z and y-gradient coils of an MRI scanner and a cylindrical volume conductor. We utilize distinguishability analysis in order to compare the abilities of z and y-gradient coil based ICMREIT systems to differentiate conductivity perturbations from the background [3]. We propose a conductivity image reconstruction algorithm and reconstruct conductivity images by using simulated and physical measurements obtained for a cylindrical volume conductor including an inhomogeneity. The results of the distinguishability analysis, the simulation and the experimental results show that utilizing the z-gradient coil is advantageous than using the y-gradient coil.

Keywords: Induced current magnetic resonance electrical impedance tomography, gradient coil, distinguishability analysis.

Acknowledgements

This study is funded by The Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey (TÜBİTAK) and Middle East Technical University (METU) under Research Grants 113E979 and BAP-07-02-2014-007-367, respectively. Experimental data were acquired using the facilities of UMRAM (National Magnetic Resonance Research Center), Bilkent University, Ankara, Turkey.

References

- Eroglu, H.H., Sadighi, M., & Eyuboglu, B.M. (2018). Induced current magnetic resonance electrical conductivity imaging with oscillating gradients. IEEE Transactions on Medical Imaging, PP(99), doi: 10.1109/TMI.2018.279571841(2), pp. 1-1.
- [2] Oran, Ö.F. & İder, Y. Z. (2017). Feasibility of conductivity imaging using subject eddy currents induced by switching of MRI gradients. Magnetic Resonance in Medicine, 77(5), pp. 1926-1937.
- [3] Eroglu, H.H. & Eyuboglu, B.M. (2016). Two alternatives for magnetic resonance electrical impedance tomography: injected or induced current. Physiological MEasurement, 37(11), pp. 2024-2049.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>hheroglu@gmail.com</u>

On Function Theory for Q-holomorphic Functions

Yeşim Sağlam Özkan[⊠], Sezayi Hızlıyel

Uludag University, Department of Mathematics, Bursa, Turkey

Abstract

In this work, a function theory for the generalized Beltrami systems which arise from the reduction of general elliptic systems to a standard canonical form developed similarly to complex function theory.

Keywords: Q-holomorphic functions, Beltrami systems, Elliptic systems

References

- [1] Bojarski, B.V. (1966). Theory of generalized analytic vectors. Ann. Polon. Math. 17, 281-320.
- [2] Bers, L. (1953). Theory of Pseudo-Analytic Functions, New York.
- [3] Douglis, A.A. (1953). Function theoretic approach to elliptic systems of equations in two variables, Comm. Pure Appl. Math. 6(2) 259-289.
- [4] Hızlıyel, S., Çağlıyan, M. (2004), Generalized Q-holomorphic functions. Complex Var. Theory Appl. 49, 427-447.
- [5] Hile, G.N. (1982). Function Theory for Generalized Beltrami Systems, Comp. Math. 11, 101-125.
- [6] Vekua, I.N. (1962). Generalized Analytic Functions, Pergamon, Oxford

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ysaglam@uludag.edu.tr</u>

Modified Exponential Type Estimators for Population Mean in Stratified Random Sampling: An Application on the Geometric Distributed Aftershocks

Gamze Özel[⊠], Cem Kadılar

Hacettepe University, Department of Statistics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Sample surveys play important role in social sciences and interdisciplinary researches [1, 2]. There have been many studies on ratio, product estimators for the population mean in the literature [3-6]. In this paper, a new exponential type estimator for the population mean of the study variable having the geometric distribution is proposed in the stratified random sampling using the auxiliary variable information. In order to evaluate the efficiency of the proposed estimator, we first review many estimators in literature and study the optimum properties of the suggested strategy. To judge the merits of the suggested class of estimators over the others under the optimal condition, a real data application is conducted using the geometric distributed aftershock series in Turkey. The results show that the proposed estimator is more efficient than the available estimators in the stratified random sampling design.

Keywords: Stratified random sampling, mean square error, efficiency

References

- [1] Cochran, W.G., 1977, Sampling Techniques, Third Edition, Wiley Eastern Limited.
- [2] Dianna, G., 1993, A class of estimators of the population mean in stratified random sampling. *Statistica*, 53, 59-66.
- [3] Kadilar, C., & Cingi, H., 2003, Ratio estimators in stratified random sampling. Biometrical Journal, 45, 218-225.
- [4] Singh, H.P., & Vishwakarma, G.K., 2005, Combined ratio-product estimator of finite population mean in stratified sampling. Metodologia de Encuesta, 8, 35-44.
- [5] Singh, H.P., & Vishwakarma, G. K., 2008, A family of estimators of population mean using auxiliary information in stratified sampling. Communication in Statistics Theory and Methods, 37, 1038-1050.
- [6] Singh, R., Chauhan, P., Sawan, N., & Smarandache, F. 2009. Improvement in estimating the population mean using exponential estimator in simple random sampling. International Journal of Statistics and Economics, 3, 13-18.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>gamzeozl@hacettepe.edu.tr</u>

Existence and Uniqueness Results for a Nonlinear Differential Equation with Non-Continuous Right-Hand Side

Müfit Şan ⊠

Çankırı Karatekin University, Department of Mathematics, Çankırı, Turkey

Abstract

Fractional calculus is a powerful tool to model many physical and engineering phenomena (see [2], [5]). As a result of mathematical modelling of these phenomena we often face with the initial-value and boundary-value problems involving differential equations of fractional or integer order. The most important one among the subjects related to the arising problems is about the existence and uniqueness of the solutions of these problems. For example, many researchers (see [3]) have been investigated the existence and uniqueness of solutions of

$${}_{0}^{RL}D^{\alpha}u(x) = f(x,u(x)),$$

with various initial conditions, where $\alpha > 0$ and ${}^{RL}_{0}D^{\alpha}$ is well-known Riemann-Liouville derivative defined by

$${}_{0}^{RL}D^{\alpha}u(x) = \frac{1}{\Gamma(n-\alpha)}\frac{d^{n}}{dx^{n}}\int_{0}^{x}\frac{u(t)}{(x-t)^{n-1+\alpha}}dt, (n-1<\alpha< n)$$

In this study, we show the existence and uniqueness of local continuous solutions of the above equation with $0 < \alpha < 1$ and $u(0) = b \neq 0$, which considered by Laksmikantham and Vatsala [5], Şan [6] and Zhang [7], when f(x,t) is not continuous on $[0,T] \times i$. Moreover, we obtain an estimate for the existence interval of the continuous solutions of the problem in question. For almost all results we obtained, we use new techniques involving mean-value theorem for Riemann-Liouville derivative and appropriate fixed point theorems.

Keywords: Fractional differential equations, Riemann-Liouville derivative, existence and uniqueness

References

- [1] Delbosco, D., & Rodino, L. (1996). Existence and uniqueness for non-linear fractional differential equations. *Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications*, 204, 609-625.
- [2] Heymans, N., & Podlubny, I. (2006). Physical interpretation of initial conditions for fractional differential equations with Riemann-Liouville fractional derivatives. *Rheologica Acta*, *45*(5), 765-771.
- [3] Kilbas, A. A., Srivastava, H. M., & Trujillo, J. J. (2006). North-Holland Mathematics Studies 204. *Theory* and applications of fractional differential equations.
- [4] Lakshmikantham, V., & Vatsala, A. S. (2008). Basic theory of fractional differential equations. *Nonlinear Analysis: Theory, Methods & Applications*, 69(8), 2677-2682.
- [5] Podlubny, I. (1998). Fractional differential equations: an introduction to fractional derivatives, fractional differential equations, to methods of their solution and some of their applications (Vol. 198). Elsevier.
- [6] Şan, M. (2018), Complex variable approach to the analysis of a fractional differential equation in the real line, *Comptes Rendus Mathematique*, Volume 356, Issue 3, Pages 293-300.
- [7] Zhang, S. (2009). Monotone iterative method for initial value problem involving Riemann–Liouville fractional derivatives. *Nonlinear Analysis: Theory, Methods & Applications*, 71(5-6), 2087-2093.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>mufitsan@karatekin.edu.tr</u>

Modeling Just-in-Time distribution in a Green supply chain

Batuhan Eren Engin[⊠], Turan Paksoy

Selcuk University, Industrial Engineering Department, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

The right-on-time distribution of goods to the end-users plays an important role in nowadays competitive market. However, companies are under pressure by protective legislations and regulations to decrease environmental footprint of their business. Companies intend to find the balance between organizational cost and environmental footprint, which is a challenging practice, as these objectives are usually conflicting. In this context, from a practical point, managers are willing to find a good compromise solution to both satisfy economic and environmental goals while they need to make sure that the products are delivered right-on-time to the demand point, thereby reducing inventory costs. This study aims to research the inter-relationship between holding inventory at warehouses and retailers to satisfy the demand right-on-time, and its impact on costs and carbon emissions. Three echelon distribution network consisting of manufacturers, warehouses and retailers is developed and three objectives; i.e., total distribution and manufacturing cost, total carbon emission associated with storing and handling of goods at warehouses and retailers, and the sum of backordered goods from retailers and surpluses of goods at retailers, are considered. As the different objective functions come with different units in this case, we adopted a fuzzy weighted additive approach, developed by [1] to reduce multi-objective optimization function into a simple weighted additive model through achievement functions and the weights of each individual objective function are determined by Analytic Hierarchy Process (AHP). Although the solution to multi-objective optimization problem consists of a set of solutions, from a practical point, the practitioners need to find only one solution. The developed model tested using a real-data obtained from a wholesale company based in Ankara, Turkey. It is found that excessive inventory held at warehouses and retailers increase the total cost and carbon emission, on the other hand, it increases the Just-in-time capability of retailers.

Keywords: multi-objective optimization, p-median, fuzzy weighted additive solution approach, Analytic Hierarchy process

References

[1] Tiwari, R. N., Dharmar, S. ve Rao, J. R., 1987, Fuzzy goal programming — An additive model, Fuzzy Sets and Systems, 24 (1), 27-34.Mercer, P.A., & Smith, G. (1993). Private Viewdata in the UK. 2nd ed. Longman, London.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>erengn@gmail.com</u>

Bi-objective Closed Loop Supply Chain with Different Machinery Options

Batuhan Eren Engin[⊠], Turan Paksoy

Selcuk University, Industrial Engineering Department, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

Since the beginning of globalization age, Supply Chain Management (SCM) has continued to attract increasing attention of academics and practitioners for decades. In recent years, SCM's focal point has begun to emerge as a sustainable flow management, in which economic, social and environmental aspects such as energy consumption, carbon emissions are jointly addressed, rather than just the flow optimization of materials on the business network extending from raw material suppliers to final consumers. In this manner, supply chain design network design decisions have now started being taken into consideration together with the environmental and economic concerns. This study focused on formulating and solving a multi-objective mixed integer linear programming mathematical model for optimization of a multi-period closed loop supply chain network design problem. The model determines the production and distribution allocation strategies, while minimizing two objectives simultaneously; the total supply chain cost and the carbon emissions generated by plants operating through different machinery types. While the initial purchase cost of older and more outdated machinery is lower than newer and updated machinery's, older machinery emits greater amount of carbon per hour as opposed to newer machinery while operating at even greater cost per hour. Besides, the number of products produced in an hour, i.e. the productivity, is also superior in newer machinery. Initial cost, operating cost, productivity and carbon emission rates available for processing products on each machine centers. We adopted a fuzzy weighted additive approach, proposed by [1], to reduce bi-objective optimization function into a simple weighted additive model through achievement functions. The results confirm that investing in newer technologies in manufacturing comes with great result for both economic and environmental causes, reducing the unit cost and carbon emission per product throughout the manufacturing periods.

Keywords: Closed loop supply chains, green optimization, energy options, carbon emissions, multiobjective optimization.

References

[1] Tiwari, R. N., Dharmar, S. ve Rao, J. R., 1987, Fuzzy goal programming — An additive model, Fuzzy Sets and Systems, 24 (1), 27-34.Mercer, P.A., & Smith, G. (1993). Private Viewdata in the UK. 2nd ed. Longman, London.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>erengn@gmail.com</u>

Mathematical Behavior of Solutions of Hyperbolic-type Equations

Erhan Pişkin, Hazal Yüksekkaya[⊠]

Dicle University, Department of Mathematics, Diyarbakır, Turkey

Abstract

In this talk, we consider hyperbolic-type equations with nonlinear damping terms. We established the existence, energy decay and blow up of solutions for hyperbolic-type equation. The hyperbolic and parabolic types equations is evolution equations. Evolution equations, namely partial differential equations with time t as one of the independent variables, arise not only from many fields of mathematics, but also from other branches of science such as physics, mechanics and material science. The interaction between damping and the source term makes the problem more interesting. Levine [1], first studied the interaction between the linear damping and source term by using Concavity method. But this method can't be applied in the case of a nonlinear damping term. Georgiev and Todorova [2] extended Levine's result to the nonlinear case. They showed that solutions with negative initial energy blow up infinite time. Later, Vitillaro extended these results to the case of nonlinear damping and positive initial energy [3].

Keywords: Existence, energy decay, blow up.

References

- [1] Levine, H.A. (1974). Instability and nonexistence of global solutions to nonlinear wave equations of the form $Pu_{tt} = Au + F(u)$, Trans. Amer. Math. Soc., 1-21
- [2] Georgiev, V., & Todorova, G. (1994). Existence of a solution of the wave equation with nonlinear damping and source terms, J. Differential Equations, 295-308.
- [3] Vitillaro, E. (1999). Global nonexistence theorems for a class of evolution equations with dissipation, Arch. Ration. Mech. Anal., 155-182.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>hazal.yuksekkaya21@gmail.com</u>

Numerical Simulation of Hypersonic Flow over Double Ellipse Configuration with Multi-grid Accelerated and Cartesian Based Flow Solver

Emre Kara $^{\boxtimes}$

University of Gaziantep, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Gaziantep, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, effectiveness of Cartesian based flow solver [1] is tested on hypersonic flows. A blunt body test case suggested by Désidéri et al. [2] is selected as the case study. The problem is called "Double (Simple) Ellipsoid" configuration at Reynolds number of 16.7 million, Mach number of 8.15 with 30° angle of attack. Pressure coefficient distribution around the configuration is obtained by using Liou's Advection Upstream Splitting Method (AUSM) [3] and approximate Riemann solver of Roe [4]. Solution adapted solutions are employed for both inviscid and laminar test cases whilst turbulent case (with Spalart Allmaras turbulence model as the closure of the Reynolds averaged Navier Stokes equations) is solved without solution refinement for convergence issues. Accurate solutions of these schemes for inviscid, laminar and turbulent flow assumptions are developed over two-dimensional double ellipsoid configuration. Convergence rate of the flow solver is increased by multi-grid method. Three stage multistage time stepping is used for all cases in order to increase convergence rate further. They converge around 10⁻⁸ density residual. Results are compared with studies of Satofuka et al. [5], Narayanarao and Mohamed [6] and He et al. [7]. Both bow nose shock and sharp canopy shock are successfully and smoothly captured by the flow solver. Mach number contours around the configuration are successfully simulated, changing between 0.2 and 8.1. Future studies are (1) to develop the Cartesian based flow solver to find heat flux change around blunt bodies under hypersonic flow conditions and (2) to simulate the same study in three-dimensional Cartesian based flow solver.

Keywords: Hypersonic flow, double ellipse configuration, multi-grid acceleration, Cartesian grid

References

- [1] Kara, E. (2015). Development of a Navier Stokes solver for compressible flows on Cartesian grids with aerodynamics applications. University of Gaziantep, Natural and Applied Sciences, Ph. D. thesis, 185.
- [2] Désidéri, J.A., Glowinski, R., & Périaux, J. (1991). Problem 6: Double (Simple) Ellipsoid. In: Hypersonic Flows for Reentry Problems, 17–24, Springer, Berlin, Heidelberg.
- [3] Liou, M.S., & Steffen, C.J. (1993). A new flux splitting scheme. Journal of Computational Physics, 107, 23– 39.
- [4] Toro, E.F. (2009). Riemann solvers and numerical methods for fluid dynamics. 3rd Edition, Berlin: Springer-Verlag.
- [5] Satofuka, N., Morinishi, K., & Oishi, T. (1993). Numerical solution of the kinetic model equations for hypersonic flows. Computational Mechanics, 11(5-6), 452–464.
- [6] Narayanarao, B., & Mohamed, Y. (2017). Residual based grid adaptation for meshless LSFD-U solver. In: 23rd AIAA Computational Fluid Dynamics Conference, 3104.
- [7] He, X., He, X., He, L., Zhao, Z., & Zhang, L. (2015). HyperFLOW: A structured/unstructured hybrid integrated computational environment for multi-purpose fluid simulation. Procedia Engineering, 126, 645– 649.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>emrekara@gantep.edu.tr</u>

Mathematical Modelling of a Glaucoma Drainage Device Testing Apparatus

Emre Kara^{1⊠}, Sinan Turhan¹, Ahmet İhsan Kutlar¹, Kıvanç Güngör²

¹ University of Gaziantep, Mechanical Engineering Department, Gaziantep, Turkey ² University of Gaziantep, Department of Ophthalmology, Gaziantep, Turkey

Abstract

Glaucoma is an eye disruption that come up with damaged optic nerve over time due to a sustained elevation of the intraocular pressure (IOP). It is predicted that over 11.1 million people will be bilaterally blind from primary glaucoma in 2020 [1]. Glaucoma can be treated by one of the following means: Medical therapy, surgical treatment and glaucoma drainage device (GDD). Although none of these methods give thoroughly acceptable results, GDD has lead to gradual success rates with design improvements in the last decade [2].

Experiments must be devised to investigate the flow behavior inside GDDs. Before in-vitro performance testing of actively employed GDDs, microfluidics experimental setup should be modelled and the necessity of this novel test rig for currently employed GDDs should be clarified. In this study, a mathematical model of a novel GDD testing apparatus is employed and the pathway from microfluidic control unit to sealed test box is depicted.

Following steps are utilized for the mathematical model: (1) It can be easily estimated which model is compatible for any microfluidic fluid flow by calculating Knudsen number (Kn) [3]. It is found to be smaller than 10^{-3} that is much lower than the no-slip condition threshold value of Kn = 0.1. Thereby the flow characteristic is compatible with Navier-Stokes equations with no-slip boundary conditions. (2) Hagen-Poiseuille equation is used for circular cross-sectional parts of the setup and Reynolds number (Re) is 0.17 for the designed setup with entrance length of 0.606. Since Re is smaller than unity, the flow characteristic is called as creeping flow [2] in which viscous forces becomes dominant. (3) The pathway of fluid flow is modelled and pressure losses in specific sections of the pathway, namely entrance loss, loss due to the pipe flow, losses due to sudden enlargement, losses due to GDD body, losses due to GDD to pipe outlet are all taken into consideration. For a specific case of Ahmed GDD [2], the pressure losses through them are calculated to be 1188.92 Pa in total.

Keywords: Glaucoma drainage device, microfluidics experimental setup, mathematical modelling

Acknowledgements

This work is supported by the Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey-TÜBİTAK 3001 Project (Project No: 117M971).

References

- [1] Quigley, H.A., & Broman, A.T. (2006). The number of people with glaucoma worldwide in 2010 and 2020. British journal of ophthalmology, 90(3), 262–267.
- [2] Kara E. (2008). Design of an alternative glaucoma drainage device using CFD tools. University of Gaziantep, Natural and Applied Sciences, M. Sc. Thesis, 144.
- [3] Lauga, E., Brenner, M., & Stone, H. (2007). Microfluidics: the no-slip boundary condition. In: Springer handbook of experimental fluid mechanics, 1219–1240, Springer, Berlin, Heidelberg.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>emrekara@gantep.edu.tr</u>

Time-varying pharmacodynamics in a simple non-integer HIV infection model

Carla Pinto^{1,3⊠}, Ana Carvalho^{2,3}, João Nuno Tavares^{2,3}

¹ School of Engineering, Polytechnic of Porto, Porto, Portugal
 ² Faculty of Sciences, University of Porto, Porto, Portugal
 ³ Centre for Mathematics, University of Porto, Porto, Portugal

Abstract

In this paper we study the effect of time-varying drug exposure in the dynamics of a fractional order model for HIV infection. We compute the reproduction number of the model and verify the stability of the disease-free equilibrium. The model is simulated for parameters directly modeling the pharmacodynamics of HIV, namely the slope of the dose-response curve, the drug's half-life, the dosing interval. The later affect in a significant way the infection patterns. The order of the fractional derivative is also a key player of the model, adding more information, which could be useful for a deeper understanding of the pharmacodynamics of HIV.

Keywords: time-varying drug efficacy, pharmacodynamics, HIV, fractional model

Acknowledgements

CMUP's authors were partially supported by CMUP (UID/MAT/00144/2013), which is funded by FCT (Portugal) with national (MEC) and European structural funds (FEDER), under the partnership agreement PT2020. The research of Ana Carvalho was supported by a FCT grant with reference SFRH/BD/96816/2013.

References

- Vaidya N.K. & Rong, L. (2017). Modeling pharmacodynamics on HIV latent infection: choice of drugs is key to successful cure via early therapy. SIAM J. Appl. Math., 77(5), 1781–1804.
- [2] Carvalho, A.R.M., Pinto, C.M.A., & Baleanu, D. (2018). HIV/HCV coinfection model: a fractional-order perspective for the effect of the HIV viral load. Advances in Difference Equations, 1(2), 1–22.
- [3] Carvalho, A.R.M. & Pinto, C.M.A. (2018). Non-integer order analysis of the impact of diabetes and resistant strains in a model for TB infection. Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation, 61, 104–126.
- [4] Pinto, C.M.A. & Carvalho, A.R.M. (2018) The HIV/TB coinfection severity in the presence of TB multidrug resistant strains. Ecological Complexity, 32 (Part A), 1–20.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>cap@isep.ipp.pt</u>

Maintenance of the latent reservoir by pyroptosis and superinfection in a fractional order HIV transmission model

Ana Carvalho^{1,3}, Carla Pinto^{2,3}, João Nuno Tavares^{2,3}

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University of Porto, Porto, Portugal
 ² School of Engineering, Polytechnic of Porto, Porto, Portugal
 ³ Centre for Mathematics, University of Porto, Porto, Portugal

Abstract

We focus on the importance of pyropstosis and superinfection on the maintenance of the latent reservoir on HIV infected patients. The latent reservoir has been found to be crucial to the persistence of low levels of viral loads found in HIV-infected patients, after many years under successful suppressive antiretroviral therapy (ART). This reservoir seems to act as an archive for strains of HIV no longer dominant in the blood, such as wild-type virus. When a patient decides to quit therapy there is a rapid turnover and the wild-type virus re-emerges. Thus, it is extremely important to understand the mechanisms behind the maintenance of this reservoir. For that, we propose a fractional order model for the dynamics of HIV, where pyroptosis and superinfection are considered. The model is simulated for biological meaningful parameters and interesting patterns are found. Our results are interpreted for clinical appreciation.

Keywords: latent reservoir, pyropstosis, superinfection, HIV, fractional model

Acknowledgements

CMUP's authors were partially supported by CMUP (UID/MAT/00144/2013), which is funded by FCT (Portugal) with national (MEC) and European structural funds (FEDER), under the partnership agreement PT2020. The research of Ana Carvalho was supported by a FCT grant with reference SFRH/BD/96816/2013.

References

- [1] Wodarz, D., & Levy, D.N. (2017), Pyroptosis, superinfection, and the maintenance of the latent reservoir in HIV-1 infection, Scientific Reports, 7 (3834), 1–10.
- [2] Carvalho, A.R.M., Pinto, C.M.A., & Baleanu, D. (2018). HIV/HCV coinfection model: a fractional-order perspective for the effect of the HIV viral load. Advances in Difference Equations, 1(2), 1–22.
- [3] Pinto, C.M.A. (2018). Persistence of low levels of plasma viremia and of the latent reservoir in patients under ART: A fractional-order approach. Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation, 43, 251–260.
- [4] Pinto, C.M.A. & Carvalho, A.R.M. (2018) The HIV/TB coinfection severity in the presence of TB multidrug resistant strains. Ecological Complexity, 32 (Part A), 1–20.
- [5] Ward, Z., & White, J., (2012) Impact of Latently Infected Cells on Strain Archiving Within HIV Hosts, Bull Math Biol, 74, 1985–2003.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>cap@isep.ipp.pt</u>
Decentralized Stochastic Control: Optimality and Approximations

Naci Saldi^{1⊠}, Serdar Yüksel²

¹ Ozyegin University, Department of Natural and Mathematical Sciences, Istanbul, Turkey ² Queen's University, Department of Mathematics and Statistics, Kingston, Canada

Abstract

In this work, we consider existence and approximation of optimal control policies in decentralized stochastic control problems. In the first part of this work, we consider the existence of team optimal policies for static teams and a class of sequential teams. The existence result will be established via two approaches: In the first approach, the existence of team optimal policies is shown by introducing a topology on the set of policies [1], whereas in the second approach, we prove the existence of team optimal policies by considering a dynamic programming formulation of decentrized control problems [2,3]. In the second part of this work, we consider finite model approximations of a large class of static and dynamic team problems where these models are constructed through uniform quantization of the observation and action spaces of agents. The policies obtained from these finite models are shown to approximate the optimal cost with arbitrary precision under mild technical assumptions [4]. These existence and approximation results are then applied to the celebrated Witsenhausen's counterexample and the Gaussian relay channel.

Keywords: Decentralized control, team decision theory, existence and approximation of optimal team policies.

References

- [1] Saldi, N. (2017). A Topology for Team Policies and Existence of Optimal Team Policies in Stochastic Team Theory. arXiv:1711:00639.
- [2] Yüksel, S., & Saldi, N. (2017). Convex Analysis in Decentralized Stochastic Control, Strategic Measures and Optimal Solutions. SIAM Journal on Control and Optimization, 55(1), 1-28.
- [3] Yüksel, S. (2018). On a General Dynamic Programming Approach for Decentralized Stochastic Control. arXiv:1803:05811.
- [4] Saldi, N., & Yüksel, S., & Linder, T. (2017). Finite Model Approximations and Asymptotic Optimality of Quantized Policies in Decentralized Stochastic Control. IEEE Transactions on Automatic Control, 62(5), 2360-2373.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>naci.saldi@ozyegin.edu.tr</u>

An Application for Sharma-Tasso-Olver Equations by Using Auto-Bäcklund Transformation

Doğan Kaya¹, Asıf Yokuş², Uğur Demiroğlu²

¹ Istanbul Commerce University, Department of Mathematics, 34840 Istanbul, Turkey ² Firat University, Department of Actuary, 23119 Elazig, Turkey

Abstract

In this application, with the help of Mathematica software, the auto-Bäcklund transformation method (aBTM) and the finite forward difference method are used for obtaining the travelling wave solutions and the numerical and exact approximations to the Sharma-Tasso-Olver (STO) [1-6] equation respectively. We successfully obtain some kink-type solutions with exponential prototype structure to this equation by using aBTM. We then employ the finite difference method (FDM) in approximating the exact and numerical solutions to this equation by taking one of the obtained wave solutions into consideration. We also present the comparison between exact and numerical approximations and support the comparison with a graphic plot. Moreover, The Fourier von-Neumann stability analysis is used in checking the stability of the numerical scheme. We also present the L_2 and L_{∞} error norms of the solutions to this equation.

Keywords: Auto- Bäcklund transformation method, Sharma-Tasso-Olver equation, Finite difference method, Traveling wave solutions.

References

- [1] M. Mohamad, Exact solutions to the combined kdv and mkdv equation, Mathematical Methods in the Applied Sciences 15 (2) (1992) 73-78.
- [2] J. Zhang, New solitary wave solution of the combined kdv and mkdv equation, International Journal of Theoretical Physics 37 (5) (1998) 1541-1546.
- [3] J. Yu, Exact solitary wave solutions to a combined kdv and mkdv equation, Mathematical Methods in the Applied Sciences 23 (18) (2000) 1667-1670.
- [4] W.-P. Hong, New types of solitary-wave solutions from the combined kdv-mkdv equation, Nuovo Cimento B Serie 115 (2000) 117.
- [5] E. Fan, Two new applications of the homogeneous balance method, Physics Letters A 265 (5) (2000) 353-357.
- [6] E. Fan, Auto-bäcklund transformation and similarity reductions for general variable coefficient kdv equations, Physics Letters A 294 (1) (2002) 26-30.
- [7] E. Fan, Uniformly constructing a series of explicit exact solutions to nonlinear equations in mathematical physics, Chaos, Solitons & Fractals 16 (5) (2003) 819-839.
- [8] R. Naz, Conservation laws for a complexly coupled kdv system, coupled burgers system and drinfeldsokolov-wilson system via multiplier approach, Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation 15 (5) (2010) 1177-1182.
- [9] R. Hirota, J. Satsuma, Soliton solutions of a coupled korteweg-de vries equation, Physics Letters A 85 (8-9) (1981) 407-408.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>dkaya36@yahoo.com</u>

Explosive Solutions for a Class of Stochastic Nonlinear Wave Equation with Damping Terms

Hatice Taskesen[⊠]

Yuzuncu Yil University, Department of Statistics, Van, Turkey

Abstract

The wave equation $f_{tt} = c^2 \tilde{N}^2 f$ is one of the most fundamental partial differential equation which arises in different fields such as electromagnetics, traffic flows, fluid dynamics, general relativity, acoustics [1]. The research efforts over the centuries, when combined with various physical, chemical and biological phenomena that had to be explained, has resulted in a tremendous body of literature on the wave equation.

Many of the systems that surround us include randomness. On account of this, the fluctuating properties of media must be included in the wave equation for a realistic model. In 1960's stochastic wave equation emerges in the investigation of various areas of physics and engineering such as quantum field theory, solid-state physics, and nonlinear optics.

In this work, we consider a class of stochastic damped wave equation with weak and strong damping terms. For the deterministic case, in the absence of damping terms Cauchy problem for the wave equation considered here is known to have solutions locally in time if nonlinear term satisfies some local Lipschitz conditions, and for some particular nonlinear terms there exist solutions blowing up in a finite time [2,3,4].

In the present work, we investigate the effect of stochastic terms on the blowing up or explosion of solutions. By using the energy inequality we prove that solutions of the problem blow-up in finite time with a positive probability or are explosive in the L^2 sense.

Keywords: Stochastic wave equation, Blow up, Energy inequality.

References

- [1] Whitham, G.B. (1974). Linear and Nonlinear Waves. 1st ed. Wiley&Sons, New York.
- [2] Cazenave, T. (1985). Uniform Estimates for Solutions of Nonlinear Klein-Gordon Equations, J. Func. Anal. 60, 36-55.
- [3] Chow, P.L. (2012). Nonexistence of global solutions to nonlinear stochastic wave equations in mean L^p norm. Stoc. Anal. Appl. 30, 543-551
- [4] Bo, L., Tang, D., Wang, Y. (2008). Explosive solutions of stochastic wave equations with damping on R^d , J. Differential Equations. 244, 170-187..

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>haticetaskesen@yyu.edu.tr</u>

Multivalued F-contraction on M-Metric Space

Hakan Sahin^{1,3}[⊠], Ishak Altun², Duran Turkoglu³, Nurcan Bilgili Güngör¹

¹ Amasya University, Mathematics Department, Amasya, Turkey ² Kırıkkale University, , Mathematics Department, Kırıkkale, Turkey

³ Gazi University, Mathematics Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In 1922, Banach [1] proved very fundamental theorem which is known as Banach contraction principle. Because of its applicability and importance, many authors studied to generalize this result. In different way, Nadler [2] generalizes Banach contraction principle to case of multivalued mappings. After Nadler, many author studied fixed point theorems for multivalued mappings on metric space and other abstract spaces [3,4,5]. Feng-Liu [6] generalizes Nadler's theorem without using Pompei-Hausdorff metric. Moreover, Feng-Liu used that the mapping is nonempty closed subset valued instead of nonempty closed bounded subset valued in their result. Recently, Asadi et al. [7] introduced concept of M- metric space and studied fixed point theorems for single valued mappings on M-metric space. Afterwards, Altun et al. [8] discussed on the topological structures of M-metric space and then taking into consideration the family of all nonempty closed subsets of a M-metric space. On the other hand, Wardowski [9] generalizes Banach contraction principle by introducing definition of F-contraction. We consider Feng-Liu type fixed point theorem and F-contraction with together, In this way, we generalizes results in the literature. Finally, we give illustrative examples.

Keywords: Fixed point, F-contraction, M-metric, multivalued mapping

References

- [1] Banach, S. (1922). Sur les opérations dans les ensembles abstraits et leur application aux équations intégrales. Fund. Math., 3, 133-181.
- [2] Nadler, S. B. (1969). Multi-valued contraction mappings. Pacific J. Math., 30, 475-488.
- [3] Abdou, A. A. And Khamsi, M. A. (2014). Fixed points of multivalued contraction mappings in modular metric spaces. Fixed Point Theory and Applications, 2014:2149.
- [4] Ciric, L. (2008). Fixed point theorems for multi-valued contractions in complete metric spaces. Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, 348 (1), 499-507.
- [5] Shoaiba, M. and Sarwar, M. (2016). Multivalued Fixed Point Theorems for Generalized Contractions and Their Applications, Journal of Mathematics, 2016.
- [6] Feng, Y. and Liu, S. (2006). Fixed point theorems for multi-valued contractive mappings and multi-valued Caristi type mappings. J. Math. Anal. Appl., 317, 103-112.
- [7] Asadi, M., Karapınar, E. and Salimi, P. (2014). , New extension of p-metric spaces with some fixed point results on M-metric spaces. Journal of Inequalities and Applications, 2014:18.
- [8] Altun, I., Sahin, H. and Turkoglu, D. (2018). Fixed point results for multivalued mappings of Feng-Liu type on M-metric spaces. Journal of Nonlinear Functional Analysis, 2018, 1-8.
- [9] Wardowski, D. (2012). Fixed points of a new type of contractive mappings in complete metric spaces. Fixed Point Theory Appl., 2012:94.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>hakan.sahin@amasya.edu.tr</u>

Optimal Control of Generalized Tumor Growth Model with Chemotherapeutic and Immunotherapeutic Treatment

Tuğba Akman Yıldız^{1⊠}, Sadia Arshad², Dumitru Baleanu^{3,4}

¹ University of Turkish Aeronautical Association, Department of Management, 06790 Ankara, Turkey
² COMSATS Institute of Information Technology, Lahore, Pakistan
³Çankaya University, Department of Mathematics, 06530 Ankara, Turkey
⁴ Institute of Space Sciences, Magurele-Bucharest 077125, Romania

Abstract

Cancer is a disease caused by abnormal cell growth in the body and about half a million cancer deaths are reported every year. Therefore, in order to investigate the disease mathematically, we construct a fractional order cancerous tumor growth model which expresses the interactions between tumor and immune cells [1]. We present an optimal control strategy to eliminate the number of tumor cells while minimizing the amount of chemotherapeutic and immunotherapeutic drugs in the system [2]. We investigate the equilibrium points and discuss their stability. Numerical simulations are performed for different values of the parameters in the model. We find out the best treatment strategy to eliminate the tumor cells in the system over a specified time interval.

Keywords: Optimal control, cancer, chemotherapy, immunotherapy, fractional calculus.

References

- [1] Samko, S. G., Kilbas, A. A., & Marichev, O. I. (1993). Fractional integrals and derivatives. Theory and Applications, Gordon and Breach, Yverdon, CRC Press.
- [2] De Pillis, L. G., & Radunskaya, A. (2001). A mathematical tumor model with immune resistance and drug therapy: an optimal control approach. Computational and Mathematical Methods in Medicine, 3(2), 79-100.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>tr.tugba.akman@gmail.com</u>, <u>takman@thk.edu.tr</u>

Identifying the Important Criteria for Determination of Temporary Debris Storage Sites By Using Analytic Hierarchy Process (AHP)

Sevde Dilruba Karayel[⊠], Ediz Atmaca

Gazi University, Department of Industrial Engineering, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Disasters can lead to a high risk of casualties and structural damages. Destructive disasters, such as earthquakes, may cause a great amount of disaster waste to be controlled. Debris management is one of the most important and complicated activities among post-disaster operations. A substantial amount of waste is typically generated from disasters. The debris generated from affected communities can be as high as 5–15 times the normal annual rate. In addition, the clearance, removal and disposal of debris from disasters is difficult, time-consuming, and expensive. Processing of debris such as decomposition, reusing and recycling can be made in temporary debris storage sites (TDSS) like the ones suggested by the United Nations and the United States Federal Emergency Management Agency guidelines on disaster waste management. TDSS play multiple roles within the whole system. Firstly, they can provide a buffer and space by hauling debris from the disaster affected community to the TDSS. Secondly, operations such as chipping, burning, and sorting can be done at the TDSS to reduce the amount of waste as well as preparing for recycling and reuse. Finally, they can act as temporary storage places before the final disposal of debris. Also, reusing and recycling materials in the debris can decrease the need for reconstruction resources. The objective of this study is to identify the important criteria for determination of temporary debris storage in order to select best site with providing flexibility, easiness and fastness in disaster management activities. Therefore, criteria about TDSS and solid waste landfilling are analyzed in literature and 8 main criteria and 26 sub criteria related to them are formed. Then, proposed criteria about TDSS are evaluated by experts from Disaster and Emergency Management Authority (AFAD). The importance degree of main and sub criteria are computed using AHP method with the help of EXPERT CHOICE program. The results obtained show that environmental criteria, criteria about safety and site characteristics have the highest importance level among the others, however criteria about cost, location and logistics have the lowest importance level.

Keywords: Temporary debris storage sites, multi-criteria decision making, AHP

References

- Cheng, C., Thompsin, R.G., (2016). Application of boolean logic and GIS for determining suitable locations for Temporary Disaster Waste Management Sites. International Journal of Disaster Risk Reduction. 20, 78-92.
- [2] Çetinkaya, C., Özceylan, E., ErbaĢ, M., Kabak, M. (2016). GIS-based fuzzy MCDA approach for siting refugee camp: A case study for southeastern Turkey. International Journal of Disaster Risk Reduction. 18, 218-231.
- [3] Grzeda, S., Mazzuchi, T.A., Sarkani, S., (2014). Temporary disaster debris management site identification using binomial cluster analysis and GIS. Disasters (Published by John Wiley&Sons). 38(2), 398-419.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>dilrubakarayel@gazi.edu.tr</u>, <u>dilrubasahin@gmail.com</u>

A New Spread Spectrum Audio Watermarking Technique: Improved Robustness and Increased Capacity Using Moving Average

Kadir Tekeli[⊠], Rıfat Aşliyan

Adnan Menderes University, Department of Mathematics, Aydın, Turkey

Abstract

Steganography is the art of information hiding. The main purpose of steganography is to transfer data securely in an invisible way while information is visible but unreadable in cryptography. Steganography techniques were used for secret communication for ages, however these techniques have appeared to be very useful for digital watermarking. Signature of owner, which proves copyright information, can be hidden into digital files such as image, audio or video using steganography techniques.

It is easier to hide information in digital images comparing to digital audio since human auditory system is more sensitive than human visual system. Small changes in audio signals are recognized by ear easily. So, there are fewer studies on digital audio steganography and watermarking. Least Significant Bit (LSB) Coding, Parity Coding, Phase Coding, Quantization Index Modulation, Echo Hiding and Spread Spectrum methods [1-4] are some of data hiding methods in audio steganography.

In this study, we have examined statistical properties of audio signals in audio watermarking. As a result, we have improved robustness and capacity of spread spectrum audio steganography method using moving average by processing the cover audio in both the forward and reverse directions. On the other hand, we have practiced data hiding process by generating mixer signals using sinusoidal modulation between adjacent segments in order to smooth transition of data bits. We have chosen embedding coefficient as variable depending on energy level of each segment to improve inaudibility of hidden information. In conclusion, we have achieved %99.96 correct bit rate in our experiments against various lossy audio compression standards such as MPEG-1 Audio Layer III (MP3), OGG and FLAC. Furthermore, payload capacity is increased up to 90 bps.

Keywords: Audio Watermarking, Spread Spectrum, Signal Processing, Moving Average, Sinusoidal Modulation

References

- [1] Bender, W., Gruhl, D., Morimoto, N., & Lu, A. (1996). Techniques for data hiding. *IBM systems journal*, 35(3.4), 313-336.
- [2] Gruhl, D., Lu, A., & Bender, W. (1996). Echo hiding. *Information Hiding Lecture Notes in Computer Science*, 295-315.
- [3] Kirovski, D., & Malvar, H. (2001). Robust spread-spectrum audio watermarking. In *Acoustics, Speech, and Signal Processing*, 2001. IEEE International Conference on (Vol. 3, pp. 1345-1348).
- [4] Chen, B., & Wornell, G. W. (2001). Quantization index modulation: A class of provably good methods for digital watermarking and information embedding. *IEEE Transactions on Information Theory*, 47(4), 1423-1443.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ktekeli@yahoo.com</u>

Determination of Suitable Alternative in Facility Layout Problem Considering Different Criteria

Sevde Dilruba Karayel [⊠], Ediz Atmaca, Seda Ay

Gazi University, Department of Industrial Engineering, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Facility layout is the locating of physical resources such as labor, materials, machinery and equipment used in the production of goods or services by providing the desired capacity, quality, cost and ergonomic conditions in an efficient way. It is an approach that integrates many factors, such as inventory control, material storage, scheduling, routing, dispatching, to meet production objectives. Therefore, it has a significant effect on the performance of production or service systems. Many studies on facility layout consider some factors such as effective usage of the layout, reduction of all movements for products, increase the productivity of system, flexibility for production, and ease of planning. In this study, it is planned to rearrange the existing layout due to the problems of increasing demand in a company which is operating in the defense industry. With increased demand, areas for departments remain fixed, but the movement of employees become very limited because the capacities of the departments are increased. Consequently, an additional block is built for moving some parts of the departments and the remaining parts are rearranged. At first, ALDEP from computer aided algorithms is used to generate several layout alternatives for remaining departments. Then, five different criteria have been identified with the help of experts in company to select the most appropriate layout from alternatives. The importance degree of criteria are determined by AHP (Analytic Hierarchy Process) method and supported by expert opinions. Finally, PROMETHEE (The Preference Ranking Organization Method for Enrichment Evaluation) method is used to select 10 proposed layout alternatives according to criteria. Also, a sensitivity analysis is made to measure effect of the importance degree of the criteria in the selection of alternatives.

Keywords: Facility Layout, multi-criteria decision making, AHP& PROMETHEE

References

- Ahi, A., Aryanezhad, M.B., Ashtiani, B. & Makui, A., (2009), "A novel approach to determine cell formation, intracellular machine layout and cell layout in the cms problem based on TOPSIS method ", Computers & Operations Research, 36, 1478 – 1496.
- [2] Al-Hawari, T., Mumani, A. & Momani, A., (2014), "Application of the analytic network process to facility layout selection ", Journal of Manufacturing Systems, 33, 488–497.
- [3] Maniya, K.D. & Bhatt, M.G., (2011), "An alternative multiple attribute decision making methodology for solving optimal facility layout design selection problems", Computers & Industriel Engineering, 61, 542-549.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>dilrubakarayel@gazi.edu.tr</u>, <u>dilrubasahin@gmail.com</u>

A Numerical Approach for Solving Burger-Fisher Equation with Variable Coefficients using Laguerre Polynomials

Burcu Gürbüz^{1⊠}, Mehmet Sezer²

¹ Üsküdar University, Department of Computer Engineering, İstanbul, Turkey
² Manisa Celal Bayar University, Department of Mathematics, Manisa, Turkey

Abstract

Burger-Fisher equation is a particular class of nonlinear partial differential equations and arises in applied mathematics and physics applications such as financial mathematics, gas dynamics, traffic flow, fluid dynamics, turbulence and shock wave formation, convection effect, diffusion transport or interaction between the reaction mechanisms. In this study, we consider Burger-Fisher equation with variable coefficients defined by

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} - \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x^2} + \beta(t)u \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} = \alpha(t)u(1-u)$$

with initial or boundary conditions where $\alpha(t)$ and $\beta(t)$ are arbitrary functions of t. In order to solve this problem, we present a different numerical approach, called matrix-collocation method based on Laguerre polynomials. The method reduces the solution of the nonlinear equation to the solution of a matrix equation corresponding to system of nonlinear algebraic equations with the unknown Laguerre coefficients. Thereby, the approximate solution of the problem is obtained in the truncated Laguerre series form. Also, some illustrative examples along with an error analysis based on residual function are performed to demonstrate the validity and applicability of the method; the results are discussed.

Keywords: Nonlinear partial differential equation, Burger-Fisher equation, Laguerre matrix-collocation method

Acknowledgements

This work is supported by Üsküdar University, PARGE (Project, Research, Application, Training and Development Coordination).

References

- [1] Chandraker, V., Awasthi, A., & Jayaraj, S. (2016). Numerical Treatment of Burger-Fisher Equation. Procedia Technology, 25, 1217-1225.
- [2] Al-Rozbayani, A. M. & Al-Hayalie, K. A. (2018). Numerical Solution of Burger's Fisher Equation in One-Dimensional Using Finite Differences Methods. Fluid Mechanics, 4(1), 20-26.
- [3] Kheiri, H., & Ebadi, G. (2010). Application of the *G'/G*-expansion method for the Burgers, Fisher and Burgers-Fisher equations. Acta Universitatis Apulensis. Mathematics-Informatics, 24, 35-44.
- [4] Zhang, L., Wang, L., & Ding, X. (2014). Exact finite difference scheme and nonstandard finite difference scheme for Burgers and Burgers-Fisher equations. Journal of Applied Mathematics, 2014.
- [5] Aizenshtadt, V. S., Krylov, V. I., & Metel'skii, A. S. (2014). Tables of Laguerre Polynomials and Functions: Mathematical Tables Series (Vol. 39). Elsevier, London.
- [6] Gürbüz, B., & Sezer, M. (2017). Numerical solutions of one-dimensional parabolic convection-diffusion problems arising in biology by the Laguerre collocation method. Biomath, 6(1) 1-5.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>burcu.gurbuz@uskudar.edu.tr</u>

High Order Galerkin Method for the Advection Diffusion Equation

Evren Topcu[⊠], Dursun Irk

Eskisehir Osmangazi University, Mathematics-Computer Department, Eskişehir, Turkey

Abstract

We consider the following one dimensional advection-diffusion equation

$$u_t + \alpha u_x - \mu u_{xx} = 0, \ a \le x \le b \tag{1}$$

with the boundary conditions

$$u(a,t) = u(b,t) = 0 u_x(a,t) = u_x(b,t) = 0 , t \in [0,T]$$
(2)

and initial condition

$$u(x,0) = f(x), \ a \le x \le b \tag{3}$$

in a restricted solution domain over an space/time plane $[a,b] \times [0,T]$. In the one dimensional linear advection-diffusion equation, α is the steady uniform fluid velocity, μ is the constant diffusion coefficient and u = u(x,t) is a function of two independent variables t and x, which generally denote time and space, respectively. The advection-diffusion equation (sometimes called the convectiondiffusion equation) is the basis of many physical and chemical phenomena, and it is a one dimensional parabolic partial differential equation which illustrates advection and diffusion of quantities such as mass, energy, heat, vorticity etc. In the equation, u_x and u_{xx} are advection and diffusion terms, respectively. In many environment problems, u = u(x,t) also represents concentration of the pollutant or contaminant material at point x at the time t. A variety of special algorithms have been proposed in recent years dealing with getting the numerical solution of one dimensional advection-diffusion equation so far [1-4]. In this study, sextic B-spline Galerkin finite element method, based on second, third and fourth order single step methods for time integration is proposed for numerical solution of the advection diffusion equation. Two test problems modelling the transportation of a concentration and distribution of an initial pulse are studied and accuracy of the numerical results is measured by the computing the rate of convergence and error norm L_{∞} for the proposed algorithm. The numerical results of this study demonstrate that the proposed third and fourth order single step methods are remarkably successful numerical techniques for solving the advection-diffusion equation.

Keywords: Advection diffusion equation, Galerkin finite element method, Sextic B-spline

References

- [1] Sarı M., Güraslan G. and Zeytinoglu A., (2010). High-Order finite difference schemes for solving the advection-diffusion equation, Math. Comput. Appl. 15(3), 449-460.
- [2] Mohebbi A. and Dehghan M., (2010). High-order compact solution of the one-dimensional heat and advection- diffusion equations, Appl. Math. Model. 34: 3071-3084.
- [3] Irk D., Dağ İ. and Tombul M., (2015). Extended Cubic B-Spline Solution of the Advection-Diffusion Equation, KSCE Journal of Civil Engineering 19(4), 929-934.
- [4] Korkmaz A.and Dağ İ., (2016). Quartic and quintic B-spline methods for advection diffusion equation. Appl. Math. Comput., 274, 208-219.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>evrentopcu2001@hotmail.com</u>

Numerical Solutions of the Nonlinear Klein-Gordon Equation through a Compact Finite Difference Scheme

Asuman Zeytinoglu[⊠]

Suleyman Demirel University, Department of Mathematics, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

This study aims at numerically solving the nonlinear Klein-Gordon equation, which is the basic evolution equation in relativistic field theory, using a sixth-order compact finite difference (CFD6) scheme. The proposed method is applied for discretizing spatial derivatives and then third-order strong stability preserving Runge-Kutta (SSP-RK3) technique is used for the time integration of the resulting system. Some test problems having exact solutions are considered to analyze the applicability and efficiency of the proposed method. The performance of the method is measured by some error norms. The suggested method is seen to be applicable, effective and easy to use. Furthermore, it is also seen that the method is of high order accuracy with less grid points.

Keywords: Klein-Gordon equation, compact finite difference scheme, strong stability preserving Runge-Kutta

Acknowledgements

The author thanks Dr. Murat Sari (Yildiz Technical University, Istanbul) for his valuable comments and suggestions to improve the paper.

References

- [1] Wazwaz, A.M. (2009). Partial Differential Equations and Solitary Waves Theory. Nonlinear Physical Science, Springer, London.
- [2] Arodz, H. & Hadasz, L. (2010). Lectures on Classical and Quantum Theory of Fields. Springer, London.
- [3] Dodd, R.K., Eilbeck, I.C., Gibbon, J.D. & Morris H.C. (1982). Solitons and Nonlinear Wave Equations. Academic, London.
- [4] Dehghan, M. & Shokri, A. (2009). Numerical solution of the nonlinear Klein-Gordon equation using radial basis functions. Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics, 230(2), 400-410.
- [5] Khuri, S.A. & Sayfy, A. (2010). A spline collocation approach for the numerical solution of a generalized nonlinear Klein-Gordon equation. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 216(4), 1047-1056.
- [6] Rashidinia, J., Ghasemi, M. & Jalilian, R. (2010). Numerical solution of the nonlinear Klein-Gordon equation. Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics, 233(2), 1866-1878.
- [7] Guo, P.F., Liew, K.M. & Zhu, P. (2015). Numerical solution of nonlinear Klein-Gordon equation using the element-free kp-Ritz method. Applied Mathematical Modelling, 39(10-11), 2917-2928.
- [8] Sarboland, M. & Aminataei, A. (2015). Numerical solution of the nonlinear Klein-Gordon equation using multiquadric quasi-interpolation scheme. Universal Journal of Applied Mathematics, 3(3), 40-49.
- [9] Hoffmann, K.A. & Chiang, S.T. (2000). Computational Fluid Dynamics Volume III, Engineering Education System, USA.
- [10] Sari, M. & Gürarslan, G. (2009). A sixth-order compact finite difference scheme to the numerical solutions of Burgers equation. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 208(2), 475-483.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>asumanzeytinoglu@sdu.edu.tr</u>

Soft Quasi Metric Spaces and Some Notes on Soft G-Metric Spaces

Nurcan Bilgili Gungor^{1⊠}, Hakan Sahin^{1,2}

¹ Amasya University, Faculty of Science and Arts, Department of Mathematics, Amasya, Turkey ² Gazi University, Faculty of Science, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Problems in many fields involve data that contain uncertainties. To overcome these difficulties, Molodtsov [6] introduced the concept of soft set as a new mathematical tool for dealing with uncertainties that is free from the difficulties. In [6,7], Molodtsov pointed out several directions for the applications of soft sets, such as smoothness of functions, game theory, operations research, Riemann-integration, Perron integration, probability, theory of measurement and so on. At present, works on soft set theory and its applications are progressing rapidly. The help of rough mathematics of Pawlak [10], Maji et al. [5] defined a parameter reduction on soft sets, and presented an application of soft sets in a decision making problem. Das and Samanta [1] presented the notions of soft real set and soft real number and gave their properties. In 2005, Mustafa and Sims introduced a new class of generalized metric spaces (see [8],[9]) which are called G-metric spaces, as generalization of a metric space (X, d). Subsequently, many fixed point results on such spaces appeared. In 2012, Jleli and Samet [4] established the concept of quasi metric spaces and they showed that the most obtained fixed point theorems on G-metric spaces can be deduced immediately from fixed point theorems on metric or quasi metric spaces. In this paper, we introduce the notion of soft quasi-metric space, according to soft element and define some of its properties. Also we will give connections among soft metric, soft G-metric and soft quasi-metric. And then, we indicate that the most gotten fixed point theorems on soft G-metric spaces can be concluded directly from fixed point theorems on soft metric or soft quasi-metric spaces. Thus we conclude that the main results of very recent papers of Guler, Yildirim and Ozbakir [2] and Guler and Yildirim [3] are consequences of the main result of this paper.

Keywords: fixed point, soft metric space, soft G-metric space, soft quasi metric space

References

- [1] Das, S., & Samanta, S. K. (2012). Soft real sets, soft real numbers and their properties. J. Fuzzy Math, 20(3), 551-576.
- [2] Guler, A. C., Yıldırım, E. D., & Ozbakır, O. B. (2016). A fixed point theorem on soft G-metric spaces. J. Nonlinear Sci. Appl, 9(3), 885-894.
- [3] Guler, A. Ç., & Yildirim, E. D. (2016). A note soft G-metric Spaces about Fixed Point Theorems. *Ann. Fuzzy Math. Inform.*(*Article in press*).
- [4] Jleli, M., & Samet, B. (2012). Remarks on G-metric spaces and fixed point theorems. *Fixed Point Theory and Applications*, 2012(1), 210.
- [5] Maji, P. K., Roy, A. R., & Biswas, R. (2002). An application of soft sets in a decision making problem. *Computers & Mathematics with Applications*, 44(8-9), 1077-1083.
- [6] Molodtsov, D. (1999). Soft set theory—first results. *Computers & Mathematics with Applications*, 37(4-5), 19-31.
- [7] Molodtsov, D. (2004). The Theory of Soft Sets, URSS Publishers, Moscow, (in Russian).
- [8] Mustafa, Z. (2005). A new structure for generalized metric spaces with applications to fixed point theory [Ph. D. thesis]. *The University of Newcastle, Callaghan, Australia.*
- [9] Z. Mustafa, B. Sims, A new approach to generalized metric spaces. J. Nonlinear Convex Anal. 7(2), 289-297 (2006).
- [10] Pawlak, Z. (1982). Rough sets. International journal of computer & information sciences, 11(5), 341-356.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>bilgilinurcan@gmail.com</u>

Ln Type Estimators under Stratified Random Sampling

Gamze Ozel Kadilar [⊠], Hatice Oncel Cekim, Cem Kadilar

Hacettepe University, Department of Statistics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Many authors have suggested various estimators for the population parameters by using the information of the auxiliary variable, such as ratio, product, regression, and exponential type estimators in sampling theory literature for the last 3 decades. In this article, we introduce to use the ln function for the first time in literature to improve the efficiency of the estimator for the population variance in the stratified random sampling. We derive equations of the mean square error (MSE) and bias using the Taylor series method, up to first order approximation, and find the efficiency conditions for the proposed estimators. Moreover, we consider three different sets of data in the numerical example and a simulation study using the real data set to show that the proposed ln type estimators are better in estimating the population variance.

Keywords: Ln type estimator, mean square error, separate method, variance estimator.

References

- [1] Bhushan, S., & Misra P. K. (2017). An improved class of unbiased separate regression type estimator under stratified random sampling. International Journal of Computational Intelligence Research, 13(1), 35-44.
- [2] Khare, B. B., & Jha, P. S. (2017). Classes of estimators for population mean using auxiliary variable in stratified population in the presence of non-response. Communications in Statistics-Theory and Methods, 46(13), 6579-6589.
- [3] Muneer, S., Shabbir, J., & Khalil, A. (2017). Estimation of finite population mean in simple random sampling and stratified random sampling using two auxiliary variables. Communications in Statistics-Theory and Methods, 46(5), 2181-2192.
- [4] Ozel, G., Cingi, H., & Oguz, M. (2014). Separate ratio estimators for the population variance in stratified random sampling. Communications in Statistics-Theory and Methods, 43(22), 4766-4779.
- [5] Shabbir, J., & Gupta, S. (2017). Estimation of population coefficient of variation in simple and strati.ed random sampling under two-phase sampling scheme when using two auxiliary variables. Communications in Statistics-Theory and Methods, 46(16), 8113-8133.
- [6] Singh, H. P., Pal, S. K., & Yadav, A. (2017). A Study on the Chain Ratio-Ratio-Type Exponential Estimator For Finite Population Variance. Communications in Statistics-Theory and Methods, DOI:10.1080/03610926.2017.1321124.
- Solanki, R. S., & Singh, H. P. (2015). Efficient classes of estimators in stratified random sampling. Statistical Papers, 56(1), 83-103.
- [8] Yadav, R., Upadhyaya, L. N., Singh, H. P., & Chatterjee, S. (2013). A generalized family of transformed ratio-product estimators for variance in sample surveys. Communications in Statistics. Theory and Methods, 42(10), 1839-1850.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>gamzeozl@hacettepe.edu.tr</u>

Modeling of Breast and Gynecological Cancers Data and Investigating New Biological Findings

Umut Akyüz¹, Vilda Purutçuoğlu^{1, 2} ⊠

Middle East Technical University, Department of Biomedical Engineering, Ankara, Turkey
² Middle East Technical University, Department of Statistics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

The breast and gynecological cancers are two most common fatal cancers' types in women in the world [1]. In oncological literature, these two cancers types are typically worked together since they are the risk factors of each other if the patient has one of these diseases [2]. In general, the cancers, like the heart diseases, are the systems' ilnesses in the sense that any malfunctions in the associated transaction pathways cause problems in the activation flow, resulting in tumors. Therefore, the mathematical representation of these complex structures enables us to better understand the actual biological process and to produce the target drug. Accordingly, in this study, we evaluate 10 different publically available datasets which are collected from the GEO database. Originally these data are the gene expression datasets where some of them also have certain descriptive information about the samples. Hereby, from each dataset, we initially generate subnetworks by selecting the most significantly expressed genes and normalize them via the RMA method [3] if they are the Affymetrix data or normalize them via deterministic background and quantile normalizations. Then, we present them via distinct mathematical models such as MARS [4] and CGGM [5] in order to describe the steady-state behaviour of the proteomic activations. Here, we evaluate the performance of every model via the accuracy of the estimates and the computational demand. Later, we also combine these models with the risk factors of each cancer and re-construct more comprehensive mathematical models. Finally, we validate our estimated systems via the associated literature and biologically discuss our new findings. By this way, we can also combine the knowledge of both cancers types under a single and more comprehensive mathematical model. We consider that our mathematical representation can open new avenue about these diseases and help us to ask biologically more interesting questions.

Keywords: Mathematical models, breast cancer, gynecological cancer, biological systems.

Acknowledgements

The authors thank to the DAP project (no: BAP-08-11-2017-035) of METU for its support and Assoc. Prof. Dr. Yüksel Ürün for his helpful discussion about the biological activations of the systems.

References

- [1] Iyoke, C.A., & Ugwu, G.O. (2013). Burden of gynaecological cancers in developing countries. World Journal Obstetrics Gynecology, 2 (1), 1-7.
- [2] American Cancer Society. (2015). Cancer Facts and Figures. Atlanta: American Cancer Society.
- [3] Irizarry, R.A., Hobbs, B., Collin, F., Beazer-Barclay, Y.D., Antonellis, K.J., Scherf, U., & et al. (2003). Exploration, normalization, and summaries of high density oligonucleotide array probe level data. Biostatistics, 4, 249-264.
- [4] Ayyıldız, E., Ağraz, M., & Purutçuoğlu, V. (2016). MARS as the alternative approach of GGM in modelling of biochemical systems, Journal of Applied Statistics, 44 (16), 2858-2876.
- [5] Dobra, A., & Lenkoski, A. (2010). Copula Gaussian graphical models and their application to modeling functional disability data. Annals of Applied Statistics, 5 (2A), 969-993.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>vpurutcu@metu.edu.tr</u>

Comparison of Alternative Transformations to Handle Heavily Skewed Distribution of Health Expenditures

Songul Cinaroglu $^{ imes}$

Hacettepe University, Department of Health Care Management, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Skewed distribution of expenditure variables, makes modelling health care costs and expenditures difficult. Thus, the literature offers some strategies to combat with highly skewed health expenditure variable. This study aims to compare alternative transformations to deal with positively skewed distribution of health expenditures. Data came from member of 214 World Bank countries. A multiple regression model was conducted, health expenditure per capita was used as a dependent variable, life expectancy at birth, GDP per capita, total population, unemployment rate and maternal mortality was used as covariates. National logarithm (LN), Box-Cox (B-C) transformation and Square root (SQRT) transformations was applied to the health expenditure per capita. Random Forest regression, k=10-fold cross validation was applied while changing number of trees from 3 to 61. Root Means Square Error (RMSE), Mean Absolute Error (MAE) and coefficient of determination (R2) results were recorded for three different transformation methods. Kruskall-Wallis variance analysis was used to compare prediction performances of different methods.

Study results show that, alternative transformations statistically different in terms of RMSE ($X^2=76.756$, p<0.001); MAE ($X^2=76.837$, p<0.001); R2 ($X^2=59.051$, p<0.001) and B-C transformation dominates others. Results of this study highlight that B-C transformation is better to handle with heavily skewed distribution of health expenditures and to improve prediction performance of the model. It is advisable for future studies to provide a light on different types of health expenditure indicators.

Keywords: Health Expenditure, Logarithmic transformation, Box-Cox transformation, Square Root transformation, Random Forest

References

- [1] Jones, A.M., Rice, N., d'Uva, T.B. & Balai, S. (2007) Applied health economics, Routledge, Taylor & Francis, London and New York, 280-319. Mercer, P.A., & Smith, G. (1993). Private Viewdata in the UK. 2nd ed. Longman, London.
- [2] Manning, W. (2006) Dealing with skewed data on costs and expenditures, Jones A.M. (2006) The Elgar Companion to Health Economics, Second Edition, Edward Elgar.
- [3] Manning, W.G. (1998) The logged dependent variable, heteroscedasticity, and the retransformation problem, Journal of Health Economics, 17(3), 283-295. doi:10.1016/S0167-6296(98)00025-3.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>cinaroglus@hacettepe.edu.tr</u>

Ensemble Learning Methods to Deal with Imbalanced Disease Data

Songul Cinaroglu $^{ imes}$

Hacettepe University, Department of Health Care Management, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Rare events and class imbalance is very often in classification problems. Rare diseases which are good example for rare events are life-threating and vast majority of them are genetically determined. Several ensemble learning methods (ELMs) were applied to health care datasets to predict disease risks for patients. These methods are consists of a set of individual training classifiers such as Bagging and Boosting. This study aims to compare ELMs classification performances applied on thyroid disease dataset. Data came from UCI Machine Learning Repository. Diagnosed as a hyperthyroid determined as a dependent variable for classification. ID.3, C4.5, CART, NB, KNN, RF, SVM, NN were used as ELMs. Bagging and Boosting were implemented to improve prediction performances. "k" 10 fold cross validation and AUC was examined to evaluate classification performances of ELMs. Study results reveal that single ELM have superior prediction performance compared with Bagging and

Study results reveal that single ELM have superior prediction performance compared with Bagging and Boosting applications. In addition to that kNN, RF and NN have superior classification performance compared with other ELMs. Future research is needed to better understand the role of ELM to improve prediction performance of rare disease data.

Keywords: Imbalanced Data, Rare Diseases, Ensemble Learning Methods

References

- [1] Khalilia M, Chakraborty S & Popescu M. (2011). Predicting Disease Risks from Highly Imbalanced Data Using Random Forest. BMC Medical Informatics and Decision Modelling, 11(51), 1-13.
- [2] Rokach L. (2010) Ensemble Based Classifiers. Artificial Intelligence Review. 33(1), 1-39.
- [3] Chattamvelli R. (2009). Data Mining Methods. Alpha Science International, Oxford, UK.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>cinaroglus@hacettepe.edu.tr</u>

A methodical model formulation for the tool path optimization problem in CNC machines: A case study

Ilker Kucukoglu, Fatma Balkancioglu, Emine Chousein Topal, Oznur Sayim, Tulin Gunduz[⊠]

Uludag University, Industrial Engineering Department, Bursa, Turkey

Abstract

Nowadays, to achieve an effective and efficient production system for a company is very important due to the tough competition conditions. In this context, one of the most important factors that provide efficient production is increasing capacity utilization in operations, which directly affects factory production efficiency.

This study considers an internal operation optimization of a company producing various machine parts by using Computer Numerical Control (CNC) milling machines and aims to increase the capacity utilization rates of the CNC machines to rise up the production efficiency of the company. Factors that lead to low capacity utilization rates are determined by examining system analysis, time studies and Total Equipment Effectiveness (OEE) data within the factory. In order to improve these factors in the company, loss times in the internal processes are taken into account to be reduced. For this purpose, first, internal processes are examined on CNC milling machines and ABC analyses are made on the OEE data obtained from the company. Thereafter an optimization approach is introduced to reduce the moving path of the cutting tool in CNC milling machines. In order to make the tool path optimization, the tools used in the looms, swarf depth, swarf taking movements, empty movements are taken into consideration. The aim of the tool path optimization approach is to reduce unnecessary movements of the tool in the part machining operations by examining the existing tool paths [1-3]. To find the optimum tool path for the CNC milling machines, a mixed integer mathematical model formulation based on the travelling salesman problem concept is introduced. Distinct from the travelling salesman problem, precedence of the tool operations are considered in which the objective of the model is to minimize total idle and unnecessary times of the tool for internal operations. The proposed mathematical formulation is carried out on a problem which is one of the products of the company to be produced in the CNC milling machines. The result of the computations shows that 2% improvement on the operational times is provided with respect to existing tool path used by the company. As a consequence, it should be noted that the proposed solution approach for the tool path optimization is capable to provide considerable time reductions on the CNC internal operations for the company.

Keywords: Tool path optimization, mathematical modelling, travelling salesman problem

Acknowledgements

Authors thank to company consultants Mr. Mustafa Karataş who have shared their experiences, and also to the employees of HİD-TEK for their support.

References

- [1] Dewil, R., Küçükoğlu, İ., Corrinne, L., & Cattrysse, D. (2018). A critical review of multi-hole drilling path optimization. Archives of Computational Methods in Engineering, In Press, 1-11.
- [2] Castelino, K., D'Souza R., & Wright, P.K. (2002). Toolpath optimization for minimizing airtime during machining. Journal of Manufacturing Systems, 22(3), 173-180.
- [3] Kolahan, F., & Liang, M. (2000). Optimization of hole-making operations: A tabu search approach. International Journal of Machine Tools & Manufacture, 40, 1735-1753.

Corresponding Author Email: tg@uludag.edu.tr

A Discussion of the Generalized Abel Integral Equation

Tahir Cosgun^{1,2⊠}, Murat Sari², Hande Uslu²

¹ Amasya University, Department of Mathematics, Amasya, Turkey ² Yildiz Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Abel [1,2] solved the famous tautochrone problem in 1820s, and this was the first realization of the differentiation and integration of fractional order. Generalized Abel integral equations, which may be the most well-known fractional type of singular integral equations [3-4], were studied in this research. Fractional calculus is remembered with the name of Caputo [5-6] because of his important contributions to the theory. A comprehensive source about fractional calculus can be found in [7], and references therein. In this study, we discuss the generalized Abel integral equation through an approximate approach [8-9].

Keywords: Generalized Abel Integral Equation, Generalized Binomial Theorem

References

- [1] Abel, N. H., (1823). Oplösning af et par opgaver ved hjelp af bestemte integraler. Magazin for Naturvidenskaberne, Aargang I, Bind 2, Christiania.
- [2] Abel, N. H., (1826). Auflösung einer mechanischen ausgabe. Journal für die Reine und Angewandte Mathematik, Band I, 153–157.
- [3] Wazwaz, A.M., (2011). Linear and Nonlinear Integral Equations: Methods and Applications. Springer.
- [4] Trichomi, F.G., (1982). Integral Equations. Dover.
- [5] Caputo, M., (1967). Linear models of dissipation whose Q is almost frequency independent II. Geophysical Journal of the Royal Astronomical Society, 13(5), 529–539.
- [6] Caputo, M., (1969). Elasticit`a e Dissipazione, Zanichelli. Bologna.
- [7] Baleanu D., et al. (2012). Fractional Calculus: Models and Numerical Methods. World Scientific.
- [8] Bromwich, T.J. I'A, (1908). An Introduction to the Theory of Infinite Series. London Macmillan.
- [9] Graham, R.L., et al. (1994). Concrete Mathematics. Addison-Wesley.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>tahircosgun@gmail.com</u>

Numerical Solution of the Fredholm Integro-Differential Equation with Initial-Layer

Muhammet Enes Durmaz [⊠], Gabil Amirali

Erzincan University, Department of Mathematics, Erzincan, Turkey

Abstract

The study deals with an initial-value problem for a singularly perturbed Fredholm integro-differential equation. Parameter explicit theoretical bounds on the continuous solution and its derivative are derived. The difference scheme is constructed by the method of integral identities with the use exponential basis functions and interpolating quadrature rules with the weight and remainder terms in integral form. The finite difference discretization constructs on a uniform mesh. Parameter uniform error estimates for the approximate solution are established. Numerical results are given to illustrate the parameter-uniform convergence at the numerical approximations.

Keywords: Fredholm integro-differential equation, singular perturbation, finite difference

References

- [1] G.M. Amiraliyev and B. Yilmaz. (2014). Int. J. Math. Comput. 22,1-10.
- [2] M. Kudu, I. Amirali and G. M. Amiraliyev. (2016). J. Comput. Appl. Math. 308, 379-390.
- [3] P. Darania and A. Ebadian. (2007). Appl. Math. Comput. 188, 657-668.

Corresponding Author E-mail: <u>menesdurmaz025@gmail.com</u>

Capacity Planning for Support Parts for Pipe Production

Elif Güleryüz, Pelin Yıldız, Gülçin Kaya, Duygu Yılmaz Eroğlu, Tülin Gündüz[⊠]

Uludag University, Department of Industrial Engineering, Bursa, Turkey

Abstract

In terms of business, the optimal capacity level should be determined and strategic business plans should be made in accordance with the determined capacity level. The wrong implementation of this plan will result in idle or inadequate capacity problems for enterprises. In this case, the efficiency of the enterprise, therefore, profitability will not reach the desired level.

The aim of this study is determining the standard time and capacity plan for all types of support that used in pipe production. In this context, determining the basic routes of product types and calculating standard times are very critical. Firstly, workflow diagrams have been created and value stream mapping has been prepared. By means of the value stream maps prepared, bottleneck processes were detected in the product flow. The second stage is to determine the standard production time. Although the types of support seem to be similar, they are divided into dimensional and shape varieties within themselves. Even small features affect the standard time of the types and this has a negative impact on the distribution of labor force. For this reason, to obtain the standard time for each type, a program has been prepared which provides the processing time of each part quickly by writing the part identification number in Excel VBA (macro) module. At the same time, it is possible to calculate the production capacity on a project basis and see how many shifts each operation will be completed in the project by using the scheduled schedules.

In this study, the number of bottlenecks, intermediate stocks and operational capacities were determined by using the pro-model program. By taking into account uncertainties and variables in these cases, capacity planning and simulation studies were carried out considering factors affecting working at full capacity. In order to meet the demand, different scenarios were run and it is determined how many operators must perform the related operation.

As a result of this study, 20.98% improvement in the production of plate type products and 6.54% improvement in support type were achieved.

Keywords: Pipe production, support, value stream mapping, capacity planning

Acknowledgement

We would like to express our gratitude to Uludağ University and Çimtaş Pipe Manufacturing Factory for enabling the realization of the project.

References

- [1] Merden, S., (2004) "Endüstri İşletmelerinde İşgücü Planlama Teknikleri ve Bir Uygulama", Pidd, M. Computer Simulation in Management Science. (5. Baskı), USA: John Wiley & Sons Books.
- [2] Huang, H.-C., Lee, L.-H., Song, H., Eck, B. T., "SimMan—A simulation model for workforce capacity planning", Computers & Operations Research, 36, 2490-2497, 2009.
- [3] Gahagan, Sean M., (2007) Adding Value to Value Stream Mapping: A Simulation Model Template for VSM, IIE Annual Conference. Proceedings ; Norcross : 712-717.

 \square Corresponding Author Email: <u>tg@uludag.edu.tr</u>

A Nonstandard Numerical Approach for a Ratio-Dependent Predator-Prey Model

Nihal Özdoğan¹ [∞], Mevlüde Yakıt Ongun² [∞]

¹ Suleyman Demirel University, Isparta Vocational School, Isparta, Turkey ² Suleyman Demirel University, Department of Mathematics, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

In this talk, we investigated the fixed points of discretizated predator-prey model with ratio-dependent functional response. We have used Nonstandard Finite Difference Schemes (NSFD) that preserve both the positivity of the solutions and the local stability of the equilibria of the continuous-time system. However, due to the difficulty of solving such models, the behavior of numerical solutions have been examined.

Keywords: stability analysis, ratio-dependent, nonstandard finite difference scheme .

References

- Bairagi, N., & Chakraborty, S., & Pal, S. (2012). Contributions Heteroclinic Bifurcation and Multistability in a Ratio-dependent Predator-Prey System with Michaelis-Menten Type Harvesting Rate. Proceedings of the World Congress on Engineering, London, U.K.
- [2] Mickens, R.E. (1994). Nonstandard finite difference model of differential equations. World Scientific, Singapore.
- [3] Dimitrov, D.T., & Kojouharov, H.V. (2006). Contributions Positive and Elementary Stable Nonstandard Numerical Methods with Applications to Predator-Prey Models. J. Comput. Appl. Math, 98-108.
- [4] Berezovskaya, F., & Karev, G., & Arditi, R. (2001). . Paremetric analysis of the ratio-dependent predatorprey model. J. Math.Biol, 43, 221-246.
- [5] Anguelov, R., & Lubuma, J. M-S. (2001). Contributions to the Mathematics of the Nonstandard Finite Difference Method and Applications. Numerical Methods Partial Difference Equations, 17(5), 518-543.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>mevludeyakit@sdu.edu.tr</u>

Stability Analysis of a Discretizated Predator-Prey Model with Beddington-DeAngelis Functional Response

Nihal Özdoğan¹[∞], Mevlüde Yakıt Ongun²[∞]

¹ Suleyman Demirel University, Isparta Vocational School, Isparta, Turkey ² Suleyman Demirel University, Department of Mathematics, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

In this talk, a continuous-time predator-prey model with Beddington-DeAngelis functional response is discretized. We have used Nonstandard Finite Difference Schemes (NSFD) for designing methods that preserve the local stability of equilibria of the approximated system. The techniques are based on a nonlocal numerical treatment of the right-hand side functions and more sophisticated discretization of time derivatives. However, the NSFD methods, guarantee positive solution for positive initial points while Standard Finite Difference methods do not guarantee the positivity for all positive initial conditions.

Keywords: Predator-Prey Model, Beddington-DeAngelis Model, Nonstandard Finite Difference Scheme .

References

- [1] Anguelov, R., & Lubuma, J. M-S. (2001). Contributions to the Mathematics of the Nonstandard Finite Difference Method and Applications. Numerical Methods Partial Difference Equations, 17(5), 518-543.
- [2] Mickens, R.E. (1994). Nonstandard finite difference model of differential equations. World Scientific, Singapore.
- [3] Dimitrov, D.T., & Kojouharov, H.V. (2006). Contributions Positive and Elementary Stable Nonstandard Numerical Methods with Applications to Predator-Prey Models. J. Comput. Appl. Math, 98-108.
- [4] Berezovskaya, F., & Karev, G., & Arditi, R. (2001). . Paremetric analysis of the ratio-dependent predatorprey model. J. Math.Biol, 43, 221-246.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>mevludeyakit@sdu.edu.tr</u>

Numerical Modeling of Heat Fluid and Mass Transfer in Algae Cultivation Process Integrated with Ground Source Heat Pump

Yakup Ermurat ^{1⊠}, Ömer Özyurt²

¹ Abant İzzet Baysal University, Department of Environmental Engineering, Bolu, Turkey ² Abant İzzet Baysal University, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Bolu, Turkey

Abstract

Numerical modeling of heat, fluid and mass transfer in algae cultivation process integrated with ground source heat pump at different air flow rate is studied in this research. The calculation approaches are numerically developed to reach operative conditions for extent of the cultivation essentials heat and air blown into the cultivation water abundantly adapted for the growth of algae. The temperature and air mass profile differences in the water for quasi steady state growth circumstances of the algae are elucidated in a degree of discrepancy at each time step. The study confirmed that the extent of the heat and mass sourced from the system can adequately accomplish incubation of algal biomass.

Keywords: Numerical modeling, heat, fluid and mass transfer, Ground source heat pump, algae cultivation process

References

- [1] Nam,Y., Chae, H.B. (2014). Numerical simulation for the optimum design of ground source heat pump system using building foundation as horizontal heat exchanger. Energy. 73, 933-942.
- [2] Bottarelli, M., Bortoloni, M., Su, Y., Yousif, C., Aydın, A.A., Georgiev, A. (2014). Numerical analysis of a novel ground heat exchanger coupled with phase change materials. Appl. Therm. Eng., 88, 369-375.
- [3] Florides. G., E. Theofanous, I. Iosif-Stylianou, S. Tassou, P. Christodoulides, Z. Zomeni, E. Tsiolakis, S., Kalogirou, V., Messaritis, P., Pouloupatis, Panayiotou, G. (2013). Modeling and assessment of the efficiency of horizontal and vertical ground heat exchangers, Energy, 58, 655–663.
- [4] Khan, M. (2004). Modeling, simulation and optimization of ground source heat pump systems. M. S. Thesis, Oklahoma State University, USA.
- [5] Ozyurt, O., Ekinci, D.A. (2011). Experimental study of vertical ground-source heat pump performance evaluation for cold climate in Turkey. Appl. Energy, 88, 1257-1265.
- [6] Luo, J., Rohn, J., Xiang, W., Bertermann, D., Blum, P. (2016). A review of ground investigations for ground source heat pump (GSHP) systems. Energy Build., 117, 160-175.
- [7] Esen, H., Esen, M., Ozsolak, O. (2017). Modelling and experimental performance analysis of solar-assisted ground source heat pump system. J. Exp. Theor. Artif. Intell., 29, 1-17.
- [8] Kharseh, M., Altorkmany, L., Al-Khawaja, M., Hassani, F. (2015). Analysis of the effect of global climate change on ground source heat pump systems. Renew. Energy, 78, 219-225.
- [9] Camdali, U., Bulut, M., Sozbir, N. (2015). Numerical modeling of a ground source heat pump: the Bolu case. Renew Energ, 83, 352-361.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>yakupermurat@ibu.edu.tr</u>

Metaheuristic Approach to Dual-Resource Constrained Job Shop Scheduling Problem

Adil Baykasoğlu¹, Fatma Selen Madenoğlu² ⊠

¹ Dokuz EylülUniversity, Industrial Engineering Department, Izmir, Turkey ² Abdullah Gül University, Business Administration Department, Kayseri, Turkey

Abstract

Both machines and human resources usually constrain the real world manufacturing systems and this type of systems are referred as Dual Resource Constrained (DRC) systems. A metaheuristic approach is proposed to solve the Dual Resource Constrained Job Shop Scheduling Problem (DRCJSP) in this study. Weighted Superposition Attraction (WSA) [1, 2] algorithm, which is based on two basic mechanisms, 'superposition' and 'attracted movement of agents' for solving complex optimization problems is presented to deal with DRCJSP. A preemptive goal programming based logic [3] is utilized to handle three objectives: mean tardiness, cost, and make-span. Benchmark problems are used to depict the performance of the proposed WSA algorithm. Extensive computational tests are presented in order to show that the proposed algorithm can improve the job shop performance in comparison to employing basic dispatching rule based approaches for the stated dual resource constrained scheduling problem. Moreover, the results of the proposed algorithm is also compared with the results of the GRASP algorithm that is presented in [4].

Keywords: Dual resource constraints, job shop scheduling, combinatorial optimization, metaheuristics

References

- Baykasoğlu, A., & Akpinar, Ş. (2015). Weighted Superposition Attraction (WSA): A swarm intelligence algorithm for optimization problems – Part 1: Unconstrained optimization, Applied Soft Computing, 56, 520–540.
- [2] Baykasoğlu, A., & Akpinar, Ş. (2015). Weighted Superposition Attraction (WSA): A swarm intelligence algorithm for optimization problems – Part 2: Constrained optimization, Applied Soft Computing, 37, 396– 415.
- [3] Baykasoğlu, A. (2005). Preemptive goal programming using simulated annealing, Engineering Optimization, 37(1), 49–63.
- [4] Baykasoğlu, A., & Karaslan, F. S. (2017). Solving comprehensive dynamic job shop scheduling problem by using a GRASP-based approach, International Journal of Production Research, 55(11), 3308–3325.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>selen.madenoglu@agu.edu.tr</u>

Weighted Superposition Attraction Algorithm for Type II Two-Sided Assembly Line Balancing Problem

Fatma Selen Madenoğlu^{1⊠}, Lale Özbakir², Adil Baykasoğlu³

¹Abdullah Gül University, Business Administration Department, Kayseri, Turkey
² Erciyes University, Industrial Engineering Department, Kayseri, Turkey
³ Dokuz EylülUniversity, Industrial Engineering Department, Izmir, Turkey

Abstract

In a two sided assembly line, different assembly tasks are carried out on the same product in parallel to both left and right sides of the line [1]. A metaheuristic approach is proposed to solve two sided assembly line balancing problem (TSALB) of type II in this study. Weighted Superposition Attraction (WSA) [2,3], which is based on two basic mechanisms, 'superposition' and 'attracted movement of agents' is adopted to solve TSALB with the objective of cycle time minimization for a given number of stations. Extensive computational study is carried out and the results are compared with the results of several algorithms from the literature.

Keywords: Assembly line balancing, two-sided assembly line, combinatorial optimization

References

- [1] Özbakır, L., & Tapkan, P. (2011). Bee colony intelligence in zone constrained two-sided assembly line balancing problem, Expert Systems with Applications, 38, 11947–11957.
- [2] Baykasoğlu, A., & Akpinar, Ş. (2015). Weighted Superposition Attraction (WSA): A swarm intelligence algorithm for optimization problems – Part 1: Unconstrained optimization, Applied Soft Computing, 56, 520– 540.
- [3] Baykasoğlu, A., & Akpinar, Ş. (2015). Weighted Superposition Attraction (WSA): A swarm intelligence algorithm for optimization problems – Part 2: Constrained optimization Mercer, Applied Soft Computing, 37, 396–415.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>selen.madenoglu@agu.edu.tr</u>

Evaluation of Product Recovery Facilities Using Multi Criteria Decision Making

Muhammet Enes Akpinar[⊠], Mehmet Ali Ilgin

Manisa Celal Bayar University, Industrial Engineering Department, Manisa, Turkey

Abstract

Stricter environmental regulations and diminishing natural resources forced many companies to set up product recovery facilities where reprocessing operations such as disassembly and recycling/remanufacturing are carried out [1]. Selection of efficient product recovery facilities has an utmost importance in the profitability of product recovery activities. The number of studies evaluating the product recovery facilities is very limited. In this study we evaluate product recovery facilities using multi criteria decision making.

Keywords: Product Recovery, Facility, Multi Criteria Decision Making

References

[1] Pochampally, K. K., Nukala, S., & Gupta, S. M. (2008). Strategic planning models for reverse and closed-loop supply chains. CRC Press, USA.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>enes.akpinar@cbu.edu.tr</u>

Evaluation of Customers of a Company using Multi Criteria Decision Making

Mehmet Ali Ilgin, Muhammet Enes Akpinar[⊠], Sude Bulut

Manisa Celal Bayar University, Industrial Engineering Department, Manisa, Turkey

Abstract

Effective management of customer relations is an important factor for the protection of market share in today's highly competitive business environment. In order to ensure the effectiveness of customer relations management (CRM) activities, most companies determine the most important customers and concentrate CRM activities on those customers [1]. Multiple and conflicting criteria must be considered while determining the most important customers. Hence the use of multi-criteria decision making in this area provides more objective evaluations. In this study, multi-criteria decision making is used to evaluate the customers of a company. The relationships among the criteria and the most important customers for each criterion are also analyzed visually.

Keywords: Customer Relations Management, Multi Criteria Decision Making, Market Share

References

[1] Özdemir, Ö.P. (2007). Anahtar Müşteri Yönetimi ve Büyük Ölçekli Türk İşletmelerinin Anahtar Müşteri Seçimi Kriterleri, Finans Politik & Ekonomik Yorumlar, 44(512), 28-42

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>enes.akpinar@cbu.edu.tr</u>

Implementation of 5S Systematic in a Hard Chrome Plating Company

Mehmet Ali Ilgin [⊠], Muhammet Enes Akpinar, Sude Bulut

Manisa Celal Bayar University, Industrial Engineering Department, Manisa, Turkey

Abstract

Order and discipline are priority concepts for achieving quality in production. Through the use of 5S, which reveals this order and discipline in a systematic manner, necessary and unnecessary materials are determined and improvements are achieved in production times, employee satisfaction, and product and work-place quality [1, 2]. In this study, 5S steps are implemented in a hard chrome plating company and the obtained results are analyzed.

Keywords: 5S Systematic, Quality Improvement, Hard Chrome Plating

References

- [1] Akgün, S. (2015). Sağlık Hizmetlerinde Yalın Yönetim 5S Yaklaşımının Uygulanması", Sağlık Akademisyenleri Dergisi, 2(1),1-7.
- [2] Keleş, A.E., Gürsoy, G., Çelik, G.T. (2013). 5S Sistematiği Aşamaları ve Örnek Bir Uygulama", Çukurova Üniversitesi Mühendislik Mimarlık Fakültesi Dergisi, 28(2), 51-60.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>enes.akpinar@cbu.edu.tr</u>

Numerical Analysis of Second Order Time Stepping Methods for the Natural Convection Problems

Medine Demir¹[∞], Aytekin Çıbık², Songül Kaya³

¹ Orta Doğu Teknik Üniversitesi, Matematik Bölümü, Ankara, Türkiye
² Gazi Üniversitesi, Matematik Bölümü, Ankara, Türkiye
³ Orta Doğu Teknik Üniversitesi, Matematik Bölümü, Ankara, Türkiye

Abstract

Natural convection is a mechanism, in which the fluid motion occurs due to density differences in the fluid instead of any external source (like a pump, fan, etc.). Natural convection is of great importance in Computational Fluid Dynamics because of its presence both in nature and engineering applications such as the rising plume of hot air from fire, free air, cooling fluid flows around heat-dissipations fins, etc. In addition, this phenomena occurs in an increasing number of fields, including oceanography, meteorology and geophysical context [1, 2, 3]. The accurate and efficient numerical solutions of these flows are known to be the core of many applications.

The main objective of this study is to propose, analyze and test a family of second order time stepping methods for the Boussinesq system, by extending an earlier study of [4] for the Navier-Stokes equations (NSE) based on the pioneering work for [5, 6]. In this study, the idea is to incorporate linearizations and stabilization terms such that the discrete curvature solutions in velocity, temperature and pressure are proportional to this combination. The method requires the solution of only one linear system per time step. We prove unconditional stability of the method and show that it is $O(\Delta t^2)$ accurate. Also, a priori error bound is derived. Several numerical experiments are provided that support the derived theoretical results and demonstrate the efficiency and the accuracy of the method.

Keywords: Boussinesq equations, curvature stabilization, linear extrapolation, error analysis.

References

- [1] T. Benjamin, Gravity currents and related phenomena, J. Fluid Mech. 31 (1968), 209-248.
- [2] D. Hoult, Oil spreading in the sea, Annu. Rev. Fluid Mech. 4 (1972), 341-368.
- [3] E. Meiburg, V. Birman, B. Battandier, and P. Linden, Lock-exchange ows in sloping channels, J. Fluid Mech. 577 (2007), 53-77.
- [4] N. Jiang, M. Mohebujjaman, L. G. Rebholz, and C. Trenchea, An optimally accurate discrete regularization for second order time stepping methods for Navier-Stokes equations, Comput. Methods Appl. Mech. Engrg. 310 (2016), 388-405.
- [5] C. Trenchea, Stability of partitioned imex methods for systems of evolution equations with skew-symmetric coupling, ROMAI J. 10 (2014), 175-189.
- [6] C. Trenchea, Second order implicit for local eects and explicit for nonlocal effects is unconditionally stable, ROMAI J. 1 (2016), 163-178.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>*dmedine@metu.edu.tr*</u>

A Short Review of CFD Based System Identification in Aerodynamics Applications

Tolgay Kara¹[∞], Emre Kara²

¹University of Gaziantep, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Gaziantep, Turkey ²University of Gaziantep, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Gaziantep, Turkey

Abstract

Computational fluid dynamics (CFD) is a modeling tool for flow field characterizations, calculations and predictions. Combining CFD with a grey box method in order to simulate a control system is trending with high performance computers and fast converging solutions in last decade. Modeling is the key part of linking CFD to system identification that can be realized by using CFD data of a numerical study instead of time-series data of associated experimental/industrial system.

Meng et al. [1] gave a general review of CFD based system identification (CFD-SI), in which a flowchart of off-line CFD-SI can be found. They surveyed all CFD related control system applications in literature until 2010. Two remarkable aerodynamics applications are: adaptive flow control for an incompressible viscous fluid through a two-dimensional channel using CFD simulation result data to identify the required parameters and two dimensional (2-D) pipe flow control system model, and the linear model of spacecraft propulsion control system. In last eight years, additional studies are encountered in literature using CFD model for predicting aerodynamic coefficients and flow parameters.

In this study, the focus point is determined as CFD-SI based prediction of aerodynamics, which is an almost untouched topic unlike other more common applications on premixed flames, combustion, thermo- and aero-acoustics, etc. In 2011, Meng et al. [2] studied CFD simulation in Fluent and CFD-SI model in CAPTAIN toolbox of MATLAB. They modeled a feedback control system involving a fluid flow and heat/mass transfer related process. In 2012, Erbil and Kasnakoğlu [3] presented a novel approach for the modeling and control of flow problems when the fluid viscosity is immeasurable and non-constant. In their study, wavelet transform of the flow snapshots obtained from CFD simulations track the closed-loop system successfully via D-K iteration algorithm. In 2016, Jaensch et al. [4] used plane wave masking to couple CFD and the time domain acoustic model. Their formulation works well with laminar as well as turbulent flows. This short review reveals that the literature of CFD-SI in aerodynamics applications is very immature and open to progress. As a contribution to this field, authors of current study are in preparation stage of a project on CFD-SI of microjet actuators.

Keywords: CFD, system identification, grey box method, aerodynamics

References

- [1] Meng, Q., Guan, Y., & Xie, A. (2011). A review of CFD-based system identification. In: Control and Decision Conference (CCDC), 3268–3273.
- [2] Meng, Q., Guan, Y., & Yan, X. (2011). CFD-based system identification method for controlled system involved of fluid flow and heat/mass transfer. In: Control and Decision Conference (CCDC), 3274–3279.
- [3] Erbil, T.N., & Kasnakoğlu, C. (2012). Regional dynamical modeling and control of flow problems under unmeasurable and non-constant viscosity. Trans. of the Inst. of Measurement and Control, 34(8), 966–973.
- [4] Jaensch, S., Sovardi, C., & Polifke, W. (2016). On the robust, flexible and consistent implementation of time domain impedance boundary conditions for compressible flow simulations. Journal of Computational Physics, 314, 145-159.

^{Corresponding} Author Email: <u>kara@gantep.edu.tr</u>

The Qualitative Behavior of Some Stiff ODEs Through Stochastic Methods

Murat Sari¹, Hande Uslu^{1⊠}, Tahir Coşgun^{1,2}

¹ Yildiz Technical University, Mathematics Department, Istanbul, Turkey ²Amasya University, Mathematics Department, Amasya, Turkey

Abstract

In the last few decades, an effectively created model for systems involving random elements has highly taken attention from academic societies since behaviors in the real life cannot been explained by only one input variable. It is believed that stochastic methods are generally used for solving stochastic models [1-2]. However, these methods can also be used in dealing with deterministic models [3-5]. This study aims at analyzing how deterministic problems can be considered by stochastic approaches. Thus, an algorithm based on the Monte Carlo approach has been presented for solving some stiff ordinary differential equations [6]. To properly realize the behavior of the problems represented by the model, the solutions have been discussed in detail.

Keywords: Stiff Ordinary Differential Equation, Monte Carlo Method, Stochastic Method

Acknowledgements

This study was supported by the Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey (TUBITAK) Grant No: 2210.

References

- [1] Birge, J. R., & Louveaux, F. (2011). *Introduction to Stochastic Programming*. Springer Science & Business Media.
- [2] Kroese, D. P., & Chan, J. C. (2016). *Statistical Modeling and Computation*. Springer.
- [3] Rubinstein, R. Y., & Kroese, D. P. (2016). Simulation and the Monte Carlo Method (Vol. 10). John Wiley & Sons.
- [4] Fishman, G. (2013). *Monte Carlo: Concepts, Algorithms, and Applications*. Springer Science & Business Media.
- [5] Kroese, D. P., Taimre, T., & Botev, Z. I. (2013). Handbook of Monte Carlo Methods (Vol. 706). John Wiley & Sons.
- [6] Chapra, C. S., (2017). *Applied Numerical Methods with MATLAB for Engineers and Scientists*. McGraw Hill.
- [7] Dekking, F. M. (2005). A Modern Introduction to Probability and Statistics: Understanding why and how. Springer Science & Business Media.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>usluh@yildiz.edu.tr</u>

A New Approach to Exam-Session Planning in Multiple Session Exams

Emine Tutsun^{1⊠}, Zehra Kamisli Ozturk²

¹ Anadolu University, Computer Research Center, Eskisehir, Turkey ² Anadolu University, Department of Industrial Engineering, Eskisehir, Turkey

Abstract

Educational scheduling problems are challenging and interesting optimization problems which are frequently encountered in academic studies. These problems consist of hard and soft constraints. Hard constraints have to be satisfied under any circumstances. The hard constraints of these problems are assigning all the necessary courses/examinations to the students, not exceeding the room capacities and appointing invigilators to the used rooms. Soft constraints need to be satisfied as much as possible. The soft constraints of these problems can be changed from one institution to other. For example, not to assigning student to consecutive exams can be soft constraint for some institutions [1].

Anadolu University's open and distance education faculty was opened in 1982, as the first school in open and distance education to serve Turkey [2]. In Anadolu University's open and distance education examinations, exam-session planning which there are more than one session and courses to be scheduled, namely booklet optimization, can be considered as a subset of the educational scheduling problems.

In this special case, the current input consists of the students and their programs-courses. Our goal is to create a new exam-session planning by assigning courses and booklets for sessions, by minimizing the required number of booklets per examination session and by reconsidering hard and soft constraints. For example a student can only have a limited number of courses and only one booklet per each session, all of the courses and booklets can only appear in only one of the sessions of the examination, etc.

Since the number of students in Anadolu University open and distance education system is more than 1.5 million and the total number of courses are 715, the slightest improvement in the system is returned to us with great achievements. It is also predicted that a new exam-session planning will yield good economic results if fewer books are printed during the examinations.

In this study, a mathematical model is established by determining all constraints, decision variables and multiple objectives for a pilot exam of North America Program which a new program of Anadolu University open education faculty. The exact solution has been investigated for this model by an optimization software which is GAMS. In the later phases of the study, it is also planned to develop a heuristic algorithm by resorting to intuitive and / or meta-intuitive methods.

Keywords: Booklet Optimization, Exam scheduling, Timetable scheduling, Optimization.

References

- [1] Burke Ed., McCollum B., Meisels A., Petrovic S., Qu R., "A graph based hyper-heuristic for educational timetabling problems". European Journal of Operation Research, 176(2007), 177-199, 2005.
- [2] Open Education System. Available from:https://www.anadolu.edu.tr/acikogretim/acikogretim-sistemi/acikogretim-sistemi-1[Accessed 11 April 2018].

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ecoksen@anadolu.edu.tr</u>

Mathematical Modelling of a Medical Problem Using Multiple Linear Regression

Murat Sari¹, Arshed Ahmad¹, Tahir Coşgun^{1,2}

¹ Yildiz Technical University, Mathematics Department, Istanbul, Turkey ² Amasya University, Mathematics Department, Amasya, Turkey

Abstract

The aim of this talk is to investigate if there is a relation between the inputs (eight blood variables, sex and age) and output (the disease) [1,2]. To achieve this, we have used linear regression model. The obtained results in terms of the proposed model seem to be reasonably good. For further studies, more analysis will be carried out for to improve the accuracy of the model [3-7].

Keywords: Anemia, Mathematical Modelling, Linear Regression Model.

References

- [1] Liddell C, Owusu-Brackett N, Wallace D. (2014). A Mathematical Model of Sickle Cell Genome frequency in response to selective pressure from malaria. Bulletin of mathematical biology. 76(9):2292-305.
- [2] Rivera S, Ganz T. (2009). Animal models of anemia of inflammation. In Seminars in hematology (Vol. 46, No. 4, pp. 351-357). Elsevier.
- [3] Sharma V, Kumar R. (2017). Dating of ballpoint pen writing inks via spectroscopic and multiple linear regression analysis: A novel approach. Microchemical Journal. 134:104-13.
- [4] World Health Organization. (2008). Worldwide Prevalence of Anaemia 1993-2005: WHO Global Database on Anaemia.
- [5] Olive DJ. (2010). Multiple linear and 1D regression.
- [6] Thompson JR. (2011). Empirical Model Building: Data, Models, and Reality. John Wiley & Sons.
- [7] Fabozzi FJ, Focardi SM, Rachev ST, Arshanapalli BG. (2014). The basics of financial econometrics: Tools, concepts, and asset management applications. John Wiley & Sons.

[™] Corresponding Author Email : <u>sarim@yildiz.edu.tr</u>

Interval Estimation of Beta-Glucan Content of Yeast by Using Fuzzy Least Squares Modeling Approach

Özlem Türkşen^{1⊠}, Suna Ertunç²

¹Ankara University, Statistics Department, Ankara, Turkey ²Ankara University, Chemical Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Beta-glucans are described as polysaccharides and are composed of D-glucopyranosyl units. They have important impact on immune systems of the organisms. And also, the beta-glucans are widespread in many varieties of microorganisms and plants. One of the commonly used source of beta glucans is yeast since the yeast wall consists of about the 50-55 % beta-glucans and these are produced economically [1]. Beta-glucan content is important for economic production process and it is affected from both growth conditions of the yeast and extraction procedure [2]. In this study, it is aimed to define the optimal values of growth conditions, which are concentration of additive materials (EDTA, Sorbitol, CaCl₂), for increasing the content of beta-glucan in the yeast. The optimal condition values of each additive materials and replicated measures of beta-glucan contents are obtained. In order to define the functional relationship between the beta-glucan content and concentration of additive materials, fuzzy least squares (FLS) modeling approach is applied [4, 5]. Because, it is seen that the statistical modeling assumptions are not satisfied on the experimental data. After evaluation of fuzzy predicted model, interval estimation of beta-glucan content of the yeast is obtained.

Keywords: Beta-glucan, fuzzy least squares (FLS) modeling, interval estimation

Acknowledgements

Authors are thankful to Ankara University Research Fund (Project Number:13L4343005) for the encouragement and support to carry out the research.

References

- [1] Manners, D.J., Masson A.J. & Patterson J.C. (1973). The Structure of a β -(1 \rightarrow 3)- D-Glucan from Yeast Cell Walls, Biochemical Journal, 135, 19-30.
- [2] Uscanga, B. & François, J. M. (2003). A study of the yeast cell wall composition and structure in response to growth conditions and mode of cultivation, Letters in Applied Microbiology, 37, 268-274.
- [3] Sabuncu, N. (2016). β-Glukan İçeriğinin Arttırılması İçin *S.cerevisiae* Üretilen Bir Biyoreaktörde Çoğalma Koşullarının İncelenmesi ve pH Kontrolu. Master Thesis, Ankara University, Ankara.
- [4] Türkşen, Ö. (2016). Analysis of Response Surface Model Parameters with Bayesian Approach and Fuzzy Approach, International Journal of Uncertainty, Fuzziness and Knowledge Based Systems, 24(1), 109-122.
- [5] Türkşen, Ö. & Güler Dinçer, N. (2015). Comparison of Fuzzy Logic Based Models for the Multi Response Surface Problems with Replicated Response Measures, Applied Soft Computing, 37, 887-896.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>turksen@ankara.edu.tr</u>

A Nonlinear Modeling and Optimization Process: Obtaining Optimal Drying Conditions for Olive Leaves

Suna Ertunç¹[∞], Özlem Türkşen², Nilüfer Vural¹

¹ Ankara University, Chemical Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey
² Ankara University, Statistics Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Drying by using various type of equipment is commonly used process in food, chemical and pharmaceutic industries. Efficiency of drying process depends on type of equipment, drying conditions and wet material type. Olive leaves have a great attention due to their high phenolic content, which is shown an antioxidant activity, in recent years [1]. Before extraction process of phenolic compounds from olive leaves they must be dried in order to increase the extraction yield [2]. For this purpose, suitable drying equipment and drying conditions should be selected and applied for both economic and efficient drying. In this study, it is aimed to obtain optimal drying conditions, which are hot air input temperature (T, $^{\circ}$ C) and air flow rate (q, m/s), for dehumidification yield of olive leaves (x, %). Experiments were conducted at the same relative humidity of air. In modeling stage, nonlinear regression analysis [3] is used since the functional relationship between the drying conditions and yield of olive leaves is not linear. The optimization stage is achieved by using derivative-free optimization algorithms which are useful tools in nonlinear optimization [4]. And also, total phenolic content and olureopein level were analysed. It is seen that the drying the olive leaves under low air flow rate and low hot air input temperature resulted with less alteration of phenolic content and olureopein level.

Keywords: Drying, nonlinear regression, derivative-free optimization algorithms, olive leaves

References

- [1] Benavente-García, O., Castillo, J., Lorente J., Ortuño, A. & Del Rio J.A. (2000). Antioxidant activity of phenolics extracted from Olea europaea L. Leaves, Food Chemistry, 68, 457-462.
- [2] Erbay, Z. & Icier, F. (2009). Optimization of Hot Air Drying of Olive Leaves Using Response Surface Methodology, Journal of Food Engineering, 91(4): 533-541.
- [3] Seber, G.A.F. & Wild, J. (1989). Nonlinear Regression, John Wiley and Sons.
- [4] Türkşen, Ö & Tez, M. (2016). An Application of Nelder-Mead Heuristic-based Hybrid Algorithms: Estimation of Compartment Model Parameters, International Journal of Artificial Intelligence, 14(1): 525-530.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ertunc@eng.ankara.edu.tr</u>

Solving the Single-level Capacitated Lot-sizing and Scheduling Problem with Setup Time Consideration

Burcu Kubur Özbel[™], Adil Baykasoğlu

Dokuz Eylül University Industrial Engineering Department, İzmir, Türkiye

Abstract

Capacitated lot-sizing is one of the most common production planning problems encountered in production companies. This paper studies a challenging case of joint lot sizing and scheduling problem in a paper bag production company. A mixed integer programming (MIP) model is developed by extending the model [1] and tested on multiple sets of real data. Setup cost/time between product and period changes are taken into account in the proposed model. Since neglecting the setup time can lead to infeasible plans or sub-optimal plans with high inventory. However, finding a feasible solution for larger instances turned out to be quite difficult with a standard MIP solver. Therefore, in this study we focus on providing feasible solutions within an appropriate time limit by using subcontracting in combination with the idea of the lexicographical approach from multi-objective optimization. In this approach, only one of the objectives is minimized at a time while the others are constrained by upper bounds [2]. Test results demonstrate that the formulations are computationally effective and with low modeling and programming effort a considerable improvement compared to the classical approach could be achieved. The schedule obtained from the solution of the proposed model substantially improves on that practiced at the company and can be useful for similar companies in the paper bag industry.

Keywords: Integrated lot sizing and scheduling problem, sequence-dependent setup cost, lexicographic method

References

- [1] Gupta, D., & Magnusson, T. (2005). The capacitated lot-sizing and scheduling problem with sequencedependent setup costs and setup times. Computers & Operations Research, 32(4), 727-747.
- [2] Marler, R. T., & Arora, J. S. (2004). Survey of multi-objective optimization methods for engineering. Structural and multidisciplinary optimization, 26(6), 369-395.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>burcu.kubur@deu.edu.tr</u>
Order Selection and Scheduling Decisions in Make-to-order Manufacturing Environments

Burcu Kubur Özbel[⊠], Adil Baykasoğlu

Dokuz Eylül University Industrial Engineering Department, İzmir, Türkiye

Abstract

In this study, we examine simultaneous order selection and scheduling decisions in make-to-order (MTO) manufacturing environments. In the traditional production scheduling models, it is often assumed that all jobs/orders must be processed through the production systems without rejection. However, in MTO environment, order acceptance and scheduling are often simultaneously considered [1]. In this environment, some orders should be rejected if they cannot be managed effectively and delivered timely due to the limited capacities or resources. On the other hand, accepted orders should be scheduled effectively for maximizing revenue. Because, customer dissatisfaction will increase in parallel with tardiness from their due date. In this study, orders are defined by their release dates, processing times, sequence dependent setup times, due dates and selling prices in a single machine environment. In this study, selling prices and due dates which are usually considered as a parameters in literature are considered as decision variables. We developed a multi-objective mathematical model to select a set of potential customer orders to maximize the revenue and minimize the due date. In order to solve the multi-objective mixed-integer linear programming model, ε -constraint method is used [2]. We generated test instances and computational tests in order to indicate that the proposed models are both computationally efficient and effective.

Keywords: Order acceptance, sequence dependent setup times, single machine scheduling

References

- [1] Chen, C. S., Mestry, S., Damodaran, P., & Wang, C. (2009). The capacity planning problem in make-toorder enterprises. Mathematical and computer modelling, 50(9-10), 1461-1473.
- [2] Mavrotas, G. (2009). Effective implementation of the ε-constraint method in multi-objective mathematical programming problems. Applied mathematics and computation, 213(2), 455-465.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>burcu.kubur@deu.edu.tr</u>

A Novel Minimal Placement Model with Tensors in Electronic Board Design

Özgür Tıraşçı, Göktürk Poyrazoğlu[⊠]

Özyeğin University, Electrical & Electronics Engineering Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

In recent years, electronics have begun to enter our lives as wearable electronic products. Wearable electronic products should be designed as small as possible in terms of ease of use. In order to develop wearable electronic products, either the PCB (Printed Circuit Board) area should be minimized or System-in-Packet (SiP) must be used. In fact, this electronic component placement problem is similar to Chen's pallet packing problem. The problem is formulated as a mixed binary linear programming problem[1]. In addition, there are genetic algorithm approaches to use for this problem[2][3].

In this study, we propose an optimization approach to minimize printed circuit board area by reformulating electronic component placement problem by utilizing the advanced capabilities of tensors. Our goal in using tensor is to minimize both the area of the PCB and the needs of the modern electronic system (SiP design) as pointed out by Berger[4].

In our model we defined the electronic components as combination of squares. Then we defined the constraints set so that the integrity of electronic components consisting of squares do not losing and when the tensor layers combine, the electronic components do not overlap with each other. Thus, we check that all components are correctly placed on the PCB. Also we develop a novel technique to minimally utilize the row and columns in the tensor by a commitment approach. As a result, we observe that the developed optimization model using tensors is computationally easier to solve and more flexible to improve for other engineering problems than the classical 2D placement approaches in the literature. We also demonstrate that the proposed approach could be useful for multi-layer electronic circuit designs in the future.

Keywords: Weighted-sum approach, Printed circuit board, Tensors, Wearable electronic device, Multilayer electronic circuit design.

References

- [1] Chen, C.S., Sarin, S. and Ram, B. (1991). The pallet packing for un-uniform box sizes, International Journal of Production Research, 29(10), pp. 1963-1968
- [2] Khoo, L. P., & Ng, T. K. (1998). A genetic algorithm-based planning system for PCB component placement. International Journal of Production Economics, 54, 321–332.
- [3] Ismail, S.F., Yusof, R., Khalid, M., (2012). Optimization of Electronics Component Placement Design On PCB Using Self Organizing Genetic Algorithm (SOGA). Intel Manuf, 23, 883-895.
- [4] M. Berger, M. Schröder, K.-H. Küfer. (2008) A constraint programming approach for the two-dimensional rectangular packing problem with orthogonal orientations. Berichte des Fraunhofer ITWM, Nr. 147

Corresponding Author Email: <u>gokturk.poyrazoglu@ozyegin.edu.tr</u>

Scheduling Optimization of Large Scale Price Maker Energy Storage Systems

İlyas Göğebakan[⊠], Kerem Arayıcı, Hakan Çetin, Göktürk Poyrazoğlu

Ozyegin University, Electrical and Electronics Engineering Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Energy storage systems have received attention in last decade due to providing several benefits to the system [1]. The most important one is the energy arbitrage which allows the electricity to be decoupled from the generation. The energy arbitrage action enables the large scale ESS having an effect on the electricity price by changing the net power demand (price maker), while the small scale ESSs are considered as price takers in the literature [2-4]. This paper includes a price maker model and 24-hour period is studied for the optimal scheduling. First, the scheduling optimization is executed to maximize the operation cost reduction and the maximum provided power of energy storage systems (ESS) is calculated based on the electricity demand of Turkey in 2018. However, the scheduling is optimized for the maximum cost reduction, the revenue for the storage-owner is not profitable in this case. After that point, the provided power by ESSs is calculated by maximizing the revenue for the storage owner. The revenue maximization problem can be modeled as a convex optimization problem and solved by CPLEX optimization tool as shown in [5]. In calculations, the optimized revenue for the unconstrained case does not excess the cost reduction, which indicates the feasibility of revenue maximization approach. Then, the various energy and power constraints in the current market are included to model. The results show that the provided power of ESSs with the current available technology reduces the prices at high demand levels and increases the prices at low demand levels. This balancing behavior of ESSs provide an operation cost reduction and also a revenue for the storage owner. In general, this paper shows that return of investment for the storage-owner is covered in 20-30 years for different constrained cases of ESSs.

Keywords: Energy Storage Systems, Price Maker, Scheduling Optimization

References

- [1] Eyer, J., & Corey, G. (2010). Energy storage for the electricity grid: Benefits and market potential assessment guide. Sandia National Laboratories, 20(10), 5.
- [2] Drury, E., Denholm, P., & Sioshansi, R. (2011). The value of compressed air energy storage in energy and reserve markets. Energy, 36(8), 4959-4973.
- [3] Garcia-Gonzalez, J., de la Muela, R. M. R., Santos, L. M., & Gonzalez, A. M. (2008). Stochastic joint optimization of wind generation and pumped-storage units in an electricity market. IEEE Transactions on Power Systems, 23(2), 460-468.
- [4] Taylor, J. A., Callaway, D. S., & Poolla, K. (2013). Competitive energy storage in the presence of renewables. IEEE Transactions on Power Systems, 28(2), 985-996.
- [5] Deboever, J., & Grijalva, S. (2016, February). Optimal scheduling of large-scale price-maker energy storage. In Power and Energy Conference at Illinois (PECI), 2016 IEEE (pp. 1-6). IEEE.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ilyas.gogebakan@ozu.edu.tr</u>

Vehicle Routing Problems with Simultaneous Pickup and Delivery: Review and Research Perspectives

İlknur Tükenmez^{1⊠}, Çağrı Koç², Gilbert Laporte³

 ¹Eskişehir Osmangazi University, Department of Industrial Engineering, Eskişehir, Turkey
 ² Social Sciences University of Ankara, Department of Business Administration, Ankara, Turkey
 ³ CIRRELT, Canada Research Chair in Distribution Management and HEC Montréal, Montréal, Canada

Abstract

The classic vehicle routing problem (VRP) aims to construct routes in order to serve a set of customers for a fleet of homogeneous vehicles. Each route starts and ends at the depot, and each customer is visited once by one vehicle, and several side constraints are satisfied. Many variants and extensions of the VRP have been intensively studied in the last 60 years [3, 7]. One of them is VRP simultaneous pickup and delivery (VRPSPD) where goods have to be transported from different origins to different destinations. Each customer has both a delivery and a pickup demand to be satisfied simultaneously. The VRPSPD is also known as the multiple vehicle Hamiltonian one-to-many-to-one pickup and delivery problem with combined demands. The VRPSPD introduced by Min [4] inspired by the problem of pickup and delivery of books in a library. Berbeglia et al. [2] and Parragh et al. [5, 6] reviewed the pickup and delivery problems until 2007 and 2008. The book chapter of Battarra et al. [1] briefly reviewed several papers on the VRPSPD until 2014 without providing comparisons of computational performance. This study aims to comprehensively review the existing work on the VRPSPD, and its variants and extensions with an emphasis on the recent literature. It presents a detailed review on models, exact and heuristic algorithms, variants, industrial applications and case studies, and contains several synthetic tables. This study also compared state-of-the-art metaheuristics which play crucial roles to solve VRPSPD and its variants. The paper also proposes a number of promising research directions.

Keywords Vehicle routing; simultaneous pickup and delivery; survey; review

References

- [1] Battarra, M., Cordeau, J. F. & Iori, M., 2014. Pickup-and-delivery problems for goods transportation. In: Toth, P. & Vigo, D. (Eds.), Vehicle Routing: Problems, Methods, and Applications. In: MOS-SIAM Series on Optimization, pp. 161-191. Philadelphia.
- [2] Berbeglia, G., Cordeau, J.-F., Gribkovskaia, I. & Laporte, G., 2007. Static pickup and delivery problems: A classification scheme and survey. TOP An Official Journal of the Spanish Society of Statistics and Operations Research 15, 1–31.
- [3] Laporte, G. 2009. Fifty years of vehicle routing. Transportation Science 43, 408–416.
- [4] Min, H., 1989. The multiple vehicle routing problem with simultaneous delivery and pick-up points. Transportation Research Part A 23, 377–386.
- [5] Parragh, S.N., Doerner, K.F. & Hartl, R.F., 2008a. A survey on pickup and delivery problems. Part I: Transportation between customers and depot. Journal für Betriebswirtschaft. 58, 21–51.
- [6] Parragh, S.N. Doerner, K.F. & Hartl, R.F., 2008b. A survey on pickup and delivery problems. Part II: Transportation between pickup and delivery locations. Journal für Betriebswirtschaft. 58, 81–117.
- [7] Toth, P. & Vigo, D., eds. 2014. Vehicle Routing: Problems, Methods, and Applications. MOS-SIAM Series on Optimization, Philadelphia.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>tukenmezilknur1@gmail.com</u>

Simulated Annealing for Vehicle Routing Problem with Alternative Links from the Triple Bottom Line Perspective

İlknur Tükenmez^{*I*⊠}, Onur Kaya²

¹ Eskişehir Osmangazi University, Industrial Engineering Department, Eskişehir, Turkey ² Anadolu University, Industrial Engineering Department, Eskişehir, Turkey

Abstract

Recent years, global pollution effects can be seen every part of life, and attention about this increases. Fuel consumption is the part of global warming. Vehicle Routing Problem (VRP) has different kinds, and Green VRP (GVRP) interested in minimizing fual consumption and releasing harmful gases. Barth et. al. [1] composes fuel consumption equation. Erdoğan et. al. [2] also study about G-VRP and solution techniques. In this study, we consider vehicle routing problems on networks with alternative direct links between nodes, and we analyze financial, environmental and social objectives. We consider minimizing the cost of fuel, cost of drivers and cost of vehicles as the financial objective for the company, minimizing the CO2 emissions and gas usage as the environmental objective, and adjusting the drivers' working hours and balancing route times as the social objectives. Most of the vehicle routing problems assume a single link between nodes, but in real life, there might be more than one alternative direct link between nodes, and these links may have differences in terms of their lenghts and durations. We provide a multi objective mixed integer linear mathematical model with these considerations, and aim to determine the optimal routes and alternative links that should be used on each route, in addition to the speed choices on each link. VRP is NP-Hard problem and to solveproblem, we need heuristic methods. Franceschetti et. al. [3] used ALNS heuristic. Koç et. al. [4] Branch-Cut algorithm and SA used together. We develop a simulated annealing heuristic in order to solve this problem for small, medium and large sized instances. Eight neighborhood search procedures are used to increase the effectiveness of the heuristic method. We analyze the performance of our heuristic by comparing the solutions with the solutions obtained through commercial solvers.

Keywords: Vehicle Routing, Alternative Links Between Nodes, Simulated Annealing, Heuristic

References

- [1] Barth, M., Younglove, T., Scora, G., 2005, Development of a Heavy-Duty Diesel Modal Emissions and Fuel Consumption Model: <u>http://escholarship.org/uc/item/67f0v3zf</u>
- [2] Erdoğan, S., Miller-Hooks, E., 2012, A Green Vehicle Routing Problem. Transportation Research, Part E, 48, 100-114
- [3] Franceschetti, A., Demir, E., Honhon, D., Woensel, T., V., Laporte G., Stobbe, M., 2017 A metaheuristic for the time-dependent pollution-routing problem: European Journal Of Operational Research 259 972-991

[4] Koç, Ç., Karaoglan, I., 2016, The green vehicle routing problem: A heuristic based exact solution approach: Applied Soft Computing 39 154-164

Corresponding Author Email: <u>tukenmezilknur1@gmail.com</u>

A New Auxiliary Function Approach for Inequality Constrained Global Optimization Problems

Nurullah Yilmaz, Ahmet Sahiner $^{\boxtimes}$

Suleyman Demirel University, Mathematics Department, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we deal with the nonlinear constrained global optimization problems. First, we introduce a new smooth exact penalty function for constrained optimization problems. We combine the exact penalty function with the auxiliary function in regard to constrained global optimization. We present a new auxiliary function approach and the adapted algorithm for solving nonlinear inequality constrained global optimization problems. Finally, we illustrate the efficiency of the algorithm on some numerical examples.

Keywords: Constrained optimization, penalty function, smoothing approach.

References

- [1] Rao, S. S. (2009). Engineering Optimization 4th ed. John Wiley & Sons, New Jersey.
- [2] Sun, W. & Yuan Y. X. (2006) Optimization Theory and Methods: Nonlinear Programming. Springer, New York.
- [3] Pinar, M.C. & Zenios, S. (1994)On smoothing exact penalty functions for convex constrained optimization. SIAM Journal on Optimization, 4, 468-511.
- [4] Lian, S.J. (2012). Smoothing approximation to 1_1 exact penalty for inequality constrained optimization. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 219, 3113-3121.
- [5] Sahiner, A., Kapusuz, G. & Yilmaz, N. (2016) A new smoothing approach to exact penalty functions for inequality constrained optimization problems, Numerical Algebra Control and Optimimization, 6(2), 161-173.
- [6] Sahiner, A., Yilmaz, N. & Kapusuz, G. (2017). A descent global optimization method based on smoothing techniques via Bezier curves. Carpathian Journal of Mathematics, 33(3), 373-380.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ahmetnur32@gmail.com; ahmetsahiner@sdu.edu.tr</u>

Numerical Solutions of Gilson Pickering Equation by the Collocation Finite Element Method

Alaattin Esen¹, Berat Karaagac², Nuri Murat Yagmurlu¹, Yusuf Ucar¹

¹ Inonu University, Mathematics Department, Malatya, Turkey ² Adıyaman University, Mathematics Education Department, Adıyaman, Turkey

Abstract

This present study is going to provide a new numerical approach to Gilson pickering equation by combining collocation method, finite element method and quintic B-spline basis functions. During the process, first of all, the approximate solution of the problem expressed as a linear combination of B-spline basis functions and time dependent parameters. Then by using the main idea of collocation method which is approximating a solution to satisfy the equation at certain selected mesh points numerical scheme is constructed for the mentioned problem. With the help of a programming environment, numerical results have been obtained iteratively. To show the validity of the present method the error norms L_2 and L_{∞} have been calculated and numerical simulations of approximate solutions have been presented. The results of this study indicate that finite element collocation method is an effective and coherent one for obtaining the numerical results of various partial differential equations.

Keywords: Finite element method, collocation, quintic B-spline basis, Gilson pickering equation.

References

- [1] Zabihi, F. & Saffarian, M. (2018). A not-a-knot meshless method with radial basis functions for numerical solutions of Gilson–Pickering equation. *Engineering with Computers*, *34*(1), 37-44.
- [2] Zabihi, F. &Saffarian M. (2015, August). A Meshless Method Using the Radial Basis Functions for Numerical Solution of the Gilson-Pickering Equation. *The 46 th Annual Iranian Mathematics Conference* (p. 437).
- [3] Irshad A. & Tauseef Mohyud-Din S. (2012). Tanh-Coth Method for Nonlinear Differential Equations. Studies in Nonlinear Sciences 3 (1): 24-48,
- [4] Saka, B., Dağ, İ., & Irk, D. (2008). Quintic B-spline collocation method for numerical solution of the RLW equation. *The ANZIAM Journal*, 49(3), 389-410.
- [5] Mittal, R. C., & Arora, G. (2010). Quintic B-spline collocation method for numerical solution of the Kuramoto–Sivashinsky equation. *Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation*, 15(10), 2798-2808.
- [6] Prenter P. M., (1975). Splines and Variational Methods.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>bkaraagac@adiyaman.edu.tr</u>

New Extension Sub-Equation Method for Fractional Order Boussinesq-like Equations

Berat Karaagac[⊠]

Adıyaman University, Mathematics Education Department, Adıyaman, Turkey

Abstract

The present work proposes seeking new exact solutions for the variety of Boussinesq-like equations which play a vital role in many physical phenomena such as acoustic waves, vibrations in a nonlinear string, fluid mechanics The fractional transform is simple but effective way to convert fractional partial differential equations into integer order ordinary differential equations. Sub-equation method benefits using advantage of all kinds of solutions of chosen special nonlinear ordinary differential equation called as sub-equation. Sum up to, considered method allows to obtain trig, hyperbolic and rational solutions of the Boussinesq-like equations with the availability of symbolic computation. The method is practically well suited and useful tool for obtaining different kind of exact solutions of integer or fractional order partial differential equations.

Keywords: New Extension Sub-Equation Method, Conformable, exact solutions

References

- [1] Neirameh, A. (2017). New Extension for Sub Equation Method and its Application to the Time-fractional Burgers Equation by using of Fractional Derivative. *TEMA (São Carlos)*, *18*(2), 225-232.
- [2] Mohyud-Din, S. T., Nawaz, T., Azhar, E., & Akbar, M. A. (2017). Fractional sub-equation method to space-time fractional Calogero-Degasperis and potential Kadomtsev-Petviashvili equations. *Journal of Taibah University for Science*, 11(2), 258-263.
- [3] Kadkhoda, N., & Jafari, H. (2017). Application of fractional sub-equation method to the space-time fractional differential equations. *Int. J. Adv. Appl. Math. Mech*, *4*, 1-6.
- [4] Darvishi, M. T., Najafi, M., & Wazwaz, A. M. (2017). Soliton solutions for Boussinesq-like equations with spatio-temporal dispersion. *Ocean Engineering*, *130*, 228-240.
- [5] Ellahi, R., Mohyud-Din, S. T., & Khan, U. (2018). Exact traveling wave solutions of fractional order Boussinesq-like equations by applying Exp-function method. *Results in Physics*, *8*, 114-120.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>bkaraagac@adiyaman.edu.tr</u>

The Extended Modified Exp- $(-\Omega(\xi))$ Method and Its Application to Some Fractional Differential Equations

Berat Karaagac^{1⊠}, Nuri Murat Yagmurlu², Selcuk Kutluay², Alaattin Esen²

¹ Adıyaman University, Mathematics Education Department, Adıyaman, Turkey ² Inonu University, Mathematics Department, Malatya, Turkey

Abstract

The aim of this work is to get new exact solutions of some fractional coupled differential equations by implementation of extended modified exp- $(-\Omega(\xi))$ method which is a new method proposed by Khater

et al. For this purpose, we are going to consider Conformable fractional Driefld –Sokolov-Wilson equation and Conformable Boussinesq Burgers equation which are two coupled equations seen frequently in a number of scientific models such as fluid mechanics, optical fiber and geochemistry. During the process, the new exact solutions of the fractional equations are obtained by using the properties of conformable derivative and application of the mentioned method. Computer simulations of the newly obtained solutions are also presented. Our results show that extended modified exp- $(-\Omega(\xi))$ method is an effective and powerful tool for obtaining exact solutions and can also be applied to various types of fractional order differential equations.

Keywords: extended modified exp- $(-\Omega(\xi))$ method, Driefld –sokolov-Wilson equation, Boussinesq Burgers equation, Conformable derivative, Exact solution.

References

- [1] Khater M. M. A., Seadawy A. R., Lu D. (2017). Elliptic and solitary wave solutions for Bogoyavlenskii equations system, couple Boiti-Leon-Pempinelli equations system and Time-fractional Cahn-Allen equation:Results in Physics, 7,2325–2333.
- [2] Bibi S., Mohyud-Din S. T., Khan U., Ahmed N. (2017). Khater method for nonlinear Sharma Tasso-Olever (STO) equation of fractional order: Results in Physics, 7, 4440–4450.
- [3] Zeynep Fidan Koçak and Gülnur Yel (2017). Trigonometric Function Solutions of Fractional Drinfeld's Sokolov -Wilson System, ITM Web of Conferences 13, 01006
- [4] Mostafa M.A. Khater, Dipankar Kumar (2017). New exact solutions for the time fractional coupled Boussinesq–Burger equation and approximate long water wave equation in shallow water, Journal of Ocean Engineering and Science 2 223–228

Corresponding Author Email: <u>bkaraagac@adiyaman.edu.tr</u>

Hypothesis Testing in One-way ANOVA based on Fiducial Approach when the Error Terms have Weibull Distribution and Heterogeneous Variances

Gamze Güven¹[∞], Özge Gürer², Hatice Şamkar¹, Birdal Şenoğlu²

¹ Eskisehir Osmangazi University, Department of Statistics, Eskisehir, Turkey ² Ankara University, Department of Statistics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we propose a new test statistic based on fiducial approach for testing the treatment effects in one-way analysis of variance (ANOVA), see Fisher [1] for the idea of fiducial inference. Unlike the usual ANOVA assumptions, we assume that distribution of the error terms is Weibull which is one of the well-known and widely used skew distribution in literature. We also assume that the variances of the error terms are heterogeneous in each treatment.

We use Tiku's modified maximum likelihood (MML) methodology to obtain the estimators of the model parameters, see Tiku [2]. Different than the maximum likelihood (ML) estimators, MML estimators have closed forms therefore we don't need any iterative method to solve the likelihood equations. They are also asymptotically equivalent to the ML estimators.

We compare our results with the results of Li et al. [3] which is based on normally distributed error terms via Monte Carlo simulation study. Simulation results show that proposed test is more powerful than the corresponding test based on the least squares (LS) estimators. An example is analyzed at the end of the study for illustrative purposes.

Keywords: Fiducial approach, Weibull distribution, modified likelihood, Monte Carlo simulation, Taylor series

References

- [1] Fisher, R. A. (1935). The fiducial argument in statistical inference. Annals of Human Genetics, 6(4), 391-398.
- [2] Tiku, M. L. (1967). Estimating the mean and standard deviation from a censored normal sample. Biometrika, 54(1-2), 155-165.
- [3] Li, X., Wang, J., & Liang, H. (2011). Comparison of several means: A fiducial based approach. Computational Statistics & Data Analysis, 55(5), 1993-2002.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>gamzeguven@ogu.edu.tr</u>

Smoothing Technique with Auxiliary Function Thru Bezier Curves for Global Optimization

Ahmet Şahiner[™], Idris A. Masoud Abdulhamid, Nurullah Yilmaz

Suleyman Demirel University, Mathematics Department, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, we deal with the minimization of non-smooth and non-Lipschitz functions. We first propose a new smoothing approach. Second, we reformulate given a problem as one-dimensional equation, then a new auxiliary function method has been designed to solve the reformulated global optimization problem. Finally, numerical experiments have been performed on test problems which have been taken from the literature for showing the overall performance of the new method.

Keywords: Global optimization, Bezier curves, Lipschitz objective function, auxiliary function.

References

- [1] Yuan, G. (2010). A Line Search Algorithm for Unconstrained Optimization. Journal of Software Engineering and Applications. 3(5), 503-509
- [2] Chong, E., & Zak, S. (2011). An Introduction to Optimization 2nd ed. John Wiley and Sons, New York.
- [3] Zhang , Y. Zhang, L. & Xu Y. (2009). New filled functions for nonsmooth global optimization. Applied Mathematical Modelling. 33(7), 3114-3129.
- [4] Wu. Z., Lee, H., Zhang, L. & Yang X. (2005). A Novel Filled Function Method and Quasi-Filled Function Method for Global Optimization. Computational Optimization and Applications, 34(2), 249-272.
- [5] Xu, Y., Zhang, Y., Wang, S. (2015). A modified tunneling function method for non-smooth global optimization and its application in the artificial neural network. Applied Mathematical Modelling. 39(21), 6438-6450.
- [6] Choi, J., Curry, R. & Elkaim G. H. (2009). Smooth path generation based on Bezier curves for autonomous vehicles. Proceedings of the World Congress on Engineering and Computer Science 2.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ahmetnur32@gmail.com; ahmetsahiner@sdu.edu.tr</u>

Optimal Storage Units' Sizing and Placements within the Turkish Power Transmission Grid

Ahmad El Sayed, Gokturk Poyrazoglu $^{\bowtie}$

Ozyegin University, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

The energy demand in Turkey forms a peak during the day time due to the high industrial and commercial usage and decreases during the night when these activities are no longer operational. Energy storage is to store energy during the low demand period and enables its consumption within the peak demand period. It allows power generation optimization within multiple periods of time [1]. Moreover, it decreases the dependency on the conventional energy generation during peak load period [2].

This paper looks at the energy storage problem as a bi-level optimization problem; in which the first stage runs a Security Constraints Unit Commitment (SCUC) model including the hourly energy demand within 24 hours. The results include the maximum power and the maximum energy that can be deployed as an energy storage system for the Turkish power grid. The second stage of the problem, distributes the maximum power and the maximum energy to the buses in the grid by running the optimal power flow (OPF) problem with the physical constraints of the network included. Depending on the optimization algorithm used in this study, an energy policy is created to decide the optimal sizes and the optimal placement of the storage units required at each bus.

Keywords: Energy storage, unit commitment, optimal power flow, energy storage policy.

References

- [1] Chandy,K.M., Low,H.S., Topcu,U.& Xu,H. (2010). A Simple Optimal Power Flow Model with Energy Storage. 49th IEEE Conference on Decision and Control.
- [2] Nazari,M.E., Ardehali,M.M. & Jafari,S. (2010). Pumped-storage unit commitment with considerations for energy demand, economics, and environmental constraints. Energy, 32, 4092-4101.
- [3] Shahidehpour, M., Yamin, H. & Li, Z. (2002). Market Operations in Electric Power Systems. John Wiley and Sons
- [4] Bose, S., Gayme, F.D., Topcu, U., & Chandy, K.M. (2012). Optimal Placement of Energy Storage in the Grid. 51st IEEE Conference on Decision and Control.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>gokturk.poyrazoglu@ozyegin.edu.tr</u>

Numerical Investigation of Heat Transfer in the Thermal Energy Storage Unit

Meltem Koşan[⊠], Mustafa Aktaş

Gazi University, Energy Systems Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Thermal energy storage (TES) has a great importance for energy efficiency gains in storing solar energy or waste heat in industrial processes. Thermal energy can be stored in two basic techniques; sensible energy and latent heat energy [1]. Due to its higher energy storage density at relatively constant transition temperature using phase change materials (PCMs), latent heat energy storage is more preferred in low and medium temperature applications. The fact that PCMs have a low thermal conductivity coefficient causes long term storage of heat from the heat transfer fluid (HTF) [2,3]. The usage of fins in the heat exchanger in the TES unit provides a quick storage of the thermal energy by significantly shortening the melting time of the PCM [4].

In this study, thermal behavior in energy storage unit using PCMs and the effect of the use of a fin in a heat exchanger on TES is numerically investigated. Two-dimensional numerical analysis was carried out using the ANSYS Fluent 16.2 commercial software using the computational fluid dynamics (CFD) approach which was developed based on the enthalpy-porosity method to simulate the unsteady melting process including temperature and liquid fraction variations. It was chosen Paraffin RT50 (melting point between 318 - 324 K) as PCM and water as HTF. The numerical analysis results indicated that PCM completely stored the heat the heat from the heat exchanger in 300 minutes. When 12 fins were used in the heat exchanger, PCM stored the heat in 60 minutes. The use of fin has positively influenced the heat transfer and the melting time in TES unit. Besides, the results can contribute to the future thermal energy storage design and practical applications.

Keywords: Thermal energy storage, phase change material, numerical analysis

References

- [1] Navarro, L., Gracia, A., Colclough, S., Browne, M., McCormack, S.J., Griffiths, P. & Cabeza, L.F. (2016). Thermal energy storage in building integrated thermal systems: A review. Part 1. Active storage systems. Renewable Energy, 88, 526-547.
- [2] Iten, M. & Liu, S. (2014). A work procedure of utilising PCMs as thermal storage systems based on air-TES systems. Energy Conversion and Management, 77, 608-627.
- [3] Hosseini, M.J., Ranjbar, A.A., Sedighi, K. & Rahimi, M. (2012). A combined experimental and computational study on the melting behavior of a medium temperature phase change storage material inside shell and tube heat exchanger. International Communications in Heat and Mass Transfer, 39, 1416-1424.
- [4] Medrano, M., Yilmaz, M.O., Nogués, M., Martorell, I., Roca, J. & Cabeza, L.F. (2009). Experimental evaluation of commercial heat exchangers for use as PCM thermal storage systems. Applied Energy, 86, 2047-2055.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>mltmkosan@gmail.com</u>

A New Design of Solar-Assisted Heat Pump with Energy Storage for Heating Greenhouses

Meltem Koşan[⊠], Mustafa Aktaş

Gazi University, Energy Systems Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Heat pumps are energy efficient devices that can be used for both heating and cooling, which can supply more heat energy from the work input they receive. In the direct solar-assisted heat pump systems, the energy requires for the evaporator is met by the sun [1,2]. When this system is supported by the energy storage unit, it operates continuous and stable by providing maximum energy efficiency and reliable energy source. Solar-assisted heat pump with the energy storage system is as an alternative for reducing energy use and costs for greenhouse heating, particularly if off-peak electricity is used [3].

In this study, a new generation energy storage solar-assisted heat pump is designed for the heating of greenhouses. When solar radiation is absent, it is aimed at providing energy from the storage unit for heating the greenhouses. For this new system, R410a is chosen refrigerant, which is a commercially available material. Paraffin is selected as energy storage materials, too. The main purpose of this work is to perform the energy (thermodynamics) analyze of the solar-assisted heat pump designed for the heating of greenhouses and to determine the performance coefficient (COP) of this new designed system. The thermal performance results predicted from this new system indicate that system COP ranging from 3 to 5.5 for winter time. We conclude that energy storage unit can improve a solar assisted heat pump systems energy efficiency and be for an effective method heating greenhouse. The evaluations resulting from this study may assist for the further studies and their associated technologies.

Keywords: Heat pump, solar energy, heating greenhouses, energy storage

References

- Şefik, S., Aktaş, M., Doğan, H., Koçak, S. (2013). Mushroom drying with solar assisted heat pump system. Energy Conversion and Management, 72, 171-178.
- [2] Buker, M.S., Rıffat, S.B. (2016). Solar assisted heat pump systems for low temperature water heating applications: A systematic review. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 55, 399-412.
- [3] Bouadila, S., Kooli, S., Skouri, S., Lazaar, M., Farhat, A. (2014). Improvement of the greenhouse climate using a solar air heater with latent storage energy. Energy, 64, 663-672.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>mltmkosan@gmail.com</u>

A New Auxiliary Function Method for Unconstrained Global Optimization

Ahmet Sahiner $^{\boxtimes}$, Shehab A. Ibrahem, Nurullah Yilmaz

Suleyman Demirel University, Department of Mathematics, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, a new auxiliary function method is proposed for solving unconstrained global optimization problems. First, a new definition of the auxiliary function is given under reasonable assumptions. The proposed auxiliary function is continuously differentiable and contains two parameters. Then a new algorithm is presented depending on the theoretical and numerical properties of the proposed auxiliary function. Finally, the execution of the algorithm on different test problems is stated with acceptable numerical results.

Keywords: Auxiliary function method, unconstrained global optimization, global minimizer

References

- [1] Lin, H., Wang, Y., & Fan, L. (2011). A filled function method with one parameter for unconstrained global optimization. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 218(7), 3776-3785.
- [2] Ge, R. P., & Qin, Y. F. (1987). A class of filled functions for finding global minimizers of a function of several variables. Journal of Optimization Theory and Applications, 54(2), 241-252.
- [3] Wei, F., Wang, Y., & Lin, H. (2014). A new filled function method with two parameters for global optimization. Journal of Optimization Theory and Applications, 163(2), 510-527.
- [4] Yuan, L. Y., Wan, Z. P., Tang, Q. H., & Zheng, Y. (2016). A class of parameter-free filled functions for box-constrained system of nonlinear equations. Acta Mathematicae Applicatae Sinica, English Series, 32(2), 355-364.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ahmetnur32@gmail.com</u>, <u>ahmetsahiner@sdu.edu.tr</u>

Solving Discrete Time Infinite Horizon Optimal Control Problems by Weak Pontryagin's Principle: Method and Applications

Ayşegül Yıldız Ulus⊠

Galatasaray University, Department of Mathematics, İstanbul, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, we aim to apply the approach of weak Pontryagin's principle to different types of discrete time infinite horizon optimal control problems. The idea of this approach is to transform the optimal control problem to a dynamical system which is governed by a difference inequation. This result, presented first in [1] then studied in [2] and [3], establishes weak Pontryagin's principles as necessary and sufficient conditions of optimality.

This paper provides some examples of optimal control problems such as optimal growth problems, optimal accumulation problems and some dynamic game theoretical problems encountered in economics and operational research. In particular, we consider some variations of the infinite horizon discrete time optimal growth problem given in [4] defined by scalar state and control variables. For each example we demonstrate the advantage of the approach of weak Pontryagin's principle.

Keywords: Optimal control, weak Pontryagin's principle, difference inequation.

References

- [1] Blot, J., & Hayek, N. (2008). Infinite horizon discrete time control problems for bounded processes. Advances in Difference Equations, vol. 2008, Article ID 654267, 14 pages.
- [2] Blot, J., & Hayek, N. (2014). Infinite-horizon optimal control in the discrete-time framework. Springer Briefs in Optimization, Springer, New York.
- [3] Blot, J., Hayek, N., Pekergin, F. & Pekergin N. (2015). Pontryagin principles for bounded discrete-time processes. Optimization, 64(3), 505-520.
- [4] Ulus, A.Y. (2018). On discrete time infinite horizon optimal growth problem. An International Journal of Optimization and Control: Theory and Applications, 8(1), 102-116.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>aulus@gsu.edu.tr</u>

Comparison of Classification Algorithms used in Intrusion Detection Systems

Muhammed Ali Koşan¹[∞], Mehmet Sevri², Hacer Karacan³

¹ Muş Alparslan University, Computer Engineering Department, Muş, Turkey
 ² Gazi University, Informatics Systems Department, Ankara, Turkey
 ³ Gazi University, Computer Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Intrusion Detection Systems (IDS) are used for the protection of sensitive information and networks in many different areas. Analyzing the knowledge that traffic generated in large networks is intruded by accessing requires complex operations. In addition, accuracy and performance in detecting intrusion is crucial to effectively and efficiently determine the actual attack. The most effective way to quickly accomplish such complex operations is to identify them via classification and learning algorithms and previously processed attack information.

KDD dataset, which is commonly used in studies on IDS, has been in use for many years. NSL-KDD dataset is presented as a revised version since some problems found in the KDD dataset. This dataset contains 41 parameters and a class tag. The class tag has a value of "normal" or "anomaly". It also contains classified data according to the attack type. These types of attacks are classified in 4 basic headings: Denial of Service Attack (DoS), Probing Attack (Probe), Remote to Local Attack (R2L) and User to Root Attack (U2R). Naïve Bayes [1-3], C4.5 [3], Random Forest [3] and Artificial Neural Networks [1] are used in the classification studies made with NSL-KDD dataset in general. The accuracy rates of the algorithms on the dataset are different. Therefore, feature selection algorithms are used to select the important parameters to give better results [2].

In this study, Repeated Incremental Pruning to Produce Error Reduction (RIPPER), Back Propagation Artificial Neural Networks (BP-ANN), Random Forest (RF), C4.5, Support Vector Machine (SVM), K-Nearest Neighbors (k-NN) algorithms are compared on the NSL-KDD data set. According to the obtained results, all algorithms except C4.5 and SVM showed high performance. Feature selection methods are used to increase the performance of C4.5 and SVM. Following the use of attribute selection methods, an increase in the accuracy rate of the classification has been observed according to the number of parameters and the change in the parameter type.

Keywords: Intrusion detection system, classification, feature selection

References

- Mubarek, A. M., & Adalı, E. (2017, October). Multilayer perceptron neural network technique for fraud detection. Proceeding of IEEE 2017 International Conference In Computer Science and Engineering (UBMK), 383-387.
- [2] Effendy, D. A., Kusrini, K., & Sudarmawan, S. (2017, November). Classification of intrusion detection system (IDS) based on computer network. Proceeding of IEEE 2nd International Conference In Information Technology, Information Systems and Electrical Engineering (ICITISEE), 90-94.
- [3] Gül, A., & Adalı, E. (2017, October). A feature selection algorithm for IDS. Proceeding of IEEE 2017 International Conference In Computer Science and Engineering (UBMK), 816-820.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ceo.muhammed@gmail.com</u>

Estimating the Parameters of Truncated Jones and Faddy's Skew t Distribution

Talha Arslan^{1⊠}, Birdal Senoglu²

¹ Van Yüzüncü Yıl University, Department of Econometrics, Van, Turkey ² Ankara University, Department of Statistics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Truncated data which do not include the observations beyond a boundary value are encountered in different fields of science including reliability, astronomy, environmental study, and so on. There are various studies about truncated distributions such as skewed multivariate distributions [1], skew-normal distribution [2, 3], skew-t distribution [4], etc.

In this study, we obtain the estimators of the parameters of truncated Jones and Faddy's skew t (JFST) distribution [5] via the modified maximum likelihood (MML) methodology proposed by Tiku[6]. JFST distribution is very flexible for modeling the data sets having the symmetric or skew distributions. It reduces to the well-known Student's t distribution when the shape parameters a and b are equal. The MML methodology is based on the idea of linearization of the likelihood equations using the first two terms of the Taylor series expansion. The MML estimators are asymptotically equivalent to the maximum likelihood (ML) estimators. Therefore, they are almost fully efficient in terms of minimum variance bounds [7].

Keywords: Modified likelihood, Truncation, Taylor series expansion, JFST distribution.

References

- [1] Arnold, B. C. & Beaver, R. J. (2002). Skewed multivariate models related the hidden truncation and/or selective reporting. Sociedad de Estadistica e Investigacion Operative Test, 11(1), 7–54.
- [2] Kim, HJ (2004). A Family of truncated skew-normal distributions. The Korean Communications in Statistics, 11(2), 265-274.
- [3] Flecher, C., Allard, D. and Naveau, P. (2010). Truncated skew-normal distributions: moments, estimation by weighted moments and application to climatic data. International Journal of Statistics, 68(3), 331-345.
- [4] Jamalizadeh, A., Pourmousa, R. And Balakrishnan, N. (2009). Truncated and limited skew-normal and skew-t distributions: Properties and an illustration. Communications in Statistics - Theory and Methods, 38, 2653-2668.
- [5] Jones, M. C. & Faddy, M. J. (2003). A skew extension of the t-distribution, with applications. J.R. Stat. Soc. Ser. B, 65, 159-174.
- [6] Tiku, M. L. (1967). Estimating the mean and standard deviation from censored normal sample. Biometrika, 54(1), 155-165.
- [7] Vaughan, D. C. (2002). The generalized secant hyperbolic distribution and its properties. Communications in Statistics-Theory and Methods, 31(2), 219-238.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>mstalhaarslan@gmail.com</u>

Secure Multiparty Computation and Blockchain-Smart Contract Based Election System

Mehmet Sevri^{1⊠}, M. Ali Koşan², Hacer Karacan³

¹ Gazi University, Informatics Systems Department, Ankara, Turkey
 ² Muş Alparslan University, Computer Engineering Department, Muş, Turkey
 ³ Gazi University, Computer Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Blockchain-based smart contracts are programmable contracts and secure protocols that are trackable and irreversible without intermediaries, based on cryptography that use blockchain infrastructure. Every programmable process, flow or contract can be made into a smart contract that automatically takes place without any intervention when the conditions are met [1]. Smart contracts using the blockchain infrastructure are validated once the conditions have been met, after reaching the number of sufficient validation counts that are hash functions cryptographically computed by the nodes in the network [2]. Secure Multiparty Computation (MPC) is a subfield of cryptography that allows multiple participants to contribute to the final result by computing with its own secret key (signature) and data and with an open function [3]. In an MPC, a given number of participants, p_1 , p_2 , ..., p_n , each have secret key and private data, respectively d_1 , d_2 , ..., d_n ; MPC compute the value of a public function on that private data: $f(d_1, d_2, ..., d_n)$ while keeping participants and their inputs secret [2]. One of the first applications of MPC is fairplay systems which use Yao-based protocols, consisting of XOR and AND gates, followed by Advanced Encryption Standard (AES) circuit based active safety MPC systems developed by Lindell and Pikas [3]. Parallel computing has been accelerated with GPU systems [4], and GPUs have begun to be used to calculate the hash for secure MPC and blockchain infrastructure.

In this study, a secure MPC and blockchain smart contract based election system is proposed. With the MPC, the data representing the voter's secret key (electronic signature) and the name of the voting candidate can be determined by placing a smart contract in a block on the network and counting the votes received by each candidate in the function in the MPC circuit after receiving sufficient number of approvals in blockchain. Thus, while the cost of selection is greatly reduced, election security and privacy will be ensured at the highest level. Since all transactions are cryptographically performed, a system can be established in which a fake voting, such as the use of repeated voting, is not possible since it can be follow up by anyone.

Keywords: secure multiparty computation, smart contract, election system, blockchain

References

- Christidis K. & Devetsikiotis M. (2016) Blockchains and Smart Contracts for the Internet of Things. IEEE Access, 4, 2292-2303.
- [2] Nilima S. K. & Vitthal S. P. (2016) Survey on Privacy Preservation for Multi-Keyword Search on Data Network. International Journal of Science and Research (IJSR), 5(1), 457 – 460.
- [3] Lindell Y. & Pinkas B. (2007) An Efficient Protocol for Secure Two-Party Computation in the Presence of Malicious Adversaries. In: Naor M. (eds) Advances in Cryptology - EUROCRYPT 2007. Lecture Notes in Computer Science, vol 4515. Springer.
- [4] Frederiksen T.K. & Nielsen J.B. (2013) Fast and Maliciously Secure Two-Party Computation Using the GPU. In: Jacobson M., Locasto M., Mohassel P., Safavi-Naini R. (eds) Applied Cryptography and Network Security. ACNS 2013. Lecture Notes in Computer Science, vol 7954. Springer.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>mehmetsevri@gazi.edu.tr</u>

Commercial Advertisements Scheduling Problem

Yihua Li¹[™], Lila Rasekh², Raf Jan³

¹ United Airlines, Continuous Improvement and Enterprise Optimization, Chicago, IL, USA ² GAP Inc., Strategic Management San Francisco, CA, USA ³ HEC-Montreal, Department of Logistics and Operations Management, Montreal, QC, Canada

Abstract

An important source of revenues for Channel 4, British TV Cooperation, comes from the campaign advertisement during commercial breaks. Campaigns are agreed between Channel 4 and its customers on the basis of CPT (Cost per thousand. This is the amount of money that a Channel 4's customers have to pay for 1000 impacts), customer's budget and targeted audience. The deal is then translated into some amount of TVR (TV attraction to measure the audience for a program or a commercial break) that Channel 4 must achieve for this campaign. This is operationally done by allocating spots of this campaign during commercial breaks. The main problem is then to determine for every campaign which breaks it should have spots in.

Based on pricing and value of each break of a program, the aim of Channel 4 is to have an automated system for doing allocation of spots to commercial breaks in the best way possible to maximize the value of audience attractions and limited customer budgets.

This campaign allocation problem (CAP) can be formulated as a mixed integer programming problem (MIP) which is NP-Completed hard. Due to the size of problem, which could have 3m integer variables and about the same number of constraints, we develop both MIP optimal and heuristic procedures to solve the problem. A number of tests on real datasets have been made. Comparing the solutions from CAMGEN, the current computer system in Channel 4, we conclude that ILOG CPLEX solution procedures can bring more than £10m revenue increasing per month to Channel 4 while respect all business constraints.

Keywords: Scheduling, TV Campaign Advertisement, Large-scale Integer Programming

References

- Araman, V.F., I. Popescu. 2009. Media Revenue Management with Audience Uncertainty: Balancing Upfront and Spot Market Sales. Manufacturing and Service Operations Management, published online before print Jun 12, 2009, DOI: doi: 10.1287/msom. 1090.0262.
- [2] Bollapragada, S., M.R. Bussieck, S. Mallik. 2004. Scheduling Commercial Videotapes in Broadcast Television. Operations Research, 52(5) 679–689.
- [3] Bollapragada, S., H. Cheng, M. Phillips, M. Garbiras, M. Scholes, T. Gibbs, M. Humphreville. 2002. NBC's Optimization Systems Increase Revenues and Productivity. Interfaces 32 (1) 47-60.
- [4] Bollapragada, S., M. Garbiras. 2004. Scheduling commercials on broadcast television. Operations Research, 52(3) 337–345.
- [5] Bollapragada, S., S. Mallik. 2008. Managing on-air inventory in broadcast television. IIE
- [6] Transactions 40(12) 1107–1123.
- Brusco, M.J., 2008. Scheduling advertising slots for television. Journal of the Operational Research Society, 59 (10) 1363-1372.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>yihua.li@united.com</u>

The Future Promise of Vehicle-to-Grid (V2G) Optimization - Optimal Scheduling Methods to Integrate Plug-in Electric Vehicles

Berk Güzelışık, Elife Begüm Bacaksız, Atalay Demirok, Göktürk Poyrazoğlu[⊠]

Ozyegin University, Electrical & Electronics Engineering Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

With the growing concern on global climate change, governments and industries have invested in environmentally friendly technologies, mostly encouraging the adoption of electric vehicles (EVs) since the transportation sector is responsible for 24% of greenhouse gas emission. [1] The next-generation EVs have drawn the interest of researchers in recent years, with the interaction between EVs and the power grid has spurred the emergence of a smart grid technology, denoted as vehicle-to grid-technology (V2G). [2]

V2G technology allows EV's battery to charge from and discharge to the grid by smart grid technologies to provide demand response services. The difference of V2G from a standard charging point is that energy flows both to and from the vehicle, turning it into a portable battery store. V2G can improve the power system's resiliency and reliability. All popular electrical vehicle models can completely compensate the energy cost and generate a positive net profit through the application of a scheduling optimization model. [3]

Based on the software called On-Base EV Infrastructure [4], a simulation model can be created, regulating the microgrid when daily events occur during a full day. [5] V2G system in the simulation model is controlling the charge of the batteries connected to it and uses the available power in the batteries to regulate the grid. By observing the data from cars and energy resources; various optimization techniques can be utilized efficiently to accomplish different V2G objectives while satisfying a set of constraints.

Theoretical analysis and simulation results with almost real-time data on the vehicles and their battery status indicate that through the scheme of dynamic pricing and charging scheduling for EVs, the charge stations can maximize their profit while EVs maximize their utilities, simultaneously optimizing the system total running cost and reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

Keywords: Electric vehicles, smart grid technology, Vehicle-to-grid

References

- [1] Yu, J.J., Li, V.O., & Lam, A.Y. (2013). Optimal V2G scheduling of electric vehicles and Unit Commitment using Chemical Reaction Optimization. 2013 IEEE Congress on Evolutionary Computation, 392-399.
- [2] Tan KM, Ramachandaramurthy VK, Yong JY, Padmanaban S, Mihet-Popa L, Blaabjerg F. (2017). Minimization of Load Variance in Power Grids—Investigation on Optimal Vehicle-to-Grid Scheduling. Energies, 10(11):1880.
- [3] Li, Z., Chowdhury, M., Bhavsar, P., He, Y. (2015). Optimizing the performance of vehicle-to-grid (V2G) enabled battery electric vehicles through a smart charge scheduling model. International Journal of Automotive Technology, Volume 16, Issue 5, pp 827–837.
- U.S. Army, "OB-EVI," 2015. [Online]. Available: http://www.transform.af.mil/Portals/18/documents/PEV/PEV-V2G_On-Base.pdf. [Accessed 31 03 2018].
- [5] C. Douris, "Electric Vehicle-To-Grid Services Can Feed, Stabilize Power Supply," Forbes, 18 December 2017. [Online]. Available: https://www.forbes.com/sites/constancedouris/2017/12/18/electric-vehicle-togrid-services-can-feed-stabilize-power-supply/#2a04839d63df. [Accessed 31 March 2018].

Corresponding Author Email: <u>gokturk.poyrazoglu@ozyegin.edu.tr</u>

A New Outlook: A Numerical Study on Rosenau-Burgers Equation via Galerkin Finite Element Method

Sibel Özer^{1⊠}, Berat Karaagac²

¹ Inonu University, Mathematics Department, Malatya, Turkey ² Adıyaman University, Mathematics Education Department, Adıyaman, Turkey

Abstract

The focus of this article is on obtaining numerical solutions of Rosenau -Burger's equation ,an important and well-known problem in mathematical physics, using Galerkin Finite element method. The method is based on firstly constructing weak form of the problem and setting up an approximate solution of the problem as a linear combination of time dependent shape parameters and basis functions. For the considered problem, the approximate solution has been formed using cubic B-spline basis functions. Then, with the help of finite element procedure, nonlinear partial differential equation (NPDE) is converted into a system of ordinary differential equation (ODE). Due to its high accuracy, applicability and memory requirement, fourth order Runge-Kutta method has been used to solve the system and thus numerical solutions have been obtained. The incorporation of the Galerkin method into Finite element formulization is allows better convergent results. As a result of article, these newly obtained results are presented in tables as well as graphics.

Keywords: Rosenau-Burgers equation, Galerkin, Finite Element Method, B-spline

References

- Liu, L., & Mei, M. (2002). A better asymptotic profile of Rosenau–Burgers equation. *Applied mathematics and computation*, 131(1), 147-170. Mercer, P.A., & Smith, G. (1993). Private Viewdata in the UK. 2nd ed. Longman, London.
- [2] Li, D., Wang, Z., Wu, Y., & Lu, Y. (2009, December). A finite difference simulation for Rosenau-Burgers equation. In *Information Engineering and Computer Science*, 2009. ICIECS 2009. International Conference on (pp. 1-4). IEEE.
- [3] Hu, B., Xu, Y., & Hu, J. (2008). Crank–Nicolson finite difference scheme for the Rosenau–Burgers equation. *Applied Mathematics and Computation*, 204(1), 311-316.
- [4] Hu, J., Hu, B., & Xu, Y. (2011). Average implicit linear difference scheme for generalized Rosenau– Burgers equation. *Applied Mathematics and Computation*, 217(19), 7557-7563.
- [5] Xue, G. Y., & Zhang, L. (2013). A new finite difference scheme for generalized Rosenau–Burgers equation. *Applied Mathematics and Computation*, 222, 490-496.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>sibel.ozer@inonu.edu.tr</u>

Numerical Study on Blood Flow Modelling in Arteries

Songül Kaya Merdan[⊠], İsmail Tahir Kökten

Middle East Technical University University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In order to prevent, diagnose and treat vascular disease, detailed knowledge of blood blow and the response of blood vessels is essential. The use of computer simulations can provide researchers extremely useful tool of the interpretation and analysis of the circulatory sysytem in both physiological and pathological situations. In this work, we present a 2D mathematical model to forecast for some cardivascular diseases such as stenosis and aneurysms geometry. We consider a blood flow based on Stokes and Navier Stokes equations (NSE). The finite element numerical solutions are obtained based on grad div stabilization. Numerical experiments will be presented in different geometries to verify almost all common practical knowledge.

Keywords: blood flowing, grad-div stabilization, finite element

References

- [1] A. Bozhok A., G. Formato G., C., Sadee, M. Milena, P. Iliev, J. Ukwizagria and J. Tiago. (2015) Patientspecific blood flow modelling, 28th ECMI Modelling Week.
- [2] J. DeFrutos, B. Garcilia-Archilla, V. John and J. Novo,. (2016) Grad-div stabilization for the evolutionary Oseen problem with inf-sup stable finite elements, j. Sci. Comput., 66, 991-1024
- [3] L. Formaggia L., A. Quarteroni and A. Veneziani. (2009) Cardiovascular Mathematics, Modeling and simulation of the circulatory system, Springer
- [4] C. Taylor, T. J. R. Hughes and C. Zarins. (1998) Finite element modeling of blood flow in arteries. J. Sci. Comput. 158,155-196

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>smerdan@metu.edu.tr</u>

Swarm Intelligence Enchanged by Oblique Section Planes for Solving Dirichlet Boundary Problems for ODEs

Korhan Günel[⊠], İclal Gör, Kadir Tekeli

Adnan Menderes University, Department of Mathematics, Aydın, Turkey

Abstract

Description of the systems are substantial step for the solution of daily life problems, and the modelling of the complex systems is mostly come true by the means of stating differential equations. To obtain the numerical solutions of differential equations using traditional methods, firstly, the continuous domain is discretized by welcoming some cumulative errors. Furthermore, the numerical solutions are available only at discretization nodes.

Artificial Neural Networks (ANNs) have been introduced as an alternative approach to overcome these bottlenecks in last two decades [1-5]. ANNs are superior to classical numerical methods by means of training with the discretization nodes and providing the approximate solutions at any point of continous search space. ANNs are mostly trained by derivative based optimization methods such as Gradient Descent, Scaled Conjugate Gradient and Levenberg-Marquardt optimizers.

In this work, we put into practice derivative-free population based global optimization methods such as Artificial Bee Colony (ABC), Ant Colony Optimization (ACO), Gravitational Search Algorithm (GSA), Particle Swarm Optimization (PSO) and the hybridization some of them to train a Feed-forward Neural Network for solving Dirichlet Boundary Problems of Ordinary Differential Equations. Furthermore, we hybridize ACO, ABC and GSA with PSO by generating mutations of global best solutions on an oblique section plane in n dimensional surface characterized by fitness function.

In the experiments, we give some different DBPs in order to indicate the efficiency of methods. Also the results are compared with the well known traditional method as Shooting Method, Finite Difference Method and Lobatto IIIa. Finally, some considerations about future directions are given.

Keywords: Differential Equations, Neural Networks, Swarm Intelligence, ABC, ACO, PSO, GSA

Acknowledgements

This research was supported by the Council of Higher Education in Turkey (YÖK), Coordination of Academic Member Training Program (ÖYP) in Adnan Menderes University, under Grant no. ADÜ-ÖYP-14011.

References

- [1] Lee, H., & Kang, I. S. (1990). Neural algorithm for solving differential equations. *Journal of Computational Physics*, *91*(1), 110-131.
- [2] Malek, A., & Beidokhti, R. S. (2006). Numerical solution for high order differential equations using a hybrid neural network—Optimization method. *Applied Mathematics and Computation*, *183*(1), 260-271.
- [3] Meade, A., & Fernandez, A. (1994). The numerical solution of linear ordinary differential equations by feedforward neural networks. *Mathematical and Computer Modelling*, 19(12), 1-25.
- [4] Raja, M. A. (2014). Numerical treatment for boundary value problems of Pantograph functional differential equation using computational intelligence algorithms. *Applied Soft Computing*, *24*, 806-821.
- [5] Raja, M. A., Ahmad, S., & Samar, R. (2014). Solution of the 2-dimensional Bratu problem using neural network, swarm intelligence and sequential quadratic programming. *Neural Computing and Applications*, 25(7-8), 1723-1739.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>kgunel@adu.edu.tr</u>

A Simplified Neutrosophic Multiplicative Set-Based Method for Multicriteria Decision Making

Ali Köseoğlu¹[∞], Rıdvan Şahin²

¹ Recep Tayyip Erdogan University, Mathematics Department, Rize, Turkey ² Gumushane University, Mathematical Engineering Department, Gümüşhane, Turkey

Abstract

Simplified neutrosophic set (SNS) is a useful tool to describe the vagueness and uncertainty existing in the real decision-making. A SNS consists of a combination of neutrosophic numbers that are defined as simplified neutrosophic numbers (SNNs). A SNN has three membership degrees which is characterized independently by the truth, indeterminacy and falsity. In this study, we define the concept of simplified neutrosophic multiplicative set (SNMS) and introduce simplified neutrosophic multiplicative number (SNMN) as a component of SNMS. We present the score function, accuracy function, properties and operational rules of the SNMNs. Furthermore, we develop two simplified neutrosophic multiplicative aggregation operators that are called as simplified neutrosophic multiplicative weighted arithmetic average (SNMWA) operator and simplified neutrosophic multiplicative weighted geometric average (SNMWG) operator on SNMNs. In the meantime, we study some important properties of these operators, and develop a method based on SNMWA operator for multicriteria decision making. Finally, we use an example to demonstrate the effectiveness of the proposed method.

Keywords: Simplified neutrosophic set, multiplicative preference relations, aggregation operator

References

- [1] Smarandache, F. (1999). A unifying field in logics. Neutrosophy: Neutrosophic probability, set and logic. American Research Press, Rehoboth.
- [2] Wang, H., Smarandache, F., Zhang, Y.Q. and Sunderraman, R. (2005). Single valued neutrosophic sets, in Proc. of 10th 476 Int. Conf. on Fuzzy Theory and Technology. 4, 410–413.
- [3] Xia, M.M., Xu, Z.S. (2013). Group decision making based on intuitionistic multiplicative aggregation operators. Appl. Math. Model, 37, 5120–5133.
- [4] Ye, J. (2014). A multicriteria decision-making method using aggregation operators for simplified neutrosophic sets. Journal of Intelligent & Fuzzy Systems, 26, 2459-2466
- [5] Jiang, Y., Xu, Z., Yu, X. (2015). Group decision making based on incomplete intuitionistic multiplicative preference relations. Information Sciences, 295, 33-52.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ali.koseoglu@erdogan.edu.tr</u>

Simplified Neutrosophic Multiplicative Similarity Measures and Their Application to Pattern Recognition Problems

Ali Köseoğlu^{1⊠}, Rıdvan Şahin²

¹ Recep Tayyip Erdogan University, Mathematics Department, Rize, Turkey ² Gumushane University, Mathematical Engineering Department, Gümüşhane, Turkey

Abstract

The simplified neutrosophic multiplicative set (SNMS), whose elements are simplified neutrosophic multiplicative numbers (SNMNs) is a generalization of intuitionistic multiplicative set (IMS) which can be used in real scientific and engineering applications. SNMNs are basic components of SNMS that are characterized by truth membership degree, indeterminacy membership degree and falsity membership degree, respectively. In this study, firstly, the simplified neutrosophic multiplicative set (SNMS) and simplified neutrosophic multiplicative number (SNMN) are introduced, in which the truth-membership degree, indeterminacy-membership degree and falsity-membership degree are crisp values with respect to Saaty's 1-9 scale instead of symmetrical scale in a simplified neutrosophic numbers. Subsequently, some operator laws of SNMNs such as score and accuracy functions are discussed. Then a similarity measure formulation is proposed to measure the relationship between two SNMNs, and also some properties of the proposed similarity measure are proved. Finally, a pattern recognition problem is solved to indicate the potency and effectives of the presented similarity measure.

Keywords: Simplified neutrosophic set, similarity measure, pattern recognition problem

References

- [1] Smarandache, F. (1999). A unifying field in logics. Neutrosophy: Neutrosophic probability, set and logic. American Research Press, Rehoboth.
- [2] Atanassov, K. (1986). Intuitionistic fuzzy sets. Fuzzy Sets Syst., 20, 87–96.
- [3] Xia, M.M., Xu, Z.S., Liao, H.C. (2013). Preference relations based on intuitionistic multiplicative information, IEEE Trans. Fuzzy Syst. 21, 113–133.
- [4] Saaty, TL. (1977). A scaling method for priorities in hierarchy structures, J. Math. Psycho. 15, 234–281.
- [5] Wang, H., Smarandache, F., Zhang, Y.Q. and Sunderraman, R. (2005). Single valued neutrosophic sets, in Proc. of 10th 476 Int. Conf. on Fuzzy Theory and Technology. 4, 410–413.
- [6] Ye, J. (2014). Similarity measures between Interval neutrosophic sets and their application in multicriteria decision making, Journal of Intelligent and Fuzzy Systems, 26, 165-172
- [7] Jiang, Y., Xu, Z. and Yu, X. (2013). Compatibility measures and consensus models for group decision making with intuitionistic multiplicative preference relations. Applied Soft Computing, 13, 2075-2086

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ali.koseoglu@erdogan.edu.tr</u>

An Approach to Multicriteria Decision Making Based on Distance Measures for Probabilistic Simplified Neutrosophic Information

Fatma Altun[⊠], Rıdvan Şahin

Gümüşhane University, Mathematical Engineering Department, Gümüşhane, Turkey

Abstract

Probabilistic simplified Neutrosophic set is an important tool to modelling economic, industrial, commercial, scientific, engineering, etc. problems in real world. Probabilistic Neutrosophic number has three component which is called truth membership degree, indeterminacy membership degree and falsity membership degree respectively and their probabilities. Due to the take into consideration components and their probabilities at the same time, it is more effective and reliable to describe problems emerges in many fields. For this purpose, Probabilistic simplified Neutrosophic set (PSNS) and Probabilistic simplified Neutrosophic number (PSNN) are introduced. Then distances are defined to determine the relation between PSNSs.

As an application of the developed distance measures, a method to solve a multicriteria decision making problem is developed in which the evaluation data given by decision makers have probabilistic simplified Neutrosophic value.

Finally, a numerical example is applied to demonstrate the effectiveness and validity of the developed method.

Keywords: Simplified neutrosphic set, Distance measure, Hamming distance

References

- [1] Smarandache, F. (1999). A Unifying Field in Logics: Neutrosophic Logic. In *Philosophy* (pp. 1-141). American Research Press.
- [2] Şahin, R.,&Liu, P. (2017). Possibility-induced simplified neutrosophic aggregation operators and their application to multi-criteria group decision-making. *Journal of Experimental &Theoretical Artificial Intelligence*, 29(4), 769-785.
- [3] Broumi, S.,& Smarandache, F. (2014). *Cosine similarity measure of interval valued neutrosophic sets*. Infinite Study.

^{III}Corresponding Author Email:<u>fatmaaltun@gumushane.edu</u>

Multicriteria Decision Making Based on Probabilistic Simplified Neutrosophic Numbers

Fatma Altun[⊠], Rıdvan Şahin

Gümüşhane University, Mathematical Engineering Department, Gümüşhane, Turkey

Abstract

Probabilistic simplified neutrosophic set is an important tool to describe the vagueness existing in the real decision making. In this study we first define a probabilistic simplified neutrosophic set (PSNS) and its basic component called as the probabilistic simplified neutrosophic number (PSNN). Then we discuss some operational rules of on PSNNs. In a PSNN, there are three membership degrees, such as truth-membership, indeterminacy-membership and falsity-membership, respectively with their probabilities. Furthermore, we give the algebraic operational rules and score function, accuracy function of the PSNNs, and also introduce two aggregation operators called probabilistic simplified neutrosophic weighted arithmetic average (PSNWA) operator and probabilistic simplified neutrosophic weighted geometric average operator (PSNWG) on PSNNs. Then we prove some properties of PSNWA and PSNWG. As an application of this theory, we establish a multi criteria decision making method based on the PSNWA operator, and present a numerical example to ensure stability of the developed method.

Keywords: Simplified neutrosophic set, Group decision making matrix, Aggregation operator

References

- [1] Smarandache, F. (1999). A Unifying Field in Logics: Neutrosophic Logic. In *Philosophy* (pp. 1-141). American Research Press.
- [2] Wang, H., Smarandache, F., Zhang, Y.Q. and Sunderraman, R. (2005). Single valued neutrosophic sets, in Proc. of 10th 476 Int. Conf. on Fuzzy Theory and Technology. 4, 410–413.
- [3] Şahin, R., & Liu, P. (2017). Possibility-induced simplified neutrosophic aggregation operators and their application to multi-criteria group decision-making. *Journal of Experimental & Theoretical Artificial Intelligence*, 29(4), 769-785.
- [4] Ye, J. (2014). A multicriteria decision-making method using aggregation operators for simplified neutrosophic sets. *Journal of Intelligent & Fuzzy Systems*, 26(5), 2459-2466.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>fatmaaltun@gumushane.edu</u>

Multi-Objective Optimization of a Parallel Machine Scheduling Problem Using Epsilon Constraint Method

Yeliz Buruk Şahin[⊠]

Eskişehir Osmangazi University, Industrial Engineering Department, Eskişehir, Turkey

Abstract

Having more than one machine that does the same job provides capacity increase and flexibility to businesses. On the other hand, managing the capacity at hand is a serious problem. Multiple machines capable of doing the same job are called as parallel machines. Scheduling of such machines is much more complicated than single machine scheduling. While the research studies in the parallel machine scheduling literature have investigated different objectives from various aspects, in this study the minimization of job tardiness and machine deteriorating costs are two objectives. First objective is job tardiness which is a very common objective and is equal to its completion time minus its due date, in case the job is completely processed only after its due date, and is equal to zero otherwise [1]. Second objective is the deterioration of jobs in which the processing time of a job is an increasing function of its position in the sequence has been first introduced by Browne and Yechiali [2]. Jobs also may deteriorate, while waiting to be processed. By the effect of job deterioration, job processing times are defined by a function of their starting times and positions in the sequence In this study, a bi-objective parallel machine scheduling problem that has been formulated in the literature has been taken into account in a multi-objective manner [3]. The model has been coded with GAMS 24.6.1 software and pareto optimal curve of the multi-objective optimization problem has been generated with the Epsilon constraint method. The results obtained were compared with the results of classical weighted sum scalarization method.

Keywords: Scheduling, multi-objective optimization, epsilon constraint method

References

- Subramanian, A. & Farias, K. (2017). Efficient local search limitation strategy for single machine total weighted tardiness scheduling with sequence-dependent setup times, Computers & Operations Research, 79, 190-206.
- Browne, S. & Yechiali, U. (1990) Scheduling deteriorating jobs on a single processor, Operations Research 38(3), 495–498.
- [3] Mazdeh, M.M., Zaerpour, F., Zareei, A., & Hajinezhad, A. (2010). Parallel machines scheduling to minimize job tardiness and machine deteriorating cost with deteriorating jobs. Applied Mathematical Modelling, 34(6), 1498–1510.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>yelizburuk@ogu.edu.tr</u>

Wastewater Treatment Plant Modeling and Simulation with Control Purposes

Tolgay Kara^{1⊠}, Bayram Arda Kuş²

¹ University of Gaziantep, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Gaziantep, Turkey ² İller Bankası Van Regional Directorate, Project and Spatial Planning Directorate, Van, Turkey

Abstract

According to a survey on Municipal Wastewater Statistics in Turkey, there are 1338 municipalities out of a total of 1396 with a sewerage network. The implemented sewerage network collects 4.5 billion cubic meters of wastewater, 3.8 billion of which is treated at wastewater treatment (WWT) plants [1]. Treatment of urban wastewater has been a topic of primary interest in recent decades. In order to perform efficient operations on this steadily growing field, wastewater management and investments should be well-organized. The WWT process can be summarized in four main stages: Physical treatment, Chemical treatment, Biological treatment, and Advanced Biological Treatment. All the usages and purposes of these stages are examined in literature in detail [2, 3]. Early efforts of modeling and simulation of water and wastewater processes were discussed in 1973 in the Instrumentation and Control Automation (ICA) conference, sponsored by International Association of Water Pollution Research (IAWPR). In following years, this environmental organization was named as IWA (International Water Association) [4]. Over the last 40 years, the development of control systems and related structures escaladed rapidly. In the last two decades studies are focused more on computer simulations. Research at McMaster University, Hamilton, Ontario, Canada led to the commercial package GPS-X from Hydromantis with Gilles Patry and Imre Takács as the key actors. Several other applications specific simulator packages have appeared, such as Aquasim, BioWin, Simba, STOAT and WEST [4-5]. In current research, a simplified grey-box approach to mathematical modeling of WWT plants with control purposes is proposed. Proposed method yields a model that is simple enough for simulation and control design in personal computers using common mathematics software packages that are nonspecific to WWT. Differential equation model for each fundamental component of a typical WWT plant is presented and simplified whenever appropriate. Resulting model constitutes a simple input-output structure suitable for feedback control implementations at various stages to overcome disturbances. Obtained mathematical model is tested via computer simulations using actual WWT plant data provided by Gaziantep Metropolitan Municipality.

Keywords: Wastewater treatment, mathematical modeling, computer simulation, grey-box model

References

- [1] Türkiye İstatistik Kurumu Haber Bülteni (2017). Belediye Atıksu İstatistikleri 2016, Sayı: 24875.
- [2] Jeppsson, U. (1996). Modelling aspects of wastewater treatment processes. IEA, LTH, Box 118, SE-221 00 Lund, Sweden.
- [3] Rivas, A., Irizar, I., & Ayesa, E. (2008). Model-based optimisation of wastewater treatment plants design. Environmental Modelling & Software, 23(4), 435-450.
- [4] Olsson, G., Carlsson, B., Comas, J., Copp, J., Gernaey, K. V., Ingildsen, P., & Steyer, J. P. (2014). Instrumentation, control and automation in wastewater–from London 1973 to Narbonne 2013. Water Science and Technology, 69(7), 1373-1385.
- [5] Vanhooren, H., Meirlaen, J., Amerlinck, Y., Claeys, F., Vangheluwe, H., & Vanrolleghem, P. A. (2003).
 WEST: modelling biological wastewater treatment. Journal of Hydroinformatics, 5(1), 27-50.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>kara@gantep.edu.tr</u>

On Fractional Calculus and Inequalities

Serkan Aslıyüce^{1⊠}, A. Feza Güvenilir²

¹ Amasya University, Mathematics Department, Amasya, Turkey ² Ankara University, Mathematics Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

The beginning of fractional derivative is as old as ordinary derivation and integration. In 1695, L'Hospital asked "what would be the one-half derivative of x?" to Leibniz. From that time, many authors tried to give a definition of fractional derivative to establish a coherent Theory of fractional derivatives and integrals. Throughout the 20th century, some definitions of fractional derivative, are introduced, most notably Riemann-Liouville, Caputo, and Grünwald-Letnikov derivatives. Since fractional derivation and integration have applications in different branches of sciences like engineering, physics, chemistry, etc., many mathematicians begin to study of aspects of it. For more information about the history and applications, we refer [1,2].

The definitions we mentioned above used the integral form. As an example, the idea Riemann-Liouville fractional integral is based on iterating n times and replacing it by one integral, and then using the Cauchy formula with replacing n! with Gamma function. Hence, Riemann-Liouville fractional integral is defined as

$$J_a^{\alpha}f(x) = \frac{1}{\Gamma(\alpha)} \int_a^x (x-t)^{\alpha-1} f(t) dt.$$

Using this definition, fractional derivative is defined as

$$D_a^{\alpha}f(x) = D^m J_a^{m-\alpha}f(x),$$

where $m = [\alpha]$ and D represents ordinary derivative.

Riemann-Liouville or any of other definitions for fractional derivative does not satisfies all properties of ordinary derivative. As an example, Riemann-Liouville derivation does not satisfy well-known formula of the product of two functions. Because of these difficulties, recently some authors tried to give new definitions for fractional derivatives. To handle these difficulties, in 2014 Khalil et al. [3] gave a new definition. This definition, named conformable fractional derivative, satisfies many properties of ordinary derivations like product rule, chain rule etc., see [3,4].

In this presentation, using this new definition, we give some integral inequalities of Jensen's type [5].

Keywords: Fractional derivative and integral, Integral inequalities

References

- [1] Diethelm, K. (2010). The analysis of fractional differential equations. An application-oriented exposition using differential operators of Caputo type. Springer-Verlag, Berlin.
- [2] Podlubny, I. (1999). Fractional differential equations. Academic Press, San Diego, CA.
- [3] Khalil, R., Al Horani, M., & Sababheh, M. (2014). A new definition of fractional derivative. J. Comput. Appl. Math, 264, 65-70.
- [4] Abdeljawad, T. (2015). On Conformable fractional calculus. J. Comput. Appl. Math, 279, 57-66.
- [5] Aslıyüce, S., & Güvenilir, A.F. (2018). Fractional Jensen's Inequality. Palest. J. Math. 7, no:2, 554-558.

Corresponding Author Email: serkan.asliyuce@amasya.edu.tr

Risk Analysis with Bow-Tie Analysis in Shipbuilding Industry

Sukran Seker^{\boxtimes}

Yildiz Technical University, Industrial Engineering Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Risk analysis is a systematic and widespread methodology to investigate and evaluate risks which come across in many working areas. Quantitative Risk Assessment (QRA) is one of the most common tools of risk analysis. QRA is known as a tool to define the theory and the implementation of the risk management process to prevent accidents. Bow- Tie analysis is a method of QRA and it indicates the relationship between the hazards, potential adverse consequences and the factors that could cause harms. It performs with selecting and ranking potential risks including causes and consequences also expose a clear distinction between proactive and reactive risk management. Bow-tie analysis has been applied in many different work areas, such as, defense and security, shipping (taking into consideration ports and harbors), petrochemical companies mining, medical, aviation, oil and gas industries and emergency response. Shipbuilding industry which includes the shipyards, the marine equipment producers, and many related service and knowledge providers) raised as an important and strategic industry in a number of countries around the world. It has many risky processes and work units because of the essence of the work. This study suggests an occupational risk-assessment approach, which is known as Bow-tie analysis, in shipbuilding processes and work units. The aim is to evaluate critical risk operations and risky shipyard work units and to provide taking proper precautions against accidents which arise from risky conditions.

Keywords: QRA, Risk Analysis, Shipbuilding, Bow-Tie analysis.

References

- [1] Ouache, R., Adham, A., Rasydan, A. (2014). Technical Methods for the Risk Assessment at an Industry System:Review Paper. International Journal of Engineering Research & Technology (IJERT), 3(2).
- [2] Jonsson, J. (2007). Combined Qualitative and Quantitative Fire Risk Analysis-Complex Urban Road Tunnel. Lund University. ISSN:1402-3504.
- [3] Ouache, R., Ruparathna, R., Sadiq, R., Hewage, K. (2018). Fire Risk Assessment Model for Residential Buildings Using Bow-tie Method. Available from: http://nfidcanada.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/UBC-OkanaganNFID-Report.pdf [Accessed 4 March 2018].
- [4] Emery, R. (2014). Operational Risk Using BowTie Methodology Richard Emery. SYMPOSIUM SERIES NO 159 HAZARDS 24.
- [5] Basuki, M., Manfaat, D., Nugroho, S., Dinariyana, A. (2014). Probabilistic Risk Assessment at Shipyard Industries. International Journal of Technology (2014) 1:88-97.
- [6] Seker, S., Recal, F., Basligil, H. (2017). A combined DEMATEL and grey system theory approach for analyzing occupational risks: A case study in Turkish shipbuilding industry. Human and Ecological Risk Assessment: An International Journal. Volume 23, Issue 6.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>sseker@yildiz.edu.tr</u>

Sensitivity Analysis Indicator for Project Evaluation under Uncertainty and Risk

Sukran Seker[⊠]

Yildiz Technical University, Industrial Engineering Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Project investment refers to the processes, which help managers to take reasonable decisions, to make profitable investments never takes place under conditions of certainty, but only under those of uncertainty or risk. It also includes a procedure to identify, assess and select the most applicable longterm project in compliance with budget constraints. The best prominent methods engaged in investment decision making are: Break-even Analysis, Sensitivity Analysis, Scenario Analysis, Theory of Games and Decision Making Theory. Using the discounted cash flows, net present value (NPV) and internal rate of return (IRR) are among the best known methods which are performed in the evaluation of investment projects. When NPV > 0, the investment project is measured effective and, vice versa, when NPV < 0, the project is considered ineffective from the economic point of view and is rejected. Sensitivity analysis is among analytical method to evaluate risky projects using an assessment of NPV for each of the situations that the project's proposed parameters obtain the values of optimistic, pessimistic, or most likely. A sensitivity analysis is one of the methods which is used to indicate how different values of an independent variable impact a specific dependent variable under a certain set of assumptions. The application of sensitivity analysis in investment project evaluation is performed under uncertainty and risk. In this study, it is suggested sensitivity analysis to review the influence of parameters, to prioritize the significance of parameters based on their influence, and (3) quantify uncertainty of the model.

Keywords: Investment projects, Risk, Sensitivity Analysis.

References

- [1] Levišauskait, K. (2010). Investment Analysis and Portfolio Management, Vytautas Magnus University Kaunas, Lithuania Castles, Leonardo da Vinci programme Project.
- [2] Khan, M., Hashmi, S., Hussain, M. (2017). Sensitivity analysis for the determinants of investment appraisal. Audit Financiar, XV Nr 4(148), 686-700.
- [3] Jovanovic, P. (1999). Application of sensitivity analysis in investment project evaluation under uncertainty and risk. International Journal of Project Management Vol. 17, No. 4, pp. 217±222.
- [4] Kheirollahi H. and Tofigh F. Sensitivity and Risk Analysis Of The Economic Evaluation Of Investment Projects Case Study: Development Plan In Sufian Cement Plant. Indian Journal of Fundamental and Applied Life Sciences ISSN: 2231–6345.
- [5] Qin, X., Ma, X., Bai, H. (2010). A Risk-Sensitivity Analysis on NPV Model of Investment Projects. Modeling Risk Management in Sustainable Construction pp 277-281.
- [6] Mackevičius, J., Tomaševič, V.(2010). Evaluation of Investment Projects in Case of Conflict between the Internal Rate of Return and the Net Present Value Methods. Ekonomika 2010 Vol. 89(4).

Corresponding Author Email: <u>sseker@yildiz.edu.tr</u>

Mathematical Modelling Approach to Increase Cell Efficiency in a Furniture Firm

Simge Yozgat^{1⊠}, Hatice Ediz Atmaca²

¹ Cankaya University, Industrial Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey ² Gazi University, Industrial Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Traditional production methods are insufficient to meet today's increasing demands. In order to adapt of changing customer requirements, product diversity has increased the need for more economical tools and methods in production systems. To this end, many businesses are interested in modern approaches. Cellular production, one of the modern approaches, makes it possible to increase production speed and produce at lower cost. Cellular production works on the principle of bringing together the parts to be processed in production and the machines that will process the parts. In this study, groups of machines, parts families, and cell formation problems were investigated for the transition to a cellular manufacturing and group technology of a furniture factory which has a line flow production system to prevent losses due to transportation and to increase productivity rate. For cell formation and design, 0-1 integer mathematical programming model is prepared. It is solved by using GAMS software. Proposed model can group parts and machines simultaneously. A new cellular system has been proposed for the business to get rid of losses due to transportation and stacking of parts.

Keywords: Cellular Manufacturing, Cell Formation, Mathematical Modelling

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>simgeyozgat@cankaya.edu.tr</u>

Application of a Cellular Manufacturing in a Company and a New Layout Suggestion

Simge Yozgat^{1⊠}, Hatice Ediz Atmaca², Sevde Dilruba Karayel²

¹ Cankaya University, Industrial Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey ² Gazi University, Industrial Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Businesses have begun to seek solutions to bring flexibility and efficiency to their production systems in order to adapt to today's environments. In such an environment, businesses prefer modern production systems that are effective in achieving productivity and competition targets. In this study, problems of a business are tried to be handled with the philosophy of modern production systems. These problems due to uncertainties in demand quantities, variability of parts, different process times, and the different number of processes can cause a complexity in the production flow. For this reason, there are difficulties in production ganning and control as a result with late delivery. Such problems can be handled with cellular production. Cellular manufacturing tries to cluster component families according to their design, manufacturing, and function, and machine groups that process these components in the form of machine groups. Thus, large and complex manufacturing systems are separated into small and easy-to-control subsystems. In this study, the problems of a company that produces in a modular fashion have been investigated. Cellular manufacturing approach has been used to solve the problems in the company. Machine-part groups are created using ROC (Rank Order Clustering) Algorithm. A new layout suggestion has been proposed for the company. The current and proposed layout is compared.

Keywords: Cellular Production, ROC (Rank Order Clustering) Algorithm, Layout

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>simgeyozgat@cankaya.edu.tr</u>

A Hybrid Artificial Bee Colony Algorithm for Capacitated Vehicle Routing Problem – A Case Study

Kadir Büyüközkan[⊠], Halil Coşkun, Nazlı Keskin, Esra Saban, İsmail Altan Tekin, Coşkun Hamzaçebi

Karadeniz Technical University, Industrial Engineering Department, Trabzon, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, a real-life vehicle routing problem is taken into account. The required data was obtained from a retail product distribution company operating in Trabzon. The problem addressed is a two-vehicle problem involving both time constraints and capacity constraints. This problem resembles the characteristics of its basic features that it has described in the study of [1].

An integer linear mathematical model has been established to solve the problem. The generated model has been successful in obtaining the optimum solution for small dimensional problems. For large-scale problems that the mathematical model can't solve, a hybrid Artificial Bee Colony Algorithm has been developed. The proposed model is an advanced form of the algorithm in [2]. The effectiveness of the heuristic model is demonstrated by comparing it with the mathematical model results obtained in small-sized problems. As a result of the study, an effective solution for the large-scale vehicle routing problem covering all the suppliers of the firm was established.

Keywords: Supply chain, capacitated vehicle routing, hybrid meta-heuristics

References

- [1] Balakrishnan, N., (1993), Simple Heuristics for the Vehicle Routing Problem with Soft Time Windows, Journal of the Operational Research Society, 44(3): 279- 287.
- [2] Szeto, W.Y., Wu, Y., Ho, S. C., (2011) An Artificial Bee Colony Algorithm for the Capacitated Vehicle Routing Problem. European Journal of Operational Research, 126-135.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>kbuyukozkan@ktu.edu.tr</u>
An Efficient Numerical Technique for the Rosenau-KdV-RLW Equation

Sibel Ozer $^{\boxtimes}$

Inonu University, Mathematics Department, Malatya, Turkey

Abstract

In the present study, Rosenau-Korteweg de Vries- Regularized Long Wave (Rosenau-KdV-RLW) equation is transformed into a partial differential equation system consisting of two equations using a splitting technique. Then, numerical solution for the Rosenau-KdV-RLW equation system is proposed using B-Spline finite element collocation method. The unknowns in those equations are going to be found out using B-spline base functions in space and Crank-Nicolson type finite difference schemes in time for advancing solutions. Test problems are chosen to check the accuracy of the proposed numerical scheme. The fundamental conservative properties of Rosenau-KdV-RLW equation are seen to be preserved by the proposed numerical scheme. The obtained results are compared with analytical solution of the problem and some solutions in the literature. The errors norms L_2 and L_{∞} are calculated for reliability of method. It is seen that the proposed method yields the results compatible with the exact solutions

Keywords: Rosenau-KdV-RLW equation, B-Spline functions, collocation method, splitting technique

References

- [1] *P. Razborova, B. Ahmed, A. Biswas*, (2014) Solitons, Shock Waves and Conservation Laws of Rosenau-KdV-RLW Equation with Power Law Nonlinearity, Appl. Math. Inf. Sci. **8**, (2) 485–491.
- [2] B. Wongsaijai, K. Poochinapan, (2014) A three-level average implicit finite difference scheme to solve equation obtained by coupling the Rosenau–KdV equation and the Rosenau–RLW equation, Applied Mathematics and Computation 245, 289–304.
- [3] B. Korkmaz and Y. Dereli (2016) Numerical solution of the Rosenau KdV-RLW equation by using RBFs collocation method, International Journal of Modern Physics C 27, (10) 1650117 (11 pages)
- [4] J. Cai, H. Liang, (2018) Chun Zhang, Efficient high-order structure-preserving methods for the generalized Rosenau-type equation with power law nonlinearity, Commun Nonlinear Sci Numer Simulat 59, 122–131.
- [5] X. Wang, W. Dai, (2018) A three-level linear implicit conservative scheme for the Rosenau–KdV–RLW equation Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics 330, 295–306.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>sibel.ozer@inonu.edu.tr</u>

Comparison of Tests for the Homogeneity of Inverse Gaussian Scale Parameters

Esra Gökpınar¹[∞], Gamze Güven², Fikri Gökpınar¹

¹ Gazi University, Department of Statistics, Ankara, Turkey ² Eskisehir Osmangazi University, Department of Statistics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In recent years, the Inverse Gaussian (IG) distribution has been widely used in describing and analyzing right skewed data in many fields [1, 2].

The main appeal of IG distribution lies in these facts: a) it can accommodate a variety of shapes, from highly skewed to almost normal; b) it is unique among the distributions for positively right-skewed data such as Weibull, gamma and log normal due to the fact that it shares many elegant and convenient properties with Gaussian models [3].

The aim of this study is to compare the most commonly used tests for the homogeneity of IG scale parameters. A simulation study and a real word application are performed to evaluate power and Type I error rates of these tests.

Keywords: Inverse Gaussian distribution, scale parameters, Monte Carlo simulation

References

- [1] Takagi, K., Kumagai, S., Matsunaga, I., & Kusaka, Y. (1997). Application of inverse Gaussian distribution to occupational exposure data. The Annals of Occupational Hygiene, 41(5), 505-514.
- [2] Chhikara, R. S., & Folks, J. L. (1977). The inverse Gaussian distribution as a lifetime model. Technometrics, 19(4), 461-468.
- [3] Chhikara, R. (1988). The Inverse Gaussian Distribution: Theory: Methodology, and Applications (Vol. 95). CRC Press.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>eyigit@gazi.edu.tr</u>

A Discussion of the Singular and Weakly Singular Integral Equations with Abel Type Kernels

Tahir Cosgun^{1,2^[2]}, Murat Sari², Arshed Ahmad²

¹ Amasya University, Department of Mathematics, Amasya, Turkey ² Yildiz Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

The first discovery of fractional integration was by Abel [1,2] while trying to solve the well-known tautochrone problem. Because of the singularity of the kernel of obtained integral equations by Abel with variable integration limits, in addition to being called as first and second kind Volterra integral equations [3], they are also called as singular and weakly singular integral equations with Abel-type kernels [4]. The idea of solving an integral equation with known boundary conditions using Riemann sums was first revealed by Rall [5]. In this study, solutions of singular integral equations and solutions of weakly singular integral equations are treated through a numerical scheme by pursuing the way of Rall [5].

Keywords: Singular Integral Equations, Weakly Singular Integral Equations, Riemann Sums

References

- [1] Abel, N. H., (1823). Oplösning af et par opgaver ved hjelp af bestemte integraler. Magazin for Naturvidenskaberne, Aargang I, Bind 2, Christiania.
- [2] Abel, N. H., (1826). Auflösung einer mechanischen ausgabe. Journal für die Reine und Angewandte Mathematik, Band I, 153–157.
- [3] Trichomi, F. G., (1982). Integral Equations. Dover.
- [4] Wazwaz, A. M., (2011). Linear and Nonlinear Integral Equations: Methods and Applications. Springer.
- [5] Rall, L. B., (1965). Numerical Integration and the Solution of Integral Equations by the Use of Riemann Sums. SIAM Review, 7 (1).

Corresponding Author Email: <u>tahircosgun@gmail.com</u>

Novel Hybrid Particle Swarm Optimization for Unconstrained Optimization Problem

Halima Lakhbab $^{\boxtimes}$

Faculty of Science, Ain Chock, Hassan II University, Casablanca, Morocco

Abstract

In this study, we adopted a novel hybrid global–local optimization algorithm called NPSOG, which combines particle swarm optimization (PSO) [1] and a gradient method [2,3] to solve a class of global optimization problems for continuously differentiable functions.

In this method, at each iteration of the PSO algorithm, and under specific condition given by the notion of loudness parameter, we perform an exploitation step by a gradient method. The loudness parameter was *introduced in first time by* Yang in [3].

Our experimental results for the test functions indicate that the usage of NPSOG algorithms can improve the performance of PSO considerably. In addition, its performance as a viable optimization method is demonstrated by comparing it with classical kind of hybridization.

Keywords: Particle swarm optimization, Nonmonotone gradient method, Bat Algorithm.

References

- Kennedy, J & Eberhart, R. C. (1995). Particle swarm optimization, Proc. of IEEE International Conference on Neural Networks, 4, 1942–1948.
- [2] Raydan M (1997). The Barzilai and Borwein gradient method for the large scale unconstrained minimization problem. SIAM Journal of Optimization 7(1):26–33.
- [3] Lakhbab, H & El Bernoussi, S. (2017). Hybrid nonmonotone spectral gradient method for the unconstrained minimization problem. Computational and Applied Mathematics, 36(3), 1421–1430.
- [4] Yang , XS. (2010) A New Metaheuristic Bat-Inspired Algorithm.
- [5] Chakri, A, Khelif, R, Benouaret, M & Yang, X,Y. (2017). New directional bat algorithm for continuous optimization problems. Expert Systems With Applications , 69, 159–175.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>halimalakhbab@yahoo.fr</u>

Design of Textile Pattern Categorization Using Hough Transform

İsmail Atbakan, Rıfat Aşlıyan $^{\bowtie}$

Adnan Menderes University, Mathematics Department, Aydın, Turkey

Abstract

Nowadays, there are enormous amount of textile images in textile industry and the images are increasing very fast. For quickly finding the searched textile images we have to classify the images in textile collections. We also need to categorize these images automatically because manually classification is very hard, boring and time-consuming process.

Hough Transform is mathematical transformation which is used for detection of lines and circles in images. The point coordinates (x,y) in edge part of images are transformed to (rho,theta) Hough parametric space and the maximum accumulation points represent the lines.

In this study, we have designed and implemented textile pattern categorization systems [1-2] using Hough Transform which detects line segments and circles in the images. The systems consist of four main parts: Preprocessing, Feature Extraction, Training and Testing. In preprocessing operation, after each image is converted to grayscale image, binary images are constructed with edge detection operator (Sobel operator). Then, Hough Transform is applied to all binary images. In feature extraction phase, each image in the textile dataset is represented as an array of circle and line pattern frequency. The dataset includes seven patterns as "flowery", "spotted", "plaided", "horizontal striped", "vertical striped", "46 degree striped" and "135 degree striped". Using training dataset, the systems are trained with the state-of-the-art categorization methods as Random Forest (RF) [3], Support Vector Machine (SVM) [4] and K-Nearest Neighbor (KNN) [5]. After that, we have tested and evaluated the systems. In testing, the success of the system is calculated by using textile patterns in testing datasets and the class models developed in the training phase. Accuracy and F-measure values are used for computing the success of the systems. According to accuracy and F-measure, the best results of the systems which are evaluated with 10-fold-cross-validation technique, are obtained with RF. The best RF accuracy and F-measure results are 85.6% and 85.4%.

Keywords: Hough Transform, Textile Pattern, Random Forest, Support Vector Machine, K-Nearest Neighbor.

References

- Aşlıyan, R., & Alpkoçak, A. (2002). Tekstil Desenlerinin Otomatik Olarak Sınıflandırılması Üzerine Bir Çalışma. 10. Sinyal İşleme ve İletişim Uygulamaları Kurultayı (SIU), 1, 123-128.
- [2] Aşlıyan, R. (2002). Classification of Textile Images, The Graduate School of Natural and Applied Sciences, MSc Thesis, Dokuz Eylül University, Turkey.
- [3] Ho, T.K. (1998). The Random Subspace Method for Constructing Decision Forests. IEEE Transactions on Pattern Analysis and Machine Intelligence, 20 (8), 832-844.
- [4] Bennett, K.P., & Campbell, C. (2000). Support Vector Machines: Hype or Hallelujah?. SIGKDD Explorations, 1-13.
- [5] Cover, T.M., & Hart, P.E. (1967). Nearest neighbor pattern classification. IEEE Transactions on Information Theory, 13 (1), 21-27.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>rasliyan@adu.edu.tr</u>

A New Fractional Differencing Algorithm for ARFIMA

Betul Hicdurmaz^{1⊠}, Esra Akdeniz²

¹ Istanbul Medeniyet University, Department of Mathematics, Istanbul, Turkey ² Marmara University, Department of Biostatistics, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

In the present paper a new differencing algorithm is presented and it is applied on analysis of time series. In a recent paper, a new fractional discretization formula for fractional derivative is constructed by Tarasov [1]. This new discretization of fractional derivative is different from the classical Lubich discretization [2]. New method satisfies some important properties as universality and algebraic correspondence. So, it is an exact discretization. Motivated by the idea of using this new method for improving the models where Lubich approximation is commonly used, we consider fractional differencing part in the (Autoregressive fractionally integrated moving average) ARFIMA model. It is known that ARFIMA (p,d,q) technique is different from classical (Autoregressive integrated moving average) ARIMA model, because the researcher is able to choose the fractional order of differencing d to ensure that the resulting series is a stationary process. ARFIMA method is important due to the fact that many time series exhibit long-range dependence, but they can not fit to any ARIMA model. The ARFIMA model is designed to represent these series. So, we consider the generalized version of ARIMA which is ARFIMA with a new fractional differencing algorithm.

The new fractional differencing approach truncates the series by assuming some data zero. The method is generated by some modifications on the fractional derivative approach in [1]. The reason is the loss of a huge amount of data in direct implementation of truncated series. The second important reason is that direct method can differentiate the first half part of the data in this form. But in time series analysis forecasting is important and desired. So a new fractional discretization form is proposed and the new ARFIMA (p,d,q) technique is applied on some biostatistical data. Relevant theory, obtained results and comparisons with classical approach is demonstrated throughout the paper. Results support the importance and usefulness of the new method.

Keywords: Fractional differencing, ARFIMA, Time Series

References

- [1] Tarasov, V. E. (2016). Exact discretization by Fourier transforms. Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation, 37, 31-61.
- [2] Lubich, C. (2006). Discretized fractional calculus, SIAM Journal on Mathematical Analysis, 17(3), 704-719.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>betul.hicdurmaz@medeniyet.edu.tr</u>

Bi-Objective Optimization of an Unrelated Parallel Machine Scheduling Problem with Sequence-Dependent Setup Times

Yeliz Buruk Şahin[⊠]

Eskişehir Osmangazi University, Industrial Engineering Department, Eskişehir, Turkey

Abstract

Parallel machine environments are widespread due to the fact that there are several machines that encounter the same job in the workshop environment. One of the most important issues that integrates the machine scheduling problem with the real life cases and enhances the applicability of model is the set-up times. They include work required to prepare a machine to produce parts of a given type, including setting jigs and fixtures, adjusting tools, and other material [1]. In this paper, a similar version of the unrelated parallel machine scheduling problem with sequence-dependent setup times that has been formulated in the literature was addressed in a multi objective manner [2]. A multi-objective programming model has been considered to minimize the number of tardy jobs and the total completion time of all the jobs as the first and the second objectives, respectively. A schedule that optimizes one objective may perform quite poorly for another. Therefore, evaluation of the trade-offs between several objectives is so important. At this point, consideration of multi-objective decision making techniques is rather essential [3]. While some techniques in the literature consider the objectives in a sequential manner, we used a simultaneous approach. In this work, LP-metric method was used to optimize the objectives as an LP-metric objective function. The model has been coded with GAMS 24.6.1 software and solved on an Intel(R) Core(TM) i5-2430M CPU 2.40GHz processor with 4 GB RAM. The results obtained were compared with the results of classical weighted sum scalarization method. Suggestions for future work have been presented.

Keywords: Scheduling, multi-objective optimization, LP-metric method

References

- [1] Zhu, X., & Wilhelm, W. E. (2006). Scheduling and lot sizing with sequence-dependent setup: A literature review. IIE transactions, 38(11), 987-1007.
- [2] Tavakkoli-Moghaddam, R., Taheri, F., Bazzazi, M., Izadi, M., & Sassani, F. (2009). Design of a genetic algorithm for bi-objective unrelated parallel machines scheduling with sequence-dependent setup times and precedence constraints. Computers & Operations Research, 36(12), 3224-3230.
- [3] Hwang, C. L., & Masud, A. S. M. (2012). Multiple objective decision making—methods and applications: a state-of-the-art survey (Vol. 164). Springer Science & Business Media.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>yelizburuk@ogu.edu.tr</u>

Reduced Order Optimal Control of Gierer-Meinhardt Equation

Tuğba Küçükseyhan[⊠]

Balikesir University, Mathematics Department, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

We compare three different model order reduction techniques with Galerkin projection: the proper orthogonal decomposition (POD), POD-DEIM (discrete empirical interpolation) and POD-DMD (dynamic mode decomposition) for solving optimal control problems governed by Gierer-Meinhardt equation. The Gierer-Meinhardt equation consists of the activator and the inhibitor components, and it has pattern formation solutions in form of spots and stripes.

The POD and POD-DEIM reduced optimal control problems are nonconvex due to the nonlinearity in the reaction terms. DMD is an equation-free, data driven method which extracts dynamically relevant information content without explicitly knowing the dynamical operator [1]. We use DMD as an alternative method to DEIM [2] in order to approximate the nonlinear term in the Gierer-Meinhardt equation. Applying the POD-DMD Galerkin projection gives rise to a linear system of equations for the equation, and the optimal control problem becomes convex. We compare the accuracy and CPU times of three reduced order methods with respect to the full order discontinuous Galerkin finite element solutions for spot and stripe pattern formations.

Keywords: Gierer-Meinhardt equation, optimal control, discontinuous Galerkin method, proper orthogonal decomposition, discrete emprical interpolation, dynamic mode decomposition

References

- [1] Alla, S., & Kutz, J. N. (2016). Nonlinear model reduction via dynamic mode decomposition to appear in SIAM Journal on Scientific Computing.
- [2] Chaturantabut, S., & Sorensen, D. C. (2015). Nonlinear model reduction via discrete empirical interpolation SIAM Journal on Scientific Computing, 32(5) 2737–2764.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>kucukseyhan@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Numerical Solutions of ODEs with Dirichlet Boundary Conditions via Recurrent Neural Networks

Korhan Günel^{1⊠}, Gülsüm İşman², Merve Kocakula²

¹ Adnan Menderes University, Department of Mathematics, Aydın, Turkey ² Adnan Menderes University, Graduate School of Natural Sciences, Department of Mathematics, Aydın, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, we numerically solve Dirichlet Boundary Value Problems for linear and nonlinear second order ordinary differential equations using simple Recurrent Neural Networks proposed by Jeff Elman [1]. Neural Networks generate the solutions for every point in a search space, not just for quadrature points obtained via discretization of the search space. For this reason, Neural Networks (NNs) have been an alternative method in place of traditional numerical methods, recently [2,3].

In this study, we use an unsupervised learning technique on the recurrent neural network to learn the solution of a differential equation with Dirichlet Boundary Conditions. The nonlinear activation functions such as hyperbolic tangent, Rectified Linear Unit (ReLU), Leaky RELU, Parametric Rectified Linear Unit (PReLU), Exponential Linear Unit (ELU) and Self-gated activation function (SWISH) are used [4] to improve the network model and to avoid the vanishing gradient problem [5].

According to No Free Lunch (NFL) theorem [6], it is stated that no optimization algorithm outperforms any other algorithm in general. Therefore, we use some variants of Particle Swarm Optimization [7-9] to train the recurrent neural network with cross-validation. The obtained results have been analyzed in detail, and compared with each other.

Keywords: Recurrent Neural Network, Particle Swarm Optimization, Differential Equations, Dirichlet Boundary Value Problems.

References

- [1] Elman, J. L. (1990). Finding Structure in Time. *Cognitive Science*, 14(2), 179-211.
- [2] Lee, H., & Kang, I. S. (1990). Neural algorithm for solving differential equations. *Journal of Computational Physics*, *91*(1), 110-131.
- [3] Malek, A., & Beidokhti, R. S. (2006). Numerical solution for high order differential equations using a hybrid neural network—Optimization method. *Applied Mathematics and Computation*, 183(1), 260-271.
- [4] Vydana, H.K., Vuppal, A.K. (2017). Investigative study of various activation functions for speech recognition. 2017 Twenty-third National Conference on Communications (NCC), Chennai, 2017, pp. 1-5.
- [5] Pascanu, R., Mikolov, T., & Bengio, Y. (2013) . On the difficulty of training recurrent neural networks. International Conference on Machine Learning, Proceedings of Machine Learning Research, PMLR, 28(3):1310-1318. 17-19 June 2013, Atlanta, Georgia, USA.
- [6] Goutte, C. (1997). Note on free lunches and cross-validation. *Neural Computation*, 9(6), 1245-1249.
- [7] Kennedy, J., & Eberhart, R. (1995). Particle swarm optimization. *1995 IEEE International Conference on Neural Networks (ICNN 95), Vol 1-6*, 1942-1948.
- [8] Bonyadi, M.R., & Michalewicz, Z. (2017). Particle swarm optimization for single objective continuous space problems: a review. *Evolutionary Computation*, 25(1), 1-51.
- [9] Zhang, Y., Wang, S., & Ji, G. (2015). A Comprehensive Survey on Particle Swarm Optimization Algorithm and Its Applications. *Mathematical Problems in Engineering*, 2015, Article ID 931256, 1-38.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>kgunel@adu.edu.tr</u>

Analytical Solving Some Fractional Differential Equations Using New Extension Sub-Equation Method

Serbay Duran^{1⊠}, Berat Karaagac¹, Alaattin Esen²

¹ Adıyaman University, Mathematics Education Department, Adıyaman, Turkey ² Inonu University, Mathematics Department, Malatya, Turkey

Abstract

This work presents a new analytical perspective for solving some fractional order differential equations. For this purpose, we are going to consider space-time fractional Foam Drainage equation, space-time fractional Bogoyavlenskii equation and space-time fractional Telegraph equation by using a simple and efficient method which is called as sub-equation method in extended form. Symbolic programming, wave transformation, and the above-mentioned method enable us to obtain three different types of exact solutions as trigonometric, hyperbolic and rational. As a result, the considered method is straightforward, concise and powerful. It can be applied to a wide range of evolution equations which have integer and fractional order.

Keywords: New extension sub-equation method, Conformable, Bogoyavlenskii equation, Foam Drainage equation, Telegraph equation, analytical solutions.

References

- [1] Neirameh, A. (2017). New Extension for Sub Equation Method and its Application to the Time-fractional Burgers Equation by using of Fractional Derivative. *TEMA (São Carlos)*, *18*(2), 225-232.
- [2] Mohyud-Din, S. T., Nawaz, T., Azhar, E., & Akbar, M. A. (2017). Fractional sub-equation method to space-time fractional Calogero-Degasperis and potential Kadomtsev-Petviashvili equations. *Journal of Taibah University for Science*, 11(2), 258-263.
- [3] Kadkhoda, N., & Jafari, H. (2017). Application of fractional sub-equation method to the space-time fractional differential equations. *Int. J. Adv. Appl. Math. Mech*, *4*, 1-6.
- [4] Gepreel, K. A., & Omran, S. (2012). Exact solutions for nonlinear partial fractional differential equations. *Chinese Physics B*, 21(11), 110204.
- [5] Eslami, M., Khodadad, F. S., Nazari, F., & Rezazadeh, H. (2017). The first integral method applied to the Bogoyavlenskii equations by means of conformable fractional derivative. *Optical and Quantum Electronics*, *49*(12), 391.
- [6] Huang, F. (2009). Analytical solution for the time-fractional telegraph equation. *Journal of Applied Mathematics*, 2009.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>sduran@adiyaman.edu.tr</u>

Green Vehicle Routing Problem in a Logistics Company

Merve Şen[⊠], Tuğçe Kılışcı, Tilve Aydın, Mustafa Emre Kazaz, İlknur Tükenmez, Pınar Baban

Karadeniz Teknik Üniversitesi, Endüstri Mühendisliği, Trabzon, Türkiye

Abstract

One of the most important operational decisions in logistics management is to determine the vehicle routes that will serve the customers. The Vehicle Routing Problem (VRP) deals with finding the possible distribution or collection routes to a variety of demand points from a central warehouse in order to minimize the total distance traveled by the vehicle fleet. Increased environmental awareness in legal and social contexts has enabled the handling of factors that affect the environment in the problem of vehicle routing. Although the adverse effects of carbon dioxide (CO_2) accumulation in the atmosphere on the greenhouse effect are well known in the past, studies to remove these effects have increased in recent years. The most important international regulation for this purpose is the Kyoto protocol. With this protocol, the countries have introduced legal emission reduction obligations [1]. Accordingly, annual CO_2 emissions of each country are of great importance. This requires countries to calculate the CO_2 amounts. Thus, a sustainable distribution network can be created using less energy and less damage to the environment. Therefore, the Green Vehicle Routing Problem (GVRP), a new type of vehicle routing problem, aims to design a route that takes into account environmental factors such as fuel consumption and CO_2 emissions, unlike the traditional approach [2]. A lot of studies have been done on the green vehicle routing problem and mathematical models have been established to minimize fuel consumption [3]. In this study, it has been tried to minimize the total fuel consumption of the logistics companies that are transporting for some of the provinces located in Eastern Anatolia and Central Anatolia region. For this study, a mathematical model was established considering the limitation of a daily working period which is a social constraint, not exceeding nine hours. The established model is solved as VRP with different time windows by means of a solver program.

Keywords: Vehicle Routing Problem, Vehicle Routing Problem with Time Window, Green Vehicle Routing Problem, Mathematical Model.

References

- [1] Tan, K.C., (2000), A Framework of Supply Chain Management Literature, Europan Journal of Purchasing Supply Management.
- [2] Elbasan Serhat, (2015), Karbon Ayak İzini Dikkate Alan Eşzamanlı Topla-DağıtAraç Rotalama Yüksek Lisans Tezi
- [3] Demir, E., Bektas, T., Laporte, G., 2014, "The Biobjective Pollution-Routing Problem", European Journal of Operational Research, Vol. 232, pp.464–478.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>mervissen@hotmail.com</u>

Applications of a New Expansion Method for Finding Wave Solutions of Nonlinear Differential Equations

Serbay Duran^{1⊠}, Doğan Kaya²

¹ Adiyaman University, Mathematics Education Department, Adiyaman, Turkey ² Department of Mathematics, University of Istanbul Commerce, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, we presented a new expansion method constructed by taking inspiration for the Kudryashov method. Bernoulli equation was chosen in the form of $F' = BF^n - AF$ and made some expansions on the auxiliary Bernoulli equation which used in this method. In this auxiliary Bernoulli equation, by taking n = 3, some wave solutions obtained from Burgers equation and the shallow water wave equation system. As a result, for special values, we concludedthree dimensional wave views for solutions of Burgers Equation and the shallow water wave equation system. To sum up, it is considered that this method can be applied to other nonlinear evolution equations in mathematics physics.

Keywords: A new expansion method, Kudryashov method, travelling wave solution, Burgers equation, system of the shallow water wave equation.

References

- [1] Whitham, G.B. (1974). Linear and Nonlinear Waves. John Wiley and Sons, California.
- [2] Debtnath, L. (1997). Nonlinear Partial Differential Equations for Scientist and Engineers, Birkhauser, Boston, MA.
- [3] Debtnath, L. (2007). A brief historical introduction to solitons and the inverse scattering transform-a vision of Scott Russell. *Inter. J. Math. Edu. Sci. Technology*, 38, 1003.
- [4] Ugurlu, Y. & D. Kaya, (2008). Exact and Numerical Solutions of Generalized DrinfeldSokolov Equations. *Phys. Lett. A*, 372, 2876.
- [5] Inan, I.E. & D. Kaya, (2007). Exact Solutions of the Some Nonlinear Partial Differential Equations. *Physica* A, 381, 104-115.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>sduran@adiyaman.edu.tr</u>

An Optimization Model for the Energy Efficient Job Shop Scheduling Problem with Machine State and Time-Of-Use Electricity Tariffs of Turkey

Alkın Yurtkuran[⊠], Betul Yagmahan

Uludag University, Industrial Engineering Department, Bursa, Turkey

Abstract

In recent years, there has been a growing concern on environmental impacts of traditional manufacturing regarding carbon emissions and energy consumption [1]. Moreover, the energy prices are rising continuously and new environmental standards put more pressure on the manufacturing industry over the last decade [2]. As a result, energy efficient scheduling has been attracting increasing attention by the manufacturing industry during the last years. In this study, we investigate a bi-objective job shop scheduling problem with time-of-use electricity tariffs. Two objectives namely, makespan and energy consumption cost are normalized and merged with equal weights. In this context, a mixed integer linear programming (MILP) model is proposed. Hourly real electricity prices from Istanbul Energy Market are employed to calculate the cost of electricity. Further, different machine states (i.e. idle, turning up, in operation, turning down, stand by and off) and corresponding energy consumption rates are taken into account similar to the study of [3]. The efficiency of proposed model enables decision makers to determine the machine state at each period. The proposed model is solved through the MPL modeling system 5.0 which calls Gurobi 7.5.1 solver and tested over different benchmark problems. The results reveal that energy efficient scheduling with hourly energy prices may significantly reduce the energy consumption cost while maintaining acceptable makespan values. The optimal schedule could help factories minimize the production expenditure.

Keywords: Job shop scheduling, makespan, energy consumption cost, machine state, time-of-use electricity tariffs.

References

- Liu, Y., Dong, H., Lohse, N., & Petrovic, S. (2016). A multi-objective genetic algorithm for optimisation of energy consumption and shop floor production performance. International Journal of Production Economics, 179, 259-272.
- [2] Shrouf, F., Ordieres-Meré, J., García-Sánchez, A., & Ortega-Mier, M. (2014). Optimizing the production scheduling of a single machine to minimize total energy consumption costs. Journal of Cleaner Production, 67, 197-207.
- [3] Selmair, M., Claus, T., Trost, M., Bley, A., & Herrmann, F. (2016). Job shop scheduling with flexible energy prices. In: Proceedings of 30th European Conference on Modelling and Simulation, 488-494.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>alkin@uludag.edu.tr</u>

Total Sound Press Level and Polynomial Interpolation in the e-Studio

Hamit Armağan^{1⊠}, Tuncay Yiğit²

1 Suleyman Demirel University, Department. of Informatics, Isparta, Turkey 2 Süleyman Demirel Üniversitesi, Engineering Faculty, Department. of Computer Engineering, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

e-Studio is a platform that provides active participation of students who take lessons from universities/institutions that provide online (synchronous) training for distance education. This is a model designed and developed to increase the success of distance education by using and adapting educational technology at the highest potential in this environment. In this study, the total sound press level for the sounds generated by the sound sources in the e-studio was calculated with a software developed and an interpolation polynomial model was created.

Keywords: e-Studio, sound press level, polynomial interpolation.

References

- [1] Başaran, İ.E. (1981). Ses Frekans Tekniği: Temel Ders Kitabı. İstanbul, Milli Eğitim Bakanlığı.
- [2] www.yildiz.edu.tr/~ilkorur/1.ppt (20.02.2018)
- [3] İşman, A. (2011). Uzaktan Eğitim. Geliştirilmiş 4.Baskı. Ankara: Pegem Akademi.
- [4] Bittinger, M.L. (2010). Basic College Mathematics. 11th Edition, International Edition. Boston: Pearson/Addison Wesley.
- [5] https://www.mathworks.com/help/curvefit/polynomial.html#d119e6504 (30.03.2018)
- [6] https://www.mathworks.com/help/curvefit/fit-comparison-in-curve-fitting-app.html (30.03.2018)
- [7] Oturanç, G., Kurnaz, A., Kiriş, M.E. & Keskin, Y. (2008). Sayısal Analiz. 2.baskı.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>hamitarmagan@sdu.edu.tr</u>

Using numerical method for third order fractional partial differential equation

Mahmut Modanli $^{\boxtimes}$

Harran University, Mathematics Department, Sanliurfa, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, we consider initial boundary value problem for fractional partial differential equation

$$\begin{cases} \frac{\partial^3 u(t,x)}{\partial t^3} + \frac{\partial^\alpha u(t,x)}{\partial t^\alpha} - \frac{\partial^2 u(t,x)}{\partial x^2} + u(t,x) = f(t,x), & 0 < x < L, & 0 < t < T, \\ u(0,x) = \varphi(x), & \frac{\partial u(0,x)}{\partial t} = \Psi(x), & \frac{\partial^2 u(0,x)}{\partial t^2} = \sigma(x), & 0 \le t \le T, \\ u(t,X_L) = u(t,X_R) = 0, & X_L < x < X_R. \end{cases}$$

For this problem, basic definitions are given. For the exact solution of this problem, stability inequilities are investigated. The first order of difference schemes of the problem are constructed. Stability estimates for the solution of difference schemes for initial-boundary value problem for fractional partial differential equation are obtained. The theoretical expressions for the solution of these difference scheme are supported by the results of numerical examples. The results of numerical experiments are presented, and are compared with analytical solutions. These results obtained with Matlab programming showed that the method gives good results for this problem. (See references [1], [2] and [3])

Keywords: Fractional differential equation, stability, numerical solutions

References

- [1] Apakov, Yu. P. (2012). On the solution of a boundary-value problem for a third-order equation with multiple characteristics, Ukrainian Mathematical Journal, 64 (1).
- [2] Ashyralyev, A. & Simsek, S. N. (2017). An Operator Method for a Third Order Partial Differential Equation, Numerical Functional Analysis and Optimization 38:10, 1341-1359. Online publication date: 10-Apr-2017.
- [3] Belakroum, K., Ashyralyev, A., Guezane-Lakoud, A. & Lukashov, A. (2016). A note on the nonlocal boundary value problem for a third order partial differential equation, AIP Conference Proceedings 1759:1, 020021, Online publication date: 10-Aug-2016.

^{Corresponding} Author Email:<u>mmodanli@harran.edu.tr</u>

Fuzzy Multi Criteria Decision Making Approach Integrated Mathematical Model for Examination Timetabling Problem

Ilker Kucukoglu[⊠], Betul Yagmahan, Alkin Yurtkuran

Uludag University, Industrial Engineering Department, Bursa, Turkey

Abstract

Examination timetabling is one of the most important problems in the education systems of universities. This problem aims to assign a set of examinations of university courses to timeslots while satisfying problem specific constraints [1-4]. In this study, we introduce a fuzzy multi criteria decision making approach integrated mathematical model formulation for the examination timetabling problem to create a balanced exam schedule. In proposed solution methodology, first, the weights of the courses are determined to identify study load of the students for each day in exam schedule. To evaluate the weights of the courses, a fuzzy TOPSIS (Technique for Order Preference by Similarity to Ideal Solution) method is employed by taking into account a set of criteria, such as, course credit, number of the students registered for the course, theoretical group of the course, etc. In fuzzy TOPSIS method, the weights of the courses are determined by using linguistic terms introduced by Chen [5]. Following the fuzzy TOPSIS evaluation process, the examination timetabling problem is solved by using a mixed integer linear programming (MILP) formulation, in which the weights of the courses are used in the objective function to minimize maximum weight difference between the scheduling days. Furthermore, the technological restrictions for the exam plans are considered in the mathematical model. The performance of the proposed solution methodology is tested on a problem set which is formed by using the past data of a department in a public university. For each benchmark problem, the input data of the fuzzy TOPSIS are determined according to the experience of the instructors. Further, the MILP model was implemented in the MPL Modeling System 5.0 and solved by using Gurobi 7.5.1 solver. Computational results reveal that the proposed solution methodology is capable of obtaining more efficient and balanced examination plans when compared to the past examination plans.

Keywords: Examination timetabling, multi criteria decision making, TOPSIS, fuzzy sets, mixed integer linear programming

References

- [1] Arbaoui, T., Boufflet, J.P., & Moukrim, A. (2015). Preprocessing and an improved MIP model for examination timetabling. Annals of Operations Research, 229(1), 19-40.
- [2] Carter, M.W., Laporte, G., & Lee, S.Y. (1996). Examination timetabling: Algorithmic strategies and applications. Journal of the Operational Research Society, 47, 373-383.
- [3] Kalayci, C. B., & Gungor, A. (2012). A genetic algorithm based examination timetabling model focusing on student success for the case of the college of engineering at Pamukkale University, Turkey. Gazi University Journal of Science, 25(1), 137-153.
- [4] Qu, R., Burke, E.K., McCollum, B., Merlot, L.T.G., & Lee, S.Y. (2009). A survey of search methodologies and automated system development for examination timetabling. Journal of scheduling, 12(1), 55-89.
- [5] Chen, C.-T. (2000). Extensions of the TOPSIS for group decision-making under fuzzy environment. Fuzzy Sets and Systems, 114(1), 1-9.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ikucukoglu@uludag.edu.tr</u>

Selection of Solar Energy Plant with Large-scale Group Decision Making under Hesitant Fuzzy Linguistic Assessment

Veysel Çoban[⊠], Sezi Çevik Onar

Istanbul Technical University, Industrial Engineering Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

The consensus in group decision making (GDM) problems is to provide a common agreement from individual opinions with situational evaluation. The method of obtaining consensus in the group decision-making process with different disciplines and a large number of participants leads to the emergence of large-scale group decision-making (LGDM) problems. The increase in the number of decision makers in the group leads to an increase in intellectual diversity and the difficulty of obtaining consensus from the decision-making group. New methods have been developed for solving such decision-making problems arising from intellectual expansion and intellectual diversity (Quesada, Palomares, & Martinez, 2015; Xu, Du, & Chen, 2015). Wu and Xu's study (Wu & Xu, 2018), which is developed as an alternative to these studies focusing on non-cooperative behaviors, aims to reach a common idea level by dynamic clusters obtained by changing individual preferences. The contribution of the study to solve the LGDM problems is as follows: the use of the possibility distribution based hesitant fuzzy element (PDHFE) probability distribution method, the expansion of the k-means clustering method to define the consensus framework for the consensus process in LGDM, the design of the local feedback strategy to raise decision makers' preferences to compromise level.

Solar energy systems, which have environmental sensitivity and low operating costs as an alternative energy source to fossil fuels, require high installation costs. Therefore, high-tech solar energy systems must be installed in the right conditions and in the right place (Crawley, 2016). Determining the right installation location of solar power plants with high installation costs is an important decision making problem. In this study, decision making problem for the installation of photovoltaic solar energy system is implemented by using LGDM method proposed by Wu and Xu. Five alternative regions are assessed by twenty-five decision makers with the help of hesitant fuzzy linguistic expressions (Rodriguez, Martinez, & Herrera, 2012) and the most appropriate region is determined by the fuzzy logic-based decision making model.

Keywords: Large-scale group decision making, solar energy, hesitant fuzzy linguistic assessment

References

- [1] Crawley, G. M. (2016). Solar Energy: World Scientific Publishing Co. Pte. Ltd.
- [2] Quesada, F. J., Palomares, I., & Martinez, L. (2015). Managing experts behavior in large-scale consensus reaching processes with uninorm aggregation operators. Applied Soft Computing, 35, 873-887.
- [3] Rodriguez, R. M., Martinez, L., & Herrera, F. (2012). Hesitant fuzzy linguistic term sets for decision making. IEEE Transactions on fuzzy systems, 20(1), 109-119.
- [4] Wu, Z., & Xu, J. (2018). A consensus model for large-scale group decision making with hesitant fuzzy information and changeable clusters. Information Fusion, 41, 217-231.
- [5] Xu, X.-h., Du, Z.-j., & Chen, X.-h. (2015). Consensus model for multi-criteria large-group emergency decision making considering non-cooperative behaviors and minority opinions. Decision Support Systems, 79, 150-160.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>cobanv@itu.edu.tr</u>

Some Common Fixed Point Results via Implicit Contractions on Soft Quasi Metric Spaces

Nurcan Bilgili Güngör[⊠]

Amasya University, Faculty of Science and Arts, Department of Mathematics, Amasya, Turkey

Abstract

The concept of soft quasi-metric space, according to soft element and some of its properties are given very recently by Bilgili Gungor [1].(In review). It was noticed that in the symmetric case, many fixed point theorems on soft G-metric spaces are particular cases of existing fixed point theorems in soft metric spaces. But for treating the non-symmetric case, Bilgili Gungor [1] introduced soft quasi-metric space and showed that non-symmetric soft G-metric space have a soft quasi-metric form and then many results on non-symmetric soft G-metric spaces can be reproduced from fixed point on soft quasi-metric spaces. Otherwise, Popa ([2],[3]) started and worked the concept of fixed point for mappings satisfying an implicit relation. And many researchers proved so many fixed point theorems for mappings satisfying several types implicit relations. In this paper we will define an implicit contraction mapping via soft real numbers inspired from the article of Popa and Patriciu [4] and we give some common fixed point results involving implicit contractions on soft quasi metric spaces. And we also prove the well posedness of the common fixed point problem. Finally, we indicate that some fixed point results on soft G-metric spaces are immediate consequences of our main theorems on soft quasi metric spaces.

Keywords: Common fixed point, soft metric space, soft quasi metric space, soft G-metric space, implicit contractions,

References

- [1] Bilgili Gungor, N. (2018). Fixed point results from soft metric spaces and soft quasi metric spaces to soft G-metric spaces, Revista de la Union Matematica Argentina, (in review).
- [2] Popa, V. (1997). Fixed point theorems for implicit contractive mappings, Stud. Cerc. St. Ser. Mat. Univ. Bacau, 7, 127-133.
- [3] Popa, V. (1999). Some fixed point theorems for compatible mappings satisfying an implicit relation. Demonstratio Mathematica-Politechnika Warszawska, 32, 157-163.
- [4] Popa, V.and Patriciu, A. M. (2012). A general fixed point theorem for mappings satisfying an phi-implicit relation in complete G-metric spaces. Gazi University Journal of Science, 25(2), 403-408.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>bilgilinurcan@gmail.com</u>

Analysing of Solar Energy Pricing Process with Hesitant Fuzzy Cognitive Map

Veysel Çoban[⊠], Sezi Çevik Onar

Istanbul Technical University, Industrial Engineering Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Solar energy systems, which are the most important alternative to fossil fuels, take place in the energy sector with high initial cost and low operating costs. Price is an important competitive factor in the development of renewable energy systems and in providing a competitive advantage in the energy market. Solar energy systems must have a price advantage in order to be able to compete with other renewable and traditional energy types (Timilsina, Kurdgelashvili, & Narbel, 2012). The national and international factors that determine solar energy prices in the energy market include temporal and spatial uncertainty. The correct definition of solar energy prices in the long term has an important influence on solar energy investment decisions. In this study, political, economic and social factors affecting solar energy price are defined and causal relations between these factors are applied in Hesitant Fuzzy Cognitive Map (HFCM) model (Coban & Onar, 2017; Kosko, 1986; Torra, 2010).

The causal relationships between the factors and the initial state values of the factors are assessed linguistically based on the knowledge, skills and experience of the experts. The linguistic expressions determined by the experts are initially converted to Hesitant Fuzzy Linguistic Term Sets (HFLTSs) (Rodriguez, Martinez, & Herrera, 2012) and then transferred into Trapezoid Fuzzy Membership Functions (TFMFs). The weight matrix and initial state vector values obtained by defuzzifying the TFMF expressions are used to simulate the HFCM model (Coban & Onar, 2017). The obtained solar energy price based HFCM model is simulated through different initial state scenarios and the equilibrium state values of the factors are calculated for each scenario. The results obtained under different scenarios show that the identified factors have a significant effect in determining solar energy price. The simulated HFCM models indicate different equilibrium state values for the factors in different scenarios and the solar energy price appears to be long term adaptation to the energy price market. Factors that directly affect the solar energy price play an important role in the model as it moves to equilibrium state. Energy supply, energy demand and energy price factors are fundamental factors that make the model dynamic and affect renewable and non-renewable energy prices, especially solar energy price. The general equilibrium states of the simulations show that the new solar energy generation systems are developed in market conditions without any incentive mechanism.

Keywords: Solar energy price, hesitant fuzzy cognitive map, hesitant fuzzy linguistic term sets

References

- Çoban, V., & Onar, S. Ç. (2017). Modelling Solar Energy Usage with Fuzzy Cognitive Maps Intelligence Systems in Environmental Management: Theory and Applications (pp. 159-187): Springer.
- [2] Kosko, B. (1986). Fuzzy cognitive maps. International journal of man-machine studies, 24(1), 65-75.
- [3] Rodriguez, R. M., Martinez, L., & Herrera, F. (2012). Hesitant fuzzy linguistic term sets for decision making. IEEE Transactions on fuzzy systems, 20(1), 109-119.
- [4] Timilsina, G. R., Kurdgelashvili, L., & Narbel, P. A. (2012). Solar energy: Markets, economics and policies. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 16(1), 449-465.
- [5] Torra, V. (2010). Hesitant fuzzy sets. International Journal of Intelligent Systems, 25(6), 529-539.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>cobanv@itu.edu.tr</u>

Reinvestment Decisions for Wind Energy Projects

Hasan Huseyin Yildirim^{1⊠}, Sakir Sakarya²

¹Balikesir University, Burhaniye School of Applied Sciences, Balikesir, Turkey ²Faculty of Economics and Administrative Science, Balikesir University, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

The need of human beings to use energy resources continues to increase day by day. The use of wind energy which is one of the renewable energy sources is an important alternative to supply the need for energy worldwide. Investment efficiency is very important issue before and during the investment period due to the fact that wind energy investments are high cost investments. In this study, a solution proposal will be developed for the replacement of inefficient wind turbines which are established. In the ideal solution of the topic, the remaining life time of the wind turbine which is to be replaced and capacity utilization at the new place of turbine will be used as key input factors.

Keywords: Energy, wind energy, energy investment decisions

References

- [1] Ermis, K., Midilli, A., Dincer, I., & Rosen, M.A. (2007). Artificial neural network analysis of world green energy use. Energy Policy, 35(3), 1731-1743.
- [2] Çam, E., Arcaklıoğlu, E., Çavuşoğlu, A., & Akbıyık, B. (2005). A classification mechanism for determining average wind speed and power in several regions of Turkey using artificial neural networks. Renewable Energy, 30(2), 227-239.
- [3] Ata, R. (2015). Artificial neural networks applications in wind energy systems: a review. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 49, 534-562.
- [4] Sözen, A., Ozalp, M., Arcaklioglu, E., & Galip Kanıt, E. (2004). A study for estimating solar resources in Turkey using artificial neural networks. Energy Sources, 26(14), 1369-1378.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>hhyildirim@balikesir.edu.tr</u>.

Symmetry Methods of Flow and Heat Transfer between Slowly Expanding or Contracting Walls

Gabriel Magalakwe^{1⊠}, Masood Khalique²

 ¹ North-West University, Potchefstroom Campus, Department of Mathematical Sciences, Private Bag X6001, Potchefstroom 2520, South Africa
 ² International Institute for Symmetry Analysis and Mathematical Modelling, North-West University, Mafikeng

Campus, Department of Mathematical Sciences, Private Bag X2046, Mmabatho 2735, South Africa

Abstract

An analysis has been carried out for the flow and heat transfer of an incompressible laminar and viscous fluid in a rectangular domain bounded by two moving porous walls which enable the fluid to enter or exit during successive expansions or contractions. The basic equations governing the flow are reduced to the ordinary differential equations using Lie symmetry analysis. Effects of the permeation Reynolds number, porosity, and the dimensionless wall dilation rate on the self-axial velocity are studied both analytically and numerically. The solutions are represented graphically. The analytical procedure is based on double perturbation in the permeation Reynolds number and the wall expansion ratio, whereas the numerical solution is obtained using Runge-Kutta method with shooting technique. Results are correlated and compared for some values of the physical parameters. Lastly, we lookat the temperature distribution.

Keywords: Lie symmetry analysis, perturbuation, flow and heat transfer.

Acknowledgements

G. M. would like to thank SANHARP, NRF and North-West University, South Africa for their financial support.

References

- [1] Berman, A.S., (1953). Laminar flow in channels with porous walls. Journal of Applied Physics, (24), 1232-1235.
- [2] Dauenhauer E.C., & Majdalani, J., (2001). Exact self similarity solution of the Navier-Stokes equations for a deformable channel with wall suction or injection. The American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics, (3588), 1–11.
- [3] Majdalani, J., Zhou, C., & Dawson, C.A., (2002). Two-dimensional viscous flow between slowly expanding or contracting walls with weak permeability. Journal of Biomechanics, 10(35), 1399-1403.
- [4] Boutros Y.Z., Abd-el-Malek, M.B., Badran, N.A., & Hassan, H.S. (2007). Lie-group method solution for twodimensional viscous flow between slowly expanding or contracting walls with weak permeability. Applied Mathematical Modelling. 6(31), 1092-1108.
- [5] Mahmood, M., Hossain, M.A., Asghar, S., & Hayat, T. (2008) Application of homotopy perturbation method to deformable channel with wall suction and injection in a porous medium. International Journal of Nonlinear Sciences and Numerical Simulation. 2(19), 195-206.
- [6] Asghar, S., Mushtaq, M., & Kara, A.H. (2008). Exact solutions using symmetry methods and conservation laws for the viscous flow through expanding-contracting channels. Applied Mathematical Modelling. 12(32), 2936-2940.
- [7] Noor, N.Z., Kanna, R.R., & Chern, M.J. (2009) "Flow and heat transfer in a driven square cavity with double-sided oscillating lids in anti-phase. International Journal of Heat and Mass Transfer, 13(52), 3009-3023.

 \square Corresponding Author Email: <u>17065828@nwu.ac.za</u> or <u>magalakwe@webmail.co.za</u>

A New R Programming Package for the Detection of Outliers in Univariate Time Series Data

Melih Ağraz¹, Ekin Can Erkuş², Vilda Purutçuoğlu^{1, 2}

¹ Middle East Technical University, Department of Statistics, Ankara, Turkey
 ² Middle East Technical University, Department of Biomedical Engineering, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

The outlier detection is one of the fundamental steps in the data analyses. Hereby, from univariate and multivariate to high dimensional datasets, there are many outlier detection methods developed from different research groups [1, 2]. Some these approaches are also supported by the R programming packages which are publicly available such as "mvoutlier" [3] and "outliers" [4] packages and some of these techniques can be found under certain thematic R packages for example the "mvBACON" function under the "robustX" package [5]. Accordingly, in this study, we introduce a novel R package for the detection of outliers for univariate time series datasets. The package is based on the application of a recent method, called FOD (Fourier transform-based outlier detection) [6], for this type of measurements. In the package, the users can find the outliers by using this method for their datasets. Additionally, they can also simulate data from various distributions under different sample sizes and percentage of outliers periodically or aperiodically. Here, the periodicity and aperiodicity imply the outliers that can be lied throughout the observation set as the former case or can be seen only a part of the complete data as the latter case. Furthermore, in the package, we can visualize the location of outliers in the measurements under various graphs. Moreover, these analyses can be also done via z-score and box-plot methods as the two most common outlier detection approaches in the related literature. Finally, in order to show the application of these methods, we also prepare 2 datasets and illustrate the outcomes of each preference in the FOD and other functions. On conclusion, we consider that our R package can help the users to detect the outliers in a significantly accurate, fast and user-friendly way with respect to its close alternatives.

Keywords: Outlier detection, R package, visualization, time series data, Fourier transform.

References

- [1] Aggarwal, C.C. (2013). Outlier Analysis, Spriner, New York.
- [2] Hadi, A.S., Rahmatullah Imon, A.H.M., & Werner, M. (2009). Detection of outliers. WIREs Computational Statistics, 1, 57-70.
- [3] Filzmoser, P. (2018). Multivariate outlier detection based on robust methods.CRAN.
- [4] Komsta, L. (2015). Tests for outliers. CRAN.
- [5] Stahel, W., & Maechler, M. (2017). 'eXtra' / 'eXperimental' functionality for robust statistics. CRAN.
- [6] Erkuş, E.C., Purutçuoğlu, V., & Ağraz, M. (2017). Detection of outliers using Fourier transform. Proceeding of the 10th International Statistical Congress. page:104.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>vpurutcu@metu.edu.tr</u>

Detection of Binding Sites of Chip-seq Data via Hidden Markov Model and Frequentist Inference of Model Parameters

Elif Doğan Dar, Vilda Purutçuoğlu[⊠]

Middle East Technical University, Department of Statistics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

The hidden Markov model (HMM) is one of the major modeling approaches that is based on the graphical representation in the form of a chain. In this structure, we have a sequence of multinomial "state" nodes which are hidden and a sequence of observations that are produced by the states [1]. In order to construct the link between the states and observations, different types of inference methods are suggested in the literature. For instance, the EM algorithm or the Baum-Welch forward-backward algorithm [2] and the Viterbi algorithm [3] are two well-known approaches in this field. In this study, we apply the frequentist methods in order to model different Chip-seq datasets. Basically, the experiments of the Chip sequence are performed to locate the DNA bindings sites which are occupied by promoters, enhancers, repressors and insulators. By using this dataset, it is possible to detect the bindings sites of genome which has the spatial dependency between neighboring sites (or windows). This information can be important, for example, to determine the point of amino acid physicochemical properties since the co-localized amino acid sequences must share some similarity, and hereby, to determine the protein tertiary structure [4]. Hence, in this work, we perform two alternative frequentist ways to find the underlying binding sites of publicly available datasets. For the first approach, we propose to accept the measurements as the observed states and the core physicochemical features of the data which are obtained by the feature extraction as the hidden states in HMM. Once the associated feature vectors, which denote the peptides, are estimated, we investigate which pair of amino acid position is suitable for binding. On the other hand, for the second alternative approach, we consider to define the bindings site as a separate parameter in the estimation via the constructed HMM above. Finally, we compare the accuracy of both results by validating the findings with known literature. We think that such frequentist inference may open new avenues in the determination of protein structures and better understand certain diseases which are dependent on the binding affinity.

Keywords: Hidden Markov model, frequentist inference, protein tertiary structure, biological network.

References

- [1] Jordan, M.I., Ghahramani, Z., Jaakkola, T.S., & Saul, L.K. (1999). An introduction to variational methods for graphical models. Machine Learning, 37 (2), 183-233.
- [2] Ghahramani, Z. (1997). Learning dynamic bayesian networks. Adaptive Processing of Sequences and Data Structures. C.L. Giles and M. Gori (Eds.), 168-197. Springer, Berlin, Heidelberg.
- [3] Vijayabaskar, M.S. (2017). Introduction to hidden Markov models and its applications in biology. Hidden Markov Models: Methods and Protocols. D.R. Westhead and M.S. Vijayabaskar (Eds.), Humana Press, New York.
- [4] Zvelebil, M. & Baum, J.O. (2008). Understanding Bionformatics, Taylor and Francis Group, New York, London.

^{Corresponding} Author Email: <u>vpurutcu@metu.edu.tr</u>

Ecology and Evolution of Vector-Borne Diseases in a Multi-Scale Model

Hayriye Gulbudak¹⊠, Vincent Cannataro², Necibe Tuncer³, Maia Martcheva⁴,

¹ University of Louisiana at Lafayette, Mathematics Department, Lafayette, LA, USA
 ² Yale University, Yale School of Public Health, New Haven, CT, USA
 ³ Florida Atlantic University, Department of Mathematical Sciences, Boca Raton, FL, USA
 ⁴ University of Florida, Mathematics Department, Gainesville, FL, USA

Abstract

There is recent interest in mathematical models which connect the epidemiological aspects of infectious diseases to the within-host dynamics of the pathogen and immune response. Multi-scale modeling of infections allows for assessing how immune-pathogen dynamics affect spread of the disease in the population. Here, we consider a within host model for immune-pathogen dynamics nested in an age-since-infection structured PDE system for vector-borne epidemics. First, we study pathogen-host coevolution by analytically establishing evolutionary stable strategies for parasite and host, and by utilizing computational methods to simulate the evolution in various settings. We find that vector inoculum size can contribute to virulence of vector-borne diseases in distinct ways [1]. Next, we develop a robust methodology for identifiability and estimation of parameters with multi-scale data, along with sensitivity analysis. The nested multi-scale model is fit to combined within-host and epidemiological data for Rift Valley Fever. An ultimate goal is to accurately model how control measures, such as vaccination and drug treatment, affect both scales of infection [2].

Keywords: age-since-infection structured PDE model, stability analysis, identifiability

Acknowledgements

The authors N. Tuncer and M. Martcheva acknowledge support from the National Science Foundation (NSF) under Grants DMS-1515661/DMS-1515442. Authors H. Gulbudak and V. Cannataro would also like to acknowledge partial support from IGERT Grant NSF DGE-0801544 in the Quantitative Spatial Ecology, Evolution and Environment Program at the University of Florida.

References

- Gulbudak H., Cannataro V., Tuncer N., Martcheva M. (2017). Vector-Borne Pathogen and Host Evolution in a Structured Immuno-Epidemiological System. Bulletin Mathematical Biology, 79, 325–355.
- [2] Tuncer N., Gulbudak H., Cannataro V., Martcheva M (2016). Structural and Practical Identifiability Issues of Immuno-Epidemiological Vector-Host Models with Application to Rift Valley Fever. Bulletin Mathematical Biology, 78(9), 1796–1827.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>hayriye.gulbudak@louisiana.edu</u>

Neutral Differential Systems of Fractional Order with State-Dependent Delay

C. Ravichandran¹, N. Valliammal², Zakia Hammouch^{3⊠}, Haci Mehmet Baskonus⁴

¹Kongunadu Arts & Science College, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu, India
²Sri Eshwar College of Engineering, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu, India
³Moulay Ismail University, Errachidia, Morocco
⁴Munzur University, Tunceli, Turkey

Abstract

In this work, by employing the fractional theory, noncompact measure and Mönch's theorem, we investigate the existence results for neutral differential equations of fractional order with state-dependent delay. An illustration of derived results is offered.

Keywords: Noncompact measure, Mönch fixed point theorem, Neutral equations, state dependent delay

Acknowledgements

The first author, CR, wishes to thank the President Dr. M. Aruchami, Secretary and Director Dr. C.A. Vasuki, Kongunadu Arts and Science College, Coimbatore - 641029, Tamil Nadu State, India for their constant encouragement and support for this research work.

References

- [1] Agarwal, R.P., Meehan, M. and O'Regan, D. (2001). Fixed Point Theory and Applications, Cambridge Tracts in Mathematics, 141, Cambridge University Press, Cambridge.
- [2] Aissani, K. and Benchohra, M. (2014). Fractional integro-differential equations with state dependent delay, Adv. Dyn. Syst. Appl. 9(1), 17-30.
- [3] Bana's, J. and Goebel, K. (1980). Measures of noncompactness in Banach spaces, Marcel Dekker, New York.
- [4] Baleanu, D., Trujillo, J.J. and Ahmad, B. (2013). Advanced theoretical and applied studies of fractional differential equations, Hindawi Publishing Corporation.
- [5] Belmekki, M., Mekhalfi, K. and Ntouyas, S.K. (2013). Existence and uniqueness for semilinear fractional differential equations with infinite delay via resolvent operators, J. Fract. Calc. Appl. 4(2), 267-282.
- [6] Belmekki, M., Mekhalfi, K. and Ntouyas, S.K. (2012). Semilinear functional differential equations with fractional order and finite delay, Malaya. J. Mat. 1(1), 73-81.
- [7] Belmekki, M. and Benchohra, M. (2010). Existence results for fractional order semilinear functional differential equations with nondense domain, Nonlinear Anal. 72(2), 925-932.
- [8] Benchohra, M., Bennihi, O. and Ezzinbi, K. (2014). Existence results for some neutral partial functional differential equations of fractional order with state- dependent delay, CUBO, J. Math. 16(3), 37-53.
- [9] Dos Santos, J.P.C., Vijayakumar, V. and Murugesu, R. (2013). Existence of mild solutions for nonlocal Cauchy problem for fractional neutral integro-differential equation with unbounded delay, Commun. Math. Anal. 14(1), 59-71.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>hammouch.zakia@gmail.com</u>

Structural Design Optimization through Water Cycle Algorithm with Evaporation Rate

Osman Tunca^{1⊠}, Ibrahim Aydogdu², Ferhat Erdal², Serdar Carbas¹

Karamanoglu Mehmetbey University, Civil Engineering Department, Karaman, Turkey
 Akdeniz University, Civil Engineering Department, Antalya, Turkey

Abstract

Generally, the optimization techniques utilized in structural design optimization could be categorized into two main groups such as classical and metaheuristic search methods. The first groups, namely classical optimization methods such as linear programming, nonlinear programming and optimality criteria, often require substantial gradient information. The initial selected points have directly effect on the final solution and the computational operation number rises depending on the increment of the size of the structure [1]. Usually, the most of the real-world structural engineering designs are complicated and their solutions require more sophisticated methods than conventional mathematical methods to be handled. Because of this requirement, new recent trend optimization techniques which are so-called metaheuristic search methods are evinced. These methods do not need any initial data as in the conventional mathematical programming and have preferable global search talent than the classical optimization algorithms [2]. The last addition to the metaheuristic algorithms is denominated as Water Cycle Algorithm (WCA). The principal idea behind WCA is observation of water cycle process and how rivers and streams flow to the sea [3]. In order to enhance the global search ability of WCA, a new concept of evaporation rate for different rivers and streams is defined so-called WCA with evaporation rate (WCA-ER) [4]. The WCA-ER reveals a better balance between exploration and exploitation phases compared to the standard WCA. It is shown that the WCA-ER offers high potential in finding all global optimum of structural design problems in which the weight minimization is treated as objective function while satisfying the certain design constraints. The WCA and WCA-ER are tested using several structural design problems and the obtained results show that the WCA-ER obtained minimum design weight and converges to the global solution faster. According to the optimum designs yielding via WCA-ER, the efficiency of the proposed method on structural design optimization problems are represented.

Keywords: Optimal structural design, metaheuristic search techniques, water cycle algorithm.

References

- Saka, M.P., Carbas, S., Aydogdu, I. & Akin A. (2015). Use of Swarm Intelligence in Structural Steel Design Optimization, In: X-S Yang, G. Bekdas, S.M. Nigdeli, eds. Metaheuristics and Optimization in Civil Engineering, Springer International Publishing, 43-73.
- [2] Coello Coello, CA. (2002). Theoretical and numerical constraint-handling techniques used with evolutionary algorithms: A survey of the state of the art. Computer Methods in Applied Mechanics and Engineering, 191(11–12), 1245–87.
- [3] Eskandar, H., Sadollah, A., Bahreininejad, A. & Hamdi, M. (2012). Water cycle algorithm-A novel metaheuristic optimization method for solving constrained engineering optimization problems. Computers and Structers, 110-111, 151-166.
- [4] Sadollah, A., Eskandar, H., Bahreininejad, A. & Kim, J-H. (2015). Water cycle algorithm with evaporation rate for solving constrained and unconstrained optimization problems. Applied Soft Computing, 30, 58-71.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>osmantunca@kmu.edu.tr</u>

Grasshopper Optimization Algorithm Based Design of Structures

Osman Tunca¹, Ibrahim Aydogdu², Tevfik Oguz Omercioglu², Serdar Carbas¹

¹ Karamanoglu Mehmetbey University, Civil Engineering Department, Karaman, Turkey
² Akdeniz University, Civil Engineering Department, Antalya, Turkey

Abstract

The topic of optimization is accepting vital care from engineers, scientists, managers, and designers. This is goaded by arise the rivalry of quality, assurance, economical cost of production, and at the end, the success of obtaining the best design. Thus, nowadays, the practice of optimization could not be ruled out. The inescapable further development of desktop computing resources significantly aids engineering design practice currently. Optimization algorithms are implemented via software programs and through computer codes they can be simply applied to three-pipe problems such as structural design optimization problems. Successfully embedding the use of optimization in professional practice requires mathematical modeling of the design problem and knowledge of optimization techniques. This provides a huge opportunity for handling complex mathematical background of hard solving engineering design problems in an easy manner [1]. So, the design engineers are supplied by a practical approach to the study of design optimization by these practical optimization algorithms which are so-called metaheuristics. On the contrast of the conventional mathematical optimization methods, the metaheuristics does not require any gradient-based information and not suffer from local optimal immersion. Also, they have popular talent to solve the problems with large number of unknown and/or computationally expensive derivation. The main advantageous of metaheuristics is that they trust random operators that provide them to keep away from local optimal. Among metaheuristic optimization approaches, nature-inspired, population-based algorithms are the most popular [2]. Such techniques mimic natural problems-solving methods, often those used by creatures. Survival is the main goal for all creatures. To achieve this goal, they have been evolving and adapting in different ways. In this study, a grasshopper optimization algorithm [3], which is mathematically modelled and mimicked the swarming behavior of grasshoppers in the nature, is developed to obtain optimum solutions of threedimensional structural design problems. The final achieved designs prove that the proposed algorithm is able to provide superior results compared to well-known and recent algorithms in the literature.

Keywords: Structural design optimization, metaheuristics, grasshopper optimization algorithm

References

- [1] Venkataraman, P. (2002). Applied Optimization with MATLAB Programming, John Wiley&Sons, New York.
- [2] Yang, X-S. (2010). Nature-inspired metaheuristic algorithms. 2nd ed. Luniver Press.
- [3] Saremi, S., Mirjalili, S. & Lewis, A. (2017). Grasshopper Optimisation Algorithm: Theory and application. Advances in Engineering Software, 105, 30-47.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>osmantunca@kmu.edu.tr</u>

Comparison of the Stabilized Finite Element Solutions of Optimal Control of Convection Diffusion Equation

Fikriye Nuray Yılmaz[⊠]

Gazi University, Mathematics Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In this work, we consider the comparison of the stabilized finite element (fem) solutions of optimal control of convection diffusion equation. We consider

$$\begin{array}{ll} \text{minimize} & J(y,u) = & \frac{1}{2} \int_{\Omega} \|y - y_d\|^2 dx + \frac{\alpha}{2} \int_{\Omega} \|u\|^2 dx \\ \text{subject to} & & -\nu \Delta y + \beta . \nabla y + \alpha y = u + f \quad \text{in } \Omega, \\ & & y = 0 \quad \text{on } \partial\Omega, \end{array}$$

where y and u are called state and control variables, respectively. y_d is given and called as desired state. α is the regularization parameter [1].

We first obtain the optimality conditions [2]. Then, we state the weak form of the optimality system. We apply fem to get the discrete problem [3]. Because of the viscosity term in the problem, fem solutions blow up depending on the value of the Reynolds number. To avoid this, we use different stabilization methods. The most popular stabilization technique to handle convective terms is known as SUPG [4]. Moreover, we consider grad-div stabilization. This technique has been recently used in convective problems. Grad-div stabilization adds a penalty term with respect to the continuity equation to the momentum equation [5]. We present and compare the results. We use the package freefem++ to get the numerical solutions.

Keywords: Optimal control, stabilized fem, convection diffusion equation.

References

- [1] Fursikov, A.V. (1999). Optimal control of distributed systems: theory and applications. In: Transl. Math. Monogr., vol. 187. AMS, Providence.
- [2] Lions, J.L. (1971). Optimal control of systems governed by partial differential equations. In: Grundlehren Math. Wiss., Springer, 70, Berlin.
- [3] Ciarlet, P.G. (2002). The finite element method for elliptic problems. In: Classics Appl. Math., SIAM, Philadelphia, 40.
- [4] Collis, S.S. & Heinkenschloss, M. (2002). Analysis of the streamline upwind/Petrov Galerkin method applied to the solution of optimal control problems. CAAM TR02-01.
- [5] Javier de F., Bosco G. A., Volker J. & Julia N. (2016). Graddiv stabilization for the evolutionary Oseen problem with inf-sup stable finite elements. Journal of Scientific Computing, 66(3), 991-1024.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>yfikriye@gmail.com</u>

A Semi-Lagrangian Scheme for Numerical Solution of Advection-Diffusion Equations

Ersin Bahar¹, Sila O. Korkut²¹², Yesim Cicek², Gurhan Gurarslan¹

¹ Pamukkale University, Civil Engineering, Denizli, Turkey ² Izmir Kâtip Celebi University, Engineering Science, Izmir, Turkey

Abstract

In this study an unconditionally stable semi-Lagrangian scheme is proposed for the numerical solution of advection-diffusion equation. The proposed method is based on the Saulyev method and the method of characteristics with cubic spline approximation. The convergence of the proposed method has also been studied. To confirm the results obtained from the analysis several numerical examples have been discussed. It is revealed that the proposed method provides highly accurate as well as efficient solutions.

Keywords: Advection-diffusion; Operator splitting; method of characteristics; cubic spline interpolation; Saulyev scheme.

References

- [1] Kumar, N. (1983). Unsteady flow against dispersion in finite porous media, Journal of Hydrology, 63(3-4), 345-358.
- [2] Isenberg, J. & Gutfinger, C. (1973). Heat transfer to a draining film, International Journal of Heat and Mass Transfer, 16(2),505-512.
- [3] Guvanasen, V. & Volker, R.E. (1983). Numerical solution for solute transport in unconfined aquifers, International Journal for Numerical Methods in Fluids, 3(2), 103-123.
- [4] Appadu, A.R. (2013). Numerical solution of the 1D advection-diffusion equation using standard and nonstandard finite difference schemes, Journal of Applied Mathematics, vol. 2013, Article ID 734374.
- [5] Price, H.S., Cavendish, J.C. & Varga, R.S. (1968). Numerical methods of higher-order accuracy for diffusionconvection equations, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 8(3), 293-303.
- [6] Gurarslan, G., Karahan, H., Alkaya, D., Sari, M. & Yasar, M. (2013). Numerical solution of advectiondiffusion equation using a sixth-order compact finite difference method, Mathematical Problems in Engineering, vol. 2013, Article ID 672936.
- [7] Gurarslan, G. (2014). Accurate simulation of contaminant transport using high-order compact finite difference schemes, Journal of Applied Mathematics, vol. 2014, Article ID 396738.
- [8] Irk, D., Dag, I. & Tombul, M. (2015). Extended cubic B-spline solution of the advection- diffusion equation, KSCE Journal of Civil Engineering, 19(4), 929-934.
- [9] Korkmaz, A. & Dag, I. (2012). Cubic B-spline differential quadrature methods for the advection-diffusion equation, International Journal of Numerical Methods for Heat and Fluid Flow, 22(8), 1021-1036.
- [10] Korkmaz, A. & Dag, I. (2016). Quartic and quintic B-spline collocation methods for advection-diffusion equation," Applied Mathematics and Computation, 274, 208-219.
- [11] Holly Jr. H.M. & Preissmann, A. (1977). Accurate calculation of transport in two dimensions, Journal of Hydraulic Division, 103(11), 1259-1277.
- [12] Tsai, T-L, Yang, J-C. & Huang, L.H. (2004). Characteristics method using cubic-spline interpolation for advection-diffusion equation, Journal of Hydraulic Engineering, 130(6), 580-585.
- [13] Dag, I., Canivar, A. & Sahin, A. (2011). Taylor-Galerkin method for advection-diffusion equation, Kybernetes, 40(5-6), 762-777.
- [14] Zhou, J.G. (2009). A lattice Boltzmann method for solute transport, International Journal for Numerical Methods in Fluids, 61, 848-863.
- [15] Esfandiari, R.S. (2013). Numerical Methods for Engineers and Scientists Using MATLAB, New York: Taylor and Francis Group.
- [16] Dag, I., Irk, D. & Tombul, M. (2006). Least-squares finite element method for advection- diffusion equation, Applied Mathematics and Computation, 173(1), 554-565.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>silaovgu.korkut@ikc.edu.tr</u>

Complex Conformable Derivative and Integral

Sümeyra Uçar[⊠], Nihal Yılmaz Özgür, Beyza Billur İskender Eroğlu

Balikesir University, Department of Mathematics, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

The standart mathematical models of integer order derivatives is not sufficient for some real world applications. At this stage, fractional calculus arises a powerfull method to characterize such problems in science and engineering. There are many fractional derivative operators in the literature with their applications such as Riemann-Liouville, Caputo which are nonlocal operators with singular kernels [5-7]. Due to some difficulties encountered in applications of these operators, Khalil [1] has been defined a limit based fractional derivative for real functions. It is a local operator named as conformable fractional derivative and effective to solve fractional differential equations analytically. The basic properties of this operator has been introduced by Abdeljawad [2] and then many authors has been studied this operator in terms of basic concepts of classical analysis [2-3].

Both of local and nonlocal fractional operators has been extensively studied for real functions but they are rarely seen in the complex plane. Therefore, we define complex conformable derivative operator for complex functions and examine some properties of this operator such as conformability.

Keywords: Complex conformable derivative, complex conformable integral, conformability.

Acknowledgements

This work is financially supported by Balikesir University under the Grant no. BAP 2018 /023.

References

- [1] Khalil, R., Al Horani, M., Yousef, A. & Sababheh, M. (2014). A new definition of fractional derivative, Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics, 264, 65-70.
- [2] Abdeljawad, T. (2015). On conformable fractional calculus. Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics, 279, 57-66.
- [3] Khalil, R. & Abu-Shaab, H. (2015). Solution of some conformable fractional differential equations. International Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics, 103(4), 667-673.
- [4] Atangana, A., Balenau, D. & Alsaedi, A. (2015). New properties of conformable derivative. Open Mathematics, 13, 889-898.
- [5] Ge. F., Chen, Y., Q., & Kou. C. (2017). Regional controllability analysis of fractional diffusion equations with Riemann-Liouville time fractional derivatives. Automatica. A Journal of IFAC, the International Federation of Automatic Control, 76, 193-199.
- [6] Owolabi. K., M., & Atangana. A. (2017). Numerical approximation of nonlinear fractional parabolic differential equations with Caputo-Fabrizio derivative in Riemann-Liouville sense. Chaos Solitons Fractals, 99, 171-179.
- [7] Avcı. D., Eroğlu. İskender. B., B. & Özdemir. N. (2017). Conformable Heat Equation on a Radial Symmetric Plate. Thermal Science, 21(2), 819-826.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>sumeyraucar@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Behavior of Fractional Derivative Operators Defined on Two Different Kernels in Nonlinear Equations

Mehmet Yavuz[⊠]

Necmettin Erbakan University, Department of Mathematics-Computer Sciences, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

Recently, fractional differential equations (FDEs) have attracted much more. Since most FDEs do not have analytical solutions, approximation solution techniques are used commonly. Therefore, in this study, we have demonstrated a new approximate-analytical solution method namely Laplace homotopy transform method (LHTM) using two different fractional derivative operators (FDOs). This method is obtained by combining Laplace transform (LT) and homotopy perturbation method (HPM). We have used FDO suggested by Caputo-Fabrizio (CF) in 2015 based on the exponential kernel and Atangana-Baleanu (AB) operator developed in 2016. The AB operator has been described with the generalized Mittag-Leffler function in the meaning of non-locality and non-singularity of the kernel. We have regarded as the LHTM with both derivatives in order to compare their results in linear and nonlinear problems. Moreover, convergence and stability analysis have been constructed of the model. According to the results of this study, it can be concluded that the LHTM in CF and AB fractional derivative sense is an effective and accurate method which is computable the series easily in short time. Also the method is much easier than other homotopy methods, so the LT allows one in many positions to eliminate the inadequacy essentially caused by insufficient boundary or initial conditions that take part in other approximate-analytical methods like HAM.

Keywords: Atangana-Baleanu fractional derivative, Caputo-Fabrizio fractional derivative, Homotopy perturbation method, Laplace transform, Nonlinear equation

Acknowledgements

This research was supported by Necmettin Erbakan University Scientific Research Project Coordinatorship, Project Number: 181215002

References

- [1] Caputo, M. & Fabrizio, M. (2015). A new definition of fractional derivative without singular kernel. Progress in Fractional Differentiation and Applications, 1(2), 1-13.
- [2] Atangana, A. & Baleanu, D. (2016). New fractional derivatives with nonlocal and non-singular kernel: Theory and application to heat transfer model, arXiv preprint arXiv:1602.03408.
- [3] Koca, I. & Atangana, A. (2016). Solutions of Cattaneo-Hristov model of elastic heat diffusion with Caputo-Fabrizio and Atangana-Baleanu fractional derivatives. Thermal Science, 21(6A), 2299-2305.
- [4] Algahtani, O.J.J. (2016). Comparing the Atangana–Baleanu and Caputo–Fabrizio derivative with fractional order: Allen Cahn model. Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, 89, 552-559.
- [5] Yavuz, M., & Özdemir, N. (2018). European vanilla option pricing model of fractional order without singular kernel. Fractal and Fractional, 2(1), 1-11.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>mehmetyavuz@konya.edu.tr</u>

Complex Conformable Derivative and Rolle's Theorem

Sümeyra Uçar[⊠], Nihal Yılmaz Özgür Balikesir University, Department of Mathematics, Balıkesir, Turkey

Abstract

It is well-known that Rolle's and Mean value theorems have many consequences in classical analysis and have been used in some application problems such as nonlinear equations, optimizations, economics [1, 2, 5]. But these theorems are not valid for holomorphic functions of a complex variable [3, 5]. Evard and Jafari [3] was presented a generalization of Rolle's Theorem to holomorphic functions of a complex variable and shown how Mean value theorem for holomorphic functions obtained from this theorem. Moreover, there are many results and applications of these theorems such as the relations between the zeros of the real, imaginary parts of the derivative of a holomorphic function and the zeros of that holomorphic functions [3,4].

In this study, we define the notion of an α - holomorphic fuctions of a complex variable and give Rolle's and Mean value theorems for α - holomorphic fuctions. Also, we give the equivalence of these Rolle's and Mean value theorems.

Keywords: α -holomorphic function, complex conformable Rolle's theorem, complex conformable Mean value theorem.

References

- [1] Dieudonne, J. (1969). Foundations of Modern Analysis. Academic Press, New York and London.
- [2] Tineo, A. (1989). A generalization of Rolle's theorem and an application to a nonlinear equation. Australian Mathematical Society. Journal Series A Pure Mathematics and Statistics, 46(3), 395-401.
- [3] Evard, J. Cl. & Jafari, F. (1992). A complex Rolle's theorem. American Mathematical Monthly, 99 (9), 858-861.
- [4] Evard, J. Cl., Jafari, F. & P. Polyakov. (1995). Generalizations and applications of a complex Rolle's theorem. Nieuw Archief voor Wiskunde. Vierde Serie, 13(2), 173-179.
- [5] Çakmak, D. & Tiryaki, A. (2012). Mean value theorem for holomorphic functions. Electronic Journal of Differential Equations 34, 6pp.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>sumeyraucar@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Identifying of the Solutions of Nonlinear Fractional Differential Equations with Caputo-Fabrizio Operator in Banach Spaces

Ayşegül Keten[⊠], Mehmet Yavuz

Necmettin Erbakan University, Department of Mathematics-Computer Sciences, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

During the last years, new fractional derivative operators have been defined such as conformable, Caputo-Fabrizio and Atangana-Baleanu. They have been used in modelling the fractional partial differential equations and describing certain problems such as diffusion processes, chemistry, engineering, economic, material sciences and other areas of application. Knowing existence and uniqueness of solutions a problem is more important than modeling it. In this context, the aim of this work is to give theorems about the existence and uniqueness of the solutions of the fractional differential equations involving the Caputo-Fabrizio derivative with nonlocal initial condition in Banach spaces. Moreover, at the end of this work, an example is given to demonstrate the applicability of our results.

Keywords: Existence-uniqueness conditions, nonlinear differential equations, Caputo-Fabrizio fractional derivative, Banach space

Acknowledgements

This research was supported by Necmettin Erbakan University Scientific Research Project Coordinatorship, Project Number: 181215001

References

- [1] Caputo, M., & Fabrizio, M. (2015). A new definition of fractional derivative without singular kernel. Progress in Fractional Differentiation and Applications, 1(2), 73-85.
- [2] Losada, J., & Nieto, J.J. (2015). Properties of a new fractional derivative without singular kernel. Progress in Fractional Differentiation and Applications, 1(2), 87-92.
- [3] Yavuz, M., & Özdemir, N. (2018). European vanilla option pricing model of fractional order without singular kernel. Fractal and Fractional, 2(1), 1-11.
- [4] Atangana, A., & Baleanu, D. (2017). Caputo-Fabrizio derivative applied to groundwater flow within confined aquifer. Journal of Engineering Mechanics, 143(5), D4016005, 1-5.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>aketen@konya.edu.tr</u>

Exploiting the Impact of the Migration Operator Used in the Adaptive Genetic Algorithm in Optimization Problems of Complex Systems

Rabia Korkmaz Tan^{1,2⊠}, Şebnem Bora²

¹Namık Kemal University, Computer Engineering, Tekirdağ, Turkey ² Ege University, Computer Engineering, İzmir, Turkey

Abstract

It has been supported by studies that parallel genetic algorithms developed for the purpose of solving distributed problems are far more successful than genetic algorithms. The most important factor contributing to this success is the migration operator. Migration is the phenomenon of moving a certain number of individuals from one subpopulation to another periodically[1,2]. In this study, the Genetic Algorithm and the developed Adaptive Genetic Algorithm are used to solve complex system optimization problems[3-5].

The biggest problem encountered is that these algorithms are prone to getting stuck in *local bests*. Therefore, the migration operator has been added to the Genetic Algorithm and the Adaptive Genetic Algorithm in order to avoid local bests and to ensure that these algorithms search in wider area of the large search space of complex systems.

When the Genetic Algorithm is used, It has been observed that the complex system data optimization process is frequently fitted to local optimizations over a period of time. Because of the limited number of individuals, the populations are filled with the same set of solutions in a short period of time. This is the proof that optimization process are fitted to the local best.

In this work, we have tested these algorithms using the migration operator in different complex system models such as ecological systems model, lotka volterra. When the obtained results are examined, it is observed that the Adaptive Genetic Algorithm with migration operator is much more successful than the Genetic Algorithm and the targeted success is achieved in complex system optimization.

Keywords: Complex Systems, Genetik Algorithm, Adaptive Genetic Algorithm, Migration Operator, Optimization.

References

- [1] Rebaudengo, M. and Reorda, M.S. (1992). An experimental analysis of effects of migration in parallel genetic algorithms, EWPDP93:IEEE/Euromicro Workshop on Parallel and Distributed Processing, Gran Canaria (E), Gennaio, 232-238.
- [2] Hiroyasu, T., Miki, M. and Negami, M. (1999). Distributed genetic algorithms with randomized migration rate, IEEE Proc. of Systems, Man and Cybernetics Conference (SMC'99), 1, 689-694.
- [3] Calvez, B., Hutzler, G. (2005). Automatic tuning of agent-based models using genetic algorithms, Proceedings of the 6th InternationalWorkshop on Multi-Agent Based Simulation (MABS'05), Editör: Jaime Simao Sichman and Luis Antunes, Springer, Utrecht, The Netherland, 3891, 41-57.
- [4] Bolme, D.S., Beveridge, J.R. Draper, B.A., Phillips, P.J. and Lui, Y.M. (2011). Automatically searching for optimal parameter settings using a genetic algorithm, Computer Vision Systems 8th International Conference,
- [5] White, T., Pagurek, B., Oppacher, F. (1998). ASGA: Improving the ant systemby integration with genetic algorithms. Proceedings of the Third Genetic Programming Conference, Wiskonsin, 610-617.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>rabia_korkmaz@yahoo.com</u>

3D Finite Element Modeling of the Nonlinear Behavior of Confined Masonry Walls

Sedat Kömürcü $^{\boxtimes}$

İstanbul Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Confined masonry walls are generally preferred systems in structures such as buildings. Masonry is a composite material made of masonry blocks (brick, stone etc.) and mortar. Modeling is one of the efficient ways of analyzing a structure in the closest way to the truth. Numerical models can be used for designing masonry structures and verification of experiments on masonry structures. The finite element analysis (FEA) is extensively preferred numerical technique to model masonry structures. In this study, nonlinear structural behaviors of confined masonry walls are modeled and analyzed with using 3D finite element models. Macro modeling technique known as homogenization is used for modeling of the masonry part of the confined walls in ANSYS software. The interaction between the exterior frame of the structural system and the masonry wall are modeled with using contact and target elements. The analytical structure of using the contact and target elements are presented in detail [1]. The Willam-Warnke failure hypothesis, a suitable hypothesis for materials which have high compressive strength but having low tensile strength, is used to determine the fracture mechanisms of the confined masonry walls. The selected modeling technique, the material model and the fracture hypothesis form a combination to model the confined masonry walls numerically. The results obtained by the 3D finite element analysis on the confined masonry walls were found to be compatible with the experimental results in the literature. By using the finite element analyzes presented in this study, confined masonry walls can be successfully determined using the contact and target elements. It was seen that; confined masonry walls had generated dramatically more durable structure than masonry walls without confined frame systems.

Keywords: Contact, Finite elements, Masonry

References

[1] ANSYS® Academic Research Mechanical, Release 18.0, Help System, ANSYS, Inc.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>komurcus@itu.edu</u>.tr

Investigation of the Structural Design Parameters of Masonry Walls Based on Nonlinear Finite Element Analysis

Sedat Kömürcü[⊠]

İstanbul Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Masonry is one of the earliest structure types of the history. These walls are composite structures that can be modeled using advanced techniques such as numerical methods. Modeling of the masonry structures is a necessary to understand their structural behavior. Designing of masonry structures and verification of experiments on the masonry structures, numerical models can be used efficiently. The finite element analysis (FEA) is a robust numerical technique to analyze masonry structures. In this paper, nonlinear behaviors of heterogenous masonry walls under the effect of in-plane loads are numerically modeled and analyzed with ANSYS software [1]. The masonry units such as bricks, stones or etc. and mortar between the masonry walls are modelled as detailed heterogenous modelling. A parametric analysis is performed to investigate the structural design parameters of masonry walls via nonlinear finite element analysis. The effect of aspect ratio on the masonry wall, the effect of mortar thickness and masonry units are analyzed numerically based on finite element method. The Willam-Warnke failure hypothesis, a suitable hypothesis for materials which have high compressive strength but having low tensile strength, is used to determine the material properties of the masonry wall. The combination of selected modeling technique, the material model and the fracture hypothesis are successfully performed for masonry wall models. Remarkable results were obtained for investigation of design parameters of masonry walls. Strength values of the walls are determined as result of the parametric analysis on the walls. By using the finite element modeling approach presented in this study, masonry walls which have distinct design parameters can be successfully and practically analyzed.

Keywords: Finite elements, Heterogenous, Parametric

References

[1] ANSYS® Academic Research Mechanical, Release 18.0, Help System, ANSYS, Inc.

 \square Corresponding Author Email: <u>komurcus@itu.edu.tr</u>
Numerical Solutions of Linear Fractional Differential Equations with Delay Obtained by Using Euler Polynomials

Ali Konuralp^{1⊠}, Sercan Öner²

 ¹ Manisa Celal Bayar University, Dept. of Mathematics, Sehit Prof. Dr. İlhan Varank Campus, Yunusemre, Manisa, Türkiye
 ² Manisa Celal Bayar University, Institute of Natural and Applied Sciences, Sehit Prof. Dr. İlhan Varank

Campus, Yunusemre, Manisa, Türkiye

Abstract

In this study, a method based on both Euler polynomials and matrix collocation method is proposed to solve fractional order linear differential equations with delay [1,2]. The proposed method yields an approximate series solution expressed in the truncated series form

$$y_N(x) = \sum_{n=0}^N a_n E_n(x^{\alpha})$$

where a_n , n = 0, 1, ..., N, are unknown coefficients to be determined and $E_n(x)$ n = 0, 1, ..., N, $N \ge m_1$, are the Euler polynomials which are explicitly defined by

$$\frac{2e^{xt}}{e^t+1} = \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} E_n(x) \frac{t^n}{n!} , \ n = 0, 1, 2, \dots$$

Combining the matrix and collocation methods matrix method developed by Sezer et. al.[4]. By this study, the matrix method developed for linear fractional differential equations in [3] is extended for fractional differential equations with delay. The proposed method is applicable to all equations which are also subset class of linear fractional differential equations with delay by just ignoring the unrelated terms from the algorithm. Some numerical examples are given to demonstrate the efficiency of the proposed method.

Keywords: Euler Polynomials, Fractional Differential Equations, Collocation Method, Delay.

References

- [1] Morgado, M.L., Ford, N.J. & Lima P. (2013). Analysis and numerical methods for fractional differential equations with delay. J. Comput. Appl. Math., 252, 159–168.
- [2] Xu M.Q., Lin Y.Z. (2016). Simplified reproducing kernel method for fractional differential equations with delay. Appl. Math. Lett. 52, 156-161.
- [3] Konuralp A., Oner, S., (2017). An approximate solution for linear fractional differential equations by using Euler polynomials. Manisa Celal Bayar University, Üsitem 1. International University Industry Cooperation, r&d and innovation congress. 18-19 December 2017.
- [4] Balcı, M.A., & Sezer, M. (2016) Hybrid Euler–Taylor matrix method for solving of generalized linear Fredholm integro-differential difference equations, Applied Mathematics and Computation. 273, 33-41.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ali.konuralp@cbu.edu.tr</u>

Optimized Taylor-Euler Series Solutions for Linear Volterra-Fredholm Integral Equations with Delay Terms

Ali Konuralp^{1⊠}, Sercan Öner²

 ¹ Manisa Celal Bayar University, Dept. of Mathematics, Sehit Prof. Dr. İlhan Varank Campus, Yunusemre, Manisa, Türkiye
 ² Manisa Celal Bayar University, Institute of Natural and Applied Sciences, Sehit Prof. Dr. İlhan Varank Campus, Yunusemre, Manisa, Türkiye

Abstract

The solutions of linear Volterra-Fredholm integral equations with delay terms [1,2] are obtained in the series form after calculating the coefficients of it and combining with Euler polynomials. In the view of proposed matrix formulations, replacing matrix correspondence to the integral equation leads to the system of algebraic equations in which the collocation points are already used as in [3,4]. Solving this system of equations for the coefficients gives an approximate series solution expressed in the truncated series form consisting of the coefficients and Euler polynomials. The proposed method can be used easily for integral equations with delay and in order to show the applicable of it, some examples are also given.

Keywords: Euler polynomials, integral equations, collocation method, delay, Volterra, Fredholm.

References

- [1] Wang K., & Wang Q. (2013). Lagrange collocation method for solving Volterra–Fredholm integral equations Applied Mathematics and Computation, 219(21) ,10434-10440.
- [2] Nemati, S., (2015). Numerical solution of Volterra-Fredholm integral equations using Legendre collocation method. Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics 278, 29-36.
- [3] Konuralp A., Oner, S., (2017). Improved Euler-Taylor Matrix Method For Generalized Functional Integro-Differential Equations, International Students Science Conference, 5-6 May 2017, Izmir – Turkey.
- [4] Balcı, M.A., & Sezer, M. (2016) Hybrid Euler–Taylor matrix method for solving of generalized linear Fredholm integro-differential difference equations, Applied Mathematics and Computation. 273, 33-41.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ali.konuralp@cbu.edu.tr</u>

FPGA Based Synchronization by Using Adaptive Control Method of Two Different Chaotic Systems

Onur Silahtar[⊠], Özkan Atan

Van Yüzüncü Yıl University, Electric-Electronic Engineering, Van, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, chosen two different chaotic systems have been synchronized using adaptive control method and sent to FPGA(Field Programmable Gate Array) for real-time results. Complex synchronization method has been preferred as the synchronization method. Also as master system, Lorenz Chaotic System and as slave system, Chen Chaotic System have been preferred. An adaptive synchronization controller based on Lyapunov stability theory has been designed to control all system. Then Matlab/Simulink program has been used to run the system with FPGA.

The change of the error was investigated by the obtained simulation and real-time results. Finally the results show that the simulation and real-time results of the system overlap each other.

Keywords: Chaos, chaos synchronization, adaptive control, fpga

References

- [1] Yang, X. S., Duan, C. K., & Liao, X. X. (1999). A note on mathematical aspects of drive–response type synchronization. Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, 10(9), 1457-1462.
- [2] Wang, Y., Guan, Z. H., & Wen, X. (2004). Adaptive synchronization for Chen chaotic system with fully unknown parameters. Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, 19(4), 899-903.
- [3] Lian, K. Y., Liu, P., Chiang, T. S., & Chiu, C. S. (2002). Adaptive synchronization design for chaotic systems via a scalar driving signal. IEEE Transactions on Circuits and Systems I: Fundamental Theory and Applications, 49(1), 17-27.
- [4] Wu, C. W., Yang, T., & Chua, L. O. (1996). On adaptive synchronization and control of nonlinear dynamical systems. International Journal of Bifurcation and Chaos, 6(03), 455-471.
- [5] Fang, J. Q., Hong, Y., & Chen, G. (1999). Switching manifold approach to chaos synchronization. Physical review E, 59(3), R2523.
- [6] Yin, X., Ren, Y., & Shan, X. (2002). Synchronization of discrete spatiotemporal chaos by using variable structure control. Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, 14(7), 1077-1082.
- [7] Yu, X., & Song, Y. (2001). Chaos synchronization via controlling partial state of chaotic systems. International Journal of Bifurcation and Chaos, 11(06), 1737-1741.
- [8] Yau, H. T. (2004). Design of adaptive sliding mode controller for chaos synchronization with uncertainties. Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, 22(2), 341-347.
- [9] Karthikeyan, R., Prasina, A., Babu, R., & Raghavendran, S. (2015). FPGA implementation of novel synchronization methodology for a new chaotic system. Indian Journal of Science and Technology, 8(11), 2.
- [10] Zhang, H., Huang, W., Wang, Z., & Chai, T. (2006). Adaptive synchronization between two different chaotic systems with unknown parameters. Physics Letters A, 350(5-6), 363-366.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>onursilahtar@yyu.edu.tr</u>

$\left(\frac{G}{G}\right)$ -Expansion Method and Its Application to Whitham-Broer-Kaup-Like Equations

Hasan Gunduz^{1⊠}, Mustafa Inc²

¹ Bingol University, Mathematics Department, Bingol, Turkey ² Fırat University Mathematics Department, Elazığ, Turkey

Abstract

The wave solutions of Whitham-Broer-Kaup-Like (WBKL) equations, which describe the bi-directional propagation of long waves in shallow water small-amplitude regime, with different dispersion relations, is evaluated by (G'/G) expansion method. The WBKL equations are reduced into one nonlinear partial differential equation (NLPDE) via Miura transformation and the hyperbolic function and trigonometric function solutions of NLPDE are obtained.

Keywords: WBKL equations, (G'/G)-Expansion Method, Miura transformation, soliton solutions.

Acknowledgements

Acknowledgements may be made to those individuals or institutions not mentioned elsewhere in the paper that made an important contribution.

References

- [1] Miura, M.R. (1978). Bäcklund Transformation. Springer-Verlag, Berlin.
- [2] Zhang, S. & Xia, T.C. (2006). Symbolic computation and new families of exact non-traveling wave solutions of (2+1),dimensional Broer-Kaup equations. Commun. Ther. Phys., 45 985-990.
- [3] Gao, Y.T. & Tian, B. (2001). Generealized hyperbolic-function method with computerized symbolic computation to construct the solitonic solutions to nonlinear equations of mathematical physics. Comput. Phys. Commun., 133:158-164
- [4] Liu, S.K. & Fu., Z.T. & Liu, S.D. & Zhao, Q.(2001). Jacobi elliptic function expansion method and periodic wave solutions of nonlinear wave equations, Phys. Lett., A 289, 69-74.
- [5] Hirota, R. (1971). Exact solution of the Kortweg-de Vries equation for multiple collisions of solitons. Phys. Rew. Lett., 1192-1194
- [6] Ablowitz, M.J. & Clarkson, P.A.(1991). Soliton, Nonlinear Evolution Equations and Inverse Scattering. Cambridge Univ. Press., New York.
- [7] Wang, M.L.(1996). Exact solutions for a compound KdV-Burger's equation. Phys. Lett. A, 213, 279-287.
- [8] Yan.C.T.(1996). A simple transformation for nonlinear waves. Phys. Lett., A 224, 77-84.
- [9] Liu, J.B. & Yang, K.Q. (2004). The extended F-expansion method and exact solutions of nonlinear PDEs. Chaos Solitons, Fract., 22, 111-121.
- [10] Weiss, J. & Tabor, M. & Carnevale, G.(1983). The Painlevé property for partial differential equations J. Math. Phys., 24 522-526.
- [11] Wang, M.L. & Li, X., Zhang, J.(2008). The (G'/G)-expansion method and traveling wave solutions of nonlinear evolution equations in mathematical physics. Phys. Lett. A 372 ,417-423.
- [12] Bekir, A. (2008). Application of (G'/G)-expansion method for nonlinear evolution equations. Phys. Lett., A 372, pp. 3400-3406.
- [13] Aslan, I. & Ozis, T. (2008). On the validity and reliability of the (G'/G)-expansion method by using higher-order nonlinear equations. Phys Lett., A 372, pp. 417-423.
- [14] Whitham, G.B. (1967). Variational Methods and Applications to Water Waves. Proceedings of the Royal Society A, 299, 6-25.
- [15] Broer, L.J. (1975). Approximate Equations for Long Water Waves. Applied Scientific Research, 31, 377-395.

^C Corresponding Author Email: <u>hasangunduzzz@hotmail.com</u>

Developing a Mathematical Model for CBTC System and Safe Braking Distance Calculation

Ertugrul Ates¹, Ilker Ustoglu²

¹ Nigde Omer Halisdemir University, Computer Engineering Department, Nigde, Turkey ² Yildiz Technical University, Control and Automation Engineering Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

This paper represents Communications-Based Train Control(CBTC) system, which is based on moving block signalling. Eventually, in this control system Automatic Train Operation(ATO) subsystem, which is based on driverless vehicle control, is experimented. In this system, the trains are moved by communicating each other using wireless connection. In this way, faster rail traffic flow is ensured, especially in metro lines. In this study, the trains are modeled as a MIMO system with mass-spring-damper model. Then, a driving force is applied to this system as an input and a speed profile is obtained from this output. For two train model, speed profiles, nose locations and tail locations of trains are compared with this algorithm. According to this study, safe proceeding of these trains is obtained. After that, Relationships between speed profiles and distances of trains are showed. Finally, safe braking distance between these trains is calculated, when trains are stopped at any station. This calculation is solved depending on speed of the rear train. So, the faster the rear train, the longer safe braking distance must be. Besides, a safety margin distance is defined for safe stopping at the station. In simulations prepared using Matlab-SimulinkTM, train models, speed profiles, locations, accelerations, forces and relationships are showed.

Keywords: CBTC system, mass-spring-damper model, speed profile

References

- Allotta, B., Chisci, L., D'Adamio, P., Papini, S., & Pugi, L. (2013). Design of an Automatic Train Operation (ATO) system based on CBTC for the management of driverless suburban railways. *12th IMEKO TC10 Workshop on Technical Diagnostics: New Perspective in Measurements, Tools and Techniques for Industrial Applications, Proceedings, 0,* 84–89.
- [2] Takagi, R. (2012). Synchronisation control of trains on the railway track controlled by the moving block signalling system. *IET Electrical Systems in Transportation*, 2(3), 130. https://doi.org/10.1049/ietest.2011.0053
- [3] Yin, J., Tang, T., Yang, L., Xun, J., Huang, Y., & Gao, Z. (2017). Research and development of automatic train operation for railway transportation systems: A survey. *Transportation Research Part C: Emerging Technologies*. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.trc.2017.09.009

 \square Corresponding Author Email: <u>eates@ohu.edu.tr</u>

Modeling and Simulation of an Autonomous Wheelchair with Control Purposes

Efgan Uğur^{1⊠}, Tolgay Kara², Abdulhafez Abdulhafez³

¹ Niğde Ömer Halisdemir University, Computer Engineering Department, Niğde, Turkey
 ² Gaziantep University, Electrical and Electronics Engineering Department, Gaziantep, Turkey
 ³ Hasan Kalyoncu University, Computer Engineering Department, Gaziantep, Turkey

Abstract

This paper presents mathematical modeling and simulation of an autonomous wheelchair with control purposes, which constitutes an important part of a research project on vision-based smart wheelchair control and navigation. Currently available electric wheelchairs fail in satisfying the needs of disabled people in many cases such as neuromuscular disabilities, reflex disabilities, etc. Additionally, wheelchair outdoor navigation encounters high risk and serious challenges. The project aims to solve mobility problem of disabled people by adding visual information technology and efficient motion control and navigation design to standard electric wheelchair. To achieve this goal, first the mathematical model of wheelchair dynamics is built in such a way that it describes the main characteristics and dynamical behavior of system. A computer simulation model is developed to observe the results of the study. The simulation is implemented in three steps. Firstly, linear model of DC motor is extracted and analyzed for right and left wheels of the wheelchair in the simulation. Secondly, mathematical model of the chassis of chair is obtained and linearized. Lastly, integration with dynamic model of DC motor is completed by using system parameters. Inertia of body and internal resistance of motor are found experimentally. Back emf constant K_v , torque constant K_t are calculated. Effects of disturbances like rolling resistance, axle friction and air drag are analyzed. Also, influences of rider mass are shown on left and right motors. Using the results of simulation tests, control algorithm is developed for efficient motor control. Linear displacement, position control, direction control and velocity of wheelchair are presented in the computer simulation results. In conclusion, it is revealed that obtained mathematical model is capable of representing autonomous wheelchair dynamics in open-loop and closed-loop and simulation results prove effectiveness of the model and designed control system. Results of the study will be used in the research project that aims to solve the autonomous wheelchair control problem.

Keywords: Autonomous wheelchair, mathematical modeling, simulation, wheelchair control.

Acknowledgements

This work is supported by The Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey (TUBİTAK), through project 117E173.

References

- [1] Johnson, B. W., & Aylor, J. H. (1985). Dynamic Modeling of an Electric Wheelchair. *IEEE Transactions* on *Industry Applications*, *IA*-21(5), 1284–1293.
- [2] Celeste, W. C., Filho, T. F. B., Filho, M. S., & Carelli, R. (2008). Dynamic model and control structure for an autonomous wheelchair. 2008 IEEE International Symposium on Industrial Electronics, 1359–1364.
- [3] Jamil, O., Jamil, M., Ayaz, Y., & Ahmad, K. (2014). Modeling, control of a two-wheeled self-balancing robot. In 2014 International Conference on Robotics and Emerging Allied Technologies in Engineering, iCREATE 2014 – Proceedings (pp. 191–199). IEEE Computer Society.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>efgan.ugur@ohu.edu.tr</u>

A Flower Pollination Algorithm for Improving Cluster Analysis

İlker Gölcük[⊠], Adil Baykasoğlu, Fehmi Burçin Özsoydan

Dokuz Eylül University, Industrial Engineering Department, İzmir, Turkey

Abstract

Cluster analysis is a popular data analysis and data mining technique. Clustering helps reveal hidden structural relationships in data. In the literature, many clustering methods have been proposed so far. Among plethora of clustering methods which have been proposed so far, k-means clustering is the widely preferred algorithm mainly due to its simplicity and practicality. Despite its many advantages, k-means clustering has some drawbacks. One of the shortcomings of k-means clustering algorithm is that its performance is highly dependent on the initial solutions, and the algorithm traps into local optima. In this study, flower pollination algorithm, which is based on the flower pollination behavior in nature, is employed in order to identify the best clusters without trapping into local optima. Flower pollination algorithm is a member of swarm intelligence-based metaheuristics. Flower pollination behavior stems from the purpose of reproduction. From the evolutionary perspective, the objective of flower pollination is the survival of the fittest and the optimal reproduction of species. All the factors and processes of flower pollination interact with each other in order to achieve optimal reproduction of the flowering plants. Among other swarm intelligence based metaheuristics such as ant colony algorithm, particle swarm optimization or immune systems, flower pollination algorithm exhibits superior performance in many numerical optimization problems. However, flower pollination algorithm is very little issued in the clustering literature. In this study, flower pollination algorithm is carried out in order to improve k-means clustering algorithm. The performance of the proposed approach is analyzed by using the standard benchmark problems which are taken from the UCI machine learning repository. The initial results have showed that the proposed approach improves the traditional k-means algorithm.

Keywords: Flower pollination algorithm, cluster analysis, global optimization

References

- [1] Yang, Xin-She (2012). Flower pollination algorithm for global optimization. In International conference on unconventional computing and natural computation, pp. 240-249. Springer, Berlin, Heidelberg.
- [2] Likas, A., Vlassis, N., & Verbeek, J. J. (2003). The global k-means clustering algorithm. Pattern recognition, 36(2), 451-461.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ilker.golcuk@deu.edu.tr</u>

A Cultural Algorithm for Mechanical Design Optimization

İlker Gölcük[⊠], Adil Baykasoğlu, Fehmi Burçin Özsoydan

Dokuz Eylül University, Industrial Engineering Department, İzmir, Turkey

Abstract

The real life engineering problems are hard to be solved optimally due to some strict limitations of the classical optimization techniques. This difficulty is mainly due to the fact that the inherent search procedures of those techniques are based on local search mechanisms that are designed for certain class of problems. In other words, problem specific constraints, objective function formation and type of decision variables make the engineering optimization quite challenging area. Furthermore, the performance of the classical optimization techniques is heavily related to structure of the solution space. For instance, convexity or concavity of the solution space compel finding out suitable solution techniques or revising the model representation, viz. constraints or objective function. To sum up, it is difficult to generalize a classical solution approach for all types of optimization problems. In addition, most of the real life problems including design optimization problems inherently involve diverse types of variables, constraints and objective functions simultaneously. For that reason, metaheuristic algorithms have been widely employed in handling real life design optimization problems. The cultural algorithm is one of the population-based metaheuristic algorithms that mimics social evolution and learning in agent-based societies. In the cultural algorithm, the experience of population of agents are integrated into a belief space consisting of various forms of symbolic knowledge. The two basic components of the cultural algorithms are population space and the belief space. In each generation of the algorithm, individuals of the population are evaluated with respect to objective function. Then, some of the individuals are allowed to change their belief space and the belief space is updated based on the experience of the individuals. Furthermore, belief space is allowed to influence the selection of individuals for the next generations. The feedback mechanism between population and belief space is one of the distinct aspects of the cultural algorithms. In this study, a set of mechanical design problems are studied and the performance of the cultural algorithm is tested. The design of a tension/compression coil spring, design of a pressure vessel, and design of a welded beam problems are solved by cultural algorithms. The cultural algorithms have proved to be efficient and effective for engineering optimization design.

Keywords: Cultural algorithm, global optimization, mechanical design.

References

- [1] Baykasoğlu, A., & Ozsoydan, F. B. (2015). Adaptive firefly algorithm with chaos for mechanical design optimization problems. Applied Soft Computing, 36, 152-164.
- [2] Reynolds, R. G. (1994). An introduction to cultural algorithms. In Proceedings of the third annual conference on evolutionary programming, pp. 131-139. Singapore.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ilker.golcuk@deu.edu.tr</u>

Wind Farm Layout Optimization for Minimum Wake Loss

Melike Sultan Karasu Asnaz^{1⊠}, Bedri Yüksel², Kadriye Ergün¹

¹ Balikesir University, Industrial Engineering Department, Balikesir, Turkey ² Istanbul Gelisim University, Mechatronics Engineering Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

In the case of a wind farm design the wake interactions between wind turbines are one of the most critical subject that has to be considered. The wake in downstream is characterized by a deficit in wind speed and increased in turbulence. So, the downstream turbines cannot produce expected power from the wind anymore [1]. In this paper, the main concern is finding the best layout in terms of maximum power production. A wind turbine placement model is addressed for a 350m x 1000m rectangle shaped site. The hourly average wind speeds and directions for a whole year have been supplied from a 10m met mast in this area. A topographic map is used to obtain the data of terrain. First, wind farm's geographic position data which are latitude, longitude and elevation are generated by scanning a topographic map. A set of 1568 scanned point data are collected. The latitude and longitude values in the data set are both angles in radians, while corresponding elevations are in meters. In order to eliminate this incompatibility, latitude and longitude values of the terrain are transformed into geodesic distances by the formula of Vincenty. Thus, the data set turned into a three dimensional Cartesian coordinates in metrics. Each coordinate of terrain is considered as a possible turbine location, and the terrain is not discretized in a matrix as in many studies proposed. The solution starts with a heuristic which is based on wind shear while keeping the minimum distance between two turbines. Here, the aim is, to locate the first turbine to the highest point instead of first row of the terrain, since the highest point has the highest wind speed [2]. So, based on elevation values an initial population obtained heuristically. The genetic algorithm is then proposed to find an optimal placement of wind turbines considering to minimize the wake loss. This mainly depends on the number of wind turbines, wind speed and direction, characteristics of terrain and wind turbine features. Different parameters are evaluated, and the results of velocity deficits and total power output in each case are presented and compared.

Keywords: Micro-siting, wake loss, wind farm layout optimization, optimal placement.

Acknowledgements

This work was supported by The Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey (TUBITAK) 2211-C doctoral research fellowship program.

References

- Chowdhury S, Zhang J, Messac A. & Castillo L. (2012). Unrestricted wind farm layout optimization (UWFLO): Investigating key factors influencing the maximum power generation. Renewable Energy, 38, 16–30.
- [2] Saavedra-Moreno B, Salcedo-Sanz S, Paniagua-Tineo A, Prieto, L, Portilla-Figueras A. (2011). Seeding evolutionary algorithms with heuristics for optimal wind turbines positioning in wind farms. Renewable Energy, 36, 2838–44.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>karasu@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Design of Experiment Setup for Fractional Order Chaotic Systems

Akif Akgul, Burak Aricioglu, Bilal Gurevin[⊠], Sezgin Kacar

Sakarya University, Department of Electrical & Electronics Engineering, Sakarya, Turkey

Abstract

Chaos and chaotic systems are one of the most popular topics in the recent years. One of the reasons for chaos to be very popular is it can be applied in different fields of studies like communication, encryption, control and finance etc. Another application field of chaos is physical realization and electronic circuit modelling of chaotic systems. The chaotic systems can be categorized into two: fractional order and integer order chaotic systems. The physical realization of chaotic systems are quite difficult due to their very sensitive and complex nature. There are many studies in the literature regarding this issue [1-3]. However, the most of the realized studies are on the integer order chaotic systems [4-5]. The studies on the fractional order chaotic systems are very rare. One of the reasons is the realization of the fractional order chaotic systems are very difficult than that of the integer order chaotic systems. All the dynamics phenomena we encounter in the real world and their properties can be defined almost exactly with the fractional order systems. This makes the investigation of the fractional order chaotic systems very meaningful. In this study, an electronic card is designed for easy realization of the fractional order chaotic systems. With the designed electronic card, both integer and fractional order chaotic systems can be easily realized and their results can be obtained via an oscilloscope. In the future studies, many different fractional order chaotic systems will be realized to show that the fractional order chaotic systems and their applications can be used in different engineering fields.

Keywords: Chaos, chaotic systems, fractional order nonlinear systems, electronic circuit design.

Acknowledgements

This work was supported financially by Sakarya University Scientific Research Projects Unit (Grants No.: 2017-09-00-010).

References

- [1] Akgul, A., Calgan, H., Koyuncu, I., Pehlivan, I., & Istanbullu, A. (2016). Chaos-based engineering applications with a 3D chaotic system without equilibrium points. Nonlinear dynamics, 84(2), 481-495.
- [2] Wei, Z., Moroz, I., Sprott, J. C., Akgul, A., & Zhang, W. (2017). Hidden hyperchaos and electronic circuit application in a 5D self-exciting homopolar disc dynamo. Chaos: An Interdisciplinary Journal of Nonlinear Science, 27(3), 033101.
- [3] Rajagopal, K., Akgul, A., Jafari, S., Karthikeyan, A., & Koyuncu, I. (2017). Chaotic chameleon: Dynamic analyses, circuit implementation, FPGA design and fractional-order form with basic analyses. Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, 103, 476-487.
- [4] Pham, V. T., Akgul, A., Volos, C., Jafari, S., & Kapitaniak, T. (2017). Dynamics and circuit realization of a no-equilibrium chaotic system with a boostable variable. AEU-International Journal of Electronics and Communications, 78, 134-140.
- [5] Li, C., Sprott, J. C., Akgul, A., Iu, H. H., & Zhao, Y. (2017). A new chaotic oscillator with free control. Chaos: An Interdisciplinary Journal of Nonlinear Science, 27(8), 083101.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>bilalsau@gmail.com</u>

Modeling and Optimizing of the Intelligent Traffic Light system by using PLC

Ebru Dağ[⊠], Metin Demirtas, Haris Calgan, Erdem İlten

Balikesir University, Electrical Electronics Department, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

This paper presents the implementation of a traffic light control system by using PLC [1]. TIA Portal program is used to adjust the appropriate duration between the traffic lights according to the traffic jam. Traffic lights give safety to the users on roads [2]. The main objective of this paper is to obtain the model and application for a suitable algorithm and its simulation for an intelligent traffic signal flow. Mathematical modeling can be used to describe the real-world phenomena and make predictions about the real-world. The developed system is able to sense the presence or absence of vehicles within a certain range by setting the appropriate duration and using sensor data. Traffic load is highly dependent on parameters such as time, day, season, weather and unpredictable situations such as accidents, special events or construction activities [3]. If these parameters are not taken into account, the traffic control system will create bottlenecks and delays. The proposed intelligent traffic control system solves these problems by continuously sensing and monitoring traffic conditions and adjusting the timing of traffic lights according to the actual traffic load. Mathematical functions are used to calculate the appropriate timing for illuminating of the green light [4]. The timing can be written according to the traffic flows in a day but it is exactly not to solve the traffic jam [5]. The critical timing operation is required to be carried out under the existence of heavy traffic conditions. Optimization of traffic light cycle in the roads with regard to the timeframe and traffic volume causes the increasing of traffic management quality. Another important aspect is to decrease of gas emission pollution. The PLC checks the status of the sensors according to the intelligent traffic control algorithm written by experts. After that it provides output signals to the traffic lights for ON or OFF the red, yellow or green lights. PLC provides fast automation and effective optimization of traffic light control system. SIEMENS S7-1200 PLC and ladder logic program are used for controlling the lights in the system [6].

Keywords: Intelligent traffic lights, traffic control, mathematical model, optimization, PLC

Acknowledgements

This work was supported by TÜBİTAK (Grant No: 1139B411701776).

References

- [1] Ogunrinde, R.B. (2015). Mathematical Analogue Traffic System Model, American Journal of Mathematics and Statistics, 5(2), 88-94.
- [2] Kiselev, A.B., et al. (2004). Mathematical modelling of traffic flows on controlled roads. Journal of Applied Mathematics and Mechanics, 68(6), 933-939.
- [3] Ogunrinde, R.B. & Lebile, O. (2015). On Mathematical Model of Traffic Control, Mathematical Theory and Modeling, 5(1), 58-69.
- [4] Albagul, A., et al. Design and Fabrication of a Smart Traffic Light Control System.
- [5] Popescu, L.G., (2015). The Development Of A Model For The Traffic In A Urban Intersection, Fascicle of Management and Technological Engineering, 1, 29-32.
- [6] Kumari, S. & Kumari, S. (2017). Traffic Control System using PLC, International Journal of Engineering Science and Computing, 7(4), 9978-9981.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>dagebru95@gmail.com</u>

Nonlinear Analysis and Circuit Realization of Chaotic Aizawa System

Metin Varan, Bahar Ulusoy, Ihsan Pehlivan, Bilal Gurevin[⊠], Akif Akgul

Sakarya University, Department of Electrical & Electronics Engineering, Sakarya, Turkey

Abstract

The chaos theory which has been working theoretically and practically for the past several decades, has been adapted to many physical systems [1-5]. High complexities and unpredictable behaviors are essential characteristics of a chaotic system. Sensitive dependence on initial conditions is another important feature of a chaotic system. In this work, nonlinear analysis and circuit realization have been held for revealing dynamic characteristics of chaotic Aizawa System [6]. The nonlinear characteristics are investigated via time series, phase portraits, lyapunov exponents and bifurcation diagrams. Circuit realization is also applied for sketching dynamic behaviours of Aizawa attractor.

Keywords: Chaos, chaotic systems, Aizawa system, nonlinear analysis, bifurcation, electronic circuit realization.

Acknowledgements

This work was supported financially by Sakarya University Scientific Research Projects Unit (Grants No.: 2017-09-00-010).

References

- [1] Akgul, A., Calgan, H., Koyuncu, I., Pehlivan, I., & Istanbullu, A. (2016). Chaos-based engineering applications with a 3D chaotic system without equilibrium points. Nonlinear dynamics, 84(2), 481-495.
- [2] Wei, Z., Moroz, I., Sprott, J. C., Akgul, A., & Zhang, W. (2017). Hidden hyperchaos and electronic circuit application in a 5D self-exciting homopolar disc dynamo. Chaos: An Interdisciplinary Journal of Nonlinear Science, 27(3), 033101.
- [3] Rajagopal, K., Akgul, A., Jafari, S., Karthikeyan, A., & Koyuncu, I. (2017). Chaotic chameleon: Dynamic analyses, circuit implementation, FPGA design and fractional-order form with basic analyses. Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, 103, 476-487.
- [4] Pham, V. T., Akgul, A., Volos, C., Jafari, S., & Kapitaniak, T. (2017). Dynamics and circuit realization of a no-equilibrium chaotic system with a boostable variable. AEU-International Journal of Electronics and Communications, 78, 134-140.
- [5] Li, C., Sprott, J. C., Akgul, A., Iu, H. H., & Zhao, Y. (2017). A new chaotic oscillator with free control. Chaos: An Interdisciplinary Journal of Nonlinear Science, 27(8), 083101.
- [6] Aizawa A., Coullet P., Spiegel E. & Tresser C. (1985). Asymptotic chaos, Physica D,14(3), 327–47.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>bilalsau@gmail.com, akifakgul@ieee.org</u>

Conformable Fractional Optimal Control Problem with Transversality Condition

Beyza Billur İskender Eroğlu[⊠], Dilara Yapışkan

Balıkesir University, Mathematics Department, Balıkesir, Turkey

Abstract

Recently, a new and interesting definition has been proposed as an alternative fractional derivative operator by expanding the conventional limit definition of the classical derivative [1]. This local fractional operator, named as conformable fractional derivative, has been generalized with the left and right derivative approaches and also the higher order conformable fractional derivatives have been given, [2]. Many researchers have shown that some fundamental properties of the classical derivative are provided for conformable fractional derivative. Therefore, fractional differential equations with conformable fractional derivative became easily solvable with analytical ways [3]. This advantage of conformable fractional derivative leads quick applications of the conformable fractional differential equations to the real world problems both in the view of modeling [4, 5] and control [6, 7].

In this work, in addition to the necessary condition obtained in [7] the transversality condition is initially obtained for calculus of variations with conformable fractional derivatives. Then, the transversality condition is acquired for optimal control problems from the Hamiltonian formalism in which the optimal control problem is defined with a conformable fractional performance index subject to a conformable fractional dynamic system whose end-point is not fixed. The process is applied to find the optimal control of a diffusion equation defined with time-conformable fractional derivative. The optimal control law is achieved by using eigenfunction expansions of state and control and solving analytically the arising time dependent conformable fractional ordinary linear differential equation. The results are plotted by using MATLAB.

Keywords: Conformable fractional derivative, calculus of variations, optimal control, transversality condition.

Acknowledgements

This work is financially supported by Balıkesir Research Grant no. BAP 2018/022. The authors would like to thank the Balıkesir University.

References

- [1] Khalil, R., Al Horani, M., Yousef, A., Sababheh, M., (2014). A new definition of fractional derivative. Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics, 264, 65–70.
- [2] Abdeljawad, T. (2015). On conformable fractional calculus. Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics, 279, 57–66.
- [3] Ünal, E., Gökdoğan, A., Çelik, E. (2016). General solution to sequential linear conformable fractional differential equations with constant coefficients. arXiv:1602.01452v1 [math.CA].
- [4] Acan, O., Al-Qurashi, M.M., Baleanu, D. (2017). New exact solution of generalized biological population model. Journal of Nonlinear Sciences Application, 10, 3916-3929.
- [5] Avcı, D., Eroğlu İskender, B.B., Özdemir, N. (2017). The Dirichlet problem of a conformable advectiondiffusion equation. Thermal Science, 21 (1), 9-18.
- [6] Eroğlu İskender, B.B. Avcı, D., Özdemir, N. (2017). Optimal control problem for a conformable fractional heat conduction equation. ACTA Physica Polonica A, 132(3), 658-662.
- [7] Lazo, J.M., Torres D.F.M. (2017). Variational calculus with conformable fractional derivatives. Journal of Automatica Sinica, 4, 340-352.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>biskender@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Modeling of Chaotic Motion Video with Artificial Neural Networks

Murat Erhan Cimen, Sezgin Kacar, Emre Guleryuz, Bilal Gürevin[⊠], Akif Akgul

Sakarya University, Department of Electrical & Electronics Engineering, Sakarya, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, a chaotic motion is modelled using artificial neural networks can be created again. Chaotic signals can occur many fields like natural affairs, communication, encryption, finance, health [1, 2]. Artificial neural networks, fuzzy models, hammerstein model can be used to predict these types of signals as well as to provide a mathematical form to be modelled [3-6]. As an example of the motion that will be modelled in this study, there may be movement of an second order inverted pendulum, movements of balls on a billiard table, or phase diagrams of such systems. However, the phase diagram of the most basic Lorenz chaotic motion is preferred. The image position of the point or object that is followed in sequential images are determined by image processing techniques [7]. By using the position information obtained from these images, they are trained with backpropagation algorithm to artificial neural networks, which is NARX structure. NARX structures is constructed with two inputs, two outputs. Its first layer contains 100 neurons and second structure contains 20 neurons. Subsequently, NARX artificial neural networks were tested to try to get chaotic motion videos again. As a result, some chaotic signals, sequential images, or videos can be modelled with artificial neural networks instead of being mathematically modelled and reproduced.

Keywords: Chaos, chaotic systems, artificial neural networks, image processing.

References

- [1] Akgul, A., Calgan, H., Koyuncu, I., Pehlivan, I., & Istanbullu, A. (2016). Chaos-based engineering applications with a 3D chaotic system without equilibrium points. Nonlinear dynamics, 84(2), 481-495.
- [2] Wei, Z., Moroz, I., Sprott, J. C., Akgul, A., & Zhang, W. (2017). Hidden hyperchaos and electronic circuit application in a 5D self-exciting homopolar disc dynamo. Chaos: An Interdisciplinary Journal of Nonlinear Science, 27(3), 033101.
- [3] Camacho, E.F. & Alba, C.B. (2013). Model predictive control: Springer Science & Business Media.
- [4] Maguire, L.P. et al. (1998). Maguire, Liam P., et al. "Predicting a chaotic time series using a fuzzy neural network, Information Sciences, 112(1-4), 125-136.
- [5] Principe, J.C., Rathie, A. & Kuo, J-M. (1992). Prediction of Chaotic Time Series with Neural Networks, International Journal of Bifurcation and Chaos, 2(4), 989-996.
- [6] Gómez-Gil, P., Ramírez-Cortes, J.M., Pomares Hernández, S.E. & Alarcón-Aquino, V. (2011). A Neural Network Scheme for Long-Term Forecasting of Chaotic Time Series, Neural Processing Letters, 33, 215-233.
- [7] Gonzalez, R.C. & Woods, R.E. (2012). Digital image processing, ed: Upper Saddle River, NJ: Prentice Hall.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>bilalsau@gmail.com</u>

Agent-based Hormonal Regulation of Blood Glucose Levels Using Negative Feedback Control Mechanism

Sevcan Emek^{1⊠}, Vedat Evren², Şebnem Bora¹

¹ Ege University, Computer Engineering Department, Izmir, Turkey ² Ege University, Physiology Department, Izmir, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, we describe the hormonal regulation of blood glucose levels by agent-based modeling and simulation. Agent-based modeling and simulation is a technique in simulating and exploring phenomena that includes a large set of active components represented by agents. The agents perform specific tasks depending on rules of agents' actions and interactions in agent-based simulation environment. The goal of this study is to introduce and visualize the process by which the blood glucose levels are regulated by negative feedback control mechanism in order to maintain homeostasis inside the human body. We use to the negative feedback control mechanism with agent-based modeling approach to regulate the secretion of hormones which are responsible for increasing or decreasing the blood glucose levels. In order to implement negative feedback control mechanism, we offer three main agents which play important roles in the hormonal regulation of blood glucose levels. We develop our study in Repast Simphony platform which is Java based modeling system. Repast Simphony provide us a graphical user interface. By using Repast Simphony platform, we create our scenario tree including displays of agents, grid and continous space, data sets, data loaders, histogram and time charts. In the result of this study, we analyse the local behavior of the agents in the negative feedback loop and observe graphically how the blood glucose levels achieve normal levels. It is thought that this regulatory system which developed by effective modeling approach may contribute to the observation and analysis of other homeostatic control systems inside the human body.

Keywords: Agent, Agent-based modeling and simulation, homeostasis, negative feedback control, blood glucose levels.

References

- [1] Guyton, A.C., & Hall J.E. (2006). Textbook of Medical Physiology. Elseiver Inc, 11th ed.
- [2] Bora, Ş., Evren, V., Emek, S., & Çakırlar, I. (2017). Agent-based modeling and simulation of blood vessels in the cardiovascular system. Simulation: Transactions of the Society for Modeling and Simulation International, p 1-16, 2017. Doi: 0037549717712602.
- [3] Di MarzoSerugendo, G., Gleizes, M.-P., & Karageorgos, A. (2011). Self-organising Software From Natural to Artificial Adaptation, doi: 10.1007/978-3-642-17348-6.

Corresponding Author Email: sevcan.aytekin@gmail.com

New Exact Solutions for the Drinfeld-Sokolov Equation Using an Improved Bernoulli Sub-Equation Function Method

Faruk Dusunceli^{1⊠}, Haci Mehmet Baskonus², Hasan Bulut³

¹ Mardin Artuklu University, Department of Architecture, Mardin, Turkey
 ² Munzur University, Department of Computer Engineering, Tunceli, Turkey
 ³ Firat University, Department of Mathematics, Elaziğ, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, the application of the improved Bernoulli sub-equation function method to the Drinfeld-Sokolov system is presented. Some new solutions are successfully constructed. All the obtained solutions in this study satisfy the Drinfeld-Sokolov model. We carried out all the computations and the graphics plot in this paper by Wolfram Mathematica 9.

In this paper, the Drinfeld-Sokolov (DS) system of equations [1-2] is investigated by using the improved Bernoulli sub-equation function method [3].

The Drinfeld-Sokolov (DS) equation is given by

$$u_t + (v^2)_x = 0$$

$$v_t - av_{xxx} + 3dvu_x + 3kv_x u = 0$$
(1)

where u = u(x, y, t), v = v(x, y, t) and a, d, k are constants.

Various analytical approaches have been used in obtaining the exact solutions to the the Drinfeld-Sokolov (DS) system of equations. Wazwaz [4] used the sine-cosine and tanh method to DS, El Wakil and Abdou [5] used the modified extend tanh-function method for finding exact solutions for five model of nonlinear differential equations, one of which is the DS system. Zangh et al. [6] used the complex system for complex DS system.

Keywords: Drinfeld-Sokolov system of equations, Improved Bernoulli sub-equation function method

References

- [1] Goktas, U. & Hereman, W. (1997). Symbolic computation of conserved densities for systems of nonlinear evolution equations, Journal of Symbolic Computation, 24(5), 591–621.
- [2] Olver, P.J. (1993). Applications of Lie Groups to Differential Equations, vol. 107 of Graduate Texts in Mathematics, Springer, New York, USA, 2nd edition.
- [3] Baskonus, H.M. & Bulut, H. (2015). On the complex structures of Kundu-Eckhaus equation via improved Bernoulli sub-equation function method, Waves in Random and Complex Media, 25(4), 720-728.
- [4] Wazwaz, A.M. (2006). Exact and explicit travelling wave solutions for the nonlinear Drinfeld-Sokolov system, Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation, 11(3), 311–325.
- [5] El-Wakil, S.A. & Abdou, M.A. Modified extended tanh function method for solving nonlinear partial differential equations, Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, 31(5), 1256–1264.
- [6] Zhang, F., Qi, J. & Yuan, W. (2013). Modified extended tanh function method for solving nonlinear partial differential equations," Journal of Applied Mathematics, Article ID 523732.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>farukdusunceli@artuklu.edu.tr</u>

Chaos Extension in Coupled Lorenz Systems

Marat Akhmet¹, Mehmet Onur Fen²

Middle East Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey
 ² TED University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

The dynamics of unidirectionally coupled Lorenz systems [1] is investigated. It is rigorously proved that chaos can be extended from one Lorenz system to another. The extension of period-doubling cascade [2,3] and sensitivity [1,4], which is the main ingredient of chaos, are shown both theoretically and numerically. Moreover, the emergence of cyclic chaos and intermittency are considered for interconnected Lorenz systems. The results are valid if the drive Lorenz system is chaotic and the response system is non-chaotic, but admits a global asymptotically stable equilibrium or a globally attracting limit cycle.

The principal novelty of our investigation is that we create exogenous chaotic perturbations by means of the solutions of a chaotic Lorenz system, plug it into a regular Lorenz system, and find that chaos is inherited by the solutions of the latter. Such an approach has been widely used for differential equations before, but for regular disturbance functions. That is, it has been shown that an (almost) periodic perturbation function implies the existence of an (almost) periodic solution of the system.

Our approach can shed light on how global weather processes have to be described through mathematical models. A possible connection of the results with the global weather unpredictability is provided.

Keywords: Lorenz system, Chaos extension, Unidirectional coupling

Acknowledgements

M.O. Fen is supported by the 2219 scholarship programme of TÜBİTAK, the Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey.

References

- [1] Lorenz, E.N. (1963). Deterministic nonperiodic flow. Journal of the Atmospheric Sciences, 20, 130–141.
- [2] Franceschini, V. (1980). A Feigenbaum sequence of bifurcations in the Lorenz model, Journal of Statistical Physics, 22, 397–406.
- [3] Sander, E. & Yorke, J.A. (2011). Period-doubling cascades galore, Ergodic Theory and Dynamical Systems, 31, 1249–1267.
- [4] Sparrow, C. (1982). The Lorenz Equations: Bifurcations, Chaos and Strange Attractors. Springer-Verlag, New York.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>monur.fen@gmail.com</u>

Poincaré Chaos in Non-autonomous Equations

Marat Akhmet¹, Mehmet Onur Fen²

¹ Middle East Technical University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey
 ² TED University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

The starting point of the present study is the unpredictable point [1], which is a new object for the dynamical systems theory. We apply the topology of uniform convergence on compact sets to define unpredictable functions [2,3], which are compulsorily accompanied by Poincaré chaos. The topology is metrizable and easy for applications with integral operators. The unpredictable sequence is defined as a specific unpredictable function on the set of integers.

This study contributes to the theory of chaos as well as to the theories of differential and discrete equations such that the existence and uniqueness of the unpredictable solution are proved for a delay differential equation as well as quasilinear discrete systems. Besides illustrative examples that support the theoretical results, Poincaré chaos near periodic orbits is shown and an application to Hopfield neural networks [4] is provided.

In our opinion, a new field to analyze in the theory of differential equations has been discovered. Since many results of differential equations have their counterparts in discrete equations [5], one can suppose that theorems on the existence of unpredictable solutions can be proved for discrete equations. The present study is a one that realizes the both paradigms. The existence and uniqueness theorems for quasilinear delay and ordinary differential equations as well as difference equations have been proved, when the perturbation is an unpredictable function or sequence. This is visualized as Poincaré chaos in simulations.

Keywords: Unpredictable solutions, Poincaré chaos, Differential equations, Discrete equations

References

- [1] Akhmet M. & Fen M.O. (2016). Unpredictable points and chaos. Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation, 40, 1–5.
- [2] Akhmet, M. & Fen, M.O. (2017). Poincaré chaos and unpredictable functions. Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation, 48, 85–94.
- [3] Akhmet, M. & Fen, M.O. (2017). Existence of unpredictable solutions and chaos. Turkish Journal of Mathematics, 41, 254–266.
- [4] Hopfield, J.J. (1984). Neurons with graded response have collective computational properties like those of two-state neurons, Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America 81, 3088–3092.
- [5] Lakshmikantham, V. & Trigiante, D. (2002). Theory of Difference Equations: Numerical Methods and Applications. Marcel Dekker, United States of America.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>monur.fen@gmail.com</u>

Period-doubling Route to Chaos in Systems with Impulsive Effects

Fatma Tokmak Fen^{1⊠}, Mehmet Onur Fen²

¹ Gazi University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

² TED University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

One of the routes to chaos is the period-doubling cascade, which was first observed in quadratic maps [1]. This phenomenon is based on the successive emergence of periodic motions with twice period of the previous oscillation as some parameter is varied in a system [2,3]. A critical parameter value exists at which the process accumulates, and beyond the critical value the system possesses chaotic motions [2]. Period-doubling route to chaos can be observed in systems of differential as well as discrete equations [3,4].

In this study, we investigate the formation of chaotic dynamics through period-doubling cascade in systems of differential equations with impulses. Impulsive differential equations describe the dynamics of real world processes in which abrupt changes occur [5]. This type of equations are important from the applications point of view since they can be used for modelling in many fields such as mechanics, electronics, biology, neural networks, communication systems, and population dynamics [5]-[8]. We rigorously prove the existence of infinitely many unstable periodic solutions, and provide illustrative examples that support the theoretical results.

Keywords: Period-doubling cascade, Impulsive differential equations, Chaos

References

- Myrberg, P.J. (1958, 1959, 1963). Iteration der rellen polynome zweiten grades. Ann. Acad. Sci. Fenn., Ser. A, 256 (1958) 1–16; 268 (1959) 1–10; 336 (1963) 1–18.
- [2] Moon, F.C. (2004). Chaotic Vibrations: An Introduction for Applied Scientists and Engineers. John Wiley & Sons, Inc., Hoboken, New Jersey.
- [3] Sander, E. & Yorke, J.A. (2011). Period-doubling cascades galore. Ergodic Theory and Dynamical Systems, 31, 1249–1267.
- [4] Feigenbaum, M.J. (1980). Universal behavior in nonlinear systems. Los Alamos Science/Summer, 1, 4–27.
- [5] Akhmet, M. (2010). Principles of Discontinuous Dynamical Systems, Springer, New York.
- [6] Zhou, Q. (2009). Global exponential stability of BAM neural networks with distributed delays and impulses. Nonlinear Analysis: Real World Applications, 10, 144–153.
- [7] Ruiz-Herrera, A. (2012). Chaos in predator-prey systems with/without impulsive effect. Nonlinear Analysis: Real World Applications, 13, 977–986.
- [8] Khadra, A., Liu, X. & Shen, X. (2003). Application of impulsive synchronization to communication security. IEEE Transactions on Circuits and Systems I: Fundamental Theory and Applications, 50, 341– 351.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>fatmatokmak@gazi.edu.tr</u>

Third Order Impulsive Boundary Value Problems on Time Scales with Positive Solutions

İlkay Yaslan Karaca¹, Fatma Tokmak Fen^{2⊠}

¹ Ege University, Department of Mathematics, İzmir, Turkey
 ² Gazi University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

The theory of time scales, which was introduced by Hilger [1] to unify continuous and discrete analysis, has received a lot of attention among mathematicians. This theory has many applications in various disciplines such as mechanics, electronics, neural networks, population models, and economics [2]-[5]. Boundary value problems with integral boundary conditions have been the subject of investigations along the line with impulsive differential equations because of their wide applicability in various fields [6,7]. This study is devoted to positive solutions of a third-order impulsive boundary value problem with integral boundary conditions for the existence of at least one positive solution is obtained. Examples that support the main results are provided.

Keywords: Positive solutions, impulsive boundary value problems, time scales.

References

- [1] Hilger, S. (1988). Ein Masskettenkalkül mit Anwendung auf Zentrumsmanningfaltigkeiten. Ph.D. Thesis, Universitat Würzburg.
- [2] Bohner, M. & Peterson, A. (2003). Advances in Dynamic Equations on Time Scales. Birkhäuser, Boston.
- [3] Su, Y. & Feng, Z. (2014). Homoclinic orbits and periodic solutions for a class of Hamiltonian systems on time scales. Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, 411, 37–62.
- [4] Zhang, J., Fan, M. & Zhu, H. (2010). Periodic solution of single population models on time scales. Mathematical and Computer Modelling, 52, 515–521.
- [5] Tisdell, C.C. & Zaidi, A. (2008). Basic qualitative and quantitative results for solutions to nonlinear, dynamic equations on time scales with an application to economic modelling. Nonlinear Analysis, 68, 3504–3524.
- [6] Zhang, X., Feng, M. & Ge, W. (2008). Existence results for nonlinear boundary value problems with integral boundary conditions in Banach spaces. Nonlinear Analysis, 69, 3310–3321.
- [7] Lv, Z.W., Liang, J. & Xiao, T.J. (2010). Multiple positive solutions for second order impulsive boundary value problems in Banach spaces. Electronic Journal of Qualitative Theory of Differential Equations, 38, 1–15.
- [8] Avery, R., Henderson, J. & O'Regan, D. (2008). Four functionals fixed point theorem. Mathematical and Computer Modelling, 48, 1081–1089.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>fatmatokmak@gazi.edu.tr</u>

Feedback Linearization Control of a 2DOF Helicopter

Rahman Bitirgen¹[∞], Ismail Bayezit¹, Mahmut Reyhanoglu²

¹ Istanbul Technical University, Department of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Istanbul, Turkey
 ² University of North Carolina, Department of Engineering, Asheville, North Carolina, United States of America

Abstract

This paper presents the design procedure of a feedback-linearization-based nonlinear control law for a harware-in-the-loop 2DOF helicopter platform. The subject of control methods for aerial vehicles that are capable of vertical take-off and landing are studied because of having important role on fire detection, border patrol, etc. [1]. In the literature, there are several types of controllers tested on the this particular platform. Neural control is proposed in [1], neuro-fuzzy control designed and tested in [2], adaptive controller is shown to be adjusting itself to mass and inertia changes in [3].

In this paper, the authors present a feedback-linearization-based control for a 2DOF helicopter test platform. First the mathematical model of the system is obtained. The physical parameters such as mass, inertia, frictional coefficients are known. In order for the system to respond like an second order overdamped system, pitch motion is defined as a second order homogeneous differential equation including a parameter, lambda. The second derivative of pitch angle is put on the left hand side of the equation, and the others on the right. The first derivative of the pitch angle, and pitch angle terms are on the right hand side and are used in the feedback law. The same procedure is done for the yaw angle. The second derivative of the pitch and yaw angles are taken as virtual inputs and these virtual inputs are included in the nonlinear mathematical model of the system. The equations are solved for the motor voltages and thus the control law is obtained. The mathematical model should be close to the real system and results show that the system is driven to stability.

Keywords: helicopter, nonlinear control, feedback linearization,

Acknowledgements

The authors would like to thank the staff of the Model Based Design and Test Laboratory in the Faculty of Aeronautical and Astronautical Sciences in Istanbul Technical University.

References

- [1] Hernandez-Gonzalez, M., Alanis, A. Y., Hernandez-Vargas, E. A. (2012). Decentralized discrete-time neural control for a Quanser 2-DOF helicopter. Applied Soft Computing, 12 2462-2469.
- [2] Aras, A.C., Kaynak, O. (2014). Trajectory Tracking of a 2-DOF Helicopter System using Neuro-Fuzzy System with Parameterized Conjunctors. IEEE/ASME International Conference on Advanced Intelligent Mechatronics (AIM) Besançon, France.
- [3] Nuthi, P., Subbarao, K. (2015). Experimental Verification of Linear and Adaptive Control Techniques for a Two Degrees-of-Freedom Helicopter. Journal of Dynamic Systems, Measurement and Control, 137 064501-1

Corresponding Author Email: <u>bitirgen@itu.edu.tr</u>

Computational Fluid Dynamics Analysis of the NASA S-Duct Intake

İbrahim Kağan Kutlubay¹, Osman Babayiğit², Kürşad Melih Güleren^{3⊠}

 ¹ University of Turkish Aeronautical Association, Faculty of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Aeronautical Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey
 ² Selçuk University, Hadim Vocational School, Konya, Turkey
 ³ Anadolu University, Faculty of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Flight Training Department, Eskisehir, Turkey

Abstract

In the current study, a Computational Fluid Dynamics analysis is performed for the NASA S-duct intake case. This reference case is an experimental study conducted in the Lewis Research Center [1]. The experiment was performed by following steps: First, five cross-sectional planes were positioned on centerline and these planes included pneumatic probes. Three-dimensional velocity field, static and total pressures were obtained for these planes by using pneumatic probes. The flow parameters in the test were Mach number 0.6 and Reynolds Number 2.6 million. Thu current CFD results will be compared with the experimental data in reference study.

The study will start with the creation of the S-Duct based on the four non-linear equations which define the geometry. Three of these equations will be used for the centerline distribution and the other one for the calculation of the radius with respect to the center line [2]. The given geometry equations will be solved with Matlab software and the geometry will be created using the Solidworks software based on the data of the solved equations by Matlab. The geometry will be meshed using the Ansys Meshing software. The compressible Navier-Stokes equations for turbulent and compressible flow conditions are solved using the ANSYS Fluent software. Then the numerical results will be compared with the experimental data. The main purpose of this study will try to find the optimized numerical setup for the NASA S-Duct intake geometry which is a very critical design problem for the military purpose aircraft.

Keywords: NASA, S-Duct, subsonic flow, CFD

References

- [1] Steven R. Wellbom and Theodore H. Okiishi., & Bruce A. Reichert (1993). A Study of the Compressible Flow Through a Diffusing S-Duct
- [2] Steven R. Wellborn, & Bruce A. Reichert, & Theodore H. Okiishi (1992) An Experimental Investigation of the Flow in a Diffusing S-Duct

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>kmguleren@anadolu.edu.tr</u>

Time Optimal Control of a Reaction Wheel Actuated System

Rahman Bitirgen[⊠], Ismail Bayezit

Istanbul Technical University, Department of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

This paper presents the time optimal control design for a reaction wheel actuated system. Reaction wheels are mostly used in the space applications [1], as an actuator for attitude maneuvers [2], [3] and also for energy and momentum storage [4]. Spacecrafts can be controlled by these devices precisely [1]. In this paper, prior to aerospace application, hardware-in-the-loops tests are conducted for a reaction wheel. A flywheel of diameter 10cm and of thickness 2mm is designed and manufactured. It is mounted on an electric motor, the system can rotate around one axis. When the motor is accelerated, this creates a reaction torque on the system and it rotates in the opposite direction of the rotation of the flywheel. Similarly, as it is decelerated, a reaction torque in the opposite direction acts on the system. The angular velocity of the flywheel (ω) is measured for different voltages applied on the motor, also the time required to reach the maximum velocity (t_1) and the time from maximum velocity to zero (t_3) are known. If a reference angle is given (θ_{ref}) , and the initial angle (θ_0) and initial angular velocity $(\dot{\theta}_0)$ of the system is known, with the information, t_1 , t_3 and ω_{max} , the time to maneuver from initial angle to final angle can be calculated solving a second order linear ordinary differential equation. There are three phases of this operation, in the first phase, the wheel accelerates to maximum velocity in t_1 time, in the second phase, the wheel is at maximum speed (ω_{max}), in the final phase, the wheel decelerates to zero speed in t_3 time. The time required to stay in the second phase is t_2 and this is to be calculated knowing the reference angle. This procedure is applied and the results show that the system can be driven to reference angle with small error by using this method.

Keywords: reaction wheel, spacecraft control, attitude maneuver, momentum exchange

Acknowledgements

The authors would like to thank Muhsin Hancer, Afsin Baran Bayezit and Kamer Erol, the staff of the Model Based Design and Test Laboratory in the Faculty of Aeronautical and Astronautical Sciences in Istanbul Technical University (ITU).

The authors would also like to thank the Scientific Research Projects (BAP) department of ITU for the grant provided for the project number 40957.

References

- [4] Leve, F. A., Hamilton B. J., Peck, M. A. (2015). Spacecraft Momentum Control Systems, Springer.
- [5] Ismail, Z., Varatharajoo, R. (2010). A study of reaction wheel configurations for a 3-axis satellite attitude control. Advances in Space Research, 750-759.
- [6] Wang, B., Gong, K., Yang D., Li, J. (2003). Fine attitude control by reaction wheels using variable-structure controller. Acta Astronautica, 52, 613–618.
- [7] Jia, Y.-h., Xu, S. (2005). Spacecraft Attitude Tracking and Energy Storage Using Flywheels. Chinese Journal of Aeronautics, 18(1), 1-7.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>bitirgen@itu.edu.tr</u>

Numerical Investigation of Flash-Mounted Duct for Subsonic and Transonic Flow Regimes

Murat Gökay İmamoglu¹, Osman Babayiğit², Kürşad Melih Güleren^{3⊠}

¹ University of Turkish Aeronautical Association, Faculty of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Aeronautical Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey ² Selçuk University, Hadim Vocational School, Konya, Turkey ³ Anadolu University, Faculty of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Flight Training Department, Eskisehir, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, a numerical investigation is carried out for the NASA flush-mounted S-duct intake case for the subsonic and supersonic flow regimes. The referenced study is an experimental study carried out in the NASA Langley Research Center 0.3-Meter Transonic Cryogenic Tunnel. In that study, for the validation of the computational analysis, the OVERFLOW software was employed [1]. The experimental tests were conducted in wind tunnel through mounting intakes on the wind tunnel wall to simulate the boundary layer ingestion. The Mach numbers were changing from 0.25 and 0.83 and the Reynolds numbers from 5.1 million to 13.9 million. The mass flow ratios were varying from 0.29 to 1.22. The four S-duct intake models, namely Inlet-A, B, C, and D, were designed to integrate into the aircraft which required flush-mounted intakes. The experimental data of Inlet-A will be used in the study to compare the numerical results. The geometry parameters of S-duct with Inlet-A were described in four graphs which belong to the centerline distribution, cross-sectional areas, super-ellipse shape parameter, and dust aspect ratio for each section quadrant with respect to distance downstream beginning with the throat. The solid model of Inlet-A, as sketched in Ref. [2], will be sketched by using Solidworks by lofting 20 sections and the grid will be created using ANSYS Meshing. The subsonic and transonic Navier-Stokes equations for this flow problem will be solved using ANSYS Fluent software. The objective of this study is to compare the data of CFD and experimental study and hence to validate the flow solver.

Keywords: NASA, flush-mounted S-Duct, subsonic flow, transonic flow, CFD.

References

- [1] Berrier, B. L., Carter, M. B., & Allan, B. G. (2005). High Reynolds Number Investigation of a Flush-Mounted, S-Duct Inlet with Large Amounts of Boundary Layer Ingestion.
- [2] Akman, O. (2014). Subsonic-Transonic Submerged Intake Design for a Cruise Missile. 29-39.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>kmguleren@anadolu.edu.tr</u>

Concreteness and Likeliness of Design and Optimization Stages

Gülşen Yaman^{1⊠}, Ramazan Yaman², Ramazan Altay³, Emir Can Yaman⁴

¹ Balıkesir University, Mechanical Engineering Department, Balıkesir, Turkey
 ² İstanbul Gelişim University, Industrial Engineering Department, İstanbul, Turkey
 ³BEST Co., R&D Department, Balıkesir, Turkey
 ⁴Bases Technologies, İstanbul, Turkey

Abstract

This study brings a view to engineering design process and optimization stage in order to improve equipment/system functions, economical manners, and time-saving measures. The first part tries to summarize standardized engineering design processes. The second step of the study puts discussions about optimization of design stages that improve expectations from the equipment or the system. The third section is for exemplification of the approach with a case study. This shows all junctions of the design stages and optimization stages via a case design.

Keywords: Design, optimization, case study.

Acknowledgements

We would like to thanks BEST A.Ş. for the support realization of the experimental work.

References

- [1] MAI Lv-bo, (2013). Design Method of Equipment Optimization Development Based and Standaditization Theory, Defence Technology, 9(3), 140–145.
- [2] Arora Jasbir, (2016), Introduction to Optimum Design, Academic Press, 4th ed.
- [3] Alzbeta Sapietova, Milan Saga1, Ivan Kuric, and Stefan Vaclav, Application of optimization algorithms for robot systems designing, International Journal of Advanced Robotic Systems January-February 2018,795-808
- [4] Chicago Architecture Foundation, 2018, What Is The Design Process? Why Is It Helpful? www.discoverdesign.org/handbook

Corresponding Author Email: <u>yamangulsen@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Supersonic CFD Analysis of a Mach 2.65 Mixed-Compression Axisymmetric Intake

Arif Can Başıbüyük¹, Osman Kocaaslan², Kürşad Melih Güleren^{3⊠}

 ¹ University of Turkish Aeronautical Association, Faculty of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Aeronautical Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey
 ² Selçuk University, Huğlu Vocational School, Konya, Turkey
 ³ Anadolu University, Faculty of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Flight Training Department, Eskisehir, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, the flow through a supersonic axisymmetric intake will be simulated using ANSYS Fluent flow solver. The numerical data obtained from CFD analysis will be compared to the experimental data. The reference experimental study was performed at NASA Ames Research Center's wind tunnel facilities as expressed in Ref. [1]. The main purpose of the current study is to calculate the performance and capacity of the intake and compare the results with the Mach number of 2.65. The test model was 1/3 scale model of main supersonic intake and the diameter of the model cowl lip is 49.723 cm. This supersonic intake model is created using Solidworks as shown in Fig.1.

The meshing of the geometry will be created using ANSYS Meshing and the Navier-Strokes equations for the corresponding supersonic compressible turbulent flow will be solved using ANSYS Fluent software. The governing equations are shown in Eqs. (1-3) as expressed in [2].



Figure 1: Cross section of geometry design of the axisymmetric intake in Solidworks.

$$\frac{\partial \rho}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial (\rho u_i)}{\partial x_i} = 0 \tag{1}$$

$$\frac{\partial(\rho u_i)}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial(\rho u_i u_j)}{\partial x_j} = \frac{\partial p}{\partial x_i} + \frac{\partial}{\partial x_j} \left[\mu \left(\frac{\partial u_i}{\partial x_j} + \frac{\partial u_j}{\partial x_i} - \frac{3}{2} \delta_{ij} \frac{\partial u_l}{\partial x_l} \right) \right] + \frac{\partial}{\partial x_j} \left(-\rho \overline{u'_i u'_j} \right)$$
(2)

$$\frac{\partial \rho \overline{h_s}}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial \rho \overline{u_l} \overline{h_s}}{\partial x_i} - \frac{\partial \overline{\rho}}{\partial t} - u_j \frac{\partial \overline{\rho}}{\partial x_i} - \frac{\partial}{\partial x_i} \left(\lambda \frac{\partial \overline{T}}{\partial x_i} \right) = \frac{\partial}{\partial x_j} \left[\rho \left(\overline{u_l h_s} - \overline{u_l} \overline{h_s} \right) \right]$$
(3)

Keywords: Axisymmetric Intake, Supersonic Flow, CFD

References

- [1] Koncsek, J.L., & Syberg, J. (1972). *Transonic and Supersonic Test of a Mach 2.65 Mixed-Compression Axisymetric Intake*, NASA
- [2] Ansys Fluent Theory Guide. (2013, November)

Corresponding Author Email: <u>kmguleren@anadolu.edu.tr</u>

New Exact Solutions for the Doubly Dispersive Equation Using an Improved Bernoulli Sub-Equation Function Method

Faruk Dusunceli^{1⊠}, Ercan Celik², Muzaffer Askin³

¹ Mardin Artuklu University, Department of Architecture, Mardin, Turkey
 ² Ataturk University, Department of Mathematics, Erzurum, Turkey
 ³ Munzur University, Department of Computer Engineering, Tunceli, Turkey

Abstract

Nonlinear evolution equations (NLEEs) are widely used to model various nonlinear complex phenomena arising in different field of nonlinear sciences, such as; optical fibers, fluid dynamics, fluid mechanics, plasma physics, condense matter physics, nonlinear dispersive media among others [1–4]. As the NLEEs describe various aspects of our real-life situations, its therefore important to seek for their solitary wave solutions [5]. The doubly dispersive equation is an important nonlinear physical model describing the wave propagation in the nonlinearity elastic inhomogeneous Murnaghan's rod. In this paper, the application of the improved Bernoulli sub-equation function method to the doubly dispersive equation is presented. Some new solutions are successfully constructed. Under the suitable choice of the values of parameters, the 2D, 3D and the contour graphics of some secured solutions are plotted. The doubly dispersive equation [6] is given by

$$\phi_{tt} - \left(\frac{1}{\rho}(E\phi)_x\right)_x = \frac{\epsilon}{2} \left(\frac{1}{\rho}(p\beta\phi^2 + pv^2\phi_{tt} - (b\alpha v^2\phi_x)_x)_x\right)_x \tag{1}$$

where $b = \frac{M}{E} < 1$, $p = \frac{B}{E}$ are combinations of the constant scale factors.

Keywords: Doubly Dispersive Equation, Improved Bernoulli sub-equation function method, Exact solutions

References

- Eslami, M. (2016). Trial solution technique to chiral nonlinear Schrödinger equation in (1+2)-dimensions, Nonlinear Dyn., 85(2) 813-816.
- [2] Mirzazadeh, M., Arnous, A.H., Mahmood, M.F., Zerrad, E. & Biswas, A. (2015). Soliton solutions to resonant nonlinear schrodinger's equation with timedependent coefficients by trial solution approach, Nonlinear Dynamics, 81(8), 277-282
- [3] Bulut, H., Sulaiman, T.A. & Demirdag, B. (2017). Dynamics of soliton solutions in the chiral nonlinear Schr"odinger equations, Nonlinear Dyn., https://doi.org/10.1007/s11071-017-3997-9
- [4] Wazwaz, A.M. (2008). A study on linear and nonlinear Schrodinger equations by the variational iteration method, Chaos Solit. Frac., 37,1136-1142.
- [5] Baskonus, H.M., Bulut, H. and Sulaiman, T.A. (2017). Investigation of various travelling wave solutions to the extended (2+1)-dimensional quantum ZK equation, Eur. Phys. J. Plus, 132, 482
- [6] Samsonov, A.M. (2001). Strain Solitons and How to Construct Them., Chapman and Hall/CRC, Boca Raton.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>farukdusunceli@artuklu.edu.tr</u>

A Cost-Benefit Analysis on Ship Speed Optimization

Utku Cem Karabulut, Olcay Sert, Levent Bilgili[⊠], Alper Kılıç

Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Maritime Faculty, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

Maritime sector is a comprehensive branch of industry with its numerous fields of application and various operation processes. Because approximately 90 % of world trade is handled by maritime trade, it plays an indispensable role on world trade network. Although the great capacity that maritime trading system can manage, the success of the system is strongly bound to some factors such as absolute punctuality, safety and cooperation of shareholders. In order to obtain satisfactory benefits from the trading process, the ship must depart from and arrive to the ports just in time. For timing is totally depends on ship speed, speed optimization has a crucial importance for ships. Nevertheless, ship optimization, which has impacts on fuel consumption, ship flue gas emissions and general operation costs, is a multidimensional issue.

The speed of a ship is optimized during design stage; however, in some cases, the design speed may not be optimal speed due to the time constraints. While very high speeds are costly because of greater fuel consumption and increased engine size and weight, slow speeds extend the time between the scheduled voyages [1]. Although it is well known that speed reduction is an important way to reduce CO_2 emissions, this method has some constraints, as well. Lindstad et al., (2011) [2] investigated the impacts of speed reduction on emission reduction and general costs. It is concluded that the emissions can be reduced by 28 % with zero cost. On the other hand, if the emission reduction amount increased to 33 % and 36 %, 20 \$ and 50 \$ must be spent per ton CO_2 reduction, respectively. According to the suggestions of the authors, there must be no speed limits for ships which must escape from pirates and navigate in harsh weather. Corbett et al., (2009) [3] concluded that reducing the speed by 50 % can provide a 70 % CO_2 reduction; however, 20 % reduction of CO_2 cause 30-200 \$ cost per ton CO_2 reduction. Cariou, (2011) [4] concluded that speed reduction provided a 11 % reduction on emissions during the period of 2008-2010; however, it is also indicated that this method is only accepted as sustainable if the fuel prices are lower than 400 \$.

Ship speed optimization brings some uncertainties besides its remarkable benefits. Although it can be accepted as an important way to reduce emissions, it must be updating for every voyage and condition.

Keywords: Ship speed optimization, fuel consumption, cost-benefit analysis

References

- Evans, J. & Marlow, P., (1990). Quantitative methods in maritime economics, Fairplay Publications, 2nd Edition, ISBN: 1870093 31 3.
- [2] Lindstad, H., Asbjørnslett, B.E. & Strømann, A.H. (2011). Reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and cost by shipping at lower speeds, Energy Policy, 39:3456-3464.
- [3] Corbett, J.J., Wang, H. & Winebrake, J.J. (2009). The effectiveness and costs of speed reductions on emissions from international shipping, Transportation Research Part D, 14:593-598.
- [4] Cariou, P. (2011). "Is slow steaming a sustainable means of reducing CO2 emissions from container ships?", Transportation Research Part D, 16:260-264.

[™]Corresponding Author Email: <u>lbilgili@bandirma.edu.tr</u>

Queuing Theory Applications in Maritime Transport

Alper Kilic[⊠], Omer Can Karakurt, Utku Cem Karabulut, Levent Bilgili

Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Maritime Faculty, Bandirma, Turkey

Abstract

Transportation is the process of transferring a person or a commodity from one place to another. There are factors such as time, distance, cost and safety that need to be taken into account when carrying out the transportation operation. The means of transportation have shown tremendous progress since the beginning of civilization. Along with the increased need for transportation, those who want to meet their transportation needs also have the desire to make transportation operations at less cost, shorter time, and higher security.

In parallel with the intensive use of maritime transportation, ship traffic in the sea is increasing. This increased traffic brings many accidents at sea. With the increase in marine traffic, intensive ship traffic occurs in the straits. Also, ships waiting for loading and unloading at the ports also constitute a maritime traffic and this traffic is both dangerous and brings extra cost. Inefficient use of ports can not only result in loss of port competitiveness but also increase the volume of polluting ship emissions [1]. In order to solve these problems in maritime transportation, some studies have been done with the queuing theory [2-6].

Basically, queuing theory reduces waiting time to the minimum, eliminating traffics caused by queues, and minimizing costs caused by waiting. The queuing theory is used in the calculation of the queues created by the voyages passing through the straits, the prevention of the bottlenecks during loading and unloading in ports and in the planning of port operations. The purpose of this study is to demonstrate the use and benefits of queuing theory in marine transportation.

Keywords: Maritime, queuing theory, shipping, transportation, port.

References

- [1] Lalla-Ruiz, E., Shi, X., & Vob, S. (2018). The waterway ship scheduling problem. Transportation Research Part D: Transport and Environment, 60, 191-209.
- [2] Saeed, N. & Larsen O.I. (2016). Application of queuing methodology to analyze congestion: A case study of the Manila International Container Terminal, Philippines. Case Studies on Transport Policy, 4(2), 143-149.
- [3] Ruiz-Aguilar, J.J, Turias, I.J., Cerban, M., Jimenez-Come, M.J., Gonzalez, M.J. & Pulido, A. (2016). Time Analysis of the Containerized Cargo Flow in the Logistic Chain Using Simulation Tools: The Case of the Port of Seville (Spain). Transportation Research Procedia, 18, 19-26.
- [4] Roy, D. & Koster, R. (2018). Stochastic modeling of unloading and loading operations at a container terminal using automated lifting vehicles. European Journal of Operational Research, 266 (3), 895-910.
- [5] Meng, Q., Weng, J. & Suyi, L. (2017). Impact Analysis of Mega Vessels on Container Terminal Operations. Transportation Research Procedia, 25, 187-204.
- [6] Canonaco, P., Legato, P., Mazza, R. M. & Musmanno, R. (2008). A queuing network model for the management of berth crane operations. Computers & Operations Research, 35 (8), 2432-2446.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>alperkilic@bandirma.edu.tr</u>

Control of Thermal Stresses Based on Angular Symmetric Fractional Heat Conduction Equation in A Half-Space

Derya Avci^{1⊠}, Beyza Billur İskender Eroğlu¹, Necati Özdemir¹, Yuriy Povstenko²

¹ Balikesir University, Department of Mathematics, Balikesir, Turkey ² Jan Długosz University, Institute of Mathematics and Computer Science, Częstochowa, Poland

Abstract

The generalized theories of thermoelasticity are based on fractional heat conduction equation which has emerged from the time-nonlocal dependences between the heat flux vector and the temperature gradient with the long-tale power kernel interpreted in terms of fractional calculus [1-3]. The fundamental solutions for fractional heat conduction equations in different coordinate systems and also the resulting thermal structures have been analyzed [4]. In the classical theory of thermoelasticity, some types of temperature control problems have been studied [5]. In the recent years, temperature control function has been analyzed as a source term or boundary value for a fractional heat conduction problem [6,7] In this study, the time-fractional heat conduction equation with Caputo derivative of order $0 \le \alpha \le 2$ in a semi-infinite cylinder is considered. A sought-for function is used as a control which guarantees the fulfillment of restrictions on the thermal stress components. The temperature function is computed by applying the Laplace transform with respect to time t and the Hankel transform with respect to the angular coordinate r. Note that angular symmetric case is assumed throughout the formulation. By using the inverse integral transforms and also the conventional relation between temperature and thermal displacement functions, the control function is obtained. Consequently, the dependence of control function, the resulting displacements and stresses components on the variation of fractional order are evaluated.

Keywords: fractional heat-conduction equation, fractional thermoelasticity, control of thermal stresses

References

- [1] Povstenko ,Y. (2005). Fractional heat conduction equation and associated thermal stresses. Journal of Thermal Stresses, 28, 83–102.
- [2] Povstenko ,Y. (2008). Thermoelasticity which uses fractional heat conduction equation. Mathematical Methods and Physico-Mechanical Fields, 51, 239–246.
- [3] Samko, S.G., Kilbas, A.A., & Marichev, O.I. (1993). Fractional Integrals and Derivatives, Theory and Applications. Gordon and Breach, Amsterdam.
- [4] Povstenko ,Y. (2015). Fractional Thermoelasticity. Springer, Switzerland.
- [5] Vigak, V.M. (1988). Control of Temperature Stresses and Displacements (in Russian). Naukova Dumka, Kiev.
- [6] Ozdemir, N., Povstenko, Y., Avci, D. & Iskender Eroglu, B.B. (2014), Optimal boundary control of thermal stresses in a plate based on time-fractional heat conduction equation. Journal of Thermal Stresses, 37(8), 969-980.
- [7] Povstenko, Y., Avci, D., Iskender Eroglu, B.B. & Ozdemir, N. (2017). Control of Thermal Stresses in Axissymmetric Problems of Fractional Thermoelasticity for an Infinite Cylindrical Domain. Thermal Science, 21(1A), 19-28.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>dkaradeniz@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Numerical Investigation of the Wrap Angle Effect on Swirler Blade Combustion Performance

Osman Kocaaslan¹, Kürşad Melih Güleren^{2⊠}

¹ Selçuk University, Huğlu Vocational School, Konya, Turkey ² Anadolu University, Faculty of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Eskişehir, Turkey

Abstract

Combustion chambers are one of the important components of gas turbine engines. The pressurized air with the compressor is mixed with the fuel in the combustion chamber and combustion reaction takes place. One of the expectations in combustion chamber design is that dynamic flow stability is maintained for every operating condition [1]. In order to provide this condition, fuel and energized air must be mixed homogeneously. In combustion chambers, swirler profiles are used to provide a more homogeneous mixture of fuel and air.

In this study, the effects of the wrap angle of the swirler blades on the combustion are examined using reacting turbulent Navier-Stokes equations. The reference swirler has 10 blades with a wrap angle of 45 degrees [2]. The combustion chamber has 6 dilution entrances. In this study, various swirler blade forms with 30, 45, 60, 75, 90 and 120 degrees of wrap angles are created. The number of blades, blade inlet and exit angles, blade inlet and exit widths, and blade thicknesses are kept constant to examine the effect of wrap angles. Once the swirler blade geometries are created, the flow volumes and suitable mesh structure are created for numerical analysis. In numerical analysis, k- ϵ turbulence model and standard wall functions are used. For the current flow problem, non-premixed combustion, energy, momentum and continuity equations are solved using the ANSYS Fluent flow solver. For the solution of these second order, nonlinear, partial differential equations; mass flow rate is defined at the air inlet, fuel inlet and dilution entrances and pressure are defined for combustion chamber outlet. Preliminary analysis shows that there exists an optimum wrap angle for the defines mass and fuel flow rates.

Keywords: Combustion chamber, non-premixed combustion, swirler, wrap angle, CFD

References

- [1] Mellor, A.M. (1990). Design of Modern Turbine Combustors. Tennessee, USA.
- [2] Serag-Eldin, M. A., Spaldin, D. B. (1979). Computations of Three-Dimensional Gas-Turbine Combustion Chamber Flows. The American Society of Mechanical Engineers, Vol. 101, s.326-336

Corresponding Author Email: <u>kmguleren@anadolu.edu.tr</u>

Initial-Boundary Value Problems in a Half-Space for an Advection-Diffusion Equation with Atangana-Baleanu Derivative

Derya Avci[⊠], Aylin Yetim

Balikesir University, Department of Mathematics, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

In the last decade, the generalized diffusive transports have been successfully modelled with fractional order derivatives such as Riemann-Liouville and Caputo [1,2]. Note that both of these derivatives are defined by exponential decay function as the kernel in their definitions given by improper integral. Because of this singularity problem, analytical solutions of the fractional order models in terms of conventional fractional derivatives are hardly available and hence increasing number of numerical methods has been proposed [3].

To remove the computational hardness of singularity arising from existing fractional derivatives, Caputo and Fabrizio firstly suggested a new operator with fractional order which is described by the exponential decay function as a non-singular kernel [4]. This non-singular operator is able to describe material heterogeneities and structures with different scales. After that, Atangana and Baleanu introduced new fractional derivatives in sense of Caputo and Riemann-Liouville by using the Mittag-Leffler function [5]. It can be seen in the literature that the non-singularity of these new operators allow better description of the memory effect in structures with different scales.

In the present study, an advection-diffusion equation in terms of Atangana-Baleanu derivative is considered in a half-space. Some initial and boundary value problems are defined and aimed to find the fundamental solutions of the relevant problems. For this purpose, Laplace and Fourier integral transform techniques are applied. Consequently, one- and two- parameter Mittag-Leffler solutions are obtained. It is worth to notice that the results are really closed to the existing formulation of fractional advection-diffusion equation in Caputo sense [6]. Finally, the solutions are concluded by the graphics.

Keywords: Atangana-Baleanu derivative, fractional advection-diffusion, Mittag-Leffler function, integral transforms

Acknowledgment: This study is supported by Balikesir University Research Grant BAP 2018/056.

References

- [1] Mainardi, M. (1996). The fundamental solutions for the fractional diffusion-wave equation. Applied Mathematics Letters, 9(6), 23-28.
- [2] Povstenko, Y. (2015). Linear Fractional Diffusion-Wave Equation for Scientists and Engineers, Springer, Switzerland.
- [3] Baleanu, D., Diethelm, K., Scalas, E. & Trujillo, J.J. (2012). Fractional Calculus Models and Numerical Methods. World Scientific, London.
- [4] Caputo, M. & Fabrizio, M. (2015). A new Definition of Fractional Derivative without Singular Kernel. Progress in Fractional Differentiation and Applications, 1(2), 73-85.
- [5] Atangana, A. & Baleanu, D. (2016). New Fractional Derivatives with Non-local and Non-singular Kernel Theory and Application to Heat Transfer Model. Thermal Science, 20(2), 763-769.
- [6] Povstenko, Y. & Klekot, J. (2015). The Dirichlet Problem For The Time-Fractional Advection-Diffusion Equation In A Half-Space. Journal of Applied Mathematics and Computational Mechanics, 14(2), 73-83

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>dkaradeniz@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Development of a 6-DoF Pose Estimation Package in ROS

Vatan Aksoy Tezer[⊠], İsmail Bayezit

Istanbul Technical University, Astronautical Engineering Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Estimating the pose in 6 Degrees of Freedom (DoF) is crucial for vehicles that can navigate in 3D environments, like aerial or underwater vehicles. Robot Operating System (ROS) is a middleware platform for robot operations, such as control, navigation, and various guidance missions. ROS includes many pose estimation packages for ground vehicles, however these are not appropriate for aerial platforms. Available estimation packages work well in providing the 3-DoF pose for 2D planar motion

for ground vehicles. Thus, ETH Zurich Autonomous System Lab developed Micro Aerial Vehicle (MAV) simulator, named as RotorS in order to test and integrate multicopter pose estimation within ROS environment [1]. The RotorS simulator do not include pose estimation using sensory information, but the modular configuration of the simulator enables us to add new features for calibration and verification purposes. This paper mainly discusses a novel 6-DoF



Figure 2: Pose Estimation of Hexarotor in Gazebo.

pose estimation package and provides validation considering flight mechanical model of multirotor system using ROS integrated Gazebo environment within RotorS. We elaborate sensor simulation and contribute the capability of RotorS with the additional sensory package. The 6-DoF pose estimation is achieved using the hexarotor's on-board sensors including downward-pointing camera, Microsoft Kinect camera, 2D full spectrum LIDAR, 9-DoF Inertial Measurement Unit (IMU) and air pressure sensor. Gaussian noise is added on top of all sensor data for better visualizing the real world effects during the flight of hexarotor platform in a scenario map as illustrated in Figure 1. Techniques like scanmatch odometry [2] and visual odometry [3] are fused with simulated IMU and pressure sensor data using a Unscented Kalman Filter (UKF) to achieve an accurate localization. The localization can also be integrated with mapping and navigation missions for indoor environments. The developed pose estimation package is also offered as open source for further research activities.

Keywords: Multicopter, Multi-Physical Simulation, ROS, Gazebo, Pose Estimation, Odometry, UKF

References

- [1] Furrer, F., Burri, M., Achtelik, M. & Siegwart, R. (2016). Robot Operating System (ROS): The Complete Reference (Volume 1), ch. RotorS—A Modular Gazebo MAV Simulator Framework, 595–625. Cham: Springer International Publishing.
- [2] Kohlbrecher, S., Meyer, J., Stryk, O. & Klingauf, U. (2011). A flexible and scalable slam system with full 3D motion estimation," in Proc. IEEE International Symposium on Safety, Security and Rescue Robotics (SSRR), IEEE.
- [3] Mur-Artal, R., Montiel, J.M.M. & Tardós, J.D. (2015). ORB-SLAM: a versatile and accurate monocular SLAM system, IEEE Transactions on Robotics, 31(5), 1147–1163

Corresponding Author Email: <u>tezerv@itu.edu.tr</u>

SLAM based Control and Waypoint Navigation of Hexarotor Platform

Vatan Aksoy Tezer[⊠], İsmail Bayezit

Istanbul Technical University, Astronautical Engineering Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Controlling the position, velocity, rate and attitude of an aerial vehicle requires well-tuned controllers. For this purpose, generally linear controllers, such as Proportional Integral Derivative (PID) or Linear

Quadratic Regulator (LQR) are used. This paper presents the combination of waypoint navigation with Simultaneous Localization and Mapping (SLAM) and an implementation of an emerging nonlinear controller [1] on the hexarotor platform via Robot Operating System (ROS)/Gazebo environment. The aforementioned nonlinear controller is capable of stabilizing three motion modes including position, velocity, and attitude. The control system can switch in between these motion modes up to the mission requirements. This paper discusses only the implementation of position controller which is validated via RotorS simulation framework over ROS/Gazebo environment integrated with SLAM and waypoint navigation [2]. The main



Figure 3: Generated 2D map of the scene.

contribution of this study is the integration of the SLAM algorithm within RotorS. Finally, the aerial vehicle collects the image and LIDAR scan data to generate 2D and 3D maps of the simulated world in ROS/Gazebo environment as illustrated in Figure 1. If the waypoints are correctly given, the vehicle is able to fully map the targeted area and return to its initial position with errors less than %5 in a 30 meter run, while using the on-board sensory information for localization. For 2D mapping purposes the laser scan data from a 2D full spectrum LIDAR is used. 3D mapping is achieved by using the depth registered images and point cloud data generated from a simulated Microsoft Kinect camera [3]. An indoor scene is created in Gazebo environment and integrated with RotorS simulator on a hexarotor vehicle in order to verify the performance of SLAM algorithm.

Keywords: Multicopter, multi-physical simulation, ROS, gazebo, SLAM, control, navigation.

References

- [1] Lee, T., Leok, M. & Mcclamroch, N. (2010). Control of complex maneuvers for a quadrotor uav using geometric methods on SE(3), in CDC. IEEE, 5420–5425.
- [2] Furrer, F., Burri, M., Achtelik, M. & Siegwart, R. (2016). Robot Operating System (ROS): The Complete Reference (Volume 1), ch. RotorS—A Modular Gazebo MAV Simulator Framework, 595–625. Cham: Springer International Publishing.
- [3] Labbe, M. and Michaud, F. (2014). Online Global Loop Closure Detection for Large-Scale MultiSession Graph-Based SLAM, in Proceedings of the IEEE/RSJ International Conference on Intelligent Robots and Systems, 2661–2666.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>tezerv@itu.edu.tr</u>

An Analytical Approach to Solve Blasius Equation by Method of Weighted Residuals

Utku Cem Karabulut, Levent Bilgili, Alper Kılıç⊠

Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Maritime Faculty, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

Flows with high Reynolds number is so common in nature that it is essential to understand the physics behind it. Thus, the theory of fluid dynamics has been a very wide and important engineering field since 18th century. Today, some exact solutions for full Navier - Stokes equation are available, however all of them are only true for some limited cases. The difficulty of the problem is due to the multi-dimensional feature and non-linearity of the equations.

Despite the availability of all computation power provided by computers today, it is almost impossible to solve most of the three dimensional turbulent flows by direct numerical simulations. One effective tool to mathematically model such flows is the theory of boundary layers. Additionally an essential boundary layer problem is known as Blasius Flow and it is governed by an ordinary differential equation. Altough Blasius equation is much simpler when it is compared to the full Navier-Stokes Equation, no exact solution has been found yet.

In this study, well-known Blasius Equation is studied and an analitical solution approach is introduced. In order to obtain a highly accurate result which is valid for whole domain, a reliable method of weighted residual approach, namely Galerkin's Method is used. Two different trial functions both of which satisfies all boundary conditions are used in order to understand the effect of trial function selection. Additionally eigenfunctions of simpler problems are used as weight functions. Highly accurate results are obtained for whole domain by both trial functions which indicates that the methods of weighted residuals are practical tools for boundary layer problems.

Keywords: Blasius Equation, boundary layer flows, method of weighted residuals, Galerkin's method.

[™]Corresponding Author Email: <u>alperkilic@bandirma.edu.tr</u>

Examples and Assessments for Pareto-Based Multi-Objective Optimization Approaches Used for Stand-Alone Hybrid Renewable Energy Systems

Tuba Tezer^{1⊠}, Ramazan Yaman²

¹ Balıkesir University, Balıkesir Vocational School, Balıkesir, Türkiye ² Istanbul Gelişim University, Industrial Engineering Department, İstanbul, Türkiye

Abstract

Optimization problems are classified as single-objective and multi-objective optimization problems depending on the number of objective functions to be solved. The approaches applied for solving multi-objective optimization problems are evaluated in terms of being able to complete the solution at acceptable time and to obtain solutions that are close to optimum when the problem size increases the Pareto-based multi-objective optimization approach is more advantageous. [1]. Optimization of stand-alone hybrid renewable energy systems (SA-HRES), which refers to the co-use of multiple renewable energy sources in distant regions from the grid, is an important real-life problem falling into the category of multi-objective and very limited optimization problems. It is almost impossible to obtain real optimum in solving these problems, as the number of renewable energy sources included in SA-HRES and the number of objective functions such as dimension optimization and system reliability increase. Therefore, among the meta-heuristic methods which can obtain the solutions closest to the optimum, the methods including the Pareto-optimum solution approach produce more realistic results in terms of optimizing the conflicting objective functions of the problem. In this study, multi-objective optimization of SA-HRES were evaluated through examples in order to demonstrate the effectiveness of Pareto-based multi-objective optimization approaches.

Keywords: Multi-objective optimization, Pareto-optimum, stand-alone hybrid renewable energy systems.

References

[1] Tezer T., Yaman R., Yaman G. (2017). Evaluation of approaches used for optimization of stand-alone hybrid renewable energy systems. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 73, 840-853.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>tuba@balikesir.edu.tr</u>
Extended Exp (-φ (ξ)) Expansion Method for Some Exact Solutions of Sixth-Order Ramani Equation and Coupled Modified KdV-type Equation

İbrahim Enam İnan¹, Hasan Bulut², Sibel Şehriban Ataş², Tuğba Yazgan^{3⊠}

¹ Fırat University, Faculty of Education, Elazığ, Turkey
 ² Fırat University, Department of Mathematics, Elazığ, Turkey
 ³ Atatürk University, Department of Mathematics, Erzurum, Turkey

Abstract

Nonlinear partial differential equations (NPDEs) have an important place in applied mathematics and physics [1,2]. Many analytical methods have been found in literature [3]. Besides these methods, there are many methods which reach to solution by using an auxiliary equation. Using these methods, partial differential equations are transformed into ordinary differential equations. These nonlinear partial differential equations are solved with the help of ordinary differential equations. In this paper, we implemented extended exp ($-\phi(\xi)$) expansion method [4] for some exact solutions of sixth-order Ramani equation and coupled modified KdV-type equation.

Keywords: Extended exp ($-\phi(\xi)$) expansion method, Sixth-order Ramani equation, Coupled modified KdV-type equation, exact solutions

Acknowledgements

Acknowledgements may be made to those individuals or institutions not mentioned elsewhere in the paper that made an important contribution.

References

- [1] Debtnath, L. (1997). Nonlinear Partial Differential Equations for Scientist and Engineers, Birkhauser, Boston, MA.
- [2] Wazwaz, A.M. (2002). Partial Differential Equations: Methods and Applications, Balkema, Rotterdam.
- [3] Shang, Y. (2007). Backlund transformation, Lax pairs and explicit exact solutions for the shallow water waves equation, Appl.Math.Comput., 187, 1286-1297.
- [4] Khater, M.M.A. (2015). Extended $Exp(-\varphi(\xi))$ -Expansion Method for Solving the Generalized Hirota-Satsuma Coupled KdV System, Global Journal of Science Frontier Research: F Mathematics and Decision Sciences, 15(7).

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>tubayzgn01@gmail.com</u>

Wind Energy Investments' Profitability Index Based on Artificial Neural Networks

Hasan Huseyin Yildirim¹, Mehmet Yavuz^{2⊠}

¹Balikesir University, Burhaniye School of Applied Sciences, Balikesir, Turkey ²Necmettin Erbakan University, Department of Mathematics-Computer Sciences, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

Wind power is the most common, widely applicable and productive renewable energy source. Studies about energy investments, wind speed predictions and renewable energy systems application with neural networks have been investigated especially about for a quarter century. In this study it is aimed to predict the wind energy products and investment value with a multilayer neural network approach. For this aim a feed-forward back propagation neural network model has been established. As a set of data, wind speed values of 48 months (January 2012-December 2016) have been used. The data is obtained from actual investment project. The training data set occurs from 36 monthly wind speed values (January 2012-December 2015) and the test data set occurs from rest of the values (January-December 2016). The results obtained suggest that the ANN model can be used quite successfully in this area and it can predict correctly the value of wind power with an accuracy margin error even for unknown samples. The training of the ANN is performed by using Microsoft Visual Studio C#.NET 2013.

Keywords: wind power prediction, artificial neural network, wind energy investment

References

- Sakarya, S., Yavuz, M., Karaoglan, A.D. & Özdemir, N. (2015). Stock market index prediction with neural network during financial crises: A review on Bist-100. Financial Risk and Management Reviews, 1(2), 53-67.
- [2] Sakarya, S. & Yildirim, H.H. (2016). Determining the relation between financial performance and stock returns of energy companies on Borsa Istanbul with panel data analysis. Journal of Economics Finance and Accounting, 3(1), 71-88.
- [3] Dorvlo, A.S., Jervase, J.A. & Al-Lawati, A. (2002). Solar radiation estimation using artificial neural networks. Applied Energy, 71(4), 307-319.
- [4] Ermis, K., Midilli, A., Dincer, I. & Rosen, M.A. (2007). Artificial neural network analysis of world green energy use. Energy Policy, 35(3), 1731-1743.
- [5] Çam, E., Arcaklıoğlu, E., Çavuşoğlu, A. & Akbıyık, B. (2005). A classification mechanism for determining average wind speed and power in several regions of Turkey using artificial neural networks. Renewable Energy, 30(2), 227-239.
- [6] Ata, R. (2015). Artificial neural networks applications in wind energy systems: a review. Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 49, 534-562.
- [7] Sözen, A., Ozalp, M., Arcaklioglu, E. & Kanıt, E. G. (2004). A study for estimating solar resources in Turkey using artificial neural networks. Energy Sources, 26(14), 1369-1378.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>mehmetyavuz@konya.edu.tr</u>

Optimization of Capacitance and Speed Values for Self-Excited Induction Generators using the Response Surface Method

Haris Calgan¹[∞], José Manuel Andrade², Metin Demirtas¹

¹ Balikesir University, Department of Electrical Electronics Engineering, Balikesir, Turkey
 ² University of Derby, College of Engineering and Technology, Derby, United Kingdom

Abstract

Over the past few decades, there has been a considerable use of renewable energy sources because of the growth in energy demand and environmental hazards of uncurbed emissions. Wind energy technology, with an induction generator in stand-alone mode, has been playing a big role over other renewable technologies because of its low cost, wide speed operation range, brushless structure, and low maintenance [1]. Utilization of self-excited induction generators (SEIGs) is becoming more popular among wind energy technologies in rural areas. Besides its simplicity and robustness, it requires an external reactive source, which is commonly a balanced capacitor bank connected to its stator windings [2]. Despite the above advantages, the major drawback of this type of generator is its poor voltage and frequency regulation that primarily depends on the generator speed, load impedance, excitation capacitance and magnetizing reactance [3].

In this paper, the Response Surface Method (RSM) is applied in order to determine the optimal steadystate performance for the SIEG instead of the commonly used nodal admittance method or the loop impedance technique [4]. The main objective of the proposed approach is to determine the excitation capacitance and shaft speed to maintain a constant terminal voltage magnitude and frequency of the SEIG at the desired level for different load conditions. Consequently, a response surface model is constructed in which the capacitance value and the shaft speed are considered the inputs, whereas the voltage magnitude and frequency are assumed to be the outputs. The simulation results demonstrate the effectiveness of the method proposed in this paper since the regression value R^2 obtained was 99.98%. In particular, for a 4 kW squirrel cage induction generator with a 950.8 Ohm resistive load per phase, the excitation capacitance and shaft speed were found to be 68.9 μ F and 1504 rpm respectively. Moreover, the output voltage magnitude and frequency obtained were 230.2 V and 50 Hz respectively.

Keywords: SEIG, response surface method (RSM), wind energy, constant voltage and frequency.

Acknowledgements

This study was supported by Balikesir University (Project No: BAP 2018/03).

References

- [1] Calgan, H., Demirtas, M. & Balci, M.E. (2017). Capacitive Power and Torque Estimation for Self-Excited Induction Generator with Elman Neural Network. 3th Int. Conf. on Eng. & Nat. Sci, 878–83. Budapest.
- [2] Simões, M.G. & Farret, F.A. (2014). Modeling and Analysis with Induction Generators. CRC Press.
- [3] Elango, T. & Senthil Kumar, A. (2017). Voltage regulation of a stand-alone self-excited induction generator using STATCON with one cycle control technique for wind energy conversion system, International Journal of Ambient Energy, 38(5), 497-508.
- [4] Malik, N.H. & Mazi, A.A. (1987). Capacitor requirements for isolated self-excited induction generators, IEEE Trans. on Energy Conversion, 2(1), 62-68.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>haris.calgan@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Adaptive Fuzzy Sliding Mode Control Based LMIs of MIMO Nonlinear Uncertain Systems

Toufik Amieur¹, Metin Demirtas², Haris Calgan², Erdem Ilten²

¹ Electrical Engineering Department, Kasdi Merbah University of Ouargla, Algeria ² Balikesir University, Department of Electrical Electronics Engineering, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

In practical control engineering, fuzzy system-based adaptive control methodologies have received much attention, emerging as promising approaches for controlling highly uncertain and nonlinear dynamical systems. Most of complex dynamic systems include nonlinearities and uncertainties which are difficult to define with mathematical model. Fuzzy Logic has been widely applied to the many complex dynamic systems. When mathematical models are unknown or partially unknown, fuzzy control models can used fuzzy systems to estimate the unknown models. Sliding Mode Control has been used as a robust technique for its insensitivity to external disturbances and model uncertainties. The SMC are preferred in industrial application because of fast response, good transient performance and order reduction. Adaptive control methods have successfully exhibited in tracking control applications for uncertain nonlinear system. The integration of the Fuzzy Logic and Sliding Mode based on adaptive schemes has provided the contributions in order to maintain the desired performance of the system according to uncertainties and variations of the plant parameters. Therefore, this paper presents two indirect adaptive fuzzy control schemes for a class of uncertain continuous-time multi-input multioutput nonlinear dynamic systems. Within these schemes, fuzzy systems are employed to approximate the plant's unknown nonlinear functions and robustifying control terms are used to compensate for approximation errors. By using a regularized matrix inverse, a stable well-defined adaptive controller is firstly investigated. Then, in order to obtain an adaptive controller not depending upon any parameter initialization conditions and to relax the requirement of bounding parameter values, a second adaptive controller is proposed. All parameter of the adaptive laws and robustifying control terms are derived based on Lyapunov stability analysis so that, under appropriate assumptions, semi-global stability and asymptotic convergence to zero of tracking errors can be guaranteed. These simulation results demonstrate the tracking capability of the proposed hybrid control system and its effectiveness for the control tracking of uncertain nonlinear systems.

Keywords: Sliding mode control; fuzzy adaptive control; MIMO nonlinear systems; linearization feedback; Lyapunov function.

References

- [1] Wang, L.X. (1994). Adaptive Fuzzy Systems and Control- Design and Stability Analysis, Prentice Hall, New Jersey.
- [2] Tong, S.C. & Li, H.X. (2003). Fuzzy adaptive sliding model control for MIMO nonlinear systems, IEEE Transactions on Fuzzy Systems, 11(3), 354–360.
- [3] Tong, S., Tang, J. & Wang, T. (2000). Fuzzy adaptive control of multivariable nonlinear systems. Fuzzy Sets and Systems, 111, 153–167.
- [4] Tong, S., Chen, B. & Wang, T. (2005). Fuzzy adaptive output control feedback control for MIMO nonlinear systems. Fuzzy Sets and Systems, 1, 285–299.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>amieur.to@gmail.com</u>

Global Stability of Latent Chikungunya Virus Dynamics Model with Multitarget Cells and Saturation

Ahmed M. Elaiw[⊠], Taofeek O. Alade, Saud M. Alsulami

Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science, King Abdulaziz University, Jeddah, Saudi Arabia.

Abstract

Chikungunya virus (CHIKV) is an alphavirus and is transmitted to humans by Aedes aegypti and Aedes albopictus mosquitoes. The CHIKV attacks the target cells and causes Chikungunya fever with symptoms such as rashes, chills and fever. Symptoms usually occur after an incubation period of 4-7 days. CHIKV has been an outbreak in the last decade in some parts of the world and has increased the population of people at risk [1]. Although CHIKV pathogenesis in humans is not yet completely understood, but recent outbreaks have provided deep understanding into the organs and cells involved in the viral replication.

CHIKV infects and replicates in a variety of cells, such as fibroblasts, macrophages, monocytes, skeletal muscle satellite cells and other skin cells [2]. In the literature of CHIKV infection, most of the mathematical models presented described the disease transmission in mosquito and human populations [3-6]. This paper proposes a latent Chikungunya viral infection model with multitarget cells. The model incorporates (i) two types of infected cells, latently infected cells and actively infected cells which produce the CHIKV particles (ii) saturated incidence rate which is suitable to model the nonlinear dynamics of the CHIKV especially when its concentration is high (iii) antibody immune response. We derive biological threshold number R0 for the model. Using the method of Lyapunov function, we established the global stability of the steady states of the model. The theoretical results are confirmed by numerical simulations.

Keywords: Global stability; Chikungunya virus infection; Target cells; Lyapunov function

References

- [1] Kristin M. Long, and Mark T. Heise (2015). Protective and pathogenic responses to Chikungunya virus infection, Curr Trop Med Rep., 2(1), 13-21.
- [2] Lum, F.M., Ng, L.F. (2015). Cellular and molecular mechanisms of chikungunya pathogenesis, Antiviral Research, 120, 165-174.
- [3] Liu, X. & Stechlinski, P. (2015). Application of control strategies to a seasonal model of chikungunya disease, Applied Mathematical Modelling, 39, 3194-3220.
- [4] Dumont, Y. & Chiroleu, F. (2010). Vector control for the chikungunya disease, Mathematical Biosciences and Engineering, 7, 313-345.
- [5] Moulay, D., Aziz-Alaoui, M. & Cadivel, M. (2011). The chikungunya disease: modeling, vector and transmission global dynamics, Mathematical Biosciences, 229, 50-63.
- [6] Yakob, L. & Clements, A.C. (2013). A mathematical model of chikungunya dynamics and control: the major epidemic on Reunion Island, PLoS One, 8, e57448.

Corresponding Author Email: a m elaiw@yahoo.com

Caputo's Fractional Derivative Model of Immune Response to Tumor Growth

Esmehan Uçar[⊠], Necati Ozdemir, Derya Avci

Balikesir University, Department of Mathematics, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

The mathematical models are used to understand for complex statement. One of the complex statement is immune response to tumor growth. Tumor growth is directly influenced by immune system's cell. For example, CD8+ T cells are components of immune system which kill tumor cells. So, we study interaction between tumor growth and immune system model in this paper. The model involves tumor cells, helper CD4+ T cells, CD8+ cytotoxic T cells, dendritic cells (DC) and cytokine interleukin-2 (IL-2). The model is presented by F. Castiglione and B. Piccoli [1].

We give a detailed stability analysis of treatment free and fixed points. We explain that the quantity of tumor and tumor growth by using a Caputo's fractional derivative. Caputo's fractional derivative model will be solved by Grünwald-Letnikov method.

Keywords: Immune response to tumor growth, dendritic cells (DC), cytokine interleukin-2 (IL-2)

References

- [1] Castiglione, F., & Piccoli, B., (2007). Cancer immunoteraphy, mathematical modeling and optimal control. Journal of Theoratical Biology, 247, 723-732.
- [2] Minelli, A., Topputo, F., & Bernelli, F., (2011). Controlled drug delivery in cancer immunoterapy: stability, optimization, and monte carlo analysis. Society for industrial and Applied Mathematics, 6, 2229-2245.
- [3] Kirschner, D., & Panetta, J.C., (1998). Modelling immunoterapy of tumor-immune interaction. Journal of Mathematical Biology, 37, 235-252.
- [4] Pillis, L.G., & Radunskaya A., (2000). A mathematical tumor model with immune resistance and drug therapy: an optimal control approach. Journal of theoratical medicine, 3, 79-100.
- [5] Shahbazi. M., Erjaee, H., & Erjaee, H., (2014). Dynamical analysis of chemotherapy optimal control using mathematical model presented by fractional differantial equations, describing effector immune and cancer cells interactions. Journal of pharmacy and pharmaceutical sciences, 3, 2322-0112.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>esucarr@gmail.com</u>

Effect of Discrete Time Delay and Antibodies on HCV Dynamics with Cure Rate and Two Routes of Infection

A. M. Elaiw[⊠], Shafeek. A. Ghaleb, A. Hobiny

Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science, King Abdulaziz University, Jeddah, Saudi Arabia.

Abstract

Mathematical modeling and analysis of viral infection models have attracted the interest of several researchers during the last decades. These works can help researchers for better understanding the viral dynamical behavior and providing new suggestions for clinical treatment. The basic viral infection model presented in [1] has focused on modeling the interaction between three main compartments, uninfected cells, infected cells and free virus particles. Hepatitis C virus is considered one of the dangerous human viruses that infects the liver and causes the lever cirrhosis. The "cure" of infected cells has been considered in the virus dynamics models in several works [24]. In [41], both cure and cell-tocell transmission have been considered in the virus dynamics model, but without taking the immune response into account. In this paper we propose and analyze an HCV dynamics model taking into consideration the cure of infected hepatocytes and antibody immune response. We incorporate both virus-to-cell and cell-to-cell transmissions into the model. We incorporate a discrete-time delay to describe the time between the HCV or infected cell contacts an uninfected hepatocyte and the emission of new active HCV. We show that the solutions of the proposed model are nonnegative and ultimately bounded. We derive two threshold parameters which fully determine the existence and stability of the three steady states of the model. Using Lyapunov functionals, we established the global stability of the steady states of the model. The theoretical results are confirmed by numerical simulations.

Keywords: Hepatitis C virus, global stability, time delay.

References

- Nowak, M.A. & Bangham, C.R.M. (1996). Population dynamics of immune responses to persistent viruses, Science, 272, 74-79.Mercer, P.A., & Smith, G. (1993). Private Viewdata in the UK. 2nd ed. Longman, London.
- [2] Dubey, B., Dubey, P. & Dubey, U.S. (2016). Modeling the intracellular pathogen-immune interaction with cure rate, Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation, 38, 72-90.
- [3] Hattaf, K. & Yous, N. (2016). A generalized virus dynamics model with cell-to-cell transmission and cure rate, Advances in Di_erence Equations, (1), 1-11.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>a m elaiw@yahoo.com</u>

A Contact Problem for a Half-space With Inhomogeneous Coating

Elçin Yusufoğlu¹, İlkem Turhan Çetinkaya^{2⊠}

¹ Usak University, Mathematics Department, Usak, Turkey
 ² Dumlupinar University, Mathematics Department, Kutahya, Turkey

Abstract

We address an elasticity problem on an inhomogeneous half-space. The contact problem in case of shearing deformation is studied. The contact problem under the assumption that is perfectly bonded to both the coating width *H* and substrate is defined. Here, it is aimed to present the generalization of the *N*-punches. The punches with flat bases are in contact with the elastic inhomogeneous coating along $y=0, x \in w = \bigcup_{i=1}^{N} (a_i, b_i)$, where $(a_i, b_i) \cap (a_j, b_j) = \emptyset$, i, j=1, 2, ..., N. The punches are subjected to forces P_i ,

i=1,2,...,N, which are parallel to axis z and outside of the punches the surface is traction-free. So, state of plane strain and the changing of the shear modulus (G) with respect to depth in the range [-H, 0] are considered. Also, when $(/x/; -y) \rightarrow +\infty$, the stresses vanish. The continuity conditions on layer substrate interface are given. The basic equations of the elasticity theory are presented. Displacements and stresses are conjugated by Hooke's law. By using the basics of the elasticity theory and using the Fourier transform of the displacement, the problem is reduced to a system of ordinary differential equation. Solving the system of ordinary differential equations and considering the Fourier transform of contact pressures leads to a system of integral equations. By changing the order of integration and making the change of variables, the obtained system of integral equations are converted into dimensionless form. So, the construction of kernels of integral equations in the case of $G=G_0e^{vy}$, where v is the nonhomogeneity parameter controlling the variation of the shear modulus in the coating medium, is performed. Finally, the appropriate approximate solution is presented.

Keywords: Contact problems, elasticity theory, integral equations.

References

- [1] Aizikovich, S.M, Aleksandrov, V. M., Belokon, A.V., Krenev, L. İ, Trubchik, İ. S. (2006). Contact problems of the theory of elasticity for non-homogeneous medium, Fizmatli. (In Russian).
- [2] Vasiliev, A., Volkov, S., Aizikovich, Sç Jeng, Y.R. (2014). Axisymmetric contact problems of the theory of elasticity for inhomogeneous layers, Journal of Applied Mathematics and Mechanics, 94 (9), 705-712.
- [3] Generalova, N. V., Kovalenko, Ye.V. (1995). The effect of a strip-shaped punch on a linearly deformable foundation strengthened by a thin covering, Journal of Applied Mathematics and Mechanics, 59 (5), 789-795.
- [4] Singh, B.M., Rokne, J., Dhaliwal, R.S., Vrbik, J. (2003). Contact problem for bonded nonhomogeneous materials under shear loading. International Journal of Mathematics and Mathematical Sciences, 29, 1821-1832.
- [5] Aleksandrov, V.M., Smetanin, B.I., Sobol, B.V. (1993). Thin Stress Concentrators in Elastic Solids, Nauka, Moskow.
- [6] Muskheleshvili, N.I. (1997). Singular Integral Equations, Edited by J.R.M. Rodok, Noordhoff International publishing Leyden.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>ilkem.turhan@dpu.edu.tr</u>

A Second Order Numerical Technique for Multi Term Variable Order Fractional Equations

Fatma Ayaz[⊠], İrem Bektaş Güner

Gazi University, Faculty of Science, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In this work, a second order convergent method is studied for variable order fractional differential equations. Ordinary derivative terms, together with the unknown function, are also added to the single term differential equation and tested for convergence. Here, we approximate the varying Riemann-Liouville derivative with the second-order convergent method (see reference [1]) and this method is based on the shifted Grünwald approximation and ordinary derivatives are discretized by finite difference scheme. The resulting numerical scheme is still second-order convergent. Additionally, some comparisons have also been made with other numerical techniques for the non-variable order fractional derivative (see references [2-4]).

Keywords: Fractional ordinary differential equations, Riemann Liouville derivative, finite difference scheme.

Acknowledgements

This work is part of a master's thesis produced under my supervision.

References

- [1] Caoa, J. & Qiu, Y. (2016). A high order numerical scheme for variable order fractional ordinary differential equation. Applied Mathematics Letters, 88-94.
- [2] Diethelm, K. (1997). Generalized compound quadrature formulae for finite-part integrals, IMA Journal of Numerical Analysis, 479-493.
- [3] Diethelm, K. & Ford, N. (2002). Analysis of Fractional Differential Equations. Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, (265), 229-248.
- [4] Diethelm, K. (2004). The Analysis of Fractional Differential Equations. Germany, Springer.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>fayaz@gazi.edu.tr</u>

Oscillation Theorems for Second Order Half-Linear Mixed Neutral Differential Equations

Ercan Tunç, Orhan Özdemir[⊠]

Gaziosmanpaşa University, Department of Mathematics, Tokat, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we shall offer sufficient conditions for the oscillation of all solutions to second-order halflinear neutral differential equations of mixed type. The results presented here do not need several restrictive assumptions required in related results in the literature and can easily be extended to more general neutral differential equations as well as to neutral dynamic equations on time scales. We also give some examples to show the importance of our results.

Keywords: Oscillation, second-order, neutral differential equations

References

- [1] Agarwal, R.P., Grace, S.R., & O'Regan, D. (2003). The oscillation of certain higher-order functional differential equations. Math. Comput. Modelling, 37, 705–728.
- [2] Graef, J.R., Tunç, E., & Grace, S.R. (2017). Oscillatory and asymptotic behavior of a third-order nonlinear neutral differential equation. Opusc. Math., 37(6), 839–852.
- [3] Hale, J.K. (1977). Theory of Functional Differential Equations. Springer-Verlag, New York.
- [4] Li, T., Agarwal, R.P., & Bohner, M. (2012). Some oscillation results for second-order neutral dynamic equations. Hacet. J. Math. Stat., 41(5), 715–721.
- [5] Li, T., & Rogovchenko, Y.V. (2014). Oscillatory behavior of second-order nonlinear neutral differential equations. Abstract and Applied Analysis, Article ID:143614, 8pp.
- [6] Li, T., & Rogovchenko, Y.V. (2015). Oscillation of second-order neutral differential equations. Math. Nachr., 288(10), 1150–1162.
- [7] Tunç, E. (2017). Oscillatory and asymptotic behavior of third-order neutral differential equations with distributed deviating arguments. Electron. J. Differ. Eq., vol:2017, no:16, 1–12.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>orhanozdemir37@yahoo.com</u>

New Oscillation Criteria for Second Order Nonlinear Neutral Differential Equations with Damping Term

Adil Kaymaz[⊠], Ercan Tunç

Gaziosmanpaşa University, Department of Mathematics, Tokat, Turkey

Abstract

In this talk, we discuss the oscillatory behavior of solutions to a class of the second order damped nonlinear neutral differential equations. Some new oscillation results are obtained that improve and extend a number of related results reported in the literature. Examples are also provided to illustrate the theorems.

Keywords: Oscillation, second order, neutral, damping term

References

- [1] Agarwal, R. P., Grace, S. R. and O'Regan, D., 2003. Oscillation Theory for Second Order Dynamic Equations, Taylor Francis, London and New YorkMercer, P.A., & Smith, G. (1993). Private Viewdata in the UK. 2nd ed. Longman, London.
- [2] Agarwal, R. P., Grace, S. R. and O'Regan, D., 2002. Oscillation Theory for Second Order Linear, Half-Linear Superlinear and Sublinear Dynamic Equations. Kluwer Academic Publishers, Dordrecht/Boston/ London.
- [3] Baculikova, B. Li, T. and Dzurina, J. 2011. Oscillation theorem for second order neutral differential equ ations. Electronic Journal of Qualitative Theory of Differential Equations 74, 1–13.
- [4] Bradley, J. S., 1970. Oscillation theorems for a second order delay equation. Journal of Differential Equations 8, 397–403
- [5] Dzurina, J., 2011. Oscillation theorems for second order advanced neutral differential equations. Tatra Mountains Mathematical Publications DOI:10.2478/v10127-011-0006-4 48, 61-71
- [6] Grace, S. R., Lalli, S., 1987. Oscillation theorems for second order nonlinear differential equations with deviating argument. Inter. J. Math. and Math. Sci. Vol. 10 No.1, 35–45.
- [7] Lin, X., 2005. Oscillation of second order nonlinear neutral differential equations. Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Application 309, 442–452.
- [8] Rogovchenko, R. V., Tuncay, F., 2008. Oscillation criteria for second order nonlinear differential equations with damping. Nonlinear Analysis 69, 208–221.
- [9] Tunc, E., Grace, S. R., 2016. On oscillation and asymptotic behavior of a second-order damped neutral differential equation. Int. J. Differ. Equ. 2016, Article ID 3746368.
- [10] Yang, Q., Yang, L. and Zhu, S., 2003. Interval criteria for oscillation of second order nonlinear neutral differential equations. Computers and Mathematics with Applications 46, 903–918.
- [11] Zhang, Q., Yan, J. and Gao, L., 2010. Oscillation behavior of even-order nonlinear neutral differential equations with variable coefficient. Computer and Mathematics with Applications 59, 426–430.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>adilkaymaz@gmail.com</u>

Philos-Type Oscillation Criteria for Second Order Half-Linear Mixed Neutral Differential Equations

Orhan Özdemir[⊠], Ercan Tunç

Gaziosmanpaşa University, Department of Mathematics, Tokat, Turkey

Abstract

In this work, Philos-type oscillation criteria for second-order half-linear mixed neutral differential equations are established. The results obtained essentially improve and extend some known results in the literature. Examples are also provided to illustrate the applicability of the results.

Keywords: Oscillation, second-order, neutral differential equations

References

- [1] Agarwal, R.P., Grace, S.R., & O'Regan, D. (2003). The oscillation of certain higher-order functional differential equations. Math. Comput. Modelling, 37, 705–728.
- [2] Agarwal, R.P., Bohner, M., Li, T., & Zhang, C. (2014). A Philos-type theorem for third-order nonlinear retarded dynamic equations. Appl. Math. Comput., 249, 527–531.
- [3] Graef, J.R., Tunç, E., & Grace, S.R. (2017). Oscillatory and asymptotic behavior of a third-order nonlinear neutral differential equation. Opusc. Math., 37(6), 839–852.
- [4] Hale, J.K. (1977). Theory of Functional Differential Equations. Springer-Verlag, New York.
- [5] Li, T., Agarwal, R.P., & Bohner, M. (2012). Some oscillation results for second-order neutral dynamic equations. Hacet. J. Math. Stat., 41(5), 715–721.
- [6] Li, T., & Rogovchenko, Y.V. (2014). Oscillatory behavior of second-order nonlinear neutral differential equations. Abstract and Applied Analysis, Article ID:143614, 8pp.
- [7] Li, T., & Rogovchenko, Y.V. (2015). Oscillation of second-order neutral differential equations. Math. Nachr., 288(10), 1150–1162.
- [8] Philos, Ch. G. (1989). Oscillation theorems for linear differential equations of second order. Arch. Math., 53, 482–492.
- [9] Tunç, E. (2017). Oscillatory and asymptotic behavior of third-order neutral differential equations with distributed deviating arguments. Electron. J. Differ. Eq., vol:2017, no:16, 1–12.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>orhanozdemir37@yahoo.com</u>

Conformable Operator in Approximate Solutions of Nonlinear Differential Equations

Mehmet Yavuz[⊠], Burcu Yaşkıran

Necmettin Erbakan University, Department of Mathematics-Computer Sciences, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we consider some linear/nonlinear fractional differential equations (FDEs) containing conformable derivative operator. We obtain approximate solutions of these mentioned FDEs in the form of infinite series which converges rapidly to its exact value by using modified homotopy perturbation method (MHPM) and homotopy analysis method (HAM). Using the conformable operator in solutions of different types of FDEs makes the solution steps are computable easily. Especially, conformable operator has been used in modelling the FDEs and describing certain problems such as engineering, material sciences, economic and other areas of application. In this context, the aim of this study is to solve some illustrative linear/nonlinear problems as mathematically and to compare the exact solutions with the obtained solutions by considering some plots. Moreover, it is an aim to show the reliability and simplicity of the methods constructed with the conformable operator.

Keywords: Approximate solution, nonlinear differential equations, conformable operator, homotopy analysis method, modified homotopy perturbation method.

References

- [1] Khalil, R., Al Horani, M., Yousef, A., & Sababheh, M. (2014). A new definition of fractional derivative. Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics, 264, 65-70.
- [2] Abdeljawad, T. (2015). On conformable fractional calculus. Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics, 279, 57-66.
- [3] Yavuz, M., & Özdemir, N. (2018). A different approach to the European option pricing model with new fractional operator. Mathematical Modelling of Natural Phenomena, 13(1), 12.
- [4] Avci, D., Eroglu, B.B.I., & Ozdemir, N. (2017). The Dirichlet problem of a conformable advectiondiffusion equation. Thermal Science, 21(1A), 9-18.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>mehmetyavuz@konya.edu.tr</u>

Fractional Calculus: Some Hidden Aspects

Dumitru Baleanu^{1,2⊠}

¹ Cankaya University, Department of Mathematics, Ankara, Turkey ² Institute of Space Sciences, Bucharest, Romania

Abstract

Fractional calculus is in fact the calculus of integration and differentiation of arbitrary order (see for example [1-13]) and it was applied successfully to complicated problems from various fields of science and engineering. In my talk I will present some hidden aspects of the fractional calculus. Several illustrative examples of real world applications will be presented to validate the theoretical results.

Keywords: Fractional calculus, Caputo derivative, Mittag-Leffler non-singular kernel.

References

- [1] Podlubny, I.(1999). Fractional differential equations. Academic Press, New York.
- [2] Kilbas, A. A., Srivastava, H. M., & Trujillo, J. J. (2006). Theory and Applications of Fractional Differential Equations, B.V: Elsevier Science.
- [3] Mainardi, F. (2010). Fractional Calculus and Waves in Linear Viscoelasticity, Imperial College Press -London and World Scienific – Singapore.
- [4] Liouville, J. (1832). Mémoire sur quelques quéstions de géomerie et de mécanique, et sur un nouveau genre de calcul pour résoudre ces quéstions'. Journal d'Ecole Polytechnique 13, 1-69.
- [5] Caputo, M.(1967). Linear models of dissipation whose Q is almost frequency independent, Part II. Geophys. J. R. Astr. Soc. 13, 529–539 [Reprinted in Fract. Calc. Appl. Anal. 11, No 1 (2008), 4–14].
- [6] Tateishi, A.A., Ribeiro, H.V. & Lenzi, E.K. (2017) The role of fractional time-derivative operators on anomalous diffusion. Frontiers in Physicss, doi.org/10.3389/fphy.2017.00052.
- [7] Atangana, A., Baleanu, D. (2016). New fractional derivatives with nonlocal and non-singular kernel: theory and application to heat transfer model. Thermal Sciences 20(2), 763-769.
- [8] Baleanu, D. & Fernandez, A. (2018). On some new properties of fractional derivatives with Mittag-Leffler kernel, Commun. Nonlinear Sci. Numer. Simulat. 59, 444-462.
- [9] Hristov, J. (2017). Derivation of fractional Dodson's equation and beyond: Transient mass diffusion with a non-singular memory and exponentially fading-out diffusivity, Progress in Fractional Differentiation and Applications 3~(4), 255-270.
- [10] Tarasova, V. V.& Tarasov, V. E. (2017). Economic interpretation of fractional derivatives, Progress in Fractional Differentiation and Applications 3~(1), 1-7.
- [11] Wu, G: C., Baleanu, D. & Zeng, S.D. (2018), Finite-time stability of discrete fractional delay systems: Gronwall inequality and stability criterion, Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation 57, 299-308.
- [12] A new glance on the Leibniz rule for fractional derivatives Sayevand, K., Machado, J. Tenreiro, & Baleanu, D.(2018). Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation, 62, 244-249.
- [13] Atici F. M. & Senguel, S. (2010). Modeling with fractional difference equations, J. Math. Anal. Appl. 369, 1-9.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>dumitru@cankaya.edu.tr</u>

A Compact Integrated THz Horn-shaped Helix Antenna based on MEMS Technology using Accurate Automatic Strategists

A. Boudkhil[⊠], M. Chetioui, N. Benabdallah, A. Ouzzani, N. Benahmed

Laboratory of Telecommunications, University of Abou Bakr Belkaid of Tlemcen, Algeria

Abstract

Artificial Neural Networks (ANN) present a relevant class of accurate automatic strategists leading to novel models and optimal solutions in the field of radiofrequency (RF) engineering. Microelectromechanical system (MEMS) antennas, have achieved over the past decade interesting characteristics after having employed such a kind of automated data training process having the ability to capture multi-dimensional arbitrary nonlinear relationships in a very fast way to offer fitness functions for excellent bandwidth learning and fast configuration evaluating. Interestingly, this research study describes how ANNs are employed to calculate the resonant frequencies and return losses and provide a high level of accuracy and performance when developing a compact integrated horn-shaped helix antenna employing silicon substrate with terahertz (THz) waves.

Keywords: RF engineering, automated data training, ANNs, helix antennas, MEMS, THz waves.

Acknowledgements

This work is supported by the Laboratory of Telecommunications at Abou Bekr Belkaid University of Tlemcen, Algeria under the doctoral research program: Computational Electromagnetic Characterization of Complex THz Antennas based on MEMS Technology.

References

- [1] D. Chicherin et al, "MEMS tunable metamaterials surfaces and their applications," Proceeding of Asia Pacific Microwave Conference, Yokohama, Japan, pp. 239–242, December 7-10, 2010.
- [2] L. Guo, F. Huang, and X. Tang "A novel integrated MEMS helix antenna for terahertz applications," Optik, pp. Vol. 125, Issue 1, pp. 101-103, January 2014.
- [3] A. Boudkhil et al., "Development and performance enhancement of MEMS helix antenna for THz applications using 3D HFSS-based efficient electromagnetic optimization," TELKOMNIKA, Vol. 16, Issue 1, pp. 210-216, February 2018.
- [4] T. K. Kwok et al "Constructive algorithms for structure learning in feed forward neural networks for regression problems," IEEE Trans. on Neural Netw., Vol. 8, pp. 630–645, May 1997.
- [5] K. Hornik, M. Stinchcombe, and H. White, "Multilayer feed forward networks are universal approximators," Neural Netw., Vol. 2, pp. 359-366, July 1989.
- [6] G. M. Rebeiz, "Millimeter-wave and terahertz integrated circuit antennas," Proceedings of IEEE, Vol. 80, Issue. 11, pp. 1748-1770, November 1992.
- [7] P.H. Siegel, P. de Maagt, and A. I. Zaghloul, "Antennas for terahertz applications," IEEE Antennas and Propagation Society International Symposium, Albuquerque, NM, USA, pp.2383–2386, July 2006.
- [8] G. T. Kovacs, N. L. Maluf, K. E. Petersen, "Bulk micromachining of Silicon," Proceedings of IEEE, Vol. 86, Issue 8, pp. 1536-1551, August 1998.
- [9] X. H. Lai et al, "Suspended nanoscalesolenoid metal inductor with tens-nH level inductance," IEEE 21st International Conference on MEMSYS, Wuhan, China, pp. 1000–1003, January 2008.
- [10] M. Chetioui et al, "Design and analysis of Ku/K-band circular SIW patch antenna using 3D EM-based artificial neural networks," TELKOMNIKA, Vol. 16, pp. 166–174, April 2018.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>boudkhil.abdelhakim@yahoo.fr</u>

A Highly Miniaturized MEMS Pyramidal Helix Antenna for THz Applications using Reliable Evolutionary Optimizers

A. Boudkhil[⊠], N. Benabdallah, A. Ouzzani, M. Chetioui, N. Benahmed

Laboratory of Telecommunications, University of Abou Bakr Belkaid of Tlemcen, Algeria

Abstract

Evolutionary optimizers comprising Sequential Nonlinear Programming (SNLP) Algorithms lead to excellent solutions to retain a good accuracy as compared with finite element modeling (FEM) to develop new design models of highly miniaturized terahertz (THz) antennas based on microelectromechanical system (MEMS) technology. This research work explains SNLP method has been efficiently applied in modeling a compact MEMS pyramidal helix antenna due to the fast progress of computer aided design (CAD) tools which meet the very specific requirement of such compact antennas to achieve a high geometrical accuracy and provide a high performance for the selective band of frequencies.

Keywords: Evolutionary optimizers, sequential nonlinear programming, helical antennas, microelectromechanical system technology, terahertz band.

Acknowledgements

This work is supported by the Laboratory of Telecommunications at Abou Bekr Belkaid University of Tlemcen, Algeria under the doctoral research program: Computational Electromagnetic Characterization of Complex THz Antennas based on MEMS Technology.

References

- [1] B. Pan et al., "A W-band surface micromachined monopole for low-cost wireless communication systems," IEEE International Microwave Symposium, pp.1935-1938, Jun. 2004.
- W. H. Ko et al., "Bonding techniques for microsensors," Studies in Electrical and Electronic Engineering, Vol. 20, pp. 41-61, Apr. 1985.
- [3] L. Guo, F at al., "Design of MEMS on-chip helical antenna for THz application," IEEE MTT-S International MWS-AMP for RF and THz Application, Chengdu, China. Vol. 56, Issue 8, pp. 15-18, Oct. 2016.
- [4] J. Federici1 and L. Moeller, "Review of terahertz and subterahertz wireless communications," Journal of Applied Physics, Vol. 107, Issue 11, June 2010.
- [5] P.H. Siegel, P. de Maagt, and A. I. Zaghloul, "Antennas for terahertz applications," IEEE Antennas and Propagation Society International Symposium, Albuquerque, NM, USA, pp.2383–2386, Jul. 2006.
- [6] C. Li et al., "Ultra-fine nanofabrication by hybrid of energeticion induced fluidization and stress," IEEE 24th International Conference on MEMSYS, Cancun, Mexico, pp. 340–343, Mar. 2011.
- [7] A. Boudkhil et al., "Development and performance enhancement of MEMS helix antenna for THz applications using 3D HFSS-based efficient electromagnetic optimization," TELKOMNIKA, Vol. 16, Issue 1, pp. 183-189, Feb. 2018.
- [8] Y. Yong, L. Yong, and L. Xin, "Novel 0.9 THz Integrated Horn Antenna Based on MEMS Technology," International Symposium on Photoelectronic Detection and Imaging, 2009, Vol. 7385 7385292.

[™]Corresponding Author Email:<u>boudkhil.abdelhakim@yahoo.fr</u>

Framework for Analysing of Inter-cluster Communication in the DRHT by using Game Theory

Said Agoujil^{1⊠}, El Arbi Abdellaoui Alaoui¹, Mustapha El Moudden²

¹Moulay Ismail University, Computer Science Department, Errachidia, Morocco ²Moulay Ismail University, Mathematics and Computer Department, Meknes, Morocco

Abstract

The system performance of the delay tolerant networks (DTN) can be significantly improved by using a topology called DTN routing hierarchical topology (DRHT) which incorporates three fundamental concepts: ferries messages, ferries routes and clusters. The intra-cluster routing is managed by the cluster head, while the inter-cluster routing is managed by the ferries messages. In this paper, we analysis and study the behavior of data dissemination problem of ferries in the DRHT. More specifically, we formulate a non-cooperative game and game stochastic modeling the behavior of the ferries for analyzing of the inter-cluster communication in the DRHT.

Keywords: Delay Tolerant Networks (DTN), DRHT, Game theory, Nash equilibrium, Game stochastic.

Acknowledgements

The authors are grateful to the team of E3MI at Faculty of Science and Technology, Errachidia. They also are grateful to acknowledge Research project financed by Moulay Ismail University allowed to team of E3MI.

References

- K. Fall. "A delay-tolerant network architecture for challenged internets". In Proceedings of the 2003 Conference on Applications, Technologies, Architectures, and Protocols for Computer Communications, Karlsruhe, Germany, ACM, pp.27-34, 2003.
- [2] S. R. Azzuhri, H. Ahmad, M. Portmann, I. Ahmedy and R. Pathak, "An Effcient Hybrid MANETDTN Routing Scheme for OLSR". In Wireless Personal Communications, 23 April 2016, Available:10.1007/s11277-016-3323-8. Karlsruhe, Germany, ACM, pp. 27-34, 2003.
- [3] T. Yong and W. Xiao-fang. "Adaptive Clustering Hierarchy Routing for Delay Tolerant Network." Journal of Central South University, Springer, Volume19, pp. 1577–1582, 2012.
- [4] Q. Liu, X. Pang, Y. Wang and L.Li. "An Improved Path Management Policy for the Ferry in Opportunistic Networks." Journal of Networks, Volume 7, NO 10, pp.1568–1575, 2012.
- [5] E. A. Abdellaoui Alaoui, S. Agoujil, M. Hajar, Y. Qaraai . "Improving the Data Delivery using DTN Routing Hierarchical Topology (DRHT)." In The International Conference on Wireless Networks and Mobile Communications (WINCOM'16), IEEE. October 26-29. Fez, Morocco, 2016.

[™]Corresponding Author Email:<u>agoujil@gmail.com</u>

New numerical approximation of fractional derivative with non-local and non-singular kernel: Application to chaotic models

Toufik Mekkaoui^{1⊠}, El Abdon Atangana²

¹ Moulay Ismail University FSTE, Department of Mathematics, Errachidia, Morocco ² Institute for Groundwater Studies (IGS) Faculty: Natural and Agricultural Sciences Bloemfontein 9300, Republic of South Africa

Abstract

Recently a new concept of fractional differentiation with non-local and non-singular kernel was introduced in order to extend the limitations of the conventional Riemann-Liouville and Caputo fractional derivatives. A new numerical scheme has been developed, in this paper, for the newly established fractional differentiation. We present in general the error analysis. The new numerical scheme was applied to solve linear and non-linear fractional differential equations. We do not need a predictor-corrector to have an efficient algorithm, in this method. The comparison of approximate and exact solutions leaves no doubt believing that, the new numerical scheme is very efficient and converges toward exact solution very rapidly.

Keywords: non-singular kernel, new numerical scheme, Atangana-Baleanu derivative.

Acknowledgements

The authors are grateful to the team of E3MI at Faculty of Science and Technology, Errachidia. They also are grateful to acknowledge Research project financed by Moulay Ismail University allowed to team of E3MI.

References

- [1] W.E. Milne, Numerical integration of ordinary differential equations, in American Mathematical Monthly, Mathematical Association of America, Vol. 33 (1926) pp. 455-460
- [2] A. Atangana, I. Koca, Chaos, Solitons Fractals 89, 447 (2016).
- [3] Singh, J., Kumar, D., Hammouch, Z., & Atangana, A. (2018). A fractional epidemiological model for computer viruses pertaining to a new fractional derivative. *Applied Mathematics and Computation*, 316, 504-515.

[™]Corresponding Author Email:<u>toufik_mekkaoui@yahoo.fr</u>

On the Co-PI Energy of Graphs

Ezgi Kaya¹[∞], Ayse Dilek Maden²

¹ Igdir University, Mathematics Department, Igdir, Turkey ² Selcuk University, Mathematics Department, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

Let G be a finite, connected, simple graph. The Co-PI eigenvalues of a connected graph G are the eigenvalues of its Co-PI matrix. The largest Co-PI eigenvalue is called the Co-PI spectral radius of G. The Co-PI energy of a graph is defined as the sum of the absolute values of Co-PI eigenvalues of G. In this study, we present some bounds for the Co-PI energy and Co-PI Spectral Radius; and characterise those graphs for which these bounds are the best possible.

Keywords: Graph Theory, Co-PI energy, Co-PI index

References

- [1] Biggs, N. (1994), Algebraic Graph Theory. Cambridge Univ. Press, Cambridge.
- [2] Biler, P. & Witkowski, A., (1990), Problems in Mathematical Analysis. Marcel Dekker, New York.
- [3] Bondy, J. A. & Murty, U. S. R. (1976). Graph Theory with Applications. North-Holland, New York Amsterdam Oxford.
- [4] Gutman, I. (1978). The energy of a graph, Graz. Forschungsz. Math. Stat. Sekt. Berichte 103 1–22.
- [5] Gutman, I. & Polansky, O. E. (1986). Mathematical Concepts in Organic Chemistry. Springer–Verlag, Berlin,
- [6] Hasani, F., Khormali, O. & Iranmanesh, A. (2010). Computation of the first vertex of Co-PI index of TUC4CS(S) nanotubes. Optoel. Adv. Mater. Rapid Commun. 4, 544–547.
- [7] Kaya, E. & Maden, A. D. (2015). Bounds for the Co-PI index of a graph. Iran. J. Math. Chem. 6, 1–13.
- [8] Kaya, E. & Maden, A. D. (2017). On the Co-PI spectral radius and the Co-PI energy of graphs. MATCH Commun. Math. Comput. Chem. 77, 691–700.
- [9] Su, G., Xiong, L., & Xu, L. (2013). On the Co-PI and Laplacian Co-PI eigenvalues of a graph.Discr. Appl. Math. 161, 277–283.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>ezgi.kaya@igdir.edu.tr</u>

The Number of Spanning Trees of Graphs

Ayse Dilek Maden \square

Selcuk University, Mathematics Department, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

For a given a simple connected graph, we present some new bounds via a new approach for the number of spanning trees. Useage this approach presents an advantage not only to derive old and new bounds on this topic but also gives an idea how some previous results in similar area can be developed.

Keywords: Spanning trees; normalized Laplacian eigenvalues; (degree) Kirchhoff index; Randic index

References

- Banchev, D., Balaban, A.T., Liu, X. & Klein, D.J. (1994). Molecular cyclicity and centricity of polycyclic graphs. I. Cyclicity based on resistance distances or reciprocal distances. Int. J. Quantum Chem. Vol. 50, 2978-2981.
- [2] Biler, P. & Witkowski, A. (1990), Problems in Mathematical Analysis. Marcel Dekker, New York.
- [3] Bollobas, B. & Erdös, P. (1998). Graphs of extremal weights. Ars Combinatoria. Vol. 50, 225-233.
- [4] Bozkurt, S.B. & Bozkurt, D. (2012). On the sum of powers of normalized Laplacian eigenvalues of graphs. MATCH Commun. Math. Comput. Chem. Vol. 68, 917-930.
- [5] Bozkurt, S.B. & Bozkurt, D. (2014). On the number of Spanning Trees of Graphs. The Scientific World Journal, Vol. 2014, Article ID 294038, 5 pages.
- [6] Covers, M., Fallat, S. & Kirkland, S. (2010). On the normalized Laplacian energy and the general Randic index of graphs. Linear Algebra and its Appl. Vol. 433, 172-190.
- [7] Chen, H. & Zhang, F. (2007). Resistance distance and the normalized Laplacian Spectrum. Discrete App. Math. Vol.155, 654-661.
- [8] Chung, F.R.K. (1997). Spectral Graph Theory. CBMS Lecture Notes. Providence.
- [9] Cvetkovic, D., Doob, M. & Sachs, H. (1980). Spectra of Graphs. Academic Press. New York.
- [10] Das, K.Ch., Maden, A. D. & Bozkurt, S. B. (2015). On the normalized Laplacian eigenvalues of graphs. Ars Combinatoria. Vol.118, 143-154.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>aysedilekmaden@selcuk.edu.tr</u>

SIR Epidemic Model with Caputo-Fabrizio Fractional Operator

Mehmet Yavuz¹[∞], Necati Özdemir²

¹ Necmettin Erbakan University, Department of Mathematics-Computer Sciences, Konya, Turkey ² Balikesir University, Department of Mathematics, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

Mathematical modelling of infectious diseases has shown that combinations of isolation, quarantine, vaccine and treatment are often necessary in order to eliminate most infectious diseases. Continuous mathematical models have been used to study the dynamic of infectious diseases within a human host and in the population. We have used in this study SIR model which categorises individuals in a population as Susceptible (S), Infected (I) and Recovered (R). It also simulates the transmission dynamics of diseases where individuals acquire permanent immunity. We have considered the SIR model using the Caputo-Fabrizio-Caputo sense and we have obtained special solutions and numerical simulations using an iterative scheme with Laplace transform. Moreover, we have studied uniqueness and existence of the solutions.

Keywords: SIR epidemic model, Caputo-Fabrizio fractional operator, Mathematical modelling

References

- [1] Caputo, M. & Fabrizio, M. (2015). A new definition of fractional derivative without singular kernel. Progress in Fractional Differentiation and Applications, 1(2), 1-13.
- [2] Gómez-Aguilar, J. F., López-López, M. G., Alvarado-Martínez, V. M., Baleanu, D., & Khan, H. (2017). Chaos in a Cancer Model via Fractional Derivatives with Exponential Decay and Mittag-Leffler Law. Entropy, 19(12), 681.
- [3] Guo, Y. (2017). The stability of the positive solution for a fractional SIR model. International Journal of Biomathematics, 10(01), 1750014.
- [4] Sharomi, O., & Malik, T. (2017). Optimal control in epidemiology. Annals of Operations Research, 251(1-2), 55-71.
- [5] Singh, J., Kumar, D., Hammouch, Z., & Atangana, A. (2018). A fractional epidemiological model for computer viruses pertaining to a new fractional derivative. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 316, 504-515.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>mehmetyavuz@konya.edu.tr</u>

New Analytical Solutions of (3+1) Extended Jimbo Miwa Equation

Alaattin Esen¹, Berat Karaagac^{2⊠}, Nuri Murat Yagmurlu¹, Selcuk Kutluay¹

¹ Inonu University, Mathematics Department, Malatya, Turkey ² AdıyamanUniversity, Mathematics Education Department, Adıyaman, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, we are going to apply a new method, which is proposed by Khater *et al.*, named as extended modified $\text{Exp}(-\Omega(\xi))$ for obtaining analytical solution of the (3+1) extended Jimbo Miwa equation. The analytical technique considered in this paper provides a rich number of trig, hyperbolic, and rational types solutions, to be found. In the first chapter, we are going to introduce the method and handled equations. As we progress, we are going to apply the method to aforementioned equation. This application results in a series of algebraic equation system. With the aid of symbolic computation, after solving the newly obtained system, new analytical solution of the equation can also be constructed. The newly obtained results by the extended modified $\text{Exp}(-\Omega(\xi))$ method indicate that the method is a powerfull, efficient and attractive technique for solving partial differential equations.

Keywords: Extended modified $Exp(-\Omega(\xi))$ method, extended Jimbo Miwa equation, analytical solutions

References

- Khater M. M. A., Seadawy A. R., Lu D. (2017). Elliptic and solitary wave solutions for Bogoyavlenskii equations system, couple Boiti-Leon-Pempinelli equations system and Time-fractional Cahn-Allen equation: Results in Physics, 7,2325–2333.
- [2] Bibi S., Mohyud-Din S. T., Khan U., Ahmed N. (2017). Khater method for nonlinear Sharma Tasso-Olever (STO) equation of fractional order: Results in Physics, 7, 4440–4450.
- [3] Fokas, A. S. (2006). Integrable nonlinear evolution partial differential equations in 4+ 2 and 3+1 dimensions. *Physical review letters*, *96*(19), 190201.
- [4] Ali, K. K., Nuruddeen, R. I., & Hadhoud, A. R. (2018). New exact solitary wave solutions for the extended (3+1)-dimensional Jimbo-Miwa equations. *Results in Physics*, 9, 12-16.
- [5] He, Y. (2014). Exact Solutions for-Dimensional Nonlinear Fokas Equation Using Extended F-Expansion Method and Its Variant. *Mathematical Problems in Engineering*, 2014.
- [6] Li, Z., & Dai, Z. (2010). Abundant new exact solutions for the (3+ 1)-dimensional Jimbo–Miwa equation. *Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications*, *361*(2), 587-590.
- [7] H. Bulut, H.M. Baskonus, (2016) New Complex Hyperbolic Function Solutions for the (2+1)-Dimensional Dispersive Long Water–Wave System, Math. Comput. Appl., 21(2) 6.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>bkaraagac@adiyaman.edu.tr</u>

Numerical Solutions of Time Fractional Burgers'- Equation using Finite Difference Methods

Alaattin Esen[⊠], Murat Önal

İnönü University, Department of Mathematics, Malatya, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, one dimensional time fractional Burgers' equation having time derivative in terms of Caputo sense has been solved using finite difference methods. Several test problems together with different set of initial and boundary conditions have been solved to test the efficiency and accuracy of the present method. The error norms L_2 and L_{∞} have been computed and compared with some of those in the literature. The results found in the study have been presented in tables and graphics.

Keywords: Finite Difference Methods, Burgers' equation, Caputo fractional derivative

References

- K.S. Miller ve B. Ross, An Introduction to The Fractional Calculus and Fractional Differential Equations, J. Wiley-Sons, Canada, 1993.
- [2] K.B. Oldham ve J. Spainer, The Fractional Calculus, Academic Press, New York, 1974.
- [3] L. Podlubny, Fractional Differantial Equations, Academic Press, London, 1999.
- [4] N. Sugimoto, Burgers equation with a fractional derivative: hereditary effects on nonlinear acoustic waves.
 J. Fluid Mech. 225, 631–653 (1991).
- [5] S. Momani, Non-perturbative analytical solutions of the space- and time fractional Burgers equations. Chaos, Solitons Fractals 28, 930–937 (2006).
- [6] M Inc, The approximate and exact solutions of the space- and time-fractional Burgers equations with initial conditions by variational iteration method. J. Math. Anal. Appl. 345, 476–484 (2008).
- [7] P. Miskinis, Some properties of fractional burgers equation, Math. Model. Anal., 7 (2002) 151-158.
- [8] S. Momani, Non-perturbative analytical solutions of the space- and time-fractional Burgers equations, Chaos Soliton. Fract., 28 (2006) 930-937.
- [9] M. Inc, On numerical solution of Burgers equation by homotopy analysis method, Phys. Lett. A, 372 (2008) 356-360.
- [10] C. Li ve Y. Wang, Numerical algorithm based on Adomian decomposition for fractional differential equations, Comput. Math. Appl., 57 (2009) 1672-1681.
- [11] A Esen, O Tasbozan Numerical solution of time fractional burgers equation by cubic B-spline finite elements, Mediterranean Journal of Mathematics 13 (3), 1325-1337 (2016).

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>alaattin.esen@inonu.edu.tr</u>

Calibration of a Hydrological Model by Using a Hybrid Approach Combining Levenberg-Marquardt and Particle Swarm Algorithms

Umut Okkan[⊠], Nuray Gedik

Department of Civil Engineering, Hydraulic Division, Balikesir University Cagis Campus, 10145, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

Conceptual hydrological models are broadly implemented by hydrologists and water resources engineers as an indispensable instrument to make out and direct dynamical activities that affect river flows, dam reservoirs, operational strategies of hydraulic structures, and so on. The accomplishment of these models rests on how well they are constructed. Accordingly, their parameters controlling hydrological processes need to be calibrated by an optimization algorithm so that measured and predicted flow values are in balance. Before the prevalent existence of evolutionary optimization algorithms like genetic algorithms and particle swarm optimization, the researchers were used to adjusting the model parameters through some conventional methods (e.g., Quasi-Newton and Levenberg-Marquardt), in which approximate derivatives were calculated by finite differences. Although they are powerful in speeding up the convergence, they may suffer the issue of local minimum trap. On the other hand, as evolutionary optimization algorithms that pass over local minimum troubles, are mainly stochastic, there is no warrant that different runs under the same circumstances can find the same solutions. Moreover, the use of a large number of operators in evolutionary algorithms can reduce the convergence of the problem. In the study prepared on the basis of the above grounds, a hybrid algorithm which is not only affected by the local minima process but also has strong convergence ability has been proposed in order to calibrate a five-parameter conceptual hydrological model termed as dynamic water budget model. This hybrid technique basically consists of the combination of Levenberg-Marquardt (LM) and particle swarm optimization (PSO) algorithms. Results derived from fifty independent runs have revealed that the hybrid approach is quite successful compared to the singular PSO. As a result of several examinations, the outputs generated by hydrological model calibrated through developed method have matched satisfactorily with the flow measurements.

Keywords: Conceptual hydrological model, Levenberg-Marquardt, particle swarm optimization, hybrid algorithm

References

- [1] Boyle DP, Gupta HV, Sorooshian S (2000) Toward improved calibration of hydrologic models: combining the strengths of manual and automatic methods. Water Resour Res 36(12):3663–3674.
- [2] Zhang X, Srinivasan R, Zhao K, Liew MV (2009) Evaluation of global optimization algorithms for parameter calibration of a computationally intensive hydrologic model. Hydrol Process 23(3):430–441.
- [3] Tigkas D, Christelis V, Tsakiris G (2015) The global optimisation approach for calibrating hydrological models: the case of Medbasin-D model. In: Proceedings of the 9th World Congress of EWRA, 10–13 June 2015, Istanbul, Turkey.

^{Corresponding} Author Email: <u>umutokkan@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Numerical Computation of the Mittag-Leffler Function

Manuel D. Ortigueira^{1⊠}, António M. Lopes², J.A. Tenreiro Machado³

¹ IUNINOVA and DEE of Faculdade de Ciências e Tecnologia da UNL, Lisbon, Portugal
 ² UISPA-LAETA/INEGI, Faculty of Engineering, University of Porto, Porto, Portugal
 ³ Institute of Engineering, Polytechnic of Porto, Department of Electrical Engineering, Porto, Portugal

Abstract

The Mittag-Leffler function (MLF) is ubiquitous both in the theory of fractional calculus and its applications [1, 2]. In fact, the impulse response of fractional linear systems can be expressed in terms of the MLF, which entails the need for efficient algorithms devoted to its computation. However, this calculation is not trivial, except when considering small values of the argument, since the numerical computation of the MLF poses problems of both accuracy and convergence [2-4].

In this paper we tackle this problem. We start from the general integral formula for the 2-parameter MLF and we develop a method for its numerical implementation. We then particularize the general formulation for values on half-straight lines, which are useful in its application to linear systems. In a second step, we introduce a generalization of the MLF and we propose one method based on the efficient computation of the inverse Laplace transform. We adopt the bilinear transformation to follow a Z-transform form and use the fast Fourier transform to obtain a sampled version of the generalized MLF. Finally, based on these ideas, we consider also the implementation of the 3-parameter generalized MLF.

Keywords: Mittag-Leffler function, numerical computation, fast Fourier transform.

Acknowledgements

This work was funded by Portuguese National Funds through the FCT - Foundation for Science and Technology under the project PEst-UID/EEA/00066/2013.

References

- [1] Gorenflo, R., Kilbas, A. A., Mainardi, F., & Rogosin, S. V. (2014) Mittag-Leffler functions, related topics and applications, Springer, Berlin Heidelberg New York.
- [2] Garrappa, R., & Popolizio, M. (2013) Evaluation of generalized Mittag-Leffler functions on the real line. Advances in Computational Mathematics, 39 (1), 205-225.
- [3] Valério, D., Trujillo, J. J., Rivero, M., Machado, J. T., & Baleanu, D. (2013) Fractional calculus: A survey of useful formulas. The European Physical Journal Special Topics, 222 (8), 1827-1846.
- [4] Valério, D., & Machado, J. T. (2014) On the numerical computation of the Mittag-Leffler function.Communications on Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation, 19 (10), 3419-3424.

 \square Corresponding Author Email: <u>aml@fe.up.pt</u>

Application of Artificial Bee Colony Algorithm for Distance Restricted Vehicle Routing Problem

Aslan Deniz Karaoglan^{1⊠}, Ismail Atalay², Ibrahim Kucukkoc¹

¹ Balikesir University, Industrial Engineering Department, Balikesir, Turkey
 ² Directorate of Science, Industry and Technology, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

The artificial bee colony (ABC) algorithm is an optimization algorithm based on the behavior of honey bees in order to achieve their nutrient specific behaviors [1]. In this study, it is aimed to visit all the towns of Balikesir (Turkey) with the vehicle used by the controllers of Balikesir Directorate of Science, Industry and Technology under the given constraints using the ABC algorithm. The aim was to minimize the pathway of the vehicle and to visit all the towns by the routes with a length of 550 km. In other words, the vehicle will return to the point where it starts from Balikesir province center on every turn and starts again without exceeding the 550 km limit. It is aimed to determine the optimum routes so that the total length of all routes is minimized and all of the 19 towns are visited exactly once. Routes used by provincial directorate in current practice are: [City Center (1) – Savastepe (2) – Bigadic (3) – Sindirgi (4) – City Center (1)], [City Center (1) – Kepsut (5) – Dursunbey (6) – City Center (1)], [City Center (1) - Susurluk (7) - Manyas (8) - Gonen (9) - City Center (1)], [City Center (1) - Bandirma (10) -Erdek (11) – Marmara Island (12) – City Center], [City Center (1) – Balya (13) – Ivrindi (14) – Havran (15) – Edremit (16) – City Center (1)], [City Center (1) – Burhaniye (17) – Gomec (18) – Ayvalik (19) - City Center (19)] and the total length of the routes is 1452 km. In order to solve the problem, 10 onlooker bees and 10 employed bees are used. The parameters of the algorithm are determined as: the number of food is 100, the distance limit is 550 km, the number of towns is 19, and limit was 100. The algorithm is coded on MATLAB and run for 10000 iterations. Optimum length of the routes is calculated as 1031 km. This total length is composed of 4 routes each of which are less than 550 km. These routes are: [City Center (1) – Edremit (16) – Gomec (18) – Ayvalik (19) – Burhaniye (17) – Havran (15) – City Center (1)], [City Center (1) – Savastepe (2) – City Center (1)], [City Center (1) – Ivrindi (14) – Balya (13) - Gonen (9) - Marmara Island (12) - Erdek (11) - Bandirma (10) - Manyas (8) - Susurluk (7) -City Center (1)], [City Center (1) – Kepsut (5) – Dursunbey (6) – Bigadic (3) – Sindirgi (4) – City Center (1)]. The results indicate that by using the ABC algorithm, the total length of the vehicle is reduced by 421 km and 29% improvement is achieved. That means the ABC algorithm can be used effectively to solve the distance restricted vehicle routing problems. In future work; the problem solution will be expanded in such a way that the towns with population over 100.000 will be visited at least 3 times.

Keywords: Artificial bee colony algorithm, distance restricted vehicle routing problems, optimization

Acknowledgements

The authors would gratefully like to thank *Balikesir Directorate of Science, Industry and Technology* whose valuable supports lead to reveal this paper.

References

[1] Karaboğa, D. (2006). Artificial Intelligence Optimization Algorithms (Original: *Yapay Zeka Optimizasyon Algoritmaları*). 4th Ed. Nobel, Istanbul, Turkey.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>deniz@balikesir.edu.tr</u>

Hyperbolic Function Solutions for Positive Gardner-KP Equation

Seyma Tuluce Demiray[⊠], Hasan Bulut

Firat University, Department of Mathematics, Elazig, Turkey

Abstract

In this paper, modified $\exp(-\Omega(\xi))$ -expansion function method has been handled for finding exact solutions of positive Gardner-KP equation. Hyperbolic function solutions of positive Gardner-KP equation have been obtained by means of this method. Moreover, by the help of Mathematica 9, some graphical simulations were given to clarify the behavior of these solutions.

Keywords: Modified $\exp(-\Omega(\xi))$ -expansion function method, positive Gardner-KP equation, hyperbolic function solutions.

References

- [1] Liu, H., Yan, F. (2014). Bifurcation and exact travelling wave solutions for Gardner–KP equation. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 228, 384–394.
- [2] Manafianheris, J., Aghdaei, M.F. (2012). Application of the Exp-function method for solving the combined KdV-mKdV and Gardner-KP equations. Mathematical Sciences, 6(68), 1–8.
- [3] Wazwaz, A.M. (2008). Solitons and singular solitons for the Gardner–KP equation. Applied Mathematics and Computation, 204, 162–169.
- [4] Shakeel, M., Mohyud-Din, S.T. (2014). Soliton solutions for the positive Gardner-KP equation by (G'/G, 1/G) Expansion method. Ain Shams Engineering Journal, 5, 951–958.
- [5] Akbar, M.A., Alam, Md. N., Hafez, Md. G. (2016). Application of the novel by (G'/G) expansion method to construct traveling wave solutions to the positive Gardner-KP equation. Indian J. Pure Appl. Math., 47(1), 85–96.

[™] Corresponding Author Email: <u>seymatuluce@gmail.com</u>

Calculation of the Mass Attenuation Coefficients, Effective Atomic Numbers and Effective Electron Numbers of Some Concrete Containing Pumice and Barite at Different Ratios

Kadir Günoğlu^{1⊠}, Hakan Akyıldırım²

¹ Suleyman Demirel University, Technical Vocational School, Isparta, Turkey ² Suleyman Demirel University, Physics Department, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, the total mass attenuation coefficients of concrete containing different proportions of barite and pumice as an aggregate have been measured at gamma energies of 511, 835 and 1275 keV. Also, the mass attenuation coefficients have been calculated at the photon energy range of 1 keV–1 GeV by using XCOM [1-2]. The effective atomic numbers (Zeff) and effective electron density (Ne) for concretes have been determined via the mass attenuation coefficients (μ/ρ) [3-4]. The obtained results for concretes containing pumice are compared with the results for concretes containing barite. According to this comparison, the calculation results obtained for the barite reinforced concrete are higher.

Keywords: Mass Attenuation Coefficient, Effective Atomic Number, Effective Electron Density

References

- Berger M.J., Hubbell J.H., NBSIR (1987). Photon cross sections on a personal 194 computer. National Institute of Standards, Gaithersburg, USA,
 - http://195physics.nist.gov/PhysRefData/Xcom/Text/XCOM.html.
- [2] Iskender A., (2009). Effective atomic and electron numbers of some steels at different energies. Annals of Nuclear Energy 36, 1702–1705
- [3] Han, I., Demir, L., (2009). Determination of mass attenuation coefficients, effective atomic and electron numbers for Cr, Fe and Ni alloys at different energies. Nucl. Instrum. Methods Phys. Res. B 267, 3–8.
- [4] Un, A., Demir, F., (2013). Determination of mass attenuation coefficients, effective atomic numbers and effective electron numbers for heavy-weight and normal-weight concretes. Applied Radiation and Isotopes 80, 73–77

Corresponding Author Email: <u>kadirgunoglu@sdu.edu.tr</u>

Investigation of Lifetime Cancer Risk and Radiological Hazards in Some Marble Samples Mining from the Marmara Region

Kadir Günoğlu $^{\boxtimes}$

Suleyman Demirel University, Technical Vocational School, Isparta, Turkey

Abstract

Living creatures have been under the influence of natural radioactivity due to long half-life radioactive nuclei in the earth's crust since the cosmos has existed. This natural radioactivity is caused by gamma radiation from uranium, thorium series and potassium [1]. For this reason, concentrations of 40K, 226Ra, 232Th were measured by gamma spectrometry system in order to determine the natural radioactivity levels of some marbles extracted from the Marmara Region and used as building materials in particular [2-3]. Absorbed gamma dose rate (D), annual effective dose equivalent (YEDE), radium equivalent activity (Raeq), internal hazard index (Hi) and external hazard index (Hd) values using the 40K, 226Ra, 232Th activity concentrations obtained as a result of the measurements It was calculated. In addition, lifetime cancer risk (LCR), which is a consequence of radiation exposure, has been calculated [4]. All the results obtained are compared with the limit values recommended by international organizations. According to these results, it can be concluded that there is no harm in terms of both radiological damage indices and dose parameters.

Keywords: Lifetime Cancer Risk, Radiological Hazards, Marble

References

- Akkurt, I. and Gunoglu, K., (2014). Natural Radioactivity Measurements and Radiation Dose Estimation in Some Sedimentary Rock Samples in Turkey. Science and Technology of Nuclear Installations, Volume 2014.
- [2] Al-Zahrani, J.H., (2017). Estimation of natural radioactivity in local and imported polished granite used as building materials in Saudi Arabia. Journal of Radiation Research and Applied Sciences 10, 241-245
- [3] Al-Selah, F.S., Al-Berzan, B., (2007). Measurements of natural radioac-tivity in some kinds of marble and granite used in Riyadh region, J. Nucl. Radiat. Phys. 2, 25–36.
- [4] UNSCEAR, 2000. Sources and Effects of Ionizing radiation, UnitedNations Scientific Committee on the Effects of Atomic radia-tion. Exposures from Natural Radiation Sources, Annex B, UnitedNations, New York.

Corresponding Author Email: <u>kadirgunoglu@sdu.edu.tr</u>

Corresponding Authors						
Author Full Name	Email	Country	Affiliation			
Abdelhakim Boudkhil	boudkhil.abdelhakim@yahoo.fr	Algeria	University of Abou Bakr Belkaid of Tlemcen			
Abdulhafez Abdulhafez	abdul.hafez@hku.edu.tr	Turkey	Hasan Kalyoncu University			
Adel Agila	adelagila@gmail.com	Libya	Omar Al-Mukhtar University			
Adil Kaymaz	adilkaymaz@gmail.com	Turkey	Gaziosmanpașa University			
Ahmed M. Elaiw	a_m_elaiw@yahoo.com	Saudi Arabia	King Abdulaziz University			
Ahmet Şahiner	ahmetsahiner@sdu.edu.tr	Turkey	Suleyman Demirel University			
Alaattin Esen	alaattin.esen@inonu.edu.tr	Turkey	İnönü University			
Ali Konuralp	ali.konuralp@cbu.edu.tr	Turkey	Manisa Celal Bayar University			
Ali Köseoğlu	ali.koseoglu@erdogan.edu.tr	Turkey	Recep Tayyip Erdogan University			
Alireza Khalili Golmankhaneh	alirezakhalili2002@yahoo.co.in	Iran	Islamic Azad University, Urmia Branch			
Alkin Yurtkuran	alkin@uludag.edu.tr	Turkey	Uludag University			
Alper Kiliç	alperkilic@bandirma.edu.tr	Turkey	Bandırma Onyedi Eylül University			
Amir Khan	amir.maths@gmail.com	Pakistan	University of Swat			
Arran Fernandez	af454@cam.ac.uk	United Kingdom	University of Cambridge			
Arshed Ahmad	arshed980@gmail.com	Turkey	Yildiz Technical University			
Arshi Meraj	arshimeraj@gmail.com	India	IIT Roorkee			
Asıf Yokuş	asfyokus@yahoo.com	Turkey	Firat University			
Aslan Deniz Karaoglan	deniz@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Balıkesir University			
Asuman Zeytinoglu	asumanzeytinoglu@sdu.edu.tr	Turkey	Suleyman Demirel University			
Aydin Teymourifar	aydinteymurifar@gmail.com	Turkey	Anadolu University			
Ayse Dilek Maden	aysedilekmaden@selcuk.edu.tr	Turkey	Selcuk University			
Ayşegül Keten	aketen@konya.edu.tr	Turkey	Necmettin Erbakan University			
Ayşegül Ulus	ayildizulus@gmail.com	Turkey	Galatasaray University			
Aytekin Çıbık	abayram@gazi.edu.tr	Turkey	Gazi University			
Batuhan Eren Engin	erengn@gmail.com	Turkey	Selcuk University			
Belkız Torğul	belkistorgul@gmail.com	Turkey	Selcuk University			
Berat Karaagac	bkaraagac@adiyaman.edu.tr	Turkey	Adıyaman University			
Betul Hicdurmaz	betulhicdurmaz@gmail.com	Turkey	Istanbul Medeniyet University			
Beyza Billur Iskender Eroglu	biskender@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Balikesir University			
Bilal Gurevin	bilalsau@gmail.com	Turkey	Sakarya University			
Bilgehan Güven	bguven@comu.edu.tr	Turkey	Çanakkale Onsekiz Mart Unıversity			
Burcu Gürbüz	burcu.gurbuz@uskudar.edu.tr	Turkey	Üsküdar University			
Burcu Kubur Ozbel	kubur.burcu@gmail.com	Turkey	Dokuz Eylul University			
Carla Pinto	cpinto@fc.up.pt	Portugal	School of Engineering, Polytechnic of Porto			
Cemre Aydin	acemre@metu.edu.tr	Turkey	Middle East Technical University			
Cihan Bayindir	cihan.bayindir@isikun.edu.tr	Turkey	Isik University			
Derya Avcı	dkaradeniz@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Balikesir University			
Doğan Kaya	dkaya36@yahoo.com	Turkey	University of Istanbul Commerce			
Dumitru Baleanu	dumitru@cankaya.edu.tr	Romania	Cankaya University			
Ebru Dag	dagebru95@gmail.com	Turkey	Balıkesir University			
Efgan Uğur	efgan.ugur@ohu.edu.tr	Turkey	Niğde Ömer Halisdemir University			
Emine Tutsun	eminecoksen@gmail.com	Turkey	Anadolu University			

International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME) June 27-29, 2018 - Balikesir, Turkey

1		1	
Emre Kara	emrekara@gantep.edu.tr	Turkey	Gaziantep University
Erhan Pişkin	episkin@dicle.edu.tr	Turkey	Dicle University
Ertugrul Ates	eates@ohu.edu.tr	Turkey	Nigde Omer Halisdemir University
Esmehan Uçar	esucarr@gmail.com	Turkey	Balıkesir University
Esra Gökpınar	eyigit@gazi.edu.tr	Turkey	Gazi University
Evren Topcu	evrentopcu2001@hotmail.com	Turkey	Eskisehir Osmangazi University
Ezgi Kaya	ezgi.kaya@igdir.edu.tr	Turkey	Igdir University
Faruk Düşünceli	farukdusunceli@artuklu.edu.tr	Turkey	Mardin Artuklu University
Fatma Altun	fatmaaltun@gumushane.edu.tr	Turkey	Gümüşhane University
Fatma Ayaz	fayaz@gazi.edu.tr	Turkey	Gazi University
Fatma Ekinci	ekincifatma2017@gmail.com	Turkey	Dicle University
Fatma Güler Eroğlu	fguler@bartin.edu.tr	Turkey	Bartın Üniversitesi
Fatma Selen Madenoğlu	selen.madenoglu@agu.edu.tr	Turkey	Abdullah Gül Üniversitesi
Fatma Tokmak Fen	fatma.tokmakk@gmail.com	Turkey	Gazi University
Fevzi Erdogan	ferdogan@yyu.edu.tr	Turkey	Van Yuzuncu Yil University
Figen Özpinar	fozpinar@aku.edu.tr	Turkey	Afyon Kocatepe University
Fikriye Nuray Yilmaz	yfikriye@gmail.com	Turkey	Gazi University
Firat Evirgen	fevirgen@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Balikesir University
Gabil Amirali	gabilamirali@yahoo.com	Turkey	Erzincan University
Gabriel Magalakwe	17065828@nwu.ac.za	South Africa	North-West University
Gamze Güven	gamzeguven@ogu.edu.tr	Turkey	Eskisehir Osmangazi University
Gamze Özel	gamzeozl@hacettepe.edu.tr	Turkey	Hacettepe University
Gokturk Poyrazoglu	gokturk.poyrazoglu@ozyegin.edu.tr	Turkey	Ozyegin University
Gulsen Yaman	gyaman@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Balikesir University
Hakan Çetin	hakan.cetin@ozu.edu.tr	Turkey	Ozyegin University
Hakan Şahin	hakan.sahin@amasya.edu.tr	Turkey	Amasya University
Halil Coşkun	halilcoskun93@gmail.com	Turkey	Karadeniz Technical University
Halima Lakhbab	halimalakhbab@yahoo.fr	Morocco	Hassan II University
Hamit Armağan	hamitarmagan@gmail.com	Turkey	Süleyman Demirel Üniversity
Hande Uslu	usluh@yildiz.edu.tr	Turkey	Yildiz Technical University
Haris Calgan	haris.calgan@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Derby University
Hasan Gündüz	hasangunduzzz@hotmail.com	Turkev	Bingöl university
Hasan H. Eroğlu	hheroglu@gmail.com	Turkey	Gaziler Physical Theraphy and Rehabilitation Education and Research Hospital
Hasan Tatli	tatli@comu.edu.tr	Turkey	Çanakkale Onsekiz Mart University
Hatice Taşkesen	haticetaskesen@yyu.edu.tr	Turkey	Yüzüncü Yıl University
Hayriye Gulbudak	hayriye.gulbudak@louisiana.edu	United States	University of Louisiana at Lafayette
Hüseyin Merdan	merdan@etu.edu.tr	Turkey	TOBB University of Economics And Technology
Ibrahim Kucukkoc	ikucukkoc@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Balikesir University
Idris A. Masoud Abdulhamid	idrisatea@gmail.com	Turkey	Süleyman Demirel Üniversitesi
Ilker Gölcük	ilkergolcuk@gmail.com	Turkey	Dokuz Eylul University
İlkem Turhan Çetinkaya	ilkem.turhan@dpu.edu.tr	Turkey	Dumlupinar University
İlker Küçükoğlu	ikucukoglu@uludag.edu.tr	Turkey	Uludag University
İlknur Tükenmez	tukenmezilknur1@gmail.com	Turkey	Eskişehir Osmangazi University
İlyas Göğebakan	ilyas.gogebakan@ozu.edu.tr	Turkey	Ozyegin University
José Manuel Andrade	jm.andrade@derby.ac.uk	United Kingdom	Derby University
Kadir Büyüközkan	kbuyukozkan@ktu.edu.tr	Turkey	Karadeniz Technical University

International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME) June 27-29, 2018 - Balikesir, Turkey

Kadir Günoğlu	kadirgunoglu@sdu.edu.tr	Turkey	Suleyman Demirel University
Kadir Tekeli	ktekeli@yahoo.com	Turkey	Adnan Menderes University
Кегет Агауісі	kerem.arayici@ozu.edu.tr	Turkey	Ozyegin University
Korhan Gunel	kgunel@gmail.com	Turkey	Adnan Menderes University
Kürşad Melih Güleren	kmguleren@anadolu.edu.tr	Turkey	Anadolu University
Levent Bilgili	leventbilgili1661@gmail.com	Turkey	Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University
Mahmut Modanli	mmodanli@harran.edu.tr	Turkey	Harran University
Manuel D. Ortigueira	mdo@dee.fct.unl.pt	Portugal	UNINOVA and DEE of Faculdade de Ciências e Tecnologia da UNL
Maria Troparevsky	mariainestro@gmail.com	Argentina	Universidad de Buenos Aires
Matthias Hinze	hinze@inm.uni-stuttgart.de	Germany	Institute for Nonlinear Mechanics, University of Stuttgart
Mehmet Ali Balci	mali6254@gmail.com	Turkey	Mugla Sitki Kocman University
Mehmet Giyas Sakar	giyassakar@hotmail.com	Turkey	Van Yuzuncu Yil University
Mehmet Onur Fen	monur.fen@gmail.com	Turkey	TED University
Mehmet Sevri	mehmetsevri@gazi.edu.tr	Turkey	Gazi University
Mehmet Yavuz	mehmetyavuz@konya.edu.tr	Turkey	Necmettin Erbakan University
Melike Sultan Karasu Asnaz	karasu@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Balikesir University
Meltem Gölgeli	mgolgeli@etu.edu.tr	Turkey	TOBB ETU
Meltem Koşan	mltmkosan@gmail.com	Turkey	Gazi University
Merve Gurbuz	mervegurbuzm@gmail.com	Turkey	Baskent University
Merve Şen	mervissen@hotmail.com	Turkey	Karadeniz Technical University
Metin Demirtas	mdtas@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Balikesir University
Metin Şengül	mtnsngl@gmail.com	Turkey	Kadir Has University
Mevlüde Yakıt Ongun	mevludeyakit@sdu.edu.tr	Turkey	Suleyman Demirel University
Muhammed Ali Koşan	ceo.muhammed@gmail.com	Turkey	Muş Alparslan University
Muhammet Enes Akpinar	enes.akpinar@cbu.edu.tr	Turkey	Manisa Celal Bayar University
Muhammet Enes Durmaz	menesdurmaz025@gmail.com	Turkey	Erzincan University
Munevver Tezer-Sezgin	munt@metu.edu.tr	Turkey	Middle East Technical University
Murat Sari	sarim@yildiz.edu.tr	Turkey	Yildiz Technical University
Müfit Şan	mufitsan@karatekin.edu.tr	Turkey	Çankırı Karatekin University
Naci Saldi	nacisaldi@gmail.com	Turkey	Ozyegin University
Nurcan Bilgili Gungor	bilgilinurcan@gmail.com	Turkey	Amasya University
Onur Silahtar	onursilahtar@yyu.edu.tr	Turkey	Van Yüzüncü Yıl University
Orhan Özdemir	orhanozdemir37@yahoo.com	Turkey	Gaziosmanpașa University
Osman Tunca	osmantunca@kmu.edu.tr	Turkey	Karamanoglu Mehmetbey University
Ozgur Tirasci	ozgur.tirasci@ozu.edu.tr	Turkey	Ozyegin University
Özlem Türkşen	turksen@ankara.edu.tr	Turkey	Ankara University
Pınar Usta	pinarusta@sdu.edu.tr	Turkey	Suleyman Demirel University
Qasem Al-Mdallal	q.almdallal@uaeu.ac.ae	United Arab Emirates	UAE University
Rabia Korkmaz Tan	rabia_korkmaz@yahoo.com	Turkey	Namık Kemal University
Rahman Bitirgen	bitirgen@itu.edu.tr	Turkey	Istanbul Technical University
Rajai Alassar	alassar@kfupm.edu.sa	Saudi Arabia	King Fahd University of Petroleum & Minerals
Rıfat Aşlıyan	rasliyan@adu.edu.tr	Turkey	Adnan Menderes University
Said Agoujil	agoujil@gmail.com	Morocco	Moulay Ismail University

International Conference on Applied Mathematics in Engineering (ICAME) June 27-29, 2018 - Balikesir, Turkey

Sedat Kömürcü	komurcus@itu.edu.tr	Turkey	Istanbul Technical University
Serap Ergün	serapbakioglu@sdu.edu.tr	Turkey	Suleyman Demirel University
Serbay Duran	sduran@adiyaman.edu.tr	Turkey	Adıyaman University
Sercan Öner	sercanoner57@gmail.com	Turkey	Manisa Celal Bayar University
Serkan Aslıyüce	sasliyuce@ankara.edu.tr	Turkey	Amasya University
Sevcan Emek	sevcan.aytekin@gmail.com	Turkey	Ege University
Sevde Dilruba Karayel	dilrubasahin@gmail.com	Turkey	Gazi University
Seyma Tuluce Demiray	seymatuluce@gmail.com	Turkey	Firat University
Sibel Ozer	sibel.ozer@inonu.edu.tr	Turkey	İnönü University
Sila Korkut Uysal	silaovgu@gmail.com	Turkey	Izmir Kâtip Celebi University
Simge Yozgat	simge.yozgat@gmail.com	Turkey	Cankaya University
Songul Cinaroglu	songulcinaroglu@gmail.com	Turkey	Hacettepe University
Songül Kaya Merdan	smerdan@metu.edu.tr	Turkey	Middle East Technical University
Sukran Seker	sseker@yildiz.edu.tr	Turkey	Yildiz Technical University
Sumeyra Ucar	sumeyraucar@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Balikesir University
Suna Ertunç	ertunc@eng.ankara.edu.tr	Turkey	Ankara University
Tahir Cosgun	tahir.coskun@amasya.edu.tr	Turkey	Amasya University
Talha Arslan	mstalhaarslan@gmail.com	Turkey	Van Yüzüncü Yıl University
Tolgay Kara	kara@gantep.edu.tr	Turkey	Gaziantep University
Toufik Amieur	amieur.to@gmail.com	Algeria	Kasdi Merbah University of Ouargla
Toufik Mekkaoui	toufik_mekkaoui@yahoo.fr	Morocco	Moulay Ismail University
Tuba Sinoplugil Tezer	tuba@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Balıkesir University
Tuğba Akman Yıldız	tr.tugba.akman@gmail.com	Turkey	University of Turkish Aeronautical Association
Tuğba Küçükseyhan	kucukseyhan@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Balikesir University
Tuğba Yazgan	tubayzgn01@gmail.com	Turkey	Ataturk University
Turan Paksoy	tpaksoy@yahoo.com	Turkey	Selçuk University
Tülin Gündüz	tg@uludag.edu.tr	Turkey	Uludag University
Umut Okkan	umutokkan@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Balikesir University
Vahide Bulut	vahidebulut@mail.ege.edu.tr	Turkey	Independent Schoolar
Vatan Aksoy Tezer	tezerv@itu.edu.tr	Turkey	Istanbul Technical University
Veysel Çoban	cobanv@itu.edu.tr	Turkey	Istanbul Technical University
Vilda Purutcuoglu	vpurutcu@metu.edu.tr	Turkey	Middle East Technical University
Yakup Ermurat	yakupermurat@gmail.com	Turkey	Abant İzzet Baysal Üniversitesi
Yeliz Buruk Şahin	yelizburuk@ogu.edu.tr	Turkey	Eskişehir Osmangazi University
Yeşim Sağlam Özkan	ysaglam@uludag.edu.tr	Turkey	Uludag University
Yılmaz Gür	ygur@balikesir.edu.tr	Turkey	Balikesir University
Yihua Li	li_yihua@yahoo.com	United States	United Airlines
Yunus Biçen	yunusbicen@gmail.com	Turkey	Duzce University
Yusuf Ucar	yusuf.ucar@inonu.edu.tr	Turkey	Inonu University
Zakia Hammouch	z.hammouch@fste.umi.ac.ma	Morocco	FST Errachidia
Zehra Pinar	zpinar@nku.edu.tr	Turkey	Namik Kemal University

Author Index

Α

A. Boudkhil · 230, 231 A. Feza Güvenilir · 138 A. Hobiny · 222 A. Ouzzani · 230, 231 Abdulhafez Abdulhafez · 185 Adel Agila · 59 Adil Baykasoğlu · 95, 96, 107, 108, 186, 187 Adil Kaymaz · 226 Ahmad El Sayed · 119 Ahmed M. Elaiw · 222 Ahmed M. Elaiw · 220 Ahmet İhsan Kutlar · 69 Ahmet Sahiner · 113, 118, 122 Akif Akgul · 189, 191, 193 Alaattin Esen · 114, 116, 153, 237, 238 Albert C. J. Luo · 5 Ali Konuralp · 180, 181 Ali Köseoğlu · 132, 133 Alireza Khalili Golmankhaneh · 44 Alkin Yurtkuran · 156, 159 Alper Kilic · 207, 208, 214 Ana Carvalho · 70, 71 André Schmidt · 60 António M. Lopes · 240 Arif Can Başıbüyük · 205 Arran Fernandez · 41 Arshed Ahmad · 104, 146 Arshi Meraj · 43 Asıf Yokuş · 54, 73 Aslan Deniz Karaoglan · 241 Asuman Zeytinoglu \cdot 82 Atalay Demirok · 128 Aydin Teymourifar \cdot 30 Aylin Yetim · 211 Ayse Dilek Maden · 234, 235 Ayşegül Keten · 176 Ayşegül Yıldız Ulus · 123 Aytekin Çıbık · 100

В

B. Murat Eyuboglu · 61 Bahar Ulusoy · 191 Batuhan Eren Engin · 65, 66 Bayram Arda Kuş · 137 Bedri Yüksel · 188 Belkız Torğul · 48, 49 Berat Karaagac · 114, 115, 116, 129, 153, 237 Berk Güzelışık · 128 Betul Hicdurmaz · 149 Betul Yagmahan · 156, 159 Beyza Billur İskender Eroğlu · 173, 192, 209 Bilal Gurevin · 189, 191, 193 Bilgehan Güven · 46 Birdal Senoglu · 125 Birdal Senoğlu · 117 Burak Aricioglu · 189 Burcu Gürbüz · 80 Burcu Kubur Özbel · 107, 108 Burcu Yaşkıran · 228

С

C. Ravichandran · 168 Çağrı Koç · 111 Carla Pinto · 6, 70, 71 Cem Kadilar · 63, 84 Cemre Aydın · 38 Cihan Bayındır · 45 Coşkun Hamzaçebi · 143

D

David Z. Zhang · 26 Derya Avci · 209, 211, 221 Dilara Yapışkan · 192 Doğan Kaya · 54, 73, 155 Dumitru Baleanu · 41, 59, 76, 229 Duran Turkoglu · 75 Dursun Irk · 81 Duygu Yılmaz Eroğlu · 91 Dwijendra N Pandey · 43

Ε

Ebru Dağ · 190 Ediz Atmaca · 77, 79 Efgan Uğur · 185 Ekin Can Erkuş · 165 Ekrem Savas · 7 El Abdon Atangana · 233 El Arbi Abdellaoui Alaoui · 232 Elçin Yusufoğlu · 223 Elif Doğan Dar · 166 Elif Güleryüz · 91 Elife Begüm Bacaksız · 128

Emin Ümit Kobak · 29 Emine Chousein Topal · 88 Emine Tutsun · 103 Emir Can Yaman · 204 Emre Guleryuz · 193 Emre Kara · 68, 69, 101 Ercan Celik · 206 Ercan Tunç · 225, 226, 227 Erdem İlten · 190, 219 Erhan Pişkin · 31, 33, 67 Ersin Bahar · 172 Ertugrul Ates · 184 Esmehan Uçar \cdot 221 Esra Akdeniz · 149 Esra Gökpınar · 145 Esra Saban · 143 Evren Topcu · 81 Ezgi Kaya · 234

F

Faruk Dusunceli · 195, 206 Fatma Altun · 134, 135 Fatma Ayaz · 224 Fatma Balkancioglu · 88 Fatma Ekinci · 31 Fatma G. Eroglu · 55 Fatma Selen Madenoğlu · 95, 96 Fatma Tokmak Fen · 198, 199 Fehmi Burçin Özsoydan · 186, 187 Ferhat Erdal · 169 Figen Özpınar · 58 Fikri Gökpınar · 145 Fikriye Nuray Yılmaz · 171 Fırat Evirgen · 28, 29 Francesco Pilati · 21

G

Gabil Amirali · 90 Gabriel Magalakwe · 164 Gamze Güven · 117, 145 Gamze Özel Kadilar · 63, 84 Gerhard-Wilhelm Weber · 57 Gilbert Laporte · 111 Göktürk Poyrazoğlu · 109, 110, 119, 128 Gülçin Kaya · 91 Gülşen Yaman · 204 Gülsüm İşman · 152 Gurhan Gurarslan · 172 Gurkan Ozturk · 30

Η

Hacer Karacan · 124, 126 Haci Mehmet Baskonus · 168, 195 Hakan Akyıldırım · 243 Hakan Çetin · 110 Hakan Sahin · 75, 83 Halil Coşkun · 143 Halima Lakhbab · 147 Hamit Armağan · 157 Hande Uslu · 89, 102 Haris Calgan · 218, 219 Hasan Bulut · 195, 216, 242 Hasan Gunduz · 183 Hasan H. Eroglu · 61 Hasan Huseyin Yildirim · 163, 217 Hasan Tatlı · 39, 40 Hatice Ediz Atmaca · 141, 142 Hatice Oncel Cekim · 84 Hatice Şamkar · 117 Hatice Taskesen · 74 Hayriye Gulbudak · 167 Hazal Yüksekkaya · 33, 67 Hüseyin Merdan · 36

I

Ibrahim Aydogdu · 169, 170 İbrahim Enam İnan · 216 İbrahim Kağan Kutlubay · 201 Ibrahim Kucukkoc · 21, 26, 241 İclal Gör · 131 Idris A. Masoud Abdulhamid · 118 Ihsan Pehlivan · 191 İlkay Yaslan Karaca · 199 İlkem Turhan Çetinkaya · 223 İlker Gölcük · 186, 187 Ilker Kucukoglu · 88, 159 Ilker Ustoglu · 184 İlknur Tükenmez · 111, 112, 154 İlyas Göğebakan · 110 İrem Bektaş Güner · 224 Ishak Altun · 75 İsmail Altan Tekin · 143 Ismail Atalay · 241 İsmail Atbakan · 148 Ismail Bayezit · 200, 202, 212, 213 İsmail Tahir Kökten · 130

J

J. A. Tenreiro Machado · 5

J.A. Tenreiro Machado · 240 João Nuno Tavares · 70, 71 Jordan Hristov · 5 José Manuel Andrade · 218

Κ

Kadir Büyüközkan · 143 Kadir Günoğlu · 243, 244 Kadir Tekeli · 78, 131 Kadriye Ergün · 188 Kerem Arayıcı · 110 Kıvanç Güngör · 69 Korhan Günel · 131, 152 Kürşad Melih Güleren · 201, 203, 205, 210

L

Lale Özbakir · 96 Levent Bilgili · 207, 208, 214 Lila Rasekh · 127

Μ

M. Ali Koşan · 126 M. Chetioui · 230, 231 M. Tezer-Sezgin · 38 Mahmut Modanli · 158 Mahmut Reyhanoglu · 200 Maia Martcheva · 167 Manuel D. Ortigueira · 240 Marat Akhmet · 196, 197 Marcela Fabio · 42 Maria I. Troparevsky · 42 Masood Khalique · 164 Matthias Hinze · 60 Medine Demir · 100 Mehdi Sadighi · 61 Mehmet Ali Balcı · 24, 25 Mehmet Ali Ilgin · 97, 98, 99 Mehmet Kemal Leblebicioglu · 6 Mehmet Onur Fen · 196, 197, 198 Mehmet Sevri · 124, 126 Mehmet Sezer · 80 Mehmet Yavuz · 174, 176, 217, 228, 236 Melih Ağraz · 165 Melike Sultan Karasu Asnaz · 188 Meltem Gölgeli · 53 Meltem Koşan · 120, 121 Merve Gürbüz · 34, 35 Merve Kocakula · 152 Merve Şen · 154

Metin Demirtas · 190, 218, 219 Metin Şengül · 52 Metin Varan · 191 Mevlüde Yakıt Ongun · 92, 93 Müfit Şan · 64 Muhammed Ali Koşan · 124 Muhammet Enes Akpinar · 97, 98, 99 Muhammet Enes Durmaz · 90 Münevver Tezer-Sezgin · 34, 35 Murat Erhan Cimen · 193 Murat Gökay İmamoglu · 203 Murat Önal · 238 Murat Sari · 89, 102, 104, 146 Mustafa Aktaş · 120, 121 Mustafa Emre Kazaz · 154 Mustafa Inc · 183 Mustapha El Moudden · 232 Muzaffer Askin · 206

Ν

N. Benabdallah · 230, 231 N. Benahmed · 230, 231 N. Valliammal · 168 Naci Saldi · 72 Nader Rahbar Soureh · 44 Nazlı Keskin · 143 Necati Özdemir · 209, 221, 236 Necibe Tuncer · 167 Nihal Özdoğan · 92, 93 Nihal Yılmaz Özgür · 173, 175 Nilüfer Vural · 106 Nuray Gedik · 239 Nurcan Bilgili Güngör · 75, 83, 161 Nuri Murat Yagmurlu · 114, 116, 237 Nurullah Yilmaz · 113, 118, 122

0

Olcay Sert · 207 Ömer Akgüller · 24, 25 Omer Can Karakurt · 208 Ömer Özyurt · 94 Onur Kaya · 112 Onur Silahtar · 182 Orhan Özdemir · 225, 227 Osman Babayiğit · 201, 203 Osman Kocaaslan · 205, 210 Osman Tunca · 169, 170 Ozan Bahadir · 30 Özge Gürer · 117 Özgür Tıraşçı · 109 Özkan Atan · 182
Özlem Türkşen · 105, 106 Oznur Sayim · 88

Ρ

Pelin Yıldız · 91 Pınar Baban · 154 Pınar Usta · 56, 57

Q

Qasem M. Al-Mdallal · 27 Qiang Li · 26

R

Rabia Korkmaz Tan · 177 Raf Jan · 127 Rahman Bitirgen · 200, 202 Rajai Alassar · 32 Ramazan Altay · 204 Ramazan Yaman · 204, 215 Remco I. Leine · 60 Rıdvan Şahin · 132, 133, 134, 135 Rıfat Aşliyan · 78, 148

S

Ş. Sibel Menteş · 39 Sadia Arshad · 76 Said Agoujil · 232 Sakir Sakarya · 163 Saud M. Alsulami · 220 Şebnem Bora · 177, 194 Seda Ay · 79 Sedat Kömürcü · 178, 179 Selcuk Kutluay · 116, 237 Semih Küçük · 28 Serap Ergün · 56, 57 Serbay Duran · 153, 155 Sercan Öner · 180, 181 Serdar Carbas · 169, 170 Serdar Yüksel · 72 Serkan Aslıyüce · 138 Sevcan Emek \cdot 194 Sevde Dilruba Karayel · 77, 79, 142 Seyma Tuluce Demiray · 242 Sezayi Hızlıyel · 62 Sezgin Kacar · 189, 193 Sezi Çevik Onar · 160, 162 Shafeek. A. Ghaleb \cdot 222

Shehab A. Ibrahem · 122 Sibel Ozer · 129, 144 Sibel Şehriban Ataş · 216 Sila O. Korkut · 172 Simge Yozgat · 141, 142 Sinan Turhan · 69 Sırma Zeynep Alparslan Gök · 56, 57 Songul Cinaroglu · 86, 87 Songül Kaya Merdan · 55, 100, 130 Sude Bulut · 98, 99 Sukran Seker · 139, 140 Sümeyra Uçar · 173, 175 Suna Ertunç · 105, 106

T

Tahir Cosgun · 89, 102, 104, 146 Talha Arslan · 125 Taofeek O. Alade · 220 Tevfik Oguz Omercioglu · 170 Tilve Aydın · 154 Tolgay Kara · 101, 137, 185 Toufik Amieur · 219 Toufik Mekkaoui · 233 Tuba Tezer · 215 Tuğba Akman Yıldız · 76 Tuğba Küçükseyhan · 151 Tuğba Yazgan · 216 Tuğçe Kılışcı · 154 Tulin Gunduz · 88, 91 Tuncay Yiğit · 157 Turan Paksoy · 48, 49, 65, 66

U

Uğur Demiroğlu · 54, 73 Umut Akyüz · 85 Umut Okkan · 239 Utku Cem Karabulut · 207, 208, 214

V

Vahide Bulut · 37 Vatan Aksoy Tezer · 212, 213 Vedat Evren · 194 Veysel Çoban · 160, 162 Vilda Purutçuoğlu · 85, 165, 166 Vincent Cannataro · 167

Y

Yakup Ermurat • 94 Yashar Zehforoosh • 44 Yeliz Buruk Şahin • 136, 150 Yesim Cicek • 172 Yeşim Sağlam Özkan • 62 Yihua Li • 127 Yılmaz Gür • 50, 51 Yunus Biçen · 22, 23 Yuriy Povstenko · 209 Yusuf Ucar · 114

Ζ

Zakia Hammouch • 168 Zehra Kamisli Ozturk • 103 Zehra Pinar • 47

This is the end of the abstract book.

<u>ICAMΣ'18</u>



